WA

5052597

L

AR

)

'
i
i
i
]
I

R¥A 1 3 2005

0

¢ Credit E@h@m@@m@ﬁﬁ

APR 28 2008

THOMSOpN
FiNaNCiAL

e
e

S ——

JRs o

S idag Al

5= |




Lt noERelle!

T
g

s

e
% CHE)
AL

oe
i

ol
St

'pMISCé




®

Financia'i' o | 4
Highlights | ‘

(Dollars in thousands, except per share data or otherwise noted) . i

As of and for fhe-Years

Ended December 31, 2054 2003 2002 20Q1 2000 1999 1998 1997 1996
)
Total Revenues 1U5E8230 5 891721 § 882,118 § 774436 S 656664 $ 568347 $ 540,148 § 503422 § 449,094
Net Income b 33335 6 299433 $ 346217 $ 30%,212 $ 260212 § 204466 $ 190360 $ 175309 $ 159,271
Total Assets - $5,145,967  $4,794289 $3,517,049 $2,98é,952 $2,392,657 $2,100,762 $1,777,870 $1,686,603 $1,509,919
Shareholders’ h ‘ & .
Equity - 23,057,755 $2,784,029  $2,193,833 $1,78$,688 $1499211 $1,217,268 $1,097515 $1,061,180 §$ 986,862
Return on Equity® 34T 12.3% 17.1% 18.5% 19.3% 17.7% 17.7% 17.2% 17.1%
Shares Outstanding® : ]
(in thousands): : (‘
Basic at Year End 4T 95,162 89,943 89,163 88,620 89,404 90,836 97,384 103,529
Basic’ Welghted- o '
Average S B 89,915 89,843 88,887 88,507 89,787 94,181 100,157 104,855
Diluted Wexghted- b
Average 105,73 99,198 99,533 94,421 90,037 90,488 94598 100,531 105,120
Per Share Daté:l‘z’_~ .
Book Value .. | G 3BIV 0§ 2926 $ 2439 § 2004 § 1692 $ 1362 $ 1208 $ 1090 $§ 953
Basic Netlnccihie S % 413§ 333 ¢ 38 $ 346 § 294 § 228 5 202 § 175 $ 151
Diluted Netlncome 3 327 § 309 § 355 % 328 § 28 § 226 % 200 § 175 § 150
Cash Dividends :
Declared . =+ % ¢/ $ 01386 010§ 008§ 008 $ 007 S 007§ 007 § 007

(1) Return on eqmty is calculated usmg an average of the beginning and ending balances of shareholders’ equity for the respective calendar year.
(2) Share data has been: spht ad)u:ted In addition, beginning in 2001 and in accordance with recently issued EITFNo. 04-8, diluted earnings per share data was retro-
actively adjusted to Teflect the dilutive effects of contingently convertible debt issued by the Company in 2001, See Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary

)

Data—Note 3 New Avcuuntmg Standards for further discussion.
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LARAT DRATENGIGErs,

The PMI Group, Inc. (PMI) had an excellent year in 2004, suc-
cessfully achieving a number of key objectives despite lower
than anticipated mortgage rates, tight credit spreads and the
impact of a still less than robust economy. 2004 was a signifi-
cant milestone for PMI as we celebrated our tenth year as a
publicly traded company. When we went public in 1995, we
were strictly a domestic mortgage insurance company, with a
small title insurance subsidiary. Beginning in 1999, we
expanded significantly, broadening our credit enhancement
solutions globally, across multiple asset classes and customer
segments. We have developed a balanced and diversified stra-
tegic plan and are executing it with clear focus. With a concen-
tration on two major lines of business, mortgage insurance and
financial guaranty, PMI is uniquely positioned to meet the
needs of the global mortgage credit enhancement industry as
we move into 2005 and beyond. I am confident that our stabil-
ity, balance and diversification will continue to propel us for-
ward and to provide strong returns for our shareholders.

For 33 years, PMI has been an integral part of the housing sec-
tor and our mission remains fostering the goal of homeowner-
ship. Our core value is providing access to affordable housing
for underserved neighborhoods, communities and popula-
tions. As well as creating homeownership opportunities, PMI
preserves homeownership by keeping families in their homes.
In 2004, PMI’s loss mitigation efforts enabled nearly 2,300 fam-
ilies to stay in their homes. These borrowers’ loans were in
default and we worked vigilantly through their lenders to
bring their loan current or, at least, to avoid foreclosure. This
preservation of homeownership and our loss mitigation efforts
demonstrate our commitment to strengthening our relation-
ships with our customers and mitigating mutual losses while
building strong communities.

Looking ahead, demographic factors will be a driving force in
the future growth in PMI's U.S. business. Projected immigra-
tion and household formation rates over the balance of the
decade will likely result in the above 80 percent loan-to-value
sector, which is our business, growing at an even faster pace
than the U.S. mortgage business as a whole.

Internationally, we believe the outlook is equally bright. PMI
Australia has been the mainstay of our international opera-
tions, sustaining a strong foundation and paving the way for
its future innovations and successes. In Europe, we believe the
prospects are favorable that PMI Europe will expand its opera-
tions into additional countries. As European mortgage mar-
kets continue to develop, PMI Europe’s expertise in providing
primary insurance, reinsurance, credit default swaps solutions
and risk management will alleviate European Union lenders’
risk on their portfolios.

In our financial guaranty segment, Financial Guaranty Insurance
Corporation (FGIC) continues to execute on the new investor

business plan and was recently authorized to write financial
guaranty insurance in the United Kingdom. The subsidiary
license will allow FGIC to conduct most of its European Union
business out of its London office. FGIC had tremendous suc-
cess growing its U.S. business in 2004 and is now seeking to
replicate its growth in the UK. and Europe.

2004 Financ Cotazho g
During this past year, we reported record levels of both con-
solidated revenues and net income. For the first time ever, our
consolidated revenues from continuing operations exceeded
$1 billion. We grew our consolidated net income to a record
$399 million or $3.87 per share. Further, we set a record for
consolidated primary insurance in force, at approximately
$270 billion. PMI Capital Corp., which manages our interna-
tional mortgage insurance operations and financial guaranty
segments, represented 43 percent of PMI's consolidated net
operating income in 2004, consistent with our goal that it gen-
erate 40 to 50 percent of The PMI Group’s consolidated net
income in 2004, 2005 and 2006.

'ax_ \a,‘ SN

Even as we continued to grow PMI Capital Corp., we
de-emphasized two ancillary business enterprises that PMI
Capital Corp. had previously managed; title insurance and
lender services. Early in 2004, we closed the sale of American
Pioneer Title Insurance Company (APTIC), a former wholly-owned
subsidiary of The PMI Group, Inc., which was our initial strategic
investment in 1992. In December 2004, we executed a letter of
intent granting an option to Credit Suisse First Boston (USA),
Inc. or CSFB to purchase our interest in SPS Holding Corp.
Should this option be exercised by July 31, 2005, this transaction
will complete PMI's transition to a business strategy focused
on mortgage insurance and financial guaranty. Naturally, SPS
will continue to be a well managed servicer of single-family
residential mortgage loans regardless of whether CSFB exercises
its option.
5. Mortgage Tosurmoie Un o

Within our U.S. Mortgage Insurance operations, our industry
faced considerable competition from other products, particu-
larly 80/10/10 loans, and we expect this competitive dynamic
to continue in 2005. Despite this challenge, we realized note-
worthy gains in 2004 highlighted by growing our market share
in new insurance written, while continuing our balanced
approach to risk management. Our domestic persistency con-
tinued to improve, increasing to 61.8 percent at year end from
45.1 percent for the same period a year ago. Our primary risk
in force increased by approximately $1 billion to $25.7 billion
and this increase contributed to the growth of premiums
earned, which totaled $634 million for the year, compared to
$593 million for the same period a year ago.

We also believe that some of the factors that gave rise to the
growth of these 80/10/10 loans are beginning to change.

LA




Today’s historically low costs of borrowing won't last forever.
The prime rate increased seven times from June 2004 to April
2005 and the cost of borrowing will likely keep rising as the
Fed moves to restrain inflationary pressures. In this current
rising interest rate environment, mortgage insurance provides
a compelling and predictable advantage for homebuyers.

The U.S. homéownership rate ended 2004 at 69.2 percent—a
record level, accordmg to the U.S. Census Bureau. This indi-
cates that housing is still leading the way in our economy.
Barring any unforeseen events that damage the economy, hous-
ing demand should remain historically strong in 2005. The
mortgage insurance industry is a fundamental and critical
component of the U.S. housing finance system and in my 20
years with PMI, we havé seen numerous challenges during |
various parts of the business cycle. We have met these chal- ¢
lenges and emerged as a stronger, more balanced and diversified
company and there is no doubt in my mind we will do so again.

CoanEn el
2004 was a’ tremendous year for our international operations, as K
premiums earned totaled $136 million compared to $104 mil-

lion in 2003, a 31 percent increase year-over-year. PMI Australia | Im R Ay 20 Vjeaiss) with PMI, we have seen
had another outstanding year, delivering record net income -

growth and outstanding claims and delinquency performance. UG HOLLS @LFJEIHLQTTBC@ durin RE various
PMI Australia’ passed a milestone, marking its 40th year of X I TSNS Y o
operations in the Australian mortgage market, where it has pasts of the business eycle. We have
provided Lenders Mortgage Insurance to almost 2 million | et fhese challen NEES EIRGE] EHED d@d as &
Australian households. We are proud of all that PMI Australia ¢

has accomplished in 40 years and are delighted to mark this @@1"\’0 more balanced and diversifed
achievement. Turning to PMI Europe, its net income in 2004 . s i

more than doubled from the previous year. We continued our  * cempany and there Is no doulbt in my
expansion, launching our first PMI Europe office on the conti- mind we will de so éﬁcﬁﬂo

nent and establishing a presence in Milan, Italy. The potential ¢
for future market growth in Europe is significant and any
mortgage credit enhancement provider that expects to be a
viable competitor in the industry has to be a participant in the
European market. Rounding out our international operations,
PMI's Hong Kong branch had a terrific year. Driven by a strong =
economic recovery, PMI's Hong Kong branch set records for
premiums written in the fourth quarter 2004 and for the year. .,

il Trznen . f
In our fmanc1a1 guaranty segment, FGIC contributed $56.6 mil-
lion to PMI's consolidated net income. Our strategic investmentin ¢
FGIC has certainly been a timely investment for PMI, especially
considering the large volume of mortgage-related securitizations ¢
that hit the market in 2004. Issuers of mortgage-backed securities ||
(MBS) purchased bond insurance for $79 billion of new trans- - ?
actions, up from $32 billion a year earlier. FGIC was awarded the
largest share of that business, providing credit enhancement
on approximately 29 percent of all insured MBS issues.
According to an industry source, FGIC increased its market
share to 25 percent, moving from fourth to second place in the
broader structured finance segment of financial guaranty, i

L]




which includes all insured publicly issued asset backed securities
(ABS) and MBS issuance. |

Under its new management, FGIC has been increasing its busi-
ness volume by expanding the breadth of asset classes it will !
guarantee, and recruiting top-tier industry professionals.
During 2004, our management teams built the foundation of a r
strong collaboration between FGIC and our US. mortgage |
insurance business, which allows our customers access to a full |
array of first, second and remote loss products. More to the !
point, PMI and FGIC participated together in two transactions, i
demonstrating the synergy that can be achieved between these
two companies.

riotable Achievements

Standard & Poor’s placed a “AA” insurer financial strength rat-
ing on our principal mortgage insurance subsidiaries PMI |
Mortgage Insurance Co., PMI Australia and PMI Europe with a
new designation of “core status” for PMI Australia and PMI |
Europe. These rating actions were significant because they
enhanced our flexibility to allocate our capital resources in
order to support growth in our businesses.

The Company launched a Washington, DC. government relations
office, allowing us to work more closely with legislators, regu-
lators, our trade association partners and other organizations
to further the understanding of PMI's business and mission.
This underscores our commitment to playing an industry leading
role within the housing finance and credit enhancement system.

We completed the repurchase of common stock buybacks under
our $100 million share repurchase authorization. The total
repurchase consisted of approximately 2.5 million common
shares at an average cost per share of approximately $40.46. We
announced our execution of a five-year, $175 million revolving
credit facility agreement with Bank of America, N.A. and a
consortium of lenders. The agreement was significant because
it makes available additional liquidity and capital.

“Tordable Housing

PMI's mortgage insurance business facilitates homeownership
opportunities for low-to-moderate income homebuyers. We
have a corporate commitment to make the dream of homeown-
ership a reality for minority and low- and moderate-income
homebuyers. We have assumed a leadership role in increasing
the homeownership rate for underserved demographic groups,
serving over one million low- and moderate-income families
since 1997. By focusing on emerging markets, we are well posi-
tioned to provide credit enhancement products for emerging
U.S. mortgage markets in the coming years.

PMI creates affordable housing initiatives for several reasons.
In our effort to expand homeownership, we forge lasting ties
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not only with lenders and the GSEs but with community groups
as well. These partnershxps help build the assets of families and
low-income communities through their comprehensive programs
of sustainablé” phy51ca1 economic and social development.
These relanonshlps are de51gned to tap into the potential
homeownershlp market in these underserved communities,
and ultimately, ‘to-grow ‘our business. And internally, our
employees feel better about.their workplace, which creates loyalty,
enthusiasm' and higher retention rates, Qur employees have a
strong passion for-helping the less fortunate and for supporting
philanthropic..causes, especially initiatives that bolster our
mdustry, the housmg sector

Homeovxrnership _represents much more than family security—
a home is an appreciating asset that homeowners of all
incomes, ages dnd ethnicities have used to improve their finan-
cial situations.: Ownmg homes helps families generate wealth
and helps provu:le a more secure financial future. Puiting
homeownership within'reach of more Americans at affordable,
fair, and transparent ferms is - critical need that the nation’s
housing finance industry must help meet. Creating homeown-
ership makes for:stronger families, and stronger families make
for stronger communmes, ultlmately strengthening our soci-
ety and nation;

iy
2004 was another successful year for PMI in advancing our
community glvmg and affordable housing initiatives, Currently,
we are serving approxnnately 1.8 million families worldwide.
Since 1997, PMI has participated in the development of over
100 new affordable housing programs and has insured over
400 Emerginig Market products.

PMI has nowj‘buhilt, sponsored or contributed to nearly 100
Habitat for Humanity homes worldwide. In 2004, PMI was the
lead sponsor for.a Habitat build in St. Charles, Illinois; part-
nered onthe Congress Buxldmg America National Underwriters,
which built two single-family homes in northeast Washington,
D.C.; donatéd to Habitat for Humanity of San Fernando/Santa
Clarita Valleys-to help complete the construction of three
homes; created: affordable housing for a Boise, Idaho family
through “The Houses The Senate Built” program; and Blitz
Built a house for a deservmg family in Butte, Montana.

PMI's Gateway Cities Initiative establishes a revolving fund
that community housing organizations draw upon to purchase
homes and/or.rehabilitate existing homes. As each housing
unit is completed, the fund is reimbursed from the proceeds of
sale, providing an opportumty for the community organiza-
tion to start a new project. In 2004, Gateway launched projects
with the Pueblo of Acoma in Sky City, New Mexico; Hopeful
Housing Corporation in Wheeling, West Virginia; and cele-
brated the completion of the initial seven units of a 13-unit
housing development in Houston with Avenue CDC.

RN RS

‘Other noteworthy community initiatives included our contri-
bution to the National Community Reinvestment Coalition,
who utilized our grant to increase the flow of private capital
dnto traditionally underserved communities. We announced
our financial support for the National American Indian
Housing Council, which utilized these funds to create afford-
:able housing opportunities for deserving Native American
families. We raised financial aid to benefit the Congressional
Hispanic Caucus Institute’s leadership development programs,
‘which benefit Hispanic youth. We bestowed a grant to the
National Training and Information Center, which reduces bar-
riers to homeownership in underserved communities.

"Finally, PMI employees rose to the occasion and significantly
.contributed to disaster relief for the nations devastated by the
Indian Ocean tsunami. The PMI Foundation, our nonprofit
organization established by The PMI Group, Inc., matched a
‘grant of $5 for every dollar donated by our employees, who
responded with over 350 individual contributions, worldwide.

TN
‘None of PMI's 2004 accomplishments would have been possi-
ble without a strong, seasoned management team: led by Steve
Smith, head of our US. mortgage insurance business; Brad
Shuster, who leads our international business and strategic
‘investments; Vic Bacigalupi, our general counsel and chief
administrative officer; Don Lofe, our chief financial officer;
:David Katkov, in charge of U.S. sales, field operations and
‘product development; Tony Porter, who manages our European
‘business segments; and Dan Roberts, our chief information
;officer. The entire management team, which for lack of space I
‘cannot name in its entirety, is commended on their superb
efforts. Tan Graham, managing director of PMI Australia,
marked his 35th year with the Australian company in 2004.
commend lan on this milestone, his terrific leadership and
‘many accomplishments over the course of his career. Roy
Lassiter, chairman and chief executive officer of APTIC, was
an integral member of the PMI Family for a dozen years before
:we sold our shares in APTIC last year. I thank Roy for his ded-
icated work and wish him and his team well in their future
endeavors. I also want to thank the PMI team, who drive our
success and exemplify excellence. Our dedicated employees

“provide value to our shareholders and strive to build a strong

PMI for the future. Finally, I would like to thank you, our
shareholders, for your ongoing confidence in and support of
-our Company.

|

W iR, I\}MBM‘M

W. Roger Haughton
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
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U.S. Mortgage Insurance Operations
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“The growth in our premiums earned to $634 million for the
year, compared to $593 million for the same period one year
ago, was a sound improvement year over year particularly
when coupled with the approximate $1 billion increase in our
risk in force. In 2005, we expect to continue our positive
momentum with high single-digit to low double-digit net
income growth for our U.S. mortgage insurance operations.”

ar- —Steve Smith, President and Chief Executive Officer,

PMI Mortgage Insurance Co.




il

’Net income contributions from PMI's Internationat Operations
for 2004 totaled nearly $100 million, which is approximately
25 percent of the company’s consolidated net income. We've
achieved a compound annual growth rate of 42 percent for net
operating income from our International Operations segment
in the 2001-2004 time period. This is an accomplishment in
which we take tremendous pride. PMI Australia had another
strong year and developed revenue sources beyond its tradi-
tional flow mortgage insurance. One example of this was PMI
Australia providing credit enhancement for Australian resi-
dential mortgage-backed securities. PMI Australia enhanced
87 transactions last year for 32 customers. In sum, we're very
pleased with the performance of all of our businesses in the
International Operations segment.”

—Tony Porter, Executive Vice President, Managing Director,

. International Mortgage Insurance.
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Financial Guaranty

ranty [nsurance Corpaoration

the primary

a1t As o leading financial guaranty insus-

s triple-A eredit enhancement on

< enabling bond issuers

and arhancing their access to

PaATie the fargest shareholder in FGIC

T TMATKEDS,

- initial entry inte {inancial
srraregic investment in RAM Re, a
(Riginvestment enabled us to

MG of expanding cur pres-

“QOur strategic investment in FGIC was a significant step for
PMI, and built upon what we'd learned about the sector from
our earlier investment in Ram Re. FGIC, which had a stellar
first year under its new management, has certainly been a
timely investment for PMI, especially considering the large
volume of mortgage-related securitizations that hit the market
in 2004. We look forward to structuring more PMI and FGIC
collaborative transactions this year and beyond. Through both
FGIC and Ram Re, we anticipate continuing growth in our
financial guaranty segment with an expectation of mid-teens
net income growth in 2005.”
—Brad Shuster, President and Chief Executive Officer,

PM1 Capital Corporation.




~—— DEDICATED 70— |
‘PROVIDING HOME OWNERSHIP.
—— SPONSORED BY —

N A L“’..,‘:';‘;::J‘y”

Left to right: Pamted wooden panel of ‘gallows frames,” a term used by Butte coal miners to mark where underground mines operated,
painted by Butte artist; house under construction on the second morning of the build; Vic Costelli, Steve Tasker, Andrew Kempf,
Roger Haughton an@ Greg Haughton; Adrian Bennett, homeowner in red top, her sons Taran and Tyler, Lou Vicevich and his wife
Alice Vice_viéh,;Sogthwest Montana Habitat for Humanity co-presidents presenting key to house.

Onee 2 vé" Lom ‘le “Everyone deserves the opportunity to achieve homeownership.
PMI is committed to creating affordable housing opportunities
for any family or individual who has the ability and desire to
become a homeowner. We are very proud to support a number of
_organizations that foster greater access to affordable housing.
wi rw’k CA tothe we*‘zm Homeownership is at the core of who we are as a company.”
in Montana, srd com pleted a lives —Roger Haughton, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer,

o ‘ 5 Thq PMI Group, Inc.




Left to right: Nancy Neiman, Madison Neiman, Michael Neiman, Director of Direct Marketing, 9 years service; Sean Chatterjee,
Jay Chatterjee, Lead Technical Analyst, 3 years service; Tina Ninh, Adrian Ninh, Alaen Ninh, Senior Investment Analyst, Treasury,
9 years service, Arianna Ninh; Henry Cooper, Senior Project Leader, Emerging Markets, 13 years service, Marisa Cooper, Avis Cooper.

PMI Family

“None of PMI's 2004 accomplishments would have been possible
without the outstanding achievements of our employees—a
great group of talented, creative, dedicated individuals. I want to

ives as tne TP

thank the entire PMI team, who drive our success and exemplify

heir efforts are making it possible excellence. They work together every day to provide value to
St own thelr wwn homes. our shareholders and build a strong PMI for the future.”
—Roger Haughton, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer,

The PMI Group, Inc.
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Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Lodking Statements

Statements we make or incorporate by reference in this and other documents filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission that are not historical facts, that are preceded by, followed by or include the words
“believes,” “expects,” “anticipates,” “estimates” or similar expressions, or that relate to future plans, events or
performance are “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of the federal securities laws. When a
forward-looking statement includes an underlying assumption, we caution that, while we believe the assumption
to be reasonable and make it in good faith, assumed facts almost always vary from actual results, and the
difference between assumed facts and actual results can be material. Where, in any forward-looking statement,
we express-an expectation or belief as to future results, there can be no assurance that the expectation or belief
will result Our actual results may differ materially from those expressed in our forward-looking statements.
Forward: lookmg statements involve a number of risks or uncertainties including, but not limited to, the Risk
Factors adc?ressed in the “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations” sectlon in Item 7. Other risks are referred to from time to time in our periodic filings with the
Securities and Exchange Commission. All of our forward-looking statements are qualified by and should be
read in COIlJllnCthIl with our risk disclosures. Except as may be required by applicable law, we undertake
no obllgatlon to publlcly update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new
lnformatmn, future events or otherwise.
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PART ]

Item 1. Business
A. Overview of Operations—The PMI Group, Inc.

We are an international provider of credit enhancement as well as other products and services that promote
homeownership and facilitate mortgage transactions in the capital markets.

We offer mortgage insurance products in the U.S. that enable borrowers to buy homes with low down-
payment mortgages. Our U.S. Mortgage Insurance Operations generated 72.6% of our consolidated revenues in
2004, Our primary operating subsidiary, PMI Mortgage Insurance Co., including its affiliated U.S. mortgage
insurance and reinsurance companies, collectively referred to as PMI, is a leading U.S. residential mortgage
insurer. PMI’s insurer financial strength is currently rated “AA” (“Very Strong”) with a stable outlook by
Standard & Poor’s, or S&P, “AA+” (“Very Strong”) with a stable outlook by Fitch Ratings, or Fitch, and “Aa2”
(“Excellent”) with a stable outlook by Moody’s Investors Service, or Moody’s.

Our International Operations offer mortgage insurance and other credit enhancement products. Through our
Australian subsidiaries, we are one of the leading providers of mortgage insurance in Australia and New Zealand.
Our European subsidiary, headquartered in Dublin, Ireland, offers mortgage insurance and mortgage credit
enhancement products throughout Europe. PMI also reinsures residential mortgage insurance in Hong Kong.

We are the lead investor in FGIC Corporation, whose subsidiary, Financial Guaranty Insurance Company,
or FGIC, provides primary financial guaranty insurance for public finance and structured finance obligations. We
also have a significant interest in RAM Reinsurance Company, Ltd.,, or RAM Re, a financial guaranty
reinsurance company based in Bermuda.

We own 64.9% of SPS Holding Corp., or SPS, whose subsidiary, Select Portfolio Servicing, Inc. (“Select
Portfolio Servicing”), services single-family residential mortgages in the United States. In January 2005, we
entered into a Summary of Terms with Credit Suisse First Boston (USA), Inc., or CSFB, that provides CSFB
with the option, exercisable on or before July 31, 2005, to acquire 100% of our investment in SPS. In March
2004, we completed the sale of our title insurance subsidiary, American Pioneer Title Insurance Company.

Our consolidated net income was $399.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2004. As of December
31, 2004, our consolidated total assets were $5.1 billion, including our investment portfolio of $3.3 billion as of
that date. Our consolidated shareholders’ equity was $3.1 billion as of December 31, 2004. See Item 8. Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data—Note 20. Business Segments, for financial information regarding our
business segments. S&P and Fitch have assigned our holding company, The PMI Group, Inc., an “A” and “A+”
counterparty credit and senior unsecured debt ratings (stable outlook), respectively, and Moody’s has assigned an
“A1” senior unsecured debt rating (stable outlook).

Our website address is Attp://www.pmigroup.com. Information on our website does not constitute part of this
report. Our annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, and any
amendments to those reports are available free of charge on our website via a hyperlink as soon as reasonably
practicable after such material is electronically filed with or furnished to the Securities and Exchange
Commission.

Our principal executive offices are located at 3003 Oak Road, Walnut Creek, California 94597-2098, and
our telephone number is (925) 658-7878.

B. U.S. Mortgage Insurance Operations

Residential mortgage insurance facilitates the sale of low down-payment mortgages in the mortgage capital
markets and expands homeownership opportunities by enabling borrowers to buy homes with down-payments of
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less thari 20%. PMI provides primary mortgage insurance, or primary insurance, and pool mortgage insurance, or
pool insurance, against losses in the event of borrower default. PMI’s mortgage insurance products are purchased
by lenders and investors, including Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac, or the GSEs, and the Federal Home Loan
Banks, seeking protection against default risk, capital relief or credit enhancement for mortgage transactions in
the capital miarkets. PMI is licensed in all 50 states, the District of Columbia, Puerto Rico, Guam and the Virgin
Islands. PMI is incorporated in Arizona and headquartered in Walnut Creek, California.

1. Products
Primary Insurance

anary 1nsurance provides mortgage default protection to lenders and investors on individual loans at
specified coverage percentages PMI’s obligation to an insured with respect to a claim is generally determined by
multiplying' the coverage percentage selected by the insured by the loss amount on the defaulted loan, which
includes any unpaid loan balance, delinquent interest and certain expenses associated with the loan’s default and
property foreclosure. In lieu of paying the coverage percentage of the loss amount on a defaulted loan, PMI may
pay the loss amount and take title to the mortgaged property.

PMP’s primary new insurance written, or NIW, for the year ended December 31, 2004 was $41.2 billion.
NIW refers to the original ‘principal balance of all loans which receive prrmary mortgage insurance coverage
during a given period. PMI's primary insurance in force and primary risk'in 'force at December 31, 2004 were
$105.3 billion and $25.7 billion, respectively. Primary insurance in force refers to the current principal balance of
all outstandmg morlgage loans with primary insurance coverage as of a given date. Primary risk in force is the
aggregate dollar amount of each primary insured mortgage loan’s current principal balance multiplied by the
insurance' coverage percentage specified in the policy.

PMI acquires: primary insurance on a loan-by-loan basis (flow channel) and in bulk transactions (bulk
channel). While their; terms. vary, bulk transactions generally involve bidding upon and, if successful, insuring a
large group of loans on agreed terms. Some bulk transactions contain a risk-sharing component under which the
insured. shares in losses. Bulk transactions may involve loans that will be securitized, and in these instances, PMI
may be' asked to prov1de “down t0” insurance coverage sufficient to reduce the insured’s exposure on each loan
down to a percentage of the property value selected by the insured. This coverage generally involves capital
market transactions with respect to mortgage-backed securities. PMI issued $5.0 billion of bulk primary
insurance in 2004; which accounted for 12.0% of PMI's NIW for 2004. In 2003, 12.3% of PMI's NIW was bulk
primary insurance. Coverage levels for loans insured through PMI's flow channel are determined by the coverage
percentages selected by the lenders. Lenders that require mortgage insurance in connection with the origination
or sale of loans generally require a coverage percentage that effectively reduces the ratio of the original loan
amount to thé value of the property, or LTV, to not more than 80%. Higher LTV loans, therefore, generally have
higher coverage peroentages, resulting in higher premiums, but also greater potential losses in the event of a
claim. Generally, refinanced mortgage loans insured by PMI have lower LTVs, and therefore lower coverage
percentages, than purchase money mortgages due to the benefits of home price appreciation often associated with
refinanced loans. Purchase money mortgages, which generally have higher LTVs, tend to have higher coverage
percentages, or “deeper’” coverage. Accordingly, the relative sizes of the purchase money and refinance mortgage
origination markets inﬂuence both the average LTV and average coverage of PMI’s NIW and insurance in force.

Premium:® payments may be paid to PMI on a monthly, annual or smgle premium basis. Monthly payment
plans represented 97.7% of NIW in 2004 and 91.4% of NIW in 2003. As of December 31, 2004, monthly plans
represented 93.7% of PMI's primary risk in force compared to 92.1% at December 31, 2003. Single premium
plan payments may be refundable if coverage is canceled by the insured, which generally occurs when the loan is
repaid, the loan amortizes to ‘a sufficiently low amount, or the value of the property has increased 31gn1f1cantly

Dependmg upon. the loan, the premium payments relating to primary mortgage insurance coverage may
ultimately be: ‘borne‘by the insured (Lender Paid MI) or by the insured’s customer, the individual mortgage
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borrower (Borrower Paid MI). In the case of Borrower Paid MI, the cost of coverage is generally paid via an
extra charge included in the monthly remittance to the mortgage lender. Traditionally, the significant majority of
NIW has been comprised of Borrower Paid MI. However, Lender Paid MI increased to 21.1% in 2004 from
17.2% in 2003 and 10.3% in 2002. With respect to lender paid mortgage insurance acquired through our flow
channel, the cost of the mortgage insurance coverage is embedded in the total financing cost of the mortgage
loan. As a result, the cost of mortgage insurance coverage in these instances may be tax deductible by the
borrower.

Regardless of whether coverage is Lender Paid MI or Borrower Paid MI, mortgage insurance is renewable
at the option of the insured at the premium rate fixed when the insurance on the loan was initially issued. As a
result, the impact of increased claims and incurred losses from policies originated in a particular year cannot be
offset by renewal premium increases on policies in force. Similarly, PMI may not cancel mortgage insurance
coverage except in the event of nonpayment of premiums or certain material violations of PMI’s master policies.
With respect to PMI’s flow channel, the insured or the loan’s mortgage servicer may generally cancel mortgage
insurance coverage at any time. In addition, the GSEs’ guidelines generally provide that a borrower’s written
request to cancel mortgage insurance should be honored if the borrower has a satisfactory payment record and the
principal balance is not greater than 80% of the original value of the property or, in some instances, the current
value of the property. The Homeowners Protection Act of 1998 also provides for the automatic termination, or
cancellation upon a borrower’s request, of private mortgage insurance upon satisfaction of conditions set forth in
the statute.

The GSEs are the predominant purchasers of conventional mortgage loans in the United States, providing a
direct link between mortgage origination and the capital markets. The GSEs may purchase conventional
mortgages with high LTVs only if the lender (i) secures private mortgage insurance from an eligible insurer on
those loans; (i) retains a participation of not less than 10% in the mortgage; or (iii) agrees to repurchase or
replace the mortgage in the event of a default under specified conditions. If the lender retains a participation in
the mortgage or agrees to repurchase or replace the mortgage, applicable federal bank and savings institution
regulations may increase the level of capital required to be held by the lender, thereby increasing the lender’s
cost of doing business. Consequently, lenders tend to originate loans that can be sold in the secondary market
utilizing mortgage insurance from insurers deemed eligible by the GSEs. Lenders that purchase private mortgage
insurance in connection with the sale of loans to the GSEs must comply with the GSEs’ mortgage insurance
coverage percentage requirements. The GSEs have some discretion to increase or decrease the amount of
mortgage insurance coverage they require on loans, provided that minimum charter requirements are met. PMI is
a GSE-authorized mortgage insurer.

Pool Insurance

Traditional Pool Insurance. Prior to 2002, PMI offered certain pool insurance products, referred to as
“traditional” pool insurance, to lenders, the GSEs and the capital markets. These products insure all losses on
individual loans held within a pool of insured loans up to a stated aggregate loss limit, or stop loss limit, for the
entire pool.

Modified Pool Insurance. PMI currently offers modified pool insurance products that may be attractive to
investors and lenders seeking a reduction of default risk beyond the protection provided by existing primary
insurance or with respect to loans that do not require primary insurance, or for capital relief purposes. In addition
to having stop loss limits and other risk reduction features (which may include deductibles), PMI's modified pool
insurance products may have exposure limits on each individual loan in the pool. To date, PMI has issued
modified pool insurance principally to the GSEs as supplemental coverage and to other mortgage capital markets
participants. PMI issues all of its modified pool insurance through bulk-type transactions, which are comprised
predominantly of Alt-A loans (see 4. Business Composition, below).

Unless otherwise noted, primary insurance statistics in this report do not include pool insurance.
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Captive Reinsurance .

Captive reinsurance is a reinsurance product in which PMI shares portions of its risk written on loans
originated by certain lenders with captive reinsurance companies affiliated with such lenders. In return, a
propomonate amount of PMI’s gross premiums written is ceded to the captive reinsurance companies less a
cedmg com]mssmn paid to PMI for underwriting and adrmmstermg the business. PMI's captive reinsurance
agreements pnmanly prov1de for excess-of-loss reinsurance, in which PMI retains a first loss position on a
defined set of mortgage insurance risk, reinsures a second loss layer of this risk with the captive reinsurance
company and retains the remaining risk above the second loss layer up to the maximum coverage level. PMI is
also a party to one'quota share captive reinsurance agreement under which the captive reinsurance company
assumes a pro rata share of all losses in return for a pro rata share of the premiums collected. PMI is also a party
to two other quota share captive reinsurance agreements that are currently in run-off. We believe that captive
reinsurance agreements serve to better align credit decisions with respect to loans which require mortgage
insurance and provide lenders with an ongoing stake in the outcome of the lending decision. This risk transfer
approach also’ decreases the possibility of PMI incurring unacceptably high levels of losses in times of economic
stress. Captive relnsurance agreements also partially offset the impact upon PMI's portfolio of the ongoing
consolidaticn in the’ rnortgage lending industry. Finally, the trust balances of the captive reinsurers are explicitly
recognized ‘in the capital computations of certain rating agency models applied to PMI, and thus improves PMI’s
capital position within those models.

In‘2(‘)04‘, the percentages of primary NIW, primary insurance in force and total primary risk in force subject
to captive reinsurance agreements increased. See Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Resilts of Operations—Results of Operations, U.S. Mortgage Insurance Operations, Premiums
written and earﬁéd These increases were driven by refinance activity that resulted in a high volume of
cancellations of mortgage insurance policies not subject to captive reinsurance, as well as a higher percentage of
NIW generated by:lenders with captive reinsurance programs. We anticipate that captive reinsurance cessions
will continue to' reduce PMI’s premiums earned, and that the percentage of PMI’s flow primary risk in force
subject to capﬁve reinsurance agreements will continue to increase as a percentage of total risk in force in 2005.

Other R isk-Sharihg Products

In addition to captive reinsurance, PMI offers other risk-sharing products, including layered co-insurance, a
primary insurance program under which the insured retains liability for losses between certain levels of aggregate
losses: PMI also-offers various products designed for, and in cooperation with, the GSEs and lenders that involve
some aspect of risk-sharing.

Joint Venture——CMG Mortgage Insurance Company

CMG Mortgage Insurance Company and its affiliates, or CMG, offer mortgage insurance for loans
originated by credit unions. CMG is a joint venture, equally owned by PMI and CUNA Mutual Investment
Corporation, or CMIC CMIC is part of the CUNA Mutual Group, which provides insurance and financial
services to credit unions and their members. Both PMI and CMIC provide services to CMG.. At December 31,
2004, CMG had $14 0 billion of primary insurance in force and $3.2 billion of primary risk in force compared to
$12.6 bllhon of primary insurance in force and $2.8 billion of primary risk in force at December 31, 2003.
CMQG'’s financial results are reported in PMI's financial statements under the equity method of accounting in
accordance w1th generally accepted accounting principles in the United States, or GAAP. CMG’s operating
results are not mcluded in PMI’s results shown in Part I of this Report on Form 10-K, unless otherwise noted.

Under the terms of the restated joint venture agreement effective as of June 1, 2003, CMIC has the right on
September 8, 2015, or earlier under certain limited conditions, to require PMI to sell, and PMI has the right to
require CMIC to purchase, PMI’s interest in CMG for an amount equal to the then current fair market value of
PMTI’s intefest. PMI and CMIC have also entered into a capital support agréement for the benefit of CMG in
order to 'maintain' CMG’s claims-paying ability rating at “AA-” by S&P and “AA” by Fitch. CMG is a GSE-
authorized mortgage insurer.




2. Competition
U.S. Private Mortgage Insurance Industry

The U.S. private mortgage insurance industry consists of eight active mortgage insurers: PMI; CMG;
Mortgage Guaranty Insurance Corporation; Genworth Financial, Inc., an affiliate of General Electric Capital
Corporation; United Guaranty Residential Insurance Company, an affiliate of American International Group,
Inc.; Radian Guaranty Inc.; Republic Mortgage Insurance Co., an affiliate of Old Republic International; and
Triad Guaranty Insurance Corp. Assured Guaranty Mortgage Insurance Company, a subsidiary of Assured
Guaranty Ltd., is also licensed to offer mortgage insurance in the U.S. We believe other companies may also be
considering offering mortgage insurance.

U.S. and State Government Agencies

PMI and other private mortgage insurers compete with federal and state government agencies that sponsor
their own mortgage insurance programs. The private mortgage insurers’ principal government competitor is the
Federal Housing Administration, or FHA, and to a lesser degree, the Veterans Administration, or VA. The
following table shows the relative mortgage insurance market share of FHA/VA and private mortgage insurers
over the past five years.

Federal Government and
Private Mortgage Insurance
Market Share (Based on NIW)

Year Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
FHA/V A 32.8% 36.4% 35.6% 37.3% 41.4%
Private Mortgage InSurance ... ..........c.ouvimenenennnnenennnns 67.2% 63.6% 64.4% 62.7% 58.6%
Total .. e e 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

Source: Inside Mortgage Finance; based upon primary NIW but includes certain insurance written that PMI classifies as pool insurance.

Effective January 1, 2005, the U.S. Housing and Urban Development Department, or HUD, in accordance
with its index, increased the maximum single-family loan amount that the FHA can insure to $312,895 in “high-
cost” areas. Private mortgage insurers have no limit as to maximum individual loan amounts that they can insure.
Increases in the amount that these agencies can insure could cause future demand for private mortgage insurance
to decrease.

PMI and other private mortgage insurers also face competition from state-supported mortgage insurance
funds in several states, including California and New York. From time to time, other state legislatures and
agencies may consider expansions of the authority of their state governments to insure residential mortgages.

Federal Home Loan Banks. The Federal Home Loan Banks, or FHLBs, purchase single-family
conforming mortgage loans originated by participating financial institutions. Purchases of secondary mortgage
loans by participating FHLBs have increased since the program began in 1997. Typically, mortgage insurance
coverage is placed on these loans when the LTV exceeds 80%. Any expansion of the FHLBs’ ability to use, or
the increased use of, alternatives to mortgage insurance could reduce the demand for private mortgage insurance
and harm our financial condition and consolidated results of operations.

Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac—The GSEs

Mortgage insurers, including PMI, compete with the GSEs when the GSEs seek to assume mortgage default
risk that could be covered by mortgage insurance. The GSEs have introduced programs that allow lenders to




purchase reduced tnortgage insurance ‘coverage, as well as programs that provide for the restructuring of existing
mortgage irsurance with reduced amounts of primary insurance coverage and the addition of pool insurance
coverage. If the GSEs were to reduce mortgage insurance coverage requirements for loans they purchase, PMI's
premium revenues would decline,

Findancial Institutions and Mortgage Lenders

PMI and. other private mortgage insurers compete with financial institutions, primarily commercial banks
and thrifts, which retain risk on all or a portion of their high LTV mortgage portfolio rather than obtain insurance
for this risk. The use of captive reinsurance by certain of the lenders with whom we do business (see Captive
Reinsurance, above) also negatively impacts PMI’s risk in force and premiums earned.

In addition, the private mortgage insurance industry faces competition from the home equity lending
operations of these financial institutions and other mortgage lenders who structure their high LTV residential
loans in such a way that mortgage insurance is not required. Certain lenders originate mortgages that have a first
mortgage lien with-an LTV of 80%, and a second mortgage lien ranging from 10% to 20% LTV. These loans are
commonly referred to as “piggyback,” 80/10/10 or 80/20 loans. Since the first mortgage is only an 80% LTV, the
GSEs do not require. mortgage insurance with respect to either mortgage, even though the combined LTV
exceeds 80%. These products have grown in popularity in 2003 and 2004 due to a number of factors, including
sustained low interest rates leading to narrower differentials in banks’ interest rates between second and first
mortgage liens, high home appreciation rates and aggressive home equity line of credit lending. The increasing
popularity and use of these and other similar products have reduced the available market for primary mortgage
insurance.

Other C rédit Enhancement Providers

Bulk transactions often involve bidding upon and, if successful, insuring a pool: of loans that will be
securitized in a capital market transaction. When bidding upon these transactions, PMI may be competing against
other mortgage insurers as well as credit enhancement providers that offer credit enhancement products other
than mortgage 1nsurance The selection of credit enhancement other than mortgage insurance with respect to
these capital’ market transactions negatively affects the private mortgage insurance market and PMI’s insurance
in force-and NIW..

3. Custbmers ‘

PMTI’s customers are primarily mortgage lenders, savmgs institutions, commercial banks, and investors,
including ‘the GSEs the FHLBs, and other capital market participants. As the beneficiary under PMI's master
policies is the owner of the insured loan, the purchaser of that loan is entitled to the policy benefits. The GSEs, as
the predominant purchasers of conventional mortgage loans in the U.S., are the beneficiaries of a substantial
majority ‘of PMI’s mortgage insurance coverage. In 2004, PMI's top ten customers generated 42.0% of PMI’s
premiums eamed compared to 42.1% in 2003.

4, Busmess Composmon

Perszstency, Polzcy Cancellations. Historically, a significant percentage of PMI's premiums earned has
been generated from insurance policies written in previous years. Consequently, the length of time that insurance
remains, in force is a key determinant of PMI's consolidated revenues and net income. Lower interest rates
beginning in 2001 have resulted in heavy mortgage refinance activity, causing PMI's policy cancellations to
increase and thereby negatlvely impacting earned premiums. For example, calendar years 2003 and 2004
exhibited the lowest average interest rates in the period 1994 to 2004. One way in which PMI measures the rate
of policy. cancellations is PMI's persistency rate, which'is based upon the percentage of primary insurance in
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force at the beginning of a 12-month period that remains in force at the end of that period. The following table
shows average annual mortgage interest rates and PMI’s primary portfolio persistency rates from 1994 to 2004.

1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004

Average

Annual

Mortgage

Interest .

Rate* . ... 8.4% 7.9% 7.8% 7.6% 6.9% 7.4% 8.1% 7.0% 6.5% 5.8% 58%

Persistency
Rate ..... §3.6% 86.4% 83.3% 80.8% 68.0% 71.9% 80.3% 62.0% 56.2% 44.6% 60.9%

* Average annual thirty year fixed mortgage interest rate derived from Freddie Mac and Mortgage Bankers Association data.

The declining interest rate environment has been a major factor in shortening the length of time our primary
insurance in force has remained in effect. In 2004, PMI’s persistency improved compared to 2003 while the
average annual mortgage interest rate did not change. We believe that PMI’s higher persistency rate in 2004 was
due in large part to the overall decline in mortgage refinance activity in 2004 compared to 2003.




PMI’s Risk in Force. PMI’s primary risk in force was $25.7 billion as of December 31, 2004 and $24.7
billion as of December 31, 2003. The composition of PMI’s primary and pool risk in force is summarized in the
table below. The table is based upon information available on the date of mortgage origination. -

As of Deicember 31,
2004 2003 2002 2001 2000

Primary Risk in Force (in percentages)*
LTV: . ‘ ’ ' _ .

ABOVE 978 ... R 12.0% 8.6% 2.8% 0.7% 0.1%

97s ... .. P 6.6% 7.4% 6.9% 5.6% 5.5%

95s ........ B 36.4% 37.6% 41.3% 43.1% 45.7%

90s ..o e 359% . 37.0% 39.0% 39.9% 39.8%

8Ssandbelow ... ... 9.2% 9.4% 10.0% 10.7% 8.9%
Loan Type: | - ‘ o

Fixed :...... .. P 85.5%  90.4% 90.9% 90.3% 90.5%

ARMS P [ I 14.5% 96% . 92% 9.7% 9.5%
Property Type: ‘ -

Single-family detached ... ................ .. ... L 84.7% 85.8% 87.6%  88.6% 88.8%

Condominium; townhouse, cooperative ................... 10.7% 10.0% 8.5% 8.0% 8.2%

Multi-family dwellingandother ......................... 46% 42% 3.9% 3.4% 3.0%
Occupancy Stajtus: - ‘ _ ‘

Primary. TESIdEnce . ... ' 932% . 94.8% 95.6% . 96.3% 97.2%

Second hOme .. ..ot 2.7% 2.2% 1.8% 1.6% 1.5%

Non-owner occupied ... 4.1% 3.0% 2.6% 2.2% 1.3%
Loan AIHQUUE' o .

$100,000 or less 20.5% 21.9% 23.6% 24.3% 23.2%

Over $100,000 and up to $250,000 . ...........covvinn.... 62.0% 63.4% 64.6% 65.8% 68.2%

Over $250,000 ...« 17.5% 14.8% 11.9% 9.8% 8.6%

GSE conforming loans** .................. P 93.3% 93.9% 92.9% 91.5% N/A

GSE non-conforming loans™* ............... ... ... 6.7% 6.1% 7.1% 8.6% N/A
Less-than-A Qhalitx e T 10.9% 11.9% 11.9% 11.6% N/A
Alt-A o e 12.7% 8.7% 6.3% 41%  N/A
Average‘priﬁl:ary loan size (in thousands) . .. ................. $ 1581 $ 1503 $ 1439 §$ 1379 $ 1322
Pool Risk ihj‘F‘orc‘e:V( in millioﬂs) ‘

GSEPOOL . ... i $ 1222 $ 4853 $ 7941 $ 8013 §$ 7856

OldPool . .....vie e $ 5017 $ 6568 $ 8638 $1,114.1 $1,295.4

Modified Pool ... .. S $1,517.1 $1,3909 $1,1596 $ 4145 § 159

Other Traditional Pool . ... ..o vt $ 2668 $ 3252 § 3101 $ 2116 $ 1536

*  Due td rounding, the sums of the percentages may not total 100%.
** GSE conforming loans are loans with principal balances that do not exceed the maximum single-family principal balance loan limit
eligible for purchase by the GSEs. In 2004, the maximum single-family principal balance loan limit generally was $333,700.

»  High LTV Loans. LTV is the ratio of the original loan amount to the value of the property. In PMI's
cxperiencé‘, 95s, mortgages with LTVs between 90.01% and 95.00%, have higher claims frequencies
than those of 90s, mortgages with LTVs between 85.01% and 90.00%. In addition, we believe that 97s,
mortgages with LTVs between 95.01% and 97.00%, and Above 97s, mortgages with LTVs exceeding
9‘7.00%,‘haVe higher claims frequencies than 95s.

s Fixed v. Adjustable Rate Mortgages. Based on PMI's experience, the claims frequency of adjustable
" rate mortgages, or ARMs, is generally higher than on fixed rate loans. We consider a loan an ARM if its
.interest rate may be adjusted prior to the loan’s fifth anniversary. In 2004, deferred amortization ARMs,

. commonly known as interest-only loans, became a popular alternative for some borrowers. A small
“portion of ARMs insured by PMI in 2004 were deferred amortization ARMs. With this loan type, the
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borrower does not pay off any principal during the initial deferral period (usually between two and ten
years depending on the loan product) and therefore does not accumulate equity through loan
amortization. While the creation of home equity during the deferral period is possible through home
price appreciation, deferred amortization ARMs have more exposure to declining home prices than
fixed-rate loans or more traditional ARMs.

* Less-than-A Quality and Alt-A Loans. PMI insures less-than-A quality loans and Alt-A loans through
its primary flow and bulk channels, as well as through its modified pool products. PMI defines less-
than-A quality loans to include loans with FICO scores (a credit score provided by Fair, Isaac and
Company) generally less than 620. PMI defines Alt-A loans as loans where the borrower’s FICO score
is 620 or higher and the loan includes certain characteristics such as reduced documentation verifying
the borrower’s income, assets, deposit information and/or employment.

PMI insured a greater number of high LTV loans (Above 97s), ARMs and Alt-A loans in 2004 than in 2003.
As a result, as shown in the chart above, the percentages of PMI's risk in force containing Above 97s, ARMs and
Alt-A loans increased in 2004. We believe that these increases were driven by, and reflect, higher concentrations
of high LTV loans, ARMs and Alt-A loans as percentages of both the 2004 mortgage origination market and the
2004 private mortgage insurance market. We believe that this trend will continue in 2005.

We expect higher default rates and claim payment rates for high LTV loans, ARMs, less-than-A quality
loans and Alt-A loans and incorporate these assumptions into our pricing. In 2004, PMI’s average premium rate
increased primarily as a result of PMI’s primary portfolio containing higher percentages of high LTV loans,
ARMSs and Alt-A loans. However, there can be no assurance that the premiums earned and the associated
investment income will prove adequate to compensate for future losses from these loans. PMI offers pre- and
post-purchase borrower counseling to borrowers with high LTV loans in an effort to reduce the risk of default on
those loans. PMI also believes that the risk reduction features, which may include deductibles, of its modified
pool products mitigate the risk of loss to PMI from the Alt-A loans insured.

The following table shows PMI’s primary risk in force by FICO score:

Percentage of
Primary Risk
in Force by
FICO Score
As of December 31,
2004 2003 2002
FICO Score:
Less than 575 ..o e e 3.0% 3.3% 3.3%
37501 e e 7.8% 8.6% 8.7%
620—679 ... . e e 338% 327% 30.8%
BB0—T10 . e 235% 232% 232%
720 and AbOVe . ... e e 303% 30.5% 32.1%
Unreported .. ...t 1.6% 1.7% 1.9%
Total .. e e e e 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

5. Sales and Product Development

PMI employs a sales force located throughout the country to directly sell its products and provide services
to lenders located throughout the United States. PMI does not employ insurance brokers. PMI's sales force is
comprised entirely of PMI employees who receive compensation consisting of a base salary and incentive
compensation tied to performance objectives. PMI’s product development department has primary responsibility
for advertising, sales materials and the creation of new products and services.

10




6. ‘Undervvr'itihg Practices
Risk Management Approdch ' '

PMI analyze$ its primary insurance business based upon the historical performance of risk factors of
individual 1oan profiles. PMI uses national and territorial underwriting guidelines to evaluate the potential risk of
default on .mortgage ‘loans submitted for insurance coverage. PMI has developed and refined its national
guidelines over time, taking into account its loss experience and the GSEs’ underwriting guidelines. PMI’s

underwriting guidelines generally allow PMI to place mortgage insurance coverage on any mortgage loan
accepted by the GSEs’ automated underwriting systems for purchase by the GSEs.

PMI’s underwrmng guidelines are based, in part, on several statistical models that PMI employs to predict
default ‘and, to measure performance as well as capltal requirements. The pmiAURASM System, a proprietary
system developed by PMI, includes economic and demographic mformatlon and assigns a r1sk score
correspondmg to the predicted likelihood of an insurance policy going to claim.

Underwrztmg Process

To obtam mortgage insurance on a spec1ﬁc mortgage loan, a customer submits an appllcatron to PMI. If the
loan is approved for mortgage insurance, PMI issues a certificate of insurance to the customer. During the last
several’ years, advances in technology have enabled PMI to offer its customers the option of electronic
submission; of appllcatlons and any supporting documentation and electronic receipt of insurance commitments
and certrfrcates Customer use of PMI's electronic delivery options accounted for approximately §5% of PMI’s
insurance comrmtments issued in its primary flow channel in 2004, compared to approximately 81% in 2003 and
74% in 2002

Delegated Underwriting Approximately 76% of PMI’s 2004 primary flow NIW is underwritten pursuant
to a deleoated underwrrtmg program that allows approved lenders, subject to routine audit by PMLI, to determine
whether loans meet program guidelines and are thus eligible for mortgage insurance. If a lender participating in
the program commits PMI to insure a loan that fails to meet all of the applicable underwriting guidelines, PMI is
obligated to insure- such a loan except under certain narrowly-drawn exceptions, such as a failure to meet
maximum LTV criteria and fraud. Delegated underwriting enables PMI to meet mortgage lenders’ demands for
immediate insurance coverage of certain loans. Delegated underwriting has become standard industry practice.
PMI bel1eves that the performance of its delegated insured loans will not vary materially over the long-term from
the. performance of all other insured loans.

Non:Delegated Underwriting. Customers that are not approved to participate in the delegated program
generally must submit to PMI an application for each loan, supported by various documents. The significant
majority, of such customers’ loans are underwritten in connection with our provision of contract underwriting
services (see below). Verification of the borrower’s employment, income and funds needed for the loan closing
are required in addition to other documents unless the loan is submitted by.a lender that has been approved to
participate in PMI’s Quick Application Program. This program allows selected lenders to submit insurance
applications that da'not include all standard documents. The lender is required to maintain written verification of
employment and ;source of funds needed for closing and other supporting documentation in its origination file.
PMI may schedule on-site audits of lenders’ files on loans submitted under this program.

Bulk' Primary and Modified Pool Transactions. Bulk primary-insurance and modified pool insurance
transactions generally involve PMI bidding for a customer’s delivery to PMI of a portfolio of loans that have
been previously underwritten and closed under one or more loan programs. Regardless of the fact that the
customer or lender has previously underwrittén the loans, PMI evaluates each transaction on a loan-by-loan basis
and as’a portfolro In the loan-by-loan review, PMI analyzes the characteristics of each loan and compares them
to forecasts of performance generated by proprietary performance and pricing models. In the portfolio review,

11




PMI analyzes the diversity and the aggregate risk characteristics of the portfolio as a whole. PMI also reviews the
risks and potential mitigating factors inherent in the proposed coverage structure, which may include, among
other things, coverage limits, stop loss limits, and/or deductibles.

In some cases, PMI provides commitments for the future delivery of bulk primary or modified pool
transactions. The same processes described above are used to review an indicative portfolio of loans. PMI's
commitments are contingent upon a loan-by-loan review of the actual loans delivered and allow for pricing and
other structural adjustments if the characteristics of the actual delivery vary from those of the indicative portfolio.

Contract Underwriting

Contract underwriting services are provided by PMI’s wholly-owned subsidiary, PMI Mortgage Services
Co., or MSC. MSC provides contract underwriting services for mortgage loans for which PMI provides mortgage
insurance and for mortgage loans for which PMI does not provide insurance. MSC also performs the contract
underwriting activities of CMG.

As a part of its contract underwriting services, MSC provides to its customers monetary and other remedies,
including loan indemnifications under certain circumstances, in the event that MSC fails to properly underwrite a
mortgage loan. These remedies are separate from the insurance coverage provided by PMI. MSC paid or accrued
$10.0 million in contract underwriting remedies in 2004, compared to $13.1 million in 2003. Worsening
economic conditions or other factors that could lead to increases in PMI’s primary insurance default rate could
also cause the number and magnitude of the remedies that must be offered by MSC to increase. Such an increase
could have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial condition and results of operations.

Due to a2 decline in contract underwriting activity in 2004, new policies processed by MSC contract
underwriters in 2004 declined to 20.3% of PMI's NIW from 24.0% in 2003. PMI anticipates that loans
underwritten by MSC will continue to make up a significant percentage of PMI's NIW and that contract
underwriting will remain the preferred method among some mortgage lenders for processing loan applications.
The number of contract underwriters deployed by MSC is related to the volume of mortgage originations.

7. Emerging Markets

Expanding homeownership opportunities for low- and moderate-income individuals and communities is an
important priority of PMI. PMI’s approach to affordable lending is to develop products and services that assist
responsible borrowers who may not qualify for mortgage loans under traditional underwriting practices. These
products and services do not accommodate borrowers who have failed to manage their affairs responsibly; rather,
they seek to identify those home buyers who have met or will meet their obligations in a timely and
conscientious manner. The beneficiaries of these programs have included recent immigrants who have not
established traditional credit histories, borrowers not accustomed to using traditional savings institutions,
borrowers with less than five percent for a down-payment, and home buyers who, although consistently
employed, lack the stability traditionally associated with having a single employer due to the nature of their
employment.

To further promote affordable housing, PMI has entered into risk-sharing agreements or “layered
co-insurance” with certain institutional lenders, Native American tribes and housing authorities. Layered
co-insurance is utilized primarily to provide homeownership opportunities to traditionally underserved
populations. Under such agreements, the mortgage insurance is structured so that financial responsibility is
shared between the lender, Native American tribe or housing authority, and PMI.

PMI has also established partnerships with numerous national organizations to mitigate affordable housing
risks and expand the understanding of responsibilities of home ownership. These community partners include

Consumer Credit Counseling Services, Neighborhood Reinvestment Corp. and the affiliated Neighborhood
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Housing ‘Setvices of America, the National Black Caucus, Social Compact, the National American Indian
Housing Conference, the, AFLCIO Housing Advancement Trust, the American Homeownership and Counseling
Institute, the National Council of La Raza, the Congressional Hispanic Caucus Institute and the National
Association of Hispanic Real Estate. Professionals. In addition, PMI has developed partnerships with local
organizations in an effort to expand homeownership opportunities -and promote community revitalization.

Although programs offered under PMI’s affordable housing initiatives receive the same credit and actuarial
analysis as all other’ standard programs, some programs utilize affordable underwriting guidelines established by
lenders that differ from PMI’s criteria. PMI believes that some of its insured affordable housing loans may carry
higher risks than its other insured loans. As a result, PMI has instituted various programs including pre- and post-
purchase, bor‘rower‘eounselmg, risk-sharing and risk based pricing seeking to mitigate the additional risks that
may be as‘sd‘c‘iated‘jWith some affordable housing loan programs.

8. Dé’faultls: and Claims
Defaults ‘

PMI s clarm process begms with notification by the insured to PMI of a default on an insured loan.
“Default” is defmed in PMI’s master policies as the borrower’s failure to pay when due an amount equal to the
scheduled monthly mortgage payment under the terms of the mortgage. Generally, the master policies require an
insured. to notify PMI of a default no later than the last business day of the month following the month in which
the borroweér becomiés three monthly payments in default. For reporting and internal tracking purposes, we do not
consider a Toan to be in default for the purposes of reporting defaults and default rates until a loan has been
dehnquent for two consecutive monthly payments. Depending upon its scheduled payment date, a loan
delinquent for two consecutive payments could be reported to PMI between the 31t and 60* day after the first
missed payment Borrowers default for a variety of reasons, including a reduction of income, unemployment,
divorce, illniess, inability to manage credit and interest rate levels. Borrowers may cure defaults by making all of
the delinquent loari payments or by selling the property in full satisfaction of all amounts due under the
mortgage.Defaults that‘are not cured result, in most cases, in a claim to PMI.

Primary default rates differ from region to region in the United States dependmv upon economic conditions
and cyclical growth patterns. The two tables below set forth primary default rates by region for the various
regions of the United States and the ten largest states by PMI’s risk in force. Default rates are shown by region
based on location of the underlying property.

Primary Default Rates by
Region as of
December 31,
.o 2004 2003 2002

Region ‘ :
Pacific® . ... .‘ ...... e 2.75% 3.18% 3.35%
New England ) L e e 3.19% 3.23%  2.75%
Northeast® .......... L e e e e et 4.75% 4.52% 4.13%
South, Central @ e i N , 4.82% 4.56% 4.06%
Mid- Atla.nuc ) - 3.33% 3.30% 3.22%
Great Lakes O e 7.29% 6.50% 5.72%
Southeast ™. ... ........ e - 558% 5.00% 4.77%
North Central;(s) ................................................ 4.63% 4.30% 4.07%
Plains ©', "' ... e e e 3.94% 4.04% 3.75%
TotalPrimary‘Port'folio.......................................'... 4.86% 4.53% 4.18%

(1) Includes Califomia;“l-lawaij, Nevada, Oregon and Washington.
(2) Includes Connecticut, Maine, Massachusetts, New Hampshire, Rhode Island and Vermont.
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(3) Includes New Jersey, New York and Pennsylvania.

(4) Includes Alaska, Arizona, Colorado, Louisiana, New Mexico, Oklahoma, Texas and Utah.

(5) Includes Delaware, Maryland, Virginia, Washington, D.C. and West Virginia.

(6) Includes Indiana, Kentucky, Michigan and Ohio.

(7) Includes Alabama, Arkansas, Florida, Georgia, Mississippi, North Carolina, South Carolina and Tennessee.
(8) Includes Illinois, Minnesota, Missouri and Wisconsin.

(9) Includes Idaho, Jowa, Kansas, Montana, Nebraska, North Dakota, South Dakota and Wyoming.

PMTI’s Default Rates for Top Ten
Percent of States by

Primgll‘\gll;sisk in Primary Risk in Force (U
Force as of Default Rate
December 31, as of December 31,

2004 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
Florida ........ ... i, 10.0% 397% 3.89% 4.15% 3.03% 291%
Texas ... e 72% 539% 5.02% 427% 286% 2.13%
California ..........cviviii i, 6.8% 257% 3.08% 3.20% 256% 2.26%
Ohnois .. ... 5.0% 4.82% 4.55% 4.39% 3.46% 2.60%
Georgia . ...... .o e 4.7% 720% 599% 5.13% 3.11% 2.31%
New YorK ...\ e 4.4% 4.52% 4.52% 4.35% 3.22% 2.94%
Washington . ........... .. ... .. o 3.7% 326% 3.51% 339% 2.72% 1.75%
Ohio ... 3.7% 7.64% 686% 5.80% 357% 2.63%
Pennsylvania................ ... ..o 3.5% 522% 4.64% 421% 3.11% 247%
Newlersey ......oooiiiiiiiiinin. 3.2% 422% 429% 3.71% 2.81% 2.51%

(1) Top ten states'as determined by primary risk in force as of December 31, 2004.

Claims and Policy Servicing

Primary insurance claims paid by PMI in 2004 increased to $193.2 million from $176.9 million in 2003.
Pool insurance claims paid by PMI in 2004 increased to $19.4 million from $18.0 million in 2003. In 2004, pool
claims paid represented approximately 9% of PMI’s total claims paid.

The frequency of defaults is not directly proportional to the number of claims PMI receives. This is because
the rate at which defaults cure is influenced by borrowers’ financial resources and circumstances and regional
economic conditions. Whether an uncured default leads to a claim principally depends on the borrower’s equity
in the underlying property at the time of default and the borrower’s or the insured’s ability to sell the home for an
amount sufficient to satisfy all amounts due under the mortgage loan. When the likelihood of a defaulted loan
being reinstated is minimal, PMI works with the servicer of the loan for a possible loan workout or early disposal
of the underlying property. Property dispositions typically result in loss reduction to PMI compared to the
percentage coverage amount payable under PMI’s master policies.

Within 60 days after a primary insurance claim and supporting documentation have been filed, PMI has the
option of:

* paying 100% of the claim amount in exchange for the insured’s conveyance to PMI of good and

marketable title to the property, with PMI then selling the property for its own account. Properties

acquired under this option are included on PMI’s balance sheet in other assets as residential properties
from claim settlements, also referred to as real estate owned, or REO; or

* in the event the property is sold pursuant to an agreement made prior to or during the 60-day period after
the claim is filed, which we refer to as a prearranged sale, paying the lesser of (1) 100% of the loss
amount less the proceeds of sale of the property or (2) the specified coverage percentage multiplied by
the loss amount; or

* paying the specified coverage percentage multiplied by the loss amount.
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While PMI attempts to choose the claim settlement option that best mitigates the amount of its claim
payment, PMI generally settles by paying the coverage percentage multlphed by the loss amount. In 2004 and
2003, PMI settled 28.4% and 23.2%, respectively, of the primary insurance claims processed for payment on the
basis of a prearranged sale. In 2004 and 2003, PMI exercised the option to acquire the property on 4.6% and
7.8%, respecnvely, of the primary claims processed for payment.” At December 31, 2004, PMI's carrying value,
which approxxmates fair value, of REO properties was $22.7 mﬂhon compared to $37.0 million at December 31,
2003.. ‘

Claims and the Aging of PMI's Insurance Portfolio.’ Claim activity is not spread evenly throughout the
coverage period of a primary insurance book of business. We expect the significant majority of claims on insured
loans in PMI’s current portfolio to occur in the second through fourth years after loan origination. Primary
insurance written from the period of January 1, 2001 through December 31, 2003 represented 56.2% of PMI's
primary insurance in force at December 31, 2004. This portion of PMI’s book of business is in its expected peak
claim period with respect to primary loans.

The following table sets forth the dispersion of PMI’s primary insurance in force and risk in force as of
December 31, 2004, by year of policy origination and average annual mortgage interest rate since PMI began
operations in- 1972

Insurance and Risk in Force by Policy Year
and Average Coupon Rate

Primary Percent Percent
Average Insurance in of Primary Risk of
Rate Force ' - Total in Force Total
j ) (In thousands) (In thousands)
Policy Year .
1995 and prior ........ e 82% $ 1,715,625 1.6% §$ 384,411 1.5%
1996 i e 7.8% 577,659 0S5 157,877 0.6
1997 ... ... ... .. U 7.6% . 597327 ° 0.6 162,441 0.6
1998 .0 ... L D 6.9% 1,858,339 1.8 480,431 1.9
1999 ..., e e 7.4% 2,558,654 24 656,306 2.6
2000 ........... FE 8.1% 1,752,729 1.7 411,524 1.6
2001 ...l e e 7.0% . 6,728,584 6.4 1,550,092 6.0
2002 ........... e e e .6.5% 14,429,435 13.7 3,396,776 13.2
2003 . e 58% 37993409  36.1 8.823,117 344
2004 ... .. e e e e e 5.8% 37,109,162 35.2 9,635,011 37.6
Total Portfolio ..................... . ‘ $105,320,923 100.0% $25,657,986 100.0%

(1) Average arinual mortgage interest rate derived from Freddie Mac and Mortgage Bankers Association data.” -

Claim Severity. The severity of a claim, which is the ratio of the claim paid to the original risk in force
relating to ‘the loan, dépends in part upon the specified coverage percentage for that loan. A higher coverage
percentage on a loan generally decreases the potential severity of a claim on that loan, even though the claim
amount may increase. PMI generally charges higher premium rates for higher coverage. PMI's average primary
coverage percentage for NIW was 25.9% in 2004 and 23.6% in 2003.

The main determinants of the severity of a claim are the value of the underlying property, accrued interest
on the loan, expenses advanced by the insured and foreclosure expenses, and the amount of mortgage insurance
coverage placed on the loan. These amounts depend in part on the time required to complete foreclosure, which
varies depending on state laws. Pre-foreclosure sales, acquisitions and other early workout efforts help to reduce
overall claim severity. The average primary claim severity level has decreased from 100% in 1994 to 81.8% in
2004. PMI’s primary claim severity level in 2003 was 80.9%.
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Pool Claims. Pool claims are generally filed after the underlying property is sold. PMI settles a pool claim
in accordance with the agreed upon terms of the applicable pool insurance policy, which includes a stop loss
limit and, in some cases, a specified deductible. Subject to such stop loss limit and any deductible, PMI generally
covers 100% of the loss minus net proceeds from the sale of the property and any primary claim proceeds. Other
pool insurance policies may include a maximum coverage percentage or a defined benefit. Claims relating to
policies with a maximum coverage percentage are settled at the lesser of the actual loss or the maximum
coverage set forth in the applicable policy. Claims relating to policies with defined benefits are settled at the
maximum coverage percentage set forth in the applicable policy. PMI settles pool claims immediately upon
receipt of all supporting documentation.
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Loan Performance

The table below shows cumulative losses paid by PMI at the end of each successive year after the year of
original policy. issuance, referred to as a “policy year,” expressed as a percentage of the cumulative premiums
written on such policies. |

! Percentage of Cumulative Primary Insurance Losses Paid (Gross)
-~ "To Cumulative Primary Insurance Premiums Written

Years

Since
Policy

Issue Policy Issue Year (Loan Closing Year)

1 03 0 02 — 0.1 — — — = — — —
2 148 % 9.8 4.5 1.5 0.4 0.1 0.3 0.7 0.8 1.1 1.0
3 473 440 18.7 52 .20 2.0 3.6 7.1 6.6 6.9 5.5
4 83.0 " 83.1 352 8.7 5.1 6.1 10.8 17.8 16.9 16.3 134
5 1293 114.3 474 12.2 9.7 11.6 219 31.7 28.9 28.3 18.7
6 1659 - 127.1 56.4 15.6 13.1 18.5 324 41.8 39.8 36.1 211
7 1775+ 1359 60.7 .. 185 17.5 23.1 40.3 50.5 47.4 40.3 21.9
8 184.6 - 1393 63.0 21.3 20.7 26.2 457 - 56.2 513 41.5 220
9 187.7 ' 1419 65.0 24.1 23.0 29.1 49.6 59.2 52.7 41.3 21.8

10 189:8 - 1426, 653 . 258 251 315 517 609 526 411 216
11 191.0° . 1429 659 274 265 336 528 . 614 527 410 217
12 ;01913 1426 658 284 278 346 531 614 527 410 217
13 1911 1421 658 288 284 350 533 614 526 410

14 190.6 1417 659 290 - 286 352 533 . 614 526

15 190.1 1415 660 291 285 352 532 614

16 1898 141.3 66.0 29.1 28.5. 352 532 ‘

17 .~ 1895 1410 660 291 286 352

18 - 11895 1409 660 291 286

19 1895 1408 660  29.1

20 -+ 189.4. . 1408  66.0

21 189.5 1407

22 189.5 -

1 — 0 — _ - 0.1 1.2 1.1 0.1 0.1 0.1
2 .10 . 28 29 23. 12 2.7 102 6.6 45 2.8
3 65 . 104 8.3 5.8 3.8 59 218 225 14.5

4 137 . 154 119 8.7 57 « 86 352 341

5 18.0 182 142 10.4. 6.7 11.1 43.0

6 201 192 153 111 77 127

70209 201 158 - 11.9 8.3

8 .. 2130 - 203 16.1 12.4

9 21.3. . 204 163

10 213 205

11 214

The above table shows that, measured by gross cumulative losses paid relative to cumulative premiums
written, or the curhulative loss payment ratios, the performance of policies originally issued in the years 1983 and
1984 was adverse, with cumulative loss payment ratios for those years of 189.5% and 140.7%, respectively at the
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end of 2004. Such adverse experience was significantly impacted by deteriorating economic and real estate
market conditions in the “Qil Patch” states in the 1980s. In 1985, PMI adopted substantially more conservative
underwriting standards which we believe, along with increased premium rates and generally improving economic
conditions, contributed to the lower cumulative loss payment ratios in that and subsequent years.

The table also shows the general improvement in PMI’s cumulative loss payment ratios since policy year
1985, relative to 1983 and 1984. This reflects both improved claims experience and higher premium rates
charged by PMI for policy years 1985 and later. All policy years through 1995 have cumulative loss payment
ratios at the end of 2004 that differ by no more than 0.1% from the end of 2003, an indication that these ratios
have stabilized and reached their ultimate development for each of these policy years. Policy years 1996 through
1999 also have seen only slight claims development since the end of 2003.

A major factor affecting the development of these loss ratios was the relatively low level of interest rates
throughout 2003 and 2004. These low rates led to record numbers of mortgage refinances in 2003 and 2004,
materially decreasing the amount of business remaining in book years before 2003. This had the effect of
decreasing the remaining premium flow from these book years and putting upward pressure on the cumulative
loss payment ratios.

Policy years 1986 through 1988 have developed to cumulative loss payment ratios between 28.6% and
35.2%. Policy years 1989 through 1992 have developed to somewhat higher ratios between 41.0% and 61.4%,
reflecting both higher levels of claims on California loans insured in those years, as well as higher prepayment
speeds when market rates dropped to relatively low levels from late 1992 through early 1994. Loss payment
ratios continued to decline year-to-year after 1993 (21.9% at the end of seven years), bottoming out at 8.3% at
the end of seven years for the 1998 policy year, a record low. The declines were due to an improvement in
California’s economy and a strong national economy with no material regional weaknesses. The 1999 policy year
is developing at a Jevel slightly higher than 1998, but still at very low levels. Given the small amount of business
left in the 1996 through 1999 books, further development is expected to be smalil.

The 2000 and 2001 book years have developed to ratios now slightly less than the 1985 book year at similar
policy ages of five and four years, respectively, but for different reasons. The 1985 book year, which reached a
ratio of 47.4% at the end of five years, was driven primarily by loss development. The 2000 and 2001 book
years, on the other hand, reaching ratios of 43.0% and 34.1% at the end of five and four years, respectively, are
being driven by the dual factors of significantly higher prepayments and higher claims payments than the
previous years. The higher levels of claims combined with the lower levels of accumulated premiums have led to
this increase in ratios.

The higher levels of claims in the 2000 and 2001 policy years were a result of an expansion into less-than-A
quality and Alt-A loan product offerings primarily through the introduction of PMI’s bulk channel. These loan types
generally have shorter lives and earlier incidence of default than A quality loans, leading to earlier emergence of
claims and shorter streams of premium income. The large volume of refinances in A quality business written in
2000 and 2001 experienced in 2003 decreased the accumulated premium received from those policy years, affecting
the loss payment ratio development by increasing the ratio of claims paid to premiums received.

The 2002 book year is developing favorably compared to 2000 and 2001 due to a lower level of claims.
2003 is performing favorably compared to 2002 due to lower levels of claims and higher persistency in 2004.
2003 has developed to levels reached by the 1995, 1996 and 1999 books at the comparable two year period
although future loss development may not be similar to those years.

Loss Reserves

A period of time may elapse between the occurrence of the borrower’s default on mortgage payments (the
event triggering a potential future claims payment), the reporting of such default to PMI and the eventual
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payment of the claim related to such default. To recognize the liability for unpaid losses related to the loans in
default, PMI; in accordance with industry practice, establishes loss reserves in respect of loans in default based
upon the estimated claim rate and estimated average claim amount of loans in default. Included in loss reserves
are loss adjustment expense (LAE) reserves, and incurred but not reported (IBNR) reserves. These reserves are
estimates and there can be no assurance that PMI’s reserves will prove to be adequate to cover ultimate loss
developments on reported defaults. Consistent with industry accounting practices, PMI does not establish loss
reserves ‘for. estimated potential defaults that have not occurred but that may occur in the future. For a full
discussion of our'loss reserving policy and process, see Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates, Reserves for Losses
and LAE. For a feeonciliation of the beginning and ending reserve for losses and loss adjustment expenses on a
consohdated baSIS see Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data——Note 10. Reserve for Losses and
Loss Adjusfment Expenses.

9, Remsurance

Remsurance is. used as a capital and risk management tool by the mortgage insurance industry. Reinsurance
does not dlscharge PM], as the primary insurer, from 11ab111ty to a policyholder. The reinsurance company simply
agrees to- 1ndemn1fy PMI for the reinsurance company’s share of losses 1ncurred under a reinsurance agreement,
unlike an assumption agreement, where the assuming reinsurance company’s liability to the policyholder is
subst1tuted for that of PML.

PMI has a 5% quota share reinsurance agreement in place with a participating reinsurance company relating
to primary 1nsurance business written by PMI from 1994 through 1997. Under the terms of this agreement, the
reinsurance company indemnifies PMI for 5% of all losses paid under the reinsured primary insurance business
and PMI cedes. 5% of the related premiums, less a ceding commission' paid to PMI for underwriting and
adm1n1ster1ng the business. Effective January 1, 2001, PMI commenced reinsuring its wholly-owned Australian
sub51d1ary, PMI Mortgage Insurance Ltd, on an excess-of-loss basis. Under the terms of the agreement, for each
of the calendar years from 2001 through 2006, PMI is obligated to indemnify PMI Mortgage Insurance Ltd for
losses that exceed 130% of PMI Mortgage Insurance Ltd’s net earned premiums for each such year, but not for
losses that’ exceed 220% of such net earned premiums. The agreement provides for automatic one-year
extensions, ‘unless terminated upon prior notice by either party. Upon such notice of termination, the agreement
would contmue in effect in 'the year of such HOHCC and for the next four calendar vears.

Certaln states limit the amount of risk a mortgage insurer may retain on a single loan to 25% of the
mdebtedness to the msured and as a result, the deep coverage portion of such insurance in excess of 25% must
be relnsured To, minimize reliance on third party reinsurance companies and to perrrut PMI to retain the
premiums (and related risk) on deep coverage business, The PMI Group formed several wholly-owned
sub81d1ar1es 1nclud1ng Residential Guaranty Co., or RGC, Residential Insurance Co., or RIC, and PMI Mortgage
Guaranty Co., or'PMG, to provide reinsurance of such deep coverage to PMI. PMI uses reinsurance provided by
its relnsurance afﬁhates solely for purposes of compliance with statutory coverage limits. CMG also uses
reinsurance prov1ded by its reinsurance affiliate, CMG Reinsurance Company, to comply with statutory limits.

As d1scussed in Section B.1, Products, above, PMI also reinsures portions of its risk written on loans
originated by certain lenders with captive reinsurance companies affiliated with such lenders. PMI also offers
reinsurance products in Asia through its Hong Kong branch. (See Item 1, Section C.1, International
0peratzons—Hong Kong, below.)

'

10. Regulation‘
State Re‘gu‘lation‘

General. Our mortgage insurance subsidiaries are subject to comprehensive, detailed regulation by the
insurance departments of' the various states in which they are licensed to transact business. The purpose of this

19




regulation is to safeguard their solvency for the protection of policyholders. Although their scope varies, state
insurance laws generally grant broad powers to supervisory agencies or. officials to examine companies and to
enforce rules or exercise discretion touching most significant aspects of the insurance business.

Mortgage insurers are generally restricted by state insurance laws and regulations to writing mortgage
insurance business only. This restriction prohibits our mortgage insurance subsidiaries from directly writing other
kinds of insurance. The non-insurance subsidiaries of The PMI Group are not subject to regulation under state
insurance laws except with respect to transactions with their insurance affiliates.

Insurance Holding Company Regulations. Al states have enacted legislation that requires each insurance
company in a holding company system to register with the insurance regulatory authority of its state of domicile
and to furnish to such regulatory authority financial and other information concerning the operations of, and the
interrelationships and transactions among, companies within the holding company system that may materially
affect the operations, management or financial condition of the insurers within the system. The states also
regulate transactions between insurance companies and their parents and affiliates.

The PMI Group is treated as an insurance holding company under the laws of the State of Arizona. The
Arizona insurance laws govern, among other things, certain transactions in our common stock and certain
transactions between or among The PMI Group and its domestic and international subsidiaries. For example, no
person may, directly or indirectly, offer to acquire or acquire voting securities of The PMI Group or any one of
the Arizona subsidiaries, if after consummation thereof, such person would be in control, directly or indirectly, of
such entity, unless such person obtains the Arizona Director of Insurance’s prior approval. For purposes of the
foregoing, “control” is rebuttably presumed to exist if such person, following the acquisition, would, directly or
indirectly, own, control or hold with the power to vote or hold proxies representing 10% or more of the entity’s
voting securities. In addition, all material transactions involving PMI, PMG, RGC and/or RIC and any of their
affiliates, such as PMI Australia and PMI Europe, are subject to prior approval of the Arizona Director of
Insurance, and will be disapproved if they are found not to be “fair and reasonable.” PMI, on behalf of itself and
its affiliates; is required to file an annual insurance holding company system registration statement with the
Arizona and Wisconsin Departments of Insurance (and any other states that so request) disclosing all
interaffiliate relationships, transactions and arrangements that occurred or were in effect during the prior calendar
year, and providing information on The PMI Group, the holding company’s “ultimate controlling person.” PMI
must also submit and update biographical information of the executive officers and directors of the holding
company’s insurance subsidiaries, as well as executive officers and directors of The PMI Group.

The insurance holding company laws and regulations are substantially similar in Wisconsin (where CMG,
Commercial Loan Insurance Corporation, or CLIC, and WMAC Credit Insurance Corporation, or WMAC Credit,
are domiciled), and transactions among these subsidiaries, or any one. of them and another affiliate (including
The PMI Group) are subject to regulatory review and approval in the respective states of domicile. FGIC
Corporation and FGIC are subject to regulation under insurance holding company statutes of New York, where
FGIC is domiciled, as well as other jurisdictions where FGIC is licensed to do insurance business. Transactions
between FGIC Corporation or FGIC and The PMI Group and its subsidiaries are subject to prior approval of the
New York Department of Insurance.

Reserves. Our mortgage insurance subsidiaries are required under the insurance laws of their state of
domicile and many other states, including New York and California, to establish a special contingency reserve
with annual additions of amounts equal to 50% of premiums earned. Contingency reserves are required to be held
for ten years (and then released into surplus), although earlier releases may be authorized by state insurance
regulators in certain cases. The first year in which contingency reserves were released into surplus was 2003. At
December 31, 2004, PMI and its mortgage insurance subsidiaries had statutory policyholders’ surplus of $750.9
million and statutory contingency reserves of $2.4 billion.

Dividends. PMI’s ability to pay dividends (including returns of capital) to The PMI Group as its sole
shareholder is limited, among other things, by the insurancé laws of Arizona and other states. PMI's other
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Arizona subsidiaries (PMG, RGC and RIC) are subject to'the same statutory limitations as PMI. Under Arizona
law, PMI may pay dividends out of available surplus without prior approval of the Arizona Director of Insurance,
as long as such dividends during any 12-month period do not exceed the lesser of (i) 10% of policyholders’
surplus as of: the preceding calendar year end, or (ii) the preceding calendar year’s investment income. PMI is
permitted to'pay ordinary dividends (as such are termed under the Arizona statute) to The PMI Group of $64.5
million in 2005 without prior approval of the Arizona Director of Insurance, provided that any such dividends are
paid after the first! anmversary of PMI’s 2004 dividends, which were made in July 2004. Any dividend in excess
of this amount (either alone or together with other dividends/distributions made in the last 12 months) is an
extraordinary dividend and requires the-prior approval of the Arizona Director of Insurance. In 2004, PMI paid
an extraordinary stockholder dividend of $150 million to The PMI Group. This dividend will be added to any
proposed dividends to be paid within the subsequent twelve months to determine if such future dividends are
“extraordinary”, and accordingly, would require the Arizona Director of Insurance’s prior approval. The Arizona
Director of Insurance may approve an extraordinary dividend if he or she finds that, following the distribution,
the insurer’s policyholders’ surplus is reasonable in relation to its liabilitiés and adequate to its financial needs.

In addition 'to Arizona, other states may limit or restrict PMI’s ability to pay shareholder dividends. For
example, Cahforma New York and Illinois prohibit mortgage insurers. from declaring dividends except from
undivided profits remammg on hand over and above the aggregate of their paid-in capital, paid-in surplus and
contingency reserves. In 2004, PMI Plaza LLC, a Delaware limited liability company and wholly-owned
subsidiary of PMI, paid a $600,000 cash dividend to PML As of December 31, 2004, PMI’s liabilities (excluding
contingency reserves) were $592.2 million, meaning shareholder dividends in 2005 may not reduce PMI’s
statutory ‘stirplus, below $59 2 million. CMG is subject to shareholder drvrdend/drstrrbutlon restrictions similar to
those Jmposed on PMI ‘

Insurance regulatory authorrtles have broad discretion to limit the payment of dividends by insurance
companies. For example if insurance regulators determine that payment of a dividend or any other payments to
an affilite ‘(suc‘h‘ as payments under a tax-sharing agreement, payments for employee or other services, or
payments pursuant to. a surplus note) would, because of the financial condition of the paying insurance company
or otherwise, be hazardous to such insurance company’s policyholders or creditors, the regulators may block
payments that would otherwise be permitted without prior approval.

Premzum Razes and Policy Forms. PMI and CMG’s premium rates and policy forms are subject to
regulation in every jurisdiction in which each is licensed to transact business. In most U.S. jurisdictions, policy
forms must be filed prior to their use. In some U.S. jurisdictions, forms must also be approved prior to use.

Reinsurance. "Regulation of reinsurance varies by state. Except for Arizona, Illinois, Wisconsin, New York
and California, most states have no special restrictions on mortgage guaranty reinsurance other than standard
reinsurance requrrements applicable to property and casualty insurance companies. Certain restrictions apply
under’ Arizona law to domestic companies and under the laws of several other states to any licensed company
ceding business to unlicensed or unaccredited reinsurance companies. Under such laws, if a reinsurance company
is not'admitted or accredited in such states, the domestic company (e.g., PMI) ceding business to the reinsurance
company cannot take credit in its statutory financial statements for the risk ceded to such reinsurance company
absent compliance with certain reinsurance security requirements. In addition, Arizona prohibits reinsurance
unless the reinsurance agreements meet certain requirements even if no.statutory frnancml statement credit is to

be taken.: : ‘

Examinations. - Our licensed insurance and reinsurance subsidiaries are subject to examination of their
affairs by the insurance departments of each of the states in which they are licensed to transact business. The
Arizona Director of Insurance periodically conducts a financial examination of insurance companies domiciled in
Anzona "PMI was' examined by the Arizona Director of Insurance in 2003 for the five year period ending
Décember 31, 2002. In’ lieu of examining a foreign insurer, the Arizona Insurance Commissioner may accept an
examination report by a state that has been accredited by the National Association of Insurance Commissioners.
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CMG, CLIC and WMAC Credit were examined by the Wisconsin Department of Insurance in 2003 for the three
year period ending December 31, 2002. The final examination reports are public records and can be obtained
from the applicable state’s department of insurance. .

National Association of Insurance Commissioners. The National Association of Insurance Commissioners,
or NAIC, has developed a rating system, the Insurance Regulatory Information System, or IRIS, primarily
intended to assist state insurance departments in overseeing the statutory financial condition of all insurance
companies operating within their respective states. IRIS consists of 12 key financial ratios, which are intended to
indicate unusual fluctuations in an insurer’s statutory financial position and/or operating results. The NAIC
applies its IRIS financial ratios to PMI on-a continuing basis in order to monitor PMI’s financial condition.

Federal Laws and Regulation

In addition to federal laws that directly affect mortgage insurers, private mortgage insurers including PMI
are impacted indirectly by federal legislation and regulation affecting mortgage originators and lenders;
purchasers of mortgage loans such as Freddie Mac and Fannie Mae; and governmental insurers such as the FHA
and VA. For example, changes in federal housing legislation and other laws and regulations that affect the
demand for private mortgage insurance may have a material adverse effect on PML. Legislation that increases the
number of persons eligible for FHA or VA mortgages could have a material adverse effect on our ability to
compete with the FHA or VA.

The Homeowners Protection Act, or HPA, provides for the automatic termination, or cancellation upon a
borrower’s request, of private mortgage insurance upon satisfaction of certain conditions. HPA applies to owner-
occupied residential mortgage loans regardless of lien priority and to borrower-paid mortgage insurance closed
on or after July 29, 1999. FHA loans are not covered by HPA. Under HPA, automatic termination of mortgage
insurance would generally accur once the LTV reaches 78%. A borrower who has a “good payment history”, as
defined by HPA, may generally request cancellation of mortgage insurance once the LTV reaches 80% of the
home’s original value or when actual payments reduce the loan balance to 80% of the home’s original value,
whichever occurs earlier.

The Real Estate Settlement and Procedures Act of 1974, or RESPA, applies to most residential mortgages
insured by PMI. Mortgage insurance has been considered in some cases to be a “settlement service” for purposes
of loans subject to RESPA. Subject to limited exceptions, RESPA prohibits persons from accepting anything of
value for referring real estate settlement services to any provider of such services. Although many states
including Arizona prohibit mortgage insurers from giving rebates, RESPA has been interpreted to cover many
non-fee services as well. RESPA is enforced by HUD and also provides for private rights of action.

In July 2002, HUD proposed a rule under RESPA that, if implemented as proposed, would have, among
other things, given lenders and other packagers the option of offering a Guaranteed Mortgage Package, or GMP,
or providing a good faith estimate of settlement costs subject to a 10% tolerance level. The proposed rule
provided that qualifying packages were entitled to a “safe harbor” from litigation under RESPA’s anti-kickback
rules. Mortgage insurance would have been included in the package to the extent an upfront premium is charged.
Inclusion in the package could have caused mortgage insurers to experience reductions in the prices of their
services or products. HUD withdrew that proposed rule in March 2004. In late 2004, HUD announced that it will
submit a new proposed rule under RESPA to the Office of Management and Budget for review. We do not know
what form, if any, the rule will take and whether it will be approved.

Most originators of mortgage loans are required to collect and report data relating to a mortgage loan
applicant’s race, nationality, gender, marital status and census tract to HUD or the Federal Reserve under the
Home Mortgage Disclosure Act of 1975, or HMDA. Mortgage insurers are not required pursuant to any law or
regulation to report HMDA data although, under the laws of several states, mortgage insurers are currently
prohibited from discriminating on the basis of certain classifications. Mortgage insurers have, through the
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Mortgage Insurance Companies of America entered voluntarily into an agreement with the Federal Financial
Instrtutlons Exarmnatrons Council to report the same data on loans submitted for insurance as is required for
most mortgage lenders under HMDA.

Prwacy‘ and Infonnanon Security. The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act of 1999, or GLB, 1mposes consumer
mformatlon pnvacy Tequirements on . financial institutions, including obligations to protect and safeguard
consumers’. nonpubhc personal information and records, and limitations on the re-use of such information. With
respect: to PMI, GL.B is enforced by state insurance regulators. Many of the states have enacted legislation
1mp1ement1ng GLB and establishing information security regulation. Some states have enacted privacy laws
~which'i 1mpose compliance obhganons beyond GLB.

The U.S;A.‘Patriot Act of 2001, or the Patriot Act, contains anti-money laundering provisions and financial
transparency laws and mandates the implementation of various new regulations applicable to financial services
companies including insurance companies. The Patriot Act seeks to promote cooperation among financial
institations, regulators and law enforcement entities in identifying parties that may be involved in terrorism or
money laundermg Anti- rnoney laundering laws outside the U.S. contain similar provisions. In September 2002,
the U.S. Treasury Department proposed anti-money laundering rules under the Patriot Act, which exempt
property and casualty insurers, including our mortgage insurance subsidiaries.

Fair Credit Reporting Act.  The Fair and Accurate Credit Transactions Act of 2003, or FACTA, amends
and reauthomzes certain provisions of the Fair Credit Reporting Act, or FCRA, including provisions which direct
the Federal Trade Commission, or FTC, and the Federal Reserve Board, or FRB, to promulgate regulations
requiring notice t0 any consumer receiving an extension or, grant of credit based on a counter offer by the creditor
on material terms, 1nclud1ng interest rate, that are materially less favorable than the terms generally available
from the. credrtor to consumers, based in whole or in part on a consumer report. No regulations have yet been
proposed anid the FTC and FRB have stated that those provisions of FACTA that require regulation will not be
effectlve until the date specrfled in the final regulations. The risk-based pricing notice provision is’among the
affected. prov151ons It is not clear at this point what that regulation w1ll provide or what its impact, if any, will be
on our mortgage insurance operations.

11. Fihapcial Strength Ratings

PMI has been ‘ass:i“gned the following insurer financial strength ratings: “AA” by S&P w1th a stable outlook;
“AA+” by Fitch’ wrth a stable outlook; and “Aa2” by Moody switha stable outlook

PMI’S financial strength ratings have been based in part on the third party reinsurance agreements discussed
above and on a capital support commitment from Allstate Insurance Company. Under the terms of a runoff
support agreement with Allstate, in the event (i) PMI’s risk-to-capital ratio, exceeds 23 to 1, (ii) PMI’s statutory
policyholder ‘surplus-is less than $15.0 million, or (iii) a third party beneficiary brings a claim under the runoff
support agreement, then Allstate may, at its option, in satisfaction of certain obligations it may have under such
agreementf(A) pay to PMI (or to The PMI Group for contribution to PMI) an amount equal to claims relating to
policies written prior to termination of the Allstate support agreements. which are not paid by PMI or (B) pay
such clainis;direetly to the policyholder. In the event Allstate makes any payment contemplated by the runoff
support Hagfreement,‘ Allstate will be entitled to receive, at its option, subordinated debt or preferred stock of PMI
or The PML Group, as applicable, in return. However, we believe that the possibility of Allstate making such a
payment.is remote because we have several courses of action avarlable to us to maintain PMI’s risk-to-capital
ratio at the requ151te level.

Fanme Mae dnd Freddie Mac impose requirements on private mortgage insurers for such insurers to be
eligible to insure loans sold to such agencies. In order to be Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac eligible, PMI must
maintain‘at least two of the following three ratings: “AA-” by S&P or Fitch, or “Aa3” by Moody'’s.
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C. International Operations, Financial Guaranty and Other Strategic Investments

Our wholly-owned subsidiary, PMI Capital Corporation, manages our international operations and strategic
investments, including our Financial Guaranty segment. Our International Operations and Financial Guaranty
segments generated 25.0% of our consolidated revenues in 2004 compared to 16.0% in 2003. Revenues for the
year ended December 31, 2004 from our consolidated subsidiary, PMI Australia, were $109.6 million or 10.6%
of our consolidated revenues in 2004 and $85.6 million and 9.6% in 2003, respectively. Revenues for the year
ended December 31, 2004 from our consolidated subsidiary, PMI Europe, were $27.7 million or 2.7% of our
consolidated revenues in 2004 and $13.2 million and 1.5% in 2003, respectively. Revenues for the year ended
December 31, 2004 from our branch office in Hong Kong were $6.4 million or 0.6% of our consolidated
revenues in 2004, See Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations—International Operations, and Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data—Note 20.
Business Segments, for additional information about geographic areas.

1. International Operations

Our international mortgage insurance and credit enhancement operations include our operations in Australia
and New Zealand, the European Union and Hong Kong.

Australia and New Zealand

We offer mortgage insurance in Australia and New Zealand through our wholly-owned subsidiaries, PMI
Mortgage Insurance Ltd, or PMI Ltd, and PMI Indemnity Limited, or PMI Indemnity. The combined operations
of PMI Ltd and PMI Indemnity are referred to as PMI Australia. PMI Australia is headquartered in Sydney,
Australia, and has offices throughout Australia and New Zealand. PMI Ltd’s financial strength is rated “AA” by
S&P and Fitch, and “Aa2” by Moody’s. At December 31, 2004, the total assets of PMI Australia were $871.4
million compared to $703.8 million at December 31, 2003.

Australian mortgage insurance, known as “lenders mortgage insurance,” or LMI, is characterized by single
premiums and coverage of 100% of the loan amount. Lenders usually collect the single premium from a
prospective borrower and remit the amount to PMI Australia as the mortgage insurer. PMI Australia recognizes
earnings from single premiums in its financial statements over time in accordance with an actuarially determined
multi-year schedule. Premiums are partly refundable if the policy is canceled within the first year.

LMI covers the unpaid loan balance, plus selling costs and expenses, following the sale of the security
property. Historically, loss severities have normally ranged from 20% to 30% of the original loan amount. In
New Zealand, insurance coverage is predominantly “top cover”, where the total loss (including expenses) is paid
up to a prescribed percentage of the original loan amount. Typical top cover in New Zealand ranges between
20% and 30% of the original loan amount.

The majority of the loans insured by PMI Australia are variable interest rate principal and interest loans with
terms up to 30 years. Interest rate changes impact the frequency of defauits and claims with respect to these
loans. Since mortgage interest is not tax deductible in Australia or New Zealand on owner-occupied properties,
borrowers have a strong incentive to accelerate reduction of their principal balance by amortizing or prepaying
their mortgages. As savings interest is taxable, most mortgage loans allow advance repayment.

PMI Australia’s primary NIW includes flow channel insurance and insurance on loans underlying
residential mortgage-backed securities, or RMBS. In Australia, an active securitization market exists due in part
to the relative absence of government sponsorship of the mortgage market. RMBS transactions include insurance
on seasoned portfolios comprised of prime credit quality loans that have LTVs often below 80%. 42.9% of PMI
Australia’s NIW in 2004 was RMBS insurance written, compared to 23.8% in 2003. The significant increase in
RMBS insurance written in 2004 reflects increased securitization activity in the Australian market and the fact
that there are limited market participants providing mortgage insurance for RMBS in the Australian market.
Levels of activity in the Australian RMBS market vary from quarter to quarter.
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The five largest Australian banks collectively provide 75% or more of Australia’s residential housing financing.
These banks fepresented approximately 39% of PMI Australia’s gross premiums written in 2004. Other market
pam<:1pants in Australian and New Zealand mortgage lending include regional banks, building societies, credit unions
and non-bank mortgage ongmators PMI Australia’s five largest customers prov1ded 65.2% of PMI Australia’s 2004
gross premlums Wrmen

A significant ‘polrthn of PMI Australia’s business is acquired through quota share reinsurance agreements
with its lending customers’-captive LMI companies. These quota share reinsurance agreements typically contain
a contractual period under which the lender commits to send PMI Australia a prescribed proportion of business.
PMI Australia wrote approximately 58% of its new business premiums under these agreements in 2004,
compared to-approximately 46% in 2003. PMI Indemnity, being in run-off, is not a party to any such agreements.

PMI Australia’s pfincipal competitor is Genworth Financial. While PMI Australia and Genworth Financial
are the only two independent lenders mortgage insurers in Australia that are rated by the rating agencies S&P,
Fitch and Moody’s, several large banks have captive LMI companies in Australia.

The followmg table sets forth the dispersion of PMI Australia’s nsk in force as of December 31, 2004, by
year .of policy ongmatlon and average or1g1na1 LTV since PMI commenced operations in Australia and New
Zealand in 1999 :

. R ‘ , Average
C o B s Original Primary Risk in  Percent
. Policy Year . - = . LTV Force - of Total
- . (In millions)

Pnor to 1999 ..................................... N/A $ 17,263 16.7%
10099 e 76.00% 5,254 5.1%
2000 ... e e e 75.80% 7,563 7.3%
2001 ... B 70.60% 12,858 12.5%
2002 ........ e e e e 75.30% 12,279 11.9%
C2003 . 75.30% 19,387 18.8%
2004 e e e 69.60% 28,531 27.7%
- Total Portfolio ........ S $103,135  100.0%

In 2004 PMI Austraha introduced pmiAURA, a statistical model used to analyze PMI Australia’s claims
frequency risk, as par[ of its underwriting and- risk analysis program. This methodology is the same as that
applied, by U.S. Mortgage Insurance Operations, but was: developed for PMI Australia using Australian claims,
economic and demographlc information. The pmiAURA. model assigns a predictive claim risk score to individual
policies. PMI Austraha also commenced the electronic submlssmn of applications and delivery of underwriting
dec1s1ons in 2004, : '

As in the Un1ted States rnortgage insurance underwriting decisions have been delegated by PMI Australia
to certain of its customers. Delegated underwriting allows approved customers, subject to agreed policy
limitations, to commit PMI Australia to offering LMI with respect to a mortgage loan. The pmiAURA system is
also used to analyze these arrangements which are subject to regular compliance audit by PMI Australia. PMI
Australia - may be.committed to insure a loan that fails to meet all the agreed delegated guidelines. Long term
performance of delegated insured loans is not expected to vary materially from all other insured loans.

In May 2004 S&P designated PMI Ltd as a core business and afﬁrmed its “AA” rating and stable outlook.
In 2004, Fitch also. affirmed PMI Ltd’s insurer financial strength rating of “AA” with a stable outlook. In May
2004, Moody’s 'upgraded PMI Ltd’s rating to “Aa2” with a stable outlook from “Aa3.” PMI Indemnity
maintained its S&P rating of “AA-,” Fitch rating of “AA,” and Moody’s rating of “Aa3.” PMI Australia is a
party to capital support agreements in which PMI agrees to provide funds to ensure that both PMI Ltd. and PMI
Indemnity are able to maintain prudent levels of capital to maintain their eredit ratings.
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For discussion on PMI Australia’s loss reserves, see Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations, Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates, Reserves for Losses
and LAE—International Operations.

PMI Australia is subject to regulation and examination by both the Australia and New Zealand regulatory
authorities concerning many aspects of its business, including the ability to pay dividends. The Australian
Prudential Regulation Authority, or APRA, sets prudential guidelines for banks, building societies, credit unions
and general insurers including LMI companies. APRA is reviewing, with industry input, its prudential
requirements for LMI companies, has issued proposals for comment and has indicated that final regulations will
be implemented in October 2005. We expect that the final regulations will, among other things, raise LMI capital
requirements, which will impact non-rated LMI companies in particular, and may allow for increased
competition by opening the market to insurers domiciled in countries that APRA considers to have comparable
prudential regulation.

Europe

PMI Mortgage Insurance Company Limited, or PMI Europe, is a mortgage insurance and credit enhancement
company incorporated and located in Dublin, Ireland, with a branch in Milan, Italy and an affiliated sales company
incorporated in the United Kingdom and located in London. PMI Europe is fully authorized to provide credit,
suretyship and miscellaneous financial loss insurance by the Irish Financial Services Regulatory Authority. This
authorization enables PMI Europe to offer its products in all of the European Union member states. PMI Europe’s
claims paying ability is rated “AA” by S&P and Fitch, and “Aa3” by Moody’s. These ratings are based upon PMI
Europe’s capitalization, its management expertise, a capital support agreement provided by PMI, and a guarantee by
The PMI Group of PMI’s obligations under the capital support agreement. In May 2004, S&P designated PMI
Europe as a core business and affirmed-its “AA” rating and stable outlook. At December 31, 2004, the total assets of
PMI Europe were $242.8 million compared to $202.6 million at December 31, 2003.

PMI Europe currently offers capital markets products, excess-of-loss reinsurance and primary insurance, all
of which are related to credit default risk on residential mortgage loans. Capital markets products are designed to
support secondary market transactions, notably credit-linked notes, collateralized debt obligations, mortgage-
backed securities or synthetic securities transactions (principally, credit default swap transactions). Lenders
frequently engage in these transactions to reduce the capital they must hold pursuant to local banking capital
regulations or to provide funding for their mortgage lending activities. As of December 31, 2004, PMI Europe
had provided credit protection with respect.to German, Dutch and British residential mortgage loans.

At December 31, 2004, approximately 25% of PMI Europe’s risk in force stemmed from eleven credit
default swap transactions, all of which were designed primarily to allow the mortgage lenders involved to reduce
the level of required regulatory capital. In four of these transactions, PMI Europe assumed a “first loss,” unrated
risk position. In the remaining transactions, PMI Europe’s risk position was rated at least investment grade, the
majority being rated “AAA”. Competitors in this product line include mortgage insurance companies, financial
guaranty insurance companies, banks and traditional bond investors. Many of these competitors have
significantly greater financial resources than PMI Europe.

PMI Europe also offers excess-of-loss reinsurance coverage. Excess-of-loss reinsurance is typically
provided to a lender’s captive reinsurance company to reduce that captive lender’s “catastrophic” risk exposure.
These transactions are believed to be risk-remote in that the lender or its captive insurer assumes a significant
amount of “first loss” risk. This insurance structure is used occasionally in the United Kingdom by its largest
mortgage lenders. As of December 31, 2004, less than 1% of PMI’s Europe’s risk in force stemmed from excess-
of-loss reinsurance. Potential competitors with respect to these products include mortgage insurance companies
and multi-line insurers. ’

PMI Europe’s third product hne,» primary insurance, is similar to the primary insurance products offered in
the U.S., Australia and New Zealand. As of December 31, 2004, approximately 74% of PMI's Europe’s risk in
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force stemmed fromprimary insurance. Primary insurance is mortgage insurance applied to, priced, and settled
on each:-loan. In Europe, this product currently is only purchased regularly in the United Kingdom and Ireland.
PMI Europe is attempting to develop greater interest and use of primary insurance in other European countries.
Potential competitors at the moment include mortgage insurers and multi-line insurers. PMI Europe’s primary
insurance:in force stems from its acquisition of a portion of the U.K. lenders’ mortgage insurance portfolio of
R&SA in the ffourth“quart'er-of 2003. The portfolio covers approximately $15 billion of original insured principal
balance! R&SA transferred all loss reserves and unearned premium reserves associated with the portfolio to PMI
Europe totaling $55. million, of which $47 million was unearned premium reserves. R&SA also provides excess-
of-loss reinsurance to PMI Europe with respect to the portfolio under certain conditions. Under the terms of the
agreement, R&SA and PMI Europe share certain economic benefits if loss performance performs to agreed-upon
levels. Based upon the favorable loss performance to date, we expect that PMI Europe will make future payments
to R&SA under the agreement. '

For discussion on PMI Europe’s loss reserves, refer to Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations, Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates, Reserves for Losses
and LAE-~International Operations. :

PMIHEurope’s ‘authorization enables it to offer its products in all of the European Union member states,
subject to certain local regulatory requirements. The applicable regulator of PMI Europe is the Irish Financial
Services Regulatory Authority. Ireland is a member of the European Union and applies the harmonized system of
regulation‘ set out in'the European Union directives. Under applicable regulations, PMI Europe may provide
insurance only in the classes for which it has authorization, and must maintain required risk capital reserves. Irish
insurance compames are required, among other thmgs to submit comprehensive annual returns to the regulator.

Hong Kong

PMI remsures rnortgaoe insurance in Hong Kong through its local branch office. PMI is a party to a
reinsurance agreement with the Hong Kong Mortgage Corporatlon or HKMC, a public sector entity created to
add hquldlty to the Hong Kong residential mortgage market. The HKMC is a direct insurer of residential
mortgages. For the year ¢ ended December 31, 2004, PMI reinsured a total of approximately $807 million of loans
under its reinsurance agreéments. Insurance in force was $1.8 billion at December 31, 2004, compared to
$1.3 bllhon at December 31, 2003.

PMI, among other reinsurers, generally provides reinsurance “down-to” coverage in Hong Kong sufficient
to reduce. the reinsuréd’s exposure on each loan down to a specified coverage percentage, usually 70% LTV.
Unlike in the. United States, reinsurance coverage generally expires with respect to loans that amortize below
their down-to cdverage percentage, i.e., 70% LTV. In July 2004, the HKMC began insuring, and PMI began
reinsuring, T‘residentia'l mortgages with LTVs up to 95%. This product expansion has been popular within the
Hong Kong mortgage origination market and, as a result, approximately 31% of PMI’s reinsurance written in
2004 was comprised of loans with LTVs between 90.01% and 95.00%. PMI generally delegates coverage
decisions with respect to particular loans to the reinsured pursuant to detailed written underwriting guidelines
agreed to in advance by the parties. The significant ma]orrty of reinsurance written by PMI in Hong Kong is
single prermum coverage

In 2004, PMI made claim payments of $0.2 million (net of recoveries) with respect to nine claims. In 2005,
another U.S. based mortgage insurer announced its intention to begin offering mortgage reinsurance in Hong Kong.

Foreign Currency Exchahge
We, are subject to foreign currency exposure due to operations in foreign countries whose currencies

fluctuate telative tothe U.S. dollar, the basis of our consolidated financial reporting. Such exposure falls into two
general categories: economic exposure and transaction exposure.

27




Economic exposure is defined as the change between anticipated net cash flow in currencies other than the
U.S. dollar and the actual results that are reflected in our consolidated financial statements after translation. To
the extent there are changes in the average translation rates from local currencies to the U.S. dollar our recorded
consolidated net income can be both positively or negatively affected. If the U.S. dollar strengthens relative to
either the Australian dollar or the Euro our net income from our International Operations segment will be
negatively impacted by translation losses. Conversely, if the U.S. dollar weakens against the Australian dollar or
the Euro our net income from International Operations will be positively impacted by translation gains. Through
the purchase of foreign currency put options first initiated in 2004, we are able to mitigate the negative impact to
consolidated net income due to a strengthening U.S. dollar. As the options purchased increase in value as the
U.S. dollar strengthens, such increases in the value of the options are reflected in our consolidated results of
operations as derivative option gains. If the U.S. dollar were to weaken relative to the Australian dollar or the
Euro our consolidated net income would continue to be positively affected (less the cost of the options
purchased) by translation gains and the purchased options would expire unexercised. In April 2004, to mitigate
the negative impact to net income of a strengthening U.S. dollar, PMI Australia purchased foreign currency
(Australian dollar) put options at a total pre-tax cost of $1.0 million. In June 2004, to mitigate the negative
impact to net income of a strengthening of the U.S. doliar, PMI Europe also purchased foreign currency (Euro)
put options at a total pre-tax cost of $0.1 million. As of December 31, 2004, the total cost, net of realized gains
recognized to net income related to these purchased options, which expired at the end of 2004, were $0.6 million
for PMI Australia and $0.1 million for PMI Europe. In January 2005 PMI Australia and PMI Europe purchased
foreign currency put options at a total pre-tax cost of $1.6 million and $0.2 million, respectively. These put
options expire ratably over the course of 2005.

Transaction exposure refers to currency risk related to specific transactions and occurs between the time a
firm commitment in a foreign currency is entered into and the time the cash is actually paid. Under our
Derivative Use Plan’s Foreign Exchange Policy Guidelines, we are authorized to hedge our transaction exposure
through the purchase of forward currency contracts. We did not engage in any hedging activities of transaction
risk in 2004.

Privacy Protection Regulation

In Europe, the collection and use of personal information is subject to strict regulation. The European
Union’s Data Protection Directive establishes a series of privacy requirements that EU member states are obliged
to enact in their national legislation. European countries that are not EU member states have similar privacy
requirements in their national laws. These requirements apply to all businesses, including insurance companies.
In general, companies may process personal information only if consent has been obtained from the persons
concerned or if certain other conditions are met.

In Australia, the collection and use of personal information is also subject to strict regulation. The Privacy
Act establishes a series of national privacy principles that apply to all businesses, including insurance companies.
In general, companies may only collect, store and use personal information if consent has been obtained from the
persons concerned or if certain other conditions are met.

2. Financial Guaranty Insurance and Reinsurance
FGIC Corporation

We are the largest shareholder of FGIC Corporation, with an equity ownership interest of 42.1%. We
acquired FGIC, together with its immediate holding company, FGIC Corporation, in December 2003 from
General Electric Capital Corporation, or GECC, as the strategic investor in an investor group that includes
affiliates of The Blackstone Group, L.P., The Cypress Group L.L.C. and CIVC Partners L.P. GECC retains
approximately 5% of a common equity interest in FGIC Corporation. We account for this investment under the
equity method of accounting in accordance with Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinion No. 18, The Equity
Method of Accounting for Investments in Common Stock and, accordingly, the investment is not consolidated. We
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believe that this mvestment will provide us with the opportunity to realize our strategic goal of becoming a global
prov1der of credit enhancement products across multiple asset and risk classes which would include achieving a
major presence in the primary financial guaranty industry.

At December'31, 2004, FGIC Corporation had consolidated total assets of $3.4 billion, including $3.2 billion
of cash and investment securities. At December 31, 2004, FGIC’s net insured par outstanding was $236.8 billion.

FGIC Corporation’s wholly-owned subsidiary FGIC is primarily engaged in the business of providing
financial guaranty insurance for public finance and structured finance obligations. FGIC began insuring public
finance obligations in 1984 and structured finance obligations in 1988. The financial guaranty insurance policies
which FGIC insures typically guarantee scheduled payments on an issuer’s obligations. Upon a payment default
on an insured obligation, FGIC is generally required to pay the principal and interest due in accordance with the
obligation’s original, payment schedule. FGIC is licensed to engage in financial guaranty insurance in all 50
states, the District; of Columbia, the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico and in the United Kingdom. FGIC
Corporation’s senior unsecured debt is rated “AA” by S&P and Fitch and “Aa2” by Moody’s. FGIC’s financial
strength is rated “AAA” by, S&P and Fitch, and “Aaa” by Moody’s.

Prior to our investment, FGIC had provided financial guaranty insurance primarily to certain sectors of the
U.S. public finance market and, to a limited extent, the structured finance market principally in the U.S. mortgage-
backed securities sector. The public finance market includes municipal general obligation bonds supported. by the
issuer’s taxing power and special revenue bonds and other special obligations of state and local governments
supported by the issuer’s ability to impose and collect fees and charges for public services or specific projects. As of
December 31, 2004, $202.7 billion, or 85.6%, of FGIC’s total net par outstanding, represented insurance of public
ﬁnance obhgatlons We believe that this percentage is higher than the industry’s average.

Most structured ﬁnance obligations are secured by, or represent interests m diverse pools of specific assets,
such as residential mortgage loans, auto loans, credit card receivables, other consumer receivables, corporate
loans or ‘bo‘nds government debt, small business loans and commercial real estate loans. The pool of assets
underlying the obligafions has an identifiable cash flow or market value. As of December 31, 2004, $33.7 billion,
or 14.2%, of FGIC’s total net par outstanding, represented insurance of structured finance obligations.

In. 2004, FGIC began to execute upon its business plan of expanding into new markets and broadening its
presence in existing ones. I 2004, FGIC, on a selective basis, broadened its presence in the U.S. public finance
area to include such séctors as health care institutions, municipal electric utilities, and investor-owned utilities.
Also in 2004, FGIC began to broaden its presence in.the structured finance market to include classes of
consumer-based and investment-grade corporate asset-backed securities, in addition to its established product
lines within the mortgage-backed securities sector. FGIC’s international operations, based in London, currently
consist of a very' limited amount of business written in the European market. FGIC intends to grow its
international public finance and structured finance business by focusing its initial attention on Western Europe,
followed; by ‘expansion into other international markets such as Australia and Japan.

The financial guaranty industry is highly competitive. FGIC is subject to competition from other monoline
ﬁnanmal ouaranty insurance companies (three of which also carry triple-A financial strength ratings from each of
the major ratings dgenc1es) providers of third party credit enhancement' (banks providing 'letters of credit,
mortgage pool insurers, multiline insurers and reinsurers) and providers of alternative transaction structures and
executions that do. not use financial guaranty insurance (credit default swaps, credit-linked notes and other
synthetic products). Demand for financial guaranty insurance is also constantly changing and is dependent upon a
number of faCtors "mcluding changes in interest rates, regulatory changes and the supply of bond issues.

FGIC’s and the financial guaranty industry’s incidence of payment default on insured bond issues has
historically ‘been Very low. FGIC establishes a provision for losses and loss adjustment expenses under insured
risks when an actual payment default has occurred or when a payment default is probable. The loss reserves that
are established by FGIC fall into two categories: case reserves and watch list reserves.
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Case reserves are established for the net present value of estimated losses on particular insured obligations
that are presently or likely to be in payment default at the balance sheet date, and for which the future loss is
probable and can be reasonably estimated. These reserves represent an estimate of the present value of the
anticipated shortfall, net of reinsurance, between (1) anticipated claims payments on insured obligations plus
anticipated loss adjustment expenses and (2) anticipated cash flow from, and proceeds to be received on, sales of
any collateral supporting the obligation and/or other anticipated recoveries. The discount rate used in calculating
the net present value of the estimated losses is based upon the risk-free rate for the average maturity of the
applicable bond sector.

The watch list reserves recognize the potential for claims against FGIC on insured obligations that are not
presently in payment default, but which have migrated to an impaired level where there is a substantial increased
probability of default. These reserves reflect an estimate of probable loss given evidence of impairment, and a
reasonable estimate of the amount of loss given default. The methodology for establishing and calculating the watch
list reserves relies on a categorization and assessment of the probability of default, and loss severity given default,
of the specifically identified impaired obligations on the list based on historical trends and other factors. The results
of FGIC’s ongoing insured portfolio surveillance is to identify all impaired obligations and thereby provide a
materially complete recognition of losses for each accounting period. Reserves are adjusted each period based on
claim payments and the results of ongoing surveillance.

FGIC is subject to the insurance laws and regulations of the State of New York, where FGIC is domiciled,
including Article 69, a comprehensive financial guaranty insurance statute. FGIC is also subject to the insurance
laws and regulations of all other jurisdictions in which it is licensed to transact insurance business. The insurance
laws and regulations, as well as the level of supervisory authority that may be exercised by the various insurance
regulators, vary by jurisdiction, but generally require insurance companies {0 maintain minimum standards of
business conduct and solvency, to meet certain financial tests, to comply with requirements concerning permitted
investments and the use of policy forms and premium rates and to file quarterly and annual statutory statements
and other reports. FGIC’s accounts and operations are subject to periodic examination by the Superintendent of
Insurance of the State of New York and by insurance regulatory authorities in other jurisdictions where FGIC is
licensed to write insurance.

FGIC operates as an independent company. Our stockholders agreement with the other members of the
investor group provides for certain corporate governance arrangements with respect to FGIC Corporation and
other important.corporate matters.

FGIC’s ability to pay dividends is subject to restrictions contained in the insurance laws and related
regulations of New York and other states where FGIC is licensed to do insurance business. Under New York
insurance law, FGIC may pay dividends out of statutory earned surplus, provided that, together with all dividends
declared or distributed by FGIC during the preceding 12 months, the dividends would not exceed the lesser of (1)
10% of policyholders’ surplus as of its last statement filed with the New York Superintendent of Insurance or (2)
adjusted net investment income during this period. Adjusted net investment income includes a two-year carry-
forward for undistributed investment income. Any dividend distribution in excess of these requirements would
require the prior approval of the New York Superintendent of Insurance. In addition, in accordance with the
customary practice of the New York State Department of Insurance in connection with change in control
applications, FGIC Corporation is subject to commitments to the department that will prevent FGIC from paying
any dividends for a period of two years from the date of the acquisition by the investor group (i.e., until
December 18, 2005) without the prior written consent of the department.

RAM Re

We own 24.9% of RAM Holdings Ltd. and RAM Holdings II Ltd., which are the holding companies for
RAM Re. The RAM Re holding companies’ other major shareholders include Transatlantic Reinsurance
Company, CIVC Partners, Greenwich Street Capital Partners, MBIA Insurance Corp. and High Ridge Capital
Partners. RAM Re commenced business in February 1998 with the purpose of reinsuring municipal, structured
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finance: and international debt obligations originally underwritten by “AAA”-rated guarantors. RAM Re provides
remsurance to' primary financial guarantor companies that market credit enhancement of debt securities through
insurance on scheduled payments on an issuer’s obligations. RAM Re’s insured portfolio consists primarily of
municipal securities. and -structured products, principally asset-backed securities. RAM Re’s customers include
the major fmancxal guaranty insurers.

i

The ﬁnanmal guaranty policies wh1ch RAM Re reinsures typ1ca11y cover full and timely payment of
scheduled prmcnpalv and interest on debt securities. A reinsurance company receives its share of the premium
from the primary insurer, and typically pays a ceding commission to the primary insurer as compensation for
underwriting expenses. Insurance is ceded by the primaries to the reinsurance companies either on a treaty or
facultative basis. Treaty reinsurance typically involves an agreement covering a defined class of business where
the reinsurance cofnpany must assume, and the insurer must cede, a portion of all risks defined by the terms of
the tredty. In facultative agreements, reinsurance is negotiated on a case-by-case basis for coverage of individual
transactions' or business segments, giving both parties control over the credit process. In recent years, treaty
policies have become more prominent. : '

RAM Re is currently rated “AAA” by S&P and “Aa3” by Moody’s. RAM Re and its holding companies are
subject to regulatlon under the laws of Bermuda.

3. Residential Lender Services
Select Portfolio Servicing (SPS)

As of December 31, 2004, our ownership interest was 64.9% and our total investment balance in SPS was
$126.2 'million, con‘si'stin‘g of $109.5 million carrying value of our equity investment and $16.7 million of related
party recelvables which are presently current. SPS’s wholly-owned subsidiary, Select Portfolio Servicing,
services smgle famlly residential mortgages and specializes in the résolution of nonperforming, subperforming,
subprime, Alt-A, and home equity loans. SPS is headquartered in Salt Lake C1ty, Utah and maintains servicing
facilities in Salt Lake City, Utah and Jacksonville, Florida.

Estabhshed in 1989 Select Portfolio Servicing mma]ly acqu1red subperforming and nonperforming loans
for its own portfoho It later began managing and resolving non-performing loans and servicing subprime
products, for third pames ‘transitioning itself to a third-party servicer of subprime, Alt-A and home equity
products. As of December 31, 2004, Select Portfolio Servicing serviced approximately $22 billion in mortgages,
compared to apprdximately $41 billion as of December 31, 2003. This significant decline in servicing was caused
by heavy bdrroWe; prepayment of loans serviced by Select. Portfolio Servicing, and loss of business to
compétitors due,to ratings downgrades, combined with its inability to acquire new servicing business because of
ratings* downgrades. Select Portfolio Servicing’s ability to profitably acquire new servicing is limited by its
“average” servicer ratings assigned to it by S&P and Moody’s. Several competitors of Select Portfolio Servicing
hold servicer ratings of “above average.”

SPS utilizes various. notes payable and lines of credit arrangements to finance servicing advances that it
makes in the normal course of business and to finance the acquisition of mortgage servicing rights. These
borrowing arrangements require repayment of the financed amount as servicing receivables are collected or in
the case of ‘mortgage servicing rights, using monthly amortizing payments not to exceed 18 months. Financing
countérparties mclude various major investment banks and commercial lenders. SPS’ total notes payable, cash
and cash equlvalents and shareholders’ equity as of December 31, 2004 were $209.9 million, $30.4 million and
$158.8" million, respectlvely As of December 31, 2004 SPS owned $61.5 million of purchased mortgage
servicing nghts

On, January 19, 2005, we entered into a Summary of Terms with Credit Suisse First Boston (USA), Inc.
(“CSFB”) DLI. Mortgage ‘Capital, Inc., FSA Portfolio Management,. Inc.: (“FSA™), SPS and Select Portfolio
Serv1cmg that prov1des CSFB with an option, exercisable on or before July 31, 2005, to acquire 100% of the
outstanding capitalstock of SPS from PMI, FSA and the other shareholders of SPS.
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In the event CSFB exercises the option, the aggregate purchase price for the capital stock of SPS will
include a cash payment and contingent monthly payments payable thereafter until December 31, 2007. The cash
payment would equal the consolidated book value of SPS on the month end preceding the exercise of the option
(excluding mortgage servicing rights owned by Select Portfolio Servicing at such month end, other than those
delivered by CSFB’s affiliate after November 30, 2004) plus $10 million. The contingent monthly payments
would equal the positive monthly net cash flows on ‘the mortgage servicing rights owned, and the subprime
mortgage loans subserviced, by Select Portfolio Servicing (excluding the mortgage servicing rights delivered by
CSFB’s affiliate). A final contingent payment would be due in an amount equal to the fair market value on
December 31, 2007 of the expected remaining cash flows on the mortgage servicing rights owned by Select
Portfolio Servicing (excluding the mortgage servicing rights delivered by CSFB’s affiliate).

Under the Summary of Terms, an affiliate of CSFB will sell mortgage servicing rights with an aggregate
unpaid principal balance of $3.1 billion to Select Portfolio Servicing by June 30, 2005. In addition, if CSFB does
not exercise the option to purchase SPS, an affiliate of CSFB will sell additional mortgage servicing rights with
an aggregate unpaid principal balance of $3.0 billion to Select Portfolio Servicing by December 31, 2005.

Based on the transaction contemplated by the Summary of Terms, we recorded a realized capital loss
relating to its investment in SPS of approximately $20.4 million on a pre-tax basis, or $13.3 million on an after-
tax basis, for the fourth quarter of 2004.

Select Portfolio Servicing’s business is subject to extensive regulation, supervision and licensing by various
state and federal agencies. On the federal level, Select Portfolio Servicing’s business is regulated by, among
other statutes .and regulations, the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act, the Fair Credit Reporting Act, RESPA, the
Truth in Lending Act and the Home Ownership and Equity Protection Act of 1994. Select Portfolio Servicing is
also subject to the laws of the states in which it is licensed as a mortgage servicer or debt collector relating to its
practices, procedures and type and amount of fees it can collect from borrowers. For a discussion of litigation
actions and regulatory matters facing SPS, see Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations—Results of Operations, Other and—Risk Factors.

D. Investment Portfolio

As of December 31, 2004, The PMI Group and its consolidated subsidiaries had total cash and cash
equivalents of $328.0 million and investments of $3.3 billion. In 2004, The PMI Group’s Board of Directors
formed the Investment and Finance Committee of the Board of Directors to oversee our investment portfolio,
including our unconsolidated subsidiaries, and to approve investment strategies and monitor investment
performance of The PMI Group. The Investment and Finance Committee is also responsible for reviewing and
approving any changes to The PMI Group, Inc. and Subsidiaries Investment Policy Statement, or the Policy, and
Derivative Use Plan’s Foreign Exchange Policy Guidelines.

The U.S. companies included in the consolidated financial statements, or the U.S. Portfolio, held cash and
cash equivalents and investments of $2.6 billion as of December 31, 2004. PMI manages the fixed income
portion of the U.S. Portfolio internally, pursuant to the Policy. Since January 1, 2005, the 3.8% of the U.S.
Portfolio invested in common stock of publicly-traded corporations is managed by Mt. Eden Investment
Advisors. Prior to January 1, 2005, Weiss, Peck & Greer managed this portion of the U.S. Portfolio.

Pursuant to the Policy, the U.S. Portfolio is managed to achieve our overall objectives through the
attainment of consistent, competitive after-tax total returns. The Policy strongly emphasizes providing a
predictable, high level of investment income, while maintaining adequate levels of liquidity, safety and
preservation of capital. Growth of capital and surplus through long-term market appreciation are a secondary
consideration. The Policy provides that the realization of taxable .capital gains will be minimized and that
appropriate emphasis will be given to credit quality, price volatility, and diversification, for each investment
category as well for the portfolio as a whole. As of December 31, 2004, based on market value and excluding
cash and cash equivalents, approximately 88.8% of the U.S. Portfolio was invested in fixed income securities and
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approximately 7.3% was invested in equity securities. 96.8% of the fixed income investments were rated “A” or
better by at least one natlonally recognized securities rating organization, and of those, 55.6% were rated “AAA,”
30.3% were rated “AA,” and 14.1% were ratéd “A.” The U.S. Portfolio’s fixed income portfolio’s option-
adjusted duratron mcludrng cash and cash equivalents, was 7.0 as of December 31, 2004,

Investments held by The PMI Group’s U.S. insurance subsidiaries are subject to the insurer investment laws
of each of the states in which they are licensed. These statutes, designed to preserve insurer assets for the
protection of pohcyholders set limits on the percentage of assets that an msurer can hold in certain investment
categories (e.g., under Arlzona law, no more than 20% in equity securities) and with a single issuer (e.g., 10%
under Arlzona law)

PMI ‘Aus‘tralia s and PMI Europe’s investments are subject to the investment policies adopted by their
respectrve boards' of directors and are managed by investment advisory firms under separate investment
management agreements We regularly review PMI Australia and PMI ‘Europe’s investment strategies and
performances. PMI Australia’s and PMI Europe’s boards of directors also review their respective investment
portfolios oh a quarterly basis. PMI Australia’s and PMI Europe’s investment policies specify that the portfolios
must be invested predominantly in intermediate-term and high-grade bonds.

As of December 31, 2004, PMI Australia had $49.9 million in cash and cash equivalents and $751.5 million
of investments which are managed by Deutsche Asset Management. The investment portfolio consists mainly of
high-grade Australian currency-denominated fixed income securities issued by sovereign, semi-government, and
corporate entities. At December 31, 2004, the portfolio’s option-adjusted duration, including cash and cash
equivalents, was 3.7. The entire Australian bond portfolio is investment grade rated. The portfolio also contains a
small allocation of investments in Australian and New Zealand equity securities.

As of December 31, 2004, PMI Europe had $30.1 million in cash and cash equivalents and $199.2 million
of investments which are managed by Morgan Stanley Investment Management Limited. The investment
portfolio eonsists of Euro and British Pounds Sterling currency-denominated fixed income securities issued by
sovereign, agency, and corporate entities. The portfolio’s option-adjusted duration, including cash and cash
equivalents, was 4.4 at December 31, 2004. PMI Europe’s portfolio did not contain investments in equity
securities as of December 31, 2004.

Our:nnconsolidated strategic investments which have significant investment portfolios are as follows: FGIC,
managed by BlackRock Financial Management and Wellington Management; CMG, managed by MEMBERS
Capital Advisors, an affiliate of CUNA and RAM Re, managed by MBIA Asset Management. We review these
entities’ investment portfolios and strategies on a quarterly basis. Through our representation on their boards of
directors, we have a limited ability to influence their investment management decisions.

E. Employees,

As of December 31, 2004, The PMI Group, together with its wholly-owned subsidiaries and CMG, had
1,004 full-time and part-time employees, of which 757 persons performed services primarily for PMI, 209 were
employed by. PMI Australia, 10 were employed by PMI Europe, 4 were employed by Hong Kong and 24
performed services primarily for CMG. Our employees are not unionized and we consider our employee relations
to be good. In addition, MSC had 349 temporary workers and contract underwriters as of December 31, 2004.

Item 2. - Propert‘ies

We currently‘ own approximately 140,000 square feet of office space in Walnut Creek, California for our
home office. PMI leases offices throughout the United States. We conduct our international operations in leased
facilities‘in Ireland, the United Kingdom, Italy, Australia, New Zealand and Hong Kong.
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Item 3.  Legal Proceedings

In April 2002, PMI commenced litigation in the United States District Court for the Northern District of
California (PMI Mortgage Insurance Co. v. American International Specialty Lines Insurance Company, et al.,
Case No. 3:02-CV-01774) to obtain reimbursement from its former insurance carriers for costs incurred by PMI,
which exceeded $10 million, in connection with its defense and settlement of the class action litigation captioned
Baynham et al. v. PMI Mortgage Insurance Co. The insurance carriers counterclaimed against PMI to recover
defense costs previously advanced to PMI in conjunction with the Bayrham action in the amount of $1.2 million.
In November 2002, PMI and its former insurance carriers filed competing motions for partial summary judgment
on the issue of whether the activities of PMI that were the subject of the Baynham action were “professional
services” and, therefore, covered under the relevant insurance policies. On December 16, 2002, the District Court
denied PMI’s motion for partial summary judgment and granted the insurance carriers’ motion for partial
summary judgment. On January 14, 2005, pursuant to PMI’s appeal of the District Court’s judgment, the United
States Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit reversed the rulings of the District Court and remanded the case to
the District Court with instructions to enter partial summary judgment in favor of PMIL (PMI Mortgage
Insurance Co. v. American International Specialty Lines Insurance Company, et al., Case Nos. 03-15728 and
03-16007).

Various other legal actions and regulatory reviews are currently pending that involve us and specific aspects

of our conduct of business. In the opinion of management, the ultimate liability or resolution in one or more of
. . . " ’ .
these actions or reviews is not expected to have a material effect on our business.
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'EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT
Set forth below is certain information regardlng our executive ofﬁcers as of February 28, 2005.

W. ROGER HAUGHTON, 57, is Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of The PMI Group
and Chairman; of PMI. He brings more than 35 years of experience to his positions. Mr. Haughton joined us in
1985 from Allstate Insurance Company, where he held various underwriting positions since 1969. He became
President:and Chief Executive Officer of PMI in January 1993. He became President, Chief Executive Officer
and a-director of The PMI Group when The PMI Group went public in April 1995, and was elected Chairman of
the Board in May 1998. A graduate of the University of California at Santa Barbara, Mr. Haughton holds a B.A.
in economics. He:is a past President of Mortgage Insurance Companies of America, the industry trade
association. Mr. Haughton has a long history of active volunteerism with various affordable housing
organizations. Mr. Haughton was a member of the Board of Directors of Habitat for Humanity International. He
serves on the board and is a former Chairman of Social Compact, a Washington D.C. organization dedicated to
promoting revitalization, of America’s inner cities. He is also on the executive committee and board of San
Francisco’s Bay Area Council. Mr. Haughton is a trustee for the University of California at Santa Barbara, and he
also serves on th‘e‘p‘olicy advisory boards for both the Fisher Center for Real Estate & Urban Economics at the
University of California at Berkeley and the School of Real Estate at the University of San Diego.

L. STEPHEN SMITH, 55, has been President and Chief Operating Officer of The PMI Group and PMI
since September 1998, and has been Chief Executive Officer of PMI since January 2004. Prior thereto he was
Executive Vice President of Marketing and Field Operations of PMI since May 1994 and was elected to the same
positions with' The PMI Group in January 1995. Prior thereto, he held various executive positions since 1991. Mr.
Smith joined us in 1979. Mr. Smith is a member of our Board of Directors.

BRADLEY M. SHUSTER, 50, has been President, International and Strategic Investments of The PMI
Group and Presiglént and Chief Executive Officer of PMI Capital Corporation since January 1, 2003. Prior
thereto, he was Executive Vice President Corporate Development of The PMI Group and PMI since February
1999. Prior thereto he was Senior Vice President, Treasurer and Chief Investment Officer of PMI since August
1995, and was elected to the same position with The PMI Group, in September 1995, Prior to joining PMI, he
was an audit partner with the accounting firm of Deloitte & Touche LLP, where he was employed from January
1978 to July 1995. -

VICTOR J.  BACIGALUPI, 61, has been Executive Vice President—Chief Administrative Officer,
General Counsel and Secretary of The PMI Group and PMI since February 2005. Prior thereto he was Senior
Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary of The PMI Group and PMI since February 2003. Prior
thereto he was Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary of The PMI Group and PMI since
August 1999, and Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary of The PMI Group and PMI since
November 1996. Prior to joining The PMI Group, he was a partner in the law firm of Bronson, Bronson &
McKinnon LLP, San Francisco, California since February 1992.

DONALD P. LOFE, JR 48, has been Executive Vice President of The PMI Group and PMI since January
2003 and has been Chief Financial Officer of The PMI Group and PMI since April 1, 2003. Prior to joining The
PMI Group, Mr. Lofe was Senior Vice President, Corporate Finance for the CNA Financial Corporation from
October 1998 until January 2003. From October 1991 until November 1998, Mr. Lofe was an audit partner with
the accounting firm of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, where he was employed for approximately 20 years. Mr.
Lofe is a certified public accountant. :

DANIEL L. ROBERTS, 54, has been Executive Vice President, Chief Information Officer of The PMI
Group and PMI since March 1, 2000. Prior thereto he was Senior Vice President, Chief Information Officer of
The PMI Group and PMI since December 1997. Prior to joining The PMI Group, he was Vice President and
Chief Information Officer of St. Joseph Health System, a position he held since he joined that company in
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October 1994, Prior thereto, he was Vice President, Information Services and Chief Information Officer for a
division of Catholic Healthcare West, positions he held since joining the company in December 1990. Mr.
Roberts was a consulting partner with the accounting firm of Deloitte & Touche LLP from July 1985 to
December 1990.

DAVID H. KATKOYV, 49, has been Executive Vice President, Sales, Field Operations and Product
Development of PMI since February 2004. Prior thereto he was Executive Vice President, National Accounts and
Product Development from February 2003 to February 2004 and Executive Vice President Product Development,
Pricing, and Portfolio Management from August 2001 to February 2003. Mr. Katkov commenced his
employment with PMI in 1992 and has held executive positions in marketing and related functions. Prior to
joining PMI, Mr. Katkov was a Vice President of US Bank Corporation, Minneapolis, Minnesota.

LLOYD A. PORTER, 45, has been Executive Vice President and Managing Director, International
Mortgage Insurance of PMI and PMI Capital Corporation since August 2004. Prior thereto, he was Senior Vice
President and Managing Director, International Markets since February 1999. Mr. Porter joined PMI in 1983 and
has held a variety of positions relating to marketing and international operations.
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PART Iz
ITEM 5 MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER
. MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES
Common Stock ‘
The PMI Group‘_’bi's listed on the New York Stock Exchange and the Pacific Exchange under the trading
symbol :‘“PMI."’ As'of February 28, 2005, there were approximately 48 stockholders of record.

The following table shows the high, low and closing common stock prices by quarter from the New York
Stock Exchange Composite Listing for the years ended:

2004 2003
High Low Close High Low Close
First quarter .. .................. $41.72 $35.82 $37.36 $32.25 $24.03 $25.55
Second quarter ................. $45.00 $37.40 $43.52 $31.90 $25.56 $26.84
Third quarter ................... $44.34 $38.04 $40.58 $36.21 $26.85 $33.75

Fourth quarter ., .............. L. $42.10 $36.11 $41.75 $39.38 $33.79 $37.23

Preferred Stock:

The PMI Group s Board of Directors is authorized to issue up to 5,000,000 shares of preferred stock of The
PMI Group in classes or series and to fix the demgnatlons preferences, qualifications, limitations or restrictions
of any class or series with respect to the rate and nature of dividends, the price and terms and conditions on
which shares may be redeemed, the amount payable in the event of voluntary or involuntary liquidation, the
terms and conditions for_conversion or exchange into any other class or series of the stock, voting rights and
other terms. The, PMI Group may issue, without the approval of the holders of common stock, preferred stock
that has voting, dividend ‘or liquidation rights superior to the common stock and which may adversely affect the
rights of the holders of common stock. The PMI Group has reserved up to 400,000 shares of preferred stock for
issuance under the R1 ghts Plan described below.

Preferred Share Purchase Rights Plan

On Janbary 13,_ 1998, The PMI Group adopted a Preferred Share Purchase Rights Plan, or the Rights Plan.
Under the Rights Plan, all stockholders of record as of January 26, 1998 received rights to purchase shares of a
new series of preferred stock on the basis of one right for each common stock held on that date. However, rights
issued under the Rights Plan will not be exercisable initially. The rights will trade with The PMI Group’s
common stock and no certificates will be issued until certain triggering €vents occur. The Rights Plan has a ten
year term from the record date, but The PMI Group’s Board of Directors periodically reviews the merits of
redeeming or contmumg the Rights Plan. Rights issued under the Rights Plan will be exercisable only if a person
or group acquires 10% or more of The PMI Group’s common stock or announces a tender offer for 10% or more
of the common stock. If a person or group acquires 10% or more of The PMI Group’s common stock, all rights
holders except the buyer will be entitled to acquire The PMI Group’s common stock at a discount and/or, under
certain circumstances, to purchase shares of the acquiring company at a discount. The Rights Plan contains an
exception that would allow passive institutional investors to acquire up to a 15% ownership interest before the
rights would become exercisable.

Payment of Dividends and Policy
The PMI Gfoup has paid regular dividends on its common stock of:
o $0:0450 pér share in each quarter since the quarter ended June 30, 2004;

o $0.0375 per share in each of the four quarters in the period from July 1, 2003 through June 30, 2004;

e $0:0250 per sha.re for each of the two quarters in the perlod from January 1, 2003 through June 30,
2003.
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The payment of future dividends is subject to the discretion of our Board of Directors, which will consider,
among other factors, our consolidated operating results, overall financial condition and capital requirements, as
well as general business conditions. The PMI Group, as a holding company, is dependent upon dividends and any
other permitted payments from its subsidiaries to enable it to pay dividends and to service outstanding debt.
PMI’s ability to pay dividends or make distributions or returns of capital to The PMI Group is affected by state
insurance laws, credit agreements, rating agencies, the discretion of insurance regulatory authorities and the
terms of our runoff support agreement with Allstate Insurance Company and capital support agreements with our
subsidiaries. See Item 1, Section B.10. Regulation, Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations—Liguidity and Capital Resources and—Risk Factors, and Item 8. Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data—Note 16. Dividends and Shareholders’ Equity.

Stock Repurchases

On February 20, 2003, The PMI Group’s Board of Directors authorized a stock repurchase program in an
amount not to exceed $100 million. As of December 31, 2004, repurchases in the amount of $99,997,792 have
occurred and in March 2005 we completed the remaining repurchases under this authorization.

The following table contains information with respect to common stock purchases made by or on behalf of
the Company during the year ended December 31, 2004.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Total Number of
Total Average Shares Purchased Approximate Dollar
Number of Price as Part of Publicly Value of Shares that
Shares Paid per Announced May Yet Be Purchased
Period Purchased ® Share Programs @ Under the Programs @
01/01/04 - 01/31/04 — N/A — $100,000,000
02/01/04 - 02/29/04 — N/A — $100,000,000
03/01/04 — 03/31/04 — N/A — $100,000,000
04/01/04 — 04/30/04 — N/A — $100,000,000
05/01/04 — 05/31/04 730 $43.96 — $100,000,000
06/01/04 — 06/30/04 13,273 $43.08 — $100,000,000
07/01/04 — 07/31/04 —_ N/A —_ $100,000,000
08/01/04 — 08/31/04 517,413 $40.49 516,100 $ 79,106,490
09/01/04 - 09/30/04 470,000 $40.03 470,000 $ 60,293,405
10/01/04 - 10/31/04 — N/A — $ 60,293,405
11/01/04 - 11/30/04 825,000 $40.40 825,000 $ 26,967,252
12/01/04 - 12/31/04 665,629 $40.92 659,000 $ 2,208
Total 2,492,045 $40.63 2,470,100 $ 2,208

(1) Includes 21,945 shares surrendered by employees in connection with the payment of costs associated with stock option exercises.
(2) Stock repurchase programs are implemented from time to time, depending on market conditions and other factors, through open market
purchases and/or privately negotiated transactions. The programs do not have an expiration date.

On February 17, 2005, The PMI Group, Inc. Board of Directors authorized a stock repurchase program in an
amount not to exceed $100 million. As of the date of this Report, $31.7 million of repurchases have occurred
under this authorization.

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans

For information on securities authorized for issuance under equity compensation plans, refer to The PMI
Group’s 2005 Proxy Statement for its Annual Meeting for Stockholders, Executive Compensation—Equity
Compensation Plan Information, which is incorporated by reference herein.
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ITEM: 7 MANAGEMENT ’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDI TION AND
- RESULTS OF OPERATIONS.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Statements made or incorporated by reference from time to time in this document, other documents filed
with the. Securmes and Exchange Commission, press releases, conferences or otherwise that are not historical
facts, or,are’ preceded by, followed by or that include the words “believes,” “expects,” “anticipates,” “estimates”
or similar expressions, and that relate to future plans, events or performance are “forward-looking” statements
within the meaning:of the federal securities laws.

EEINT3 K&

Forward-looking statements in this document include discussions relating to the U.S. mortgage origination
market, in 2005, PMI’s persistency rate, the seasoning of PMI’s- current insurance portfolio and its impact on
losses” 'and’ clalms PMI's captive reinsurance agreements PMI’s modified pool products and delegated
underwntmg program, contract underwriting’ services, our loss reserve assumptions and estimates, The PMI
Group’s liguidity, ‘the new Basel Capltal Accord (Basel II), and regulatory developments in the U.S. and
Australia and therr possrble impact on us.

When ayforward-looklng statement includes an underlying assumiption, we caution that, while we believe the
assumption to be reasonable and make it in good faith, assumed facts almost always vary from actual results, and
the difference between assumed facts and actual results can be material. Where, in any forward-looking
statement, we express an expectation or belief as to future results, there can be no assurance that the expectation
or belief will result. Our actual results may differ materially from those expressed in any forward-looking
statement made by us. Forward-looking statements involve a number of risks of uncertainties including, but not
limited to, the risks: described under the heading “Risk Factors.” All forward-looking statements are qualified
by and should be read in conjunction with those risk factors. Except as may be required by applicable law,
we undertake no obllgatlon to publicly update or revise any forward -looking statements, whether as a
result of new mformatron, future events or otherwise.

Overview of Our Business |
We . are -an 1nternat10nal provider of credit enhancement as well .as other products that promote

homeownershrp and facilitate mortgage transactions in the capital markets. We divide our business into four
segments:

o . US. Morigage Insurance Operations. We offer mortgage insurance products in the U.S. that enable
borrowers to buy homes with low down-payment mortgages. Net income from U.S. Mortgage Insurance
Operations 'was $254.5 million in 2004 and $245.5 million in 2003, and includes PMI Mortgage

) Insurance, Co. and its affiliated U.S. mortgage insurance and reinsurance companies (collectively,
“PMI”); and equity in earnings from PMI’s joint venture, CMG Mortgage Insurance Company.

* ' International Operations. We offer mortgage insurance and ‘other credit enhancement products in
- Australiaj New Zealand, Europe and Hong Kong. Net income from our International Operations
segment was $99.9 million in 2004 and $78.6 million in 2003.

¢ Financial - Guaranty We are the lead investor in FGIC Corporation, whose subsidiary, Financial
‘ Guaranty Insurance Company, or FGIC, provides primary financial guaranty insurance. We also have a
si gmﬁcant 1nterest in RAM Reinsurance Company, Ltd., or RAM Re, a financial guaranty reinsurance
company based in Bermuda. Net income from our Financial Guaranty segment was $60.7 million in
2004 and $10 4 million in 2003. '

* Other. Our Other segment consists of our holding company and contract underwriting operations,
¢ equity in,ear‘nin'gs‘ (losses) from SPS Holding Corp., or SPS, and certain limited partnerships,; and the
.. discontinued’ operations of our former title insurance subsidiary, American Pioneer Title Insurance
. Company; or ‘APTIC. On March 19, 2004, we completed the sale of APTIC, which generated
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$115.1 million in cash proceeds and an after tax gain of $29.0 million. Accordingly, there were no
results of operations related to APTIC in the last three quarters of 2004. Our Other segment generated a
net loss of $15.8 million in 2004 and $35.1 million in 2003.

Qur goal is to become a global provider of credit enhancement products across multiple asset and risk
classes and to continue to diversify our product offerings beyond mortgage insurance, while at the same time
expanding our mortgage insurance product offerings. The percentage of our consolidated revenues generated by
our International Operations and Financial Guaranty segments increased to 25.0% in 2004, from 16.0% in 2003
and 10.1% in 2002,

Revenues and Expenses
Our revenues from continuing operations consist primarily of:

+ premiums earned on our U.S. and international mortgage insurance policies and credit enhancement
products;

* netinvestment income on our investment portfolios;
* equity in earnings from our unconsolidated subsidiaries; and

* other income, including fees from contract underwriting services.
Our revenues in 2004 were reduced by a realized capital loss on our equity investment held for sale.

Our expenses consist primarily of:
* claims paid to policyholders, claims-related expenses and changes in reserves;
¢ amortization of deferred policy acquisitions costs;

+ underwriting, acquisition and policy servicing costs, contract underwriting costs and remedies, and
general administration and overhead expenses;

» interest and financing expenses; and

»  income taxes.

Conditions and Trends Affecting our Business
Overview of 2004 Financial Results

Our consolidated net income was $399.3 million in 2004 compared to $299.4 million in 2003. Our
consolidated net income from continuing operations in 2004 was $366.5 million and increased by 33.6%
compared to 2003. (See Results of Operations table below.) The 2004 increase in consolidated income from
continuing operations after taxes was primarily due to increases in 2004 in our equity in earnings from FGIC,
premiums earned and net investment income, particularly from our International Operations, and the slight
profitability of SPS in 2004 compared to its losses in 2003. The increases were partially offset by higher losses
and loss adjustment expenses, or LAE, and other underwriting and operating expenses, primarily from U.S.
Mortgage Insurance Operations, a $20.4 million (pre-tax) realized capital loss on our equity investment in SPS,
and an increase in our interest expense as a result of long-term debt that we issued in the fourth quarter of 2003.

Approximately 16% of our consolidated total revenues in 2004 consisted of interest and dividend income
associated with our consolidated investment portfolio of $3.3 billion. Accordingly, the performance of corporate
and municipal bond and securities markets in the U.S., Australia and Europe can significantly affect our
consolidated financial results. Qur primary goal in managing our investment portfolios is to achieve a predictable
level of income while maintaining adequate levels of liquidity and the preservation of capital. Growth of the
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portfolio ahd‘minimjzing the realization of taxable gains are secondary considerations.. A substantial portion of
our consolidated investment portfolio consists of investment grade fixed income securitiés.

[

T‘rehd& and COn‘ditions Affecting Financial Performance

U.S, Mortgage Insurance Operations. The financial performance of our U.S. Mortgage Insurance
Operatlons segment is affected by a number of factors, including:

o

Policy Cancellations and Persistency. ~ Low interest rates in 2003 and 2004 resuited in heavy mortgage
refinance activity and caused PMI’s policy cancellations to increase, which in turn negatively affected
PMIfs insurance in force. While policy cancellations negatively affect PMY's insurance in force,
cancellations due to borrower prepayments positively affect premiums earned on PMI’s single premium
policies in' the year in which the cancellations occur. Upon notification of cancellation of a loan under a
non-refundable single premium policy, any unearned premium with respect to that loan is recognized as
earned premium. PMI’s persistency rate, the percentage of insurance in force at the beginning of a
12-month period that remains in force at the end of that period, was 60.9% at December 31, 2004

, compared to 44.6% at December 31, 2003. While interest rates remain at affordable levels, the

improvement in PMI’s persistency rate at December 31, 2004 compared to December 31, 2003 resulted
from a stabilization of mortgage interest rates and corresponding decline in refinance activity in 2004. If
these trends continue in 2005, and particularly if mortgage interest rates increase, we believe that PMI's
persxstency rate will continué to improve,

" New Insurgnce‘Wrztten (NIW). PMI's NIW decreased by 28.1% in 2004 compared to 2003. PMI’s

ability to'write new mortgage insurance is directly affected by, among other factors, the sizes of the U.S.

‘ mdrtgage origination, purchase money mortgage, and private mortgage insurance markets. The sizes of
: the U.S. mortgage origination and private mortgage insurance markets decreased in 2004 compared to
2003 .as a result of a decline in refinancing activity in 2004. We expect mortgage originations and
. reﬁnance activity to decline and the percentage of purchase money mortgage transactions to increase in
. 2005 if U.S. mortgage interest rates remain stable or increase. Increased use of alternatives to private

mortoage insurance, such as “piggyback,” “80/10/10” or “80/20" loans, also negatively affected the size

" of the prwate mortgage insurance market and PMI's NIW in 2004. We believe that the use of such
_loans, which include a first mortgage lien with an LTV of 80% and a second mortgage lien of between

10% and 20% has increased in the last three years and may continue to do so in 2005.

Credzt and Porzfol;o Characteristics. PMI's NIW and insurance in force in 2004 consisted of higher
percentages of ‘adjustable rate mortgages, or ARMs, Alt-A loans and high loan to value, or LTV, loans.

. We consider a loan Alt-A if it has a credit, or FICO, score of 620 or greater and has certain

characteristics such as reduced documentation verifying the borrower’s income, deposit information or

¥ emp]dyment;: We believe that PMI’s increases reflect the higher concentrations of ARMs, Alt-A and
" high LTV, loans in the 2004 mortgage origination and private mortgage insurance markets. We believe

‘that these :markét trends will continue in 2005, particularly if mortgage interest rates increase. We
- expect higher default and claim rates for ARMs, Alt-A and high LTV loans and incorporate these
‘ assumpnons into our pricing and loss and claim estlmates

‘PMI ’s Losses and Claims. PMTI’s claims paid including LAE increased by 8.6% in 2004 compared to
. 2003 primarily as'a result of the aging of PMI’s insurance portfolio and higher claim rates associated

with the'portion of PMI’s portfolio that contains less-than-A quality (loans with FICO scores less than

620) and Alt-A loans. We expect a significant majority of PMI’s mortgage insurance claims with
- respect to its current portfolio to occur between the second and fourth years after loan origination.
i Approximately 85% of PMI’s insurance in force at Decembet 31, 2004 was written after January 1,
.2002.-We expect PMI’s total losses and LAE to increase in 2005 compared to 2004 due to the seasoning

of PMI’s instirance portfolio, particularly the 2003 'book year which represents 36.1% of PMI’s primary
insurance'in force, the higher average loan size of PMI's portfolio and higher claim rates associated with
ARMSs, Alt-A, high LTV and less-than-A quality loans. We expect that the impact of the seasoning of
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the 2003 and earlier book years on total losses and LAE will be greatest in 2005, with some continued
impact in 2006. However, changes in economic conditions, including mortgage interest rates, U.S.
unemployment and job creation, could significantly impact our total losses and LAE and our estimates.
In addition, changes in economic conditions may not necessarily be reflected in PMI’s loss development
in the quarter or year in which such changes occur.

Captive Reinsurance. Captive reinsurance is a reinsurance product in which PMI shares some of its
risk written on loans originated by certain lender-customers. In return, a portion of PMI’s gross
premiums written is ceded to the captive reinsurance companies of those lender-customers. At
December 31, 2004, 53.7% of PMI’s insurance in force was subject to captive reinsurance agreements,
compared to 50.0% at December 31, 2003. The captive reinsurance activity was due to refinance
activity in 2003 and 2004 resulting in heavy cancellations of policies not subject to captive reinsurance
and a higher percentage of NIW being generated by lenders with captive reinsurance agreements. We
expect that the percentage of our insurance in force that involves captive reinsurance will increase in
2005.

Underwriting and Operating Expenses. The profitability of our business depends in part on our ability
to control our underwriting and operating expenses. Our expense ratio, the ratio of underwriting
expenses to net premiums written, in our U.S. Mortgage Insurance Operations segment has been
adversely affected by lower persistency from historical levels, which has reduced PMI's premiums
written, and by the increased use of captive reinsurance, which decreases premiums written without
fully offsetting decreases in underwriting expenses.

Regulatory and Legislative Environment. At any point in time, there are multiple proposals and
initiatives for statutory and regulatory changes that may significantly affect the mortgage insurance
industry as well as PMI's business. We may also be impacted by changes in statutes and regulations
affecting the GSEs, including changes to the risk-based capital rules and as a result of changes in the
GSEs eligibility guidelines.

International Operations. Factors affecting the financial performance of our International Operations
segment include:

PMI Australia. PMI Australia’s NIW and insurance in force increased during 2004 compared to 2003,
positively affecting consolidated premiums earned and net investment income. The increases in NIW
and insurance in force were also positively affected by exchange rate fluctuations and favorable
economic conditions in the Australian and New Zealand economies. PMI Australia’s mortgage
insurance coverage is typically purchased with a single, lump-sum premium. Accordingly, policy
cancellations do not negatively impact PMI Australia’s revenues, but rather decrease its overall claim
risk and increase its net premiums earned. PMI Australia’s net income also continued to be positively
impacted by the low level of reported defaults and decreases in its losses and LAE due to a strong
housing market, low interest rates and low unemployment. We expect the rate of Australian home price
appreciation to moderate in 20035. The Australian and New Zealand economies performed well in 2004
and PMI Australia’s results are closely tied to economic developments in those countries.

PMI Europe. PMI Europe’s net income and premiums earned increased in 2004 compared to 2003
primarily as a result of its fourth quarter 2003 acquisition of a portion of the U.K. lenders’ mortgage
insurance portfolio of Royal & Sun Alliance, or R&SA and the positive performance associated with
PMI Europe’s various credit default swaps. Under the terms of the agreement, PMI Europe and R&SA
share certain economic benefits if loss performance performs to certain target levels. Due to better than
expected loss experience on the R&SA portfolio, we anticipate increased profit commission accruals in
2005. PMI Europe’s ability to expand its business in the U.K. and elsewhere in Europe depends on
several factors. These factors include lender expectations of future mortgage losses and the degree to
which PMI Europe’s products are accepted in Europe’s secondary mortgage market and recognized as a
method to reduce capital requirements with respect to the New Basel Capital Accord (Basel II), which is
expected to become applicable to European banks starting in 2007.
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*  Foreign Currency Exchange Fluctuations. The performance of International Operations is subject to
fluctuations in the exchange. rates between the reporting currency of the U.S. dollar and the functional
currencies of the Australian dollar and the Euro. The change in the average foreign currency exchange

rates from 2003 favorably impacted our 2004 International Operations net income by $10.2 million,

primarily: due to appreciation of the Australian dollar. This foreign currency translation impact is

« calculated using the year over year change in the average monthly exchange rates to the current period

endmg netiincome in the local currencies. In the second quarter of 2004, we purchased foreign exchange

- put, optlons at a cost of $1.1 million to mitigate the negative effects of a potential strengthening U.S.

dollar relative to either the Australian dollar or the Euro in 2004. We entered into a similar foreign
exchange put program in January 2005 at a pre-tax cost of $1.8 million.

Fmanczal Guaranry Factors affecting the financial performance of our Financial Guaranty segment
include: ‘

. FG]C Cofporation The significant portion of our 2004 net income derived from our Financial
Guaranty segment was generated by equity in earnings from FGIC Corporation. Factors affecting FGIC
j Corporauon s financial performance include interest rate movements, which may generate refundings,

N the level of public financings, and FGIC’s ability to expand into new markets.

. RAM Re. . 'RAM Re’s net income increased in 2004 in comparison to 2003 primarily due to increases in
" premiums earned and investment income, offset 'by. increases in underwrmng and operating expenses
and amortization of policy acquisition costs.

Other Factors affecting the financial performance of our Other segment include:

° ‘SPS (formerly Fairbanks Capital Holding Corp.). We recorded $0.4 million in equity in earnings
, relating to-SPS in 2004 compared to a $17.7 million loss in 2003. In September 2003, SPS recorded
$55.0 million (pre-tax) in charges in connection with its settlement of potential civil charges by the FTC
and HUD, settlement of certain putative class action litigation, and estimated costs relating to certain
state. regulatory  actions. In January 2005, we signed a Summary of Terms with Credit Suisse First
Boston (USA), Inc., or CSFB, pursuant to which CSFB received an option to acquire 100% of our
outstandmg stock of SPS. Based upon the transaction, for the fourth quarter of 2004 we recorded an
after tax' $13.3 million realized capital loss on our equity investment in SPS, and classified our
- iremaining: carrying value in SPS as equity investment held for sale on our consolidated balance sheet.
;Wewill record fufure equity in earnings or losses from SPS in Other income.

‘s iContract Underwriting Services. Due to a decline in refinancing activity and mortgage originations in

112004, our contract underwriting activities declined and ‘associated revenue decreased to $26.1 million

ifrom. $40.3 ‘million in 2003. Allocated contract underwriting expenses to our Other segment also

" ‘decreased to $26.1 million in 2004 from $44.3 million in 2003. Total contract underwriting expenses

include monetary remedies provided to customers in the event we failed to properly underwrite a loan.

Expenses associated with contract underwriting remedies, and accruals thereof were $10.0 million in
2004 and $13 1 million in 2003.

*  Other Items Affecting this Segment. Our Other segment also includes net investment income, net
~income’ from discontinued operations, expenses related to corporate overhead including salaries,
bonuses, interest expense and distributions on our mandatorily redeemable preferred securities, and the

; 2004 gdin on sale of APTIC.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004, 2003 AND 2002

Consolidated Results

The following table presents our consolidated financial results for the years ended:

REVENUES:

Premiums earned ........ ..ot

Net investment income . . . ... e
Equity in earnings from unconsolidated strategic

investments ....... e

Net realized investment gains . .. ................. ... ..

Realized capital loss on equity investment held for sale

Other income

Totalrevenues .................... B,
LOSSES AND EXPENSES:

Losses and loss adjustment expenses . ...................
Amortization of deferred policy acquisition costs ..........
Other underwriting and operating eXpenses . ..............
Lease abandonment and relocation costs .................
Litigation settlement charge (refund) ....................
Interest expense and distributions on mandatorily redeemable

preferred securities . ......... .. ... . i

Total losses and expenses . .......................

Income from continuing operations before income taxes
Income taxes from continuing operations

Income from continuing operations after income taxes .......
Income from discontinued operations before income taxes .......
Income taxes from discontinued operations ...................

Income from discontinued operations after income taxes .....
Gain on sale of discontinued operations, net of income taxes of
S16.5 . e

Income before extraordinary items and cumulative effect of a
change in accounting principle ........... ... ... ... .....

Extraordinary gain on write-off of negative goodwill, net of
incometaxesof $0.4 ... .. ...

Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle

Netincome ........ ... i,

Diluted earnings pershare . ..............................

Percentage
Change

2004 2003

vS. vs.

2004 2003 2002 2003 2002

(Dollars in millions, except
per share data)

$ 7704 $696.9 $676.9 105% 3.0%
168.6 1498 1206 12.6% 24.2%
83.6 4.6 442 — (89.6)%
2.6 0.1 13 — (923)%

(204) — - - —
334 40.3 391 17.)% 3.1%
1,038.2 891.7 8821 164% 1.1%
2373 209.1 1576 13.5% 327%
85.2 89.3 834 46)% 11%
2047 1757 1449 165% 21.3%

— — 122 — _

2.6) — 122 — —
346 245 217 412% 12.9%
559.2 498.6 4320 122% 154%
479.0 393.1 450.1  219% (12.7)%
1125 1188 1245 (5.3)% (4.6)%
3665 2743 3256 33.6% (15.8)%
5.8 26.9 20.6 (78.4)% 30.6%

2.0 7.2 72 (72.2)% —
3.8 19.7 134 (80.7)% 47.0%

29.0 — — — —
3993 294.0 339.0 35.8% (13.3)%

— 54— — —

— — 72 — —
$ 3993 $299.4 $346.2 33.4% (13.5)%
$ 387 $3.09 $355 25.2% (13.0)%

Consolidated net income for 2004 increased by 33.4% over 2003 due primarily to increases in 2004 in
premiums earned in our U.S. Mortgage Insurance Operations and International Operations, equity in earnings
from FGIC Corporation of $61.6 million in 2004, and our 2004 gain on the sale of APTIC. These factors were
partially offset by higher 2004 losses and LAE and other underwriting and operating expenses, primarily from
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U.S. Mortgage Insurance Operations, and a realized capital loss on our equity investment in SPS in 2004.
Consolidated. net income for 2003 decreased by 13.5% compared to 2002, due primarily to a reduction in
earnings from unconsohdated strategic investments, increases in losses and LAE and other underwriting and
operatmg expenses prrmanly from U, S Mortgage Insurance Operations.

Prennums earned represents the amount of premiums recognized as revenue for accounting purposes. The
increase in p‘r‘erm'ums earned in 2004 over 2003 was attributable primarily to increases in premiums earned by
our International Operations and U.S. Mortgage Insurance Operations. PMI Australia’s premiums earned
1ncreased as-a result of growth in its business and the continued weakening of the U.S. dollar relative to the
Australian dollar U.S." Mortgage Insurance Operations’ premiums earned increased primarily as a result of
higher ‘average ptemium rates in 2004 and the release of $14.5 million of unearned premiums to earned
premiums. in the second half of 2004. This release of unearned premiums was caused by loan cancellations
reported in the third and fourth quarters of 2004 relating to a non-refundable, single premium policy executed in
2003. PMI Europe’s premiums earned increased in 2004 by approximately $7 million compared to 2003
primarily as a result of its acquisition of the R&SA mortgage insurance portfolio in the fourth quarter of 2003.
The increase ‘in consolidated premiums earned in 2003 over 2002 was attributable primarily to increases in PMI
Australia’s prémiums earned, offset by cumulative adjustrients for ceded premiums of $8.4 million recorded in
the fourth quarter of 2003' in our U.S. Mortgage Insurance Operations.

The mcrease in net investment income in 2004 over 2003 was due primarily to growth in our investment
portfolio, partlally offset by a decrease in our book yield related to our U.S. investment portfolio. Our investment
por’tfoho grew pnmarrly as a result of excess cash flows from operations and the sale of APTIC. The increase in
net 1nvestment income in 2003 over 2002 was due to growth in our investment portfolio combined with
adJustments to interest income related to accretion of discounts and call premiums. In 2003, our investment
portfolio grew prrmamly as a result of excess cash flows from operations, partially offset by our investment in
FGICi 1n December 2003

As of December 31, 2004, our consolidated pre-tax book yield was 5.07% compared to 5.38% as of
December 31, 2003. This decline reflects the reinvestment of maturing, higher yielding securities into lower
yielding sec‘ujrities:i‘n our U.S. investment portfolio. During the fourth quarter of 2003, we made adjustments to
reflect the approprlate accounting treatment related to the accretion of discounts and call premiums on U.S.
municipal bonds that had been refunded. The adjustment related to the periods 2000 through 2003 and included a
reclassrfrcatron of $5 2 million of net realized ‘gains to interest income as well as a positive yield adjustment of
$5.1 million to reflect 'the accretion of purchase discounts and call premiums. The net effects of these
adjustments recorded in 2003 were an increase in net investment income of $10.3 million and a decrease in net
realized investment gains of $5.2 million.

We account for our unconsolidated strategie investments and limited partnerships using the equity method
of accountmg The increase in equity in earnings from our unconsolidated strategic investments in 2004 over
2003 was due primarily to our investment in FGIC Corporation in December 2003 and our resulting equity in
earnings ! from FGIC Corporation of $61.6 million in 2004. The increase in equity in earnings from
unconsolidated strategic investments in 2004 was also due to a small profit at SPS in 2004 compared to losses in
2003. Equity in e‘amihgs‘from'SPS was $0.4 million in 2004, a change of $18.1 million from 2003. The losses in
2003 were largely a-result of SPS charges of $55.0 million (pre-tax) in connection with its settlement of potential
civil charges by the Federal Trade Commission, or FTC, and U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development, or HUD settlement of certain putative class action litigation, and estimated costs relating to
certain state’ regulatory actions. Our proportionate share of the SPS charges was $19.1 million pre- -tax and $17.8
million after'tax.

: Ineluded in net-realized investment gains and losses are impairment losses recognized for financial reporting
purposes. on: certain’securities that meet the definition of. other-than-temporary impairment in our investment
portfolio and, othet investments. Impairment losses were $0.2 million in 2004 compared to $0.5 million in 2003
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and $6.9 million in 2002. In September 2003, we sold our ownership interests in Truman Capital Founders, LLC
and Truman Capital Advisors, LLC, collectively referred to as Truman, and incurred a $3.6 million loss which
was included in net realized investment gains and losses.

In January 2005, we signed a Summary of Terms with CSFB, pursuant to which CSFB received an option to
acquire 100% of our outstanding stock of SPS. Based upon the transaction, for the fourth quarter of 2004 we
recorded a pre-tax realized capital loss on our equity investment held for sale (SPS) of $20.4 million and $13.3
million after tax.

The decrease in other income in 2004 compared to 2003 and 2002 was largely attributable to a decline in
fees generated by our contract underwriting operations. Contract underwriting activity decreased during 2004 due
to a decline in the refinance market. The results of our contract underwriting operations are included in our Other
segment.

The increase in our losses and LAE in 2004 over 2003 was due primarily to higher claims paid in U.S.
Mortgage Insurance Operations and a reserve reversal in the third quarter of 2003 in International Operations.
The increase in losses and LAE in 2003 over 2002 was the result of an increase in claims paid in our U.S.
Mortgage Insurance Operations and an increase in loss reserves for PMI Europe, partially offset by a reduction of
loss reserves for PMI Australia.

The increase in other underwriting and operating expenses in 2004 over 2003 was due primarily to higher
operating expenses in our U.S. Mortgage Insurance Operations, including recognition of expenses previously
deferred as acquisition costs, higher compensation and related expenses and expenses related to PMI’s field
operations restructuring. Increases in PMI Australia’s payroll and payroll-related expenses, primarily due to
increased employee head-count, and profit and exchange commissions related to PMI Australia’s captive
reinsurance arrangements also contributed to the increase in our consolidated other underwriting and operating
expenses in 2004 compared to 2003. The increase in other underwriting and operating expenses in 2003 over
2002 was due largely to the increases in underwriting and operating expenses in our U.S. Mortgage Insurance
Operations and PMI Australia and an increase in remedy expenses in our contract underwriting operations.

The increase in interest expense and distributions on mandatorily redeemable preferred securities in 2004
compared to 2003 was due to the inclusion of a full year’s interest expense on the equity units we issued in
November 2003. The increase in interest expense in 2003 compared to 2002 was also due to the equity units.

Our income tax expense from continuing operations in 2004 decreased by 0.5% compared to 2003 primarily
as a result of a decrease in the effective tax rate to 23.5% from 29.8%, offset by an increase in pre-tax income
from continuing operations. The decrease in our effective tax rate was due primarily to an increase in equity in
earnings from FGIC Corporation which is tax effected at a rate lower than the statutory federal income tax rate of
35.0% and our reversal of a $4.7 million tax contingency reserve established as a result of assessments received
from the California Franchise Tax Board (“FTB”) for the years 1997 through 2000. The $4.7 million reversal is
reflected as a reduction in the tax expense for 2004. The effective tax rate for 2004, excluding the reversal of the
$4.7 million reserve, would have been 24.5%.

In October 2003, we entered into an agreement to sell our title insurance operations, APTIC, for $115
million in cash. In accordance with accounting guidance, the results of operations for APTIC were classified as
discontinued operations beginning in the fourth quarter of 2003. In 2004, we recognized an after-tax gain of
$29.0 million relating to the sale of APTIC on March 19, 2004. No results related to APTIC have been recorded
in the consolidated statements of operations for the last three quarters of 2004.

We recognized an extraordinary after-tax gain of $5.4 million in 2003, which was our share of negative
goodwill recognized by FGIC Corporation resulting from the application of purchase accounting adjustments. In
2002, we realized a $7.2 million gain relating to the remaining balance of negative goodwill originally recorded
upon our acquisition of PMI Ltd in 1999.
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Segment Results

The followmg table presents consohdated net income and net 1ncome (loss) for each of our segments for the
years ended

Percentage
—Change

2004 2003

VS§. VS,

2004 2003 2002 2003 2002

o ‘ (In millions)

U.S. Mortgage Insurance Operations .. ... ... e $254.5 $245.5 $280.8 397% (12.6)%
Internatlonal Operations . ... 99.9 78.6 484 271% 62.4%
Financial Guaranty . ......................... A 60.7 10.4 28 483.7% 271.4%

Other ..... P (15.8) (35.1) 142 (55.0% —

Consolidated net income ................... R '$399.3 $299.4 $346.2  334% (13.5)%

Uus. Mortgage Insurance Operations

The results of our U S. Mortgage Insurance Operatlons include the operating results of PMI Mortgage
Insurance Co. and other U.S. mortgage insurance and reinsurance companies, collectively referred to as PMIL.
CMG' Mortgage Insurance Company, CMG Mortgage Assurance, Company and CMG Mortgage Reinsurance
Company, collectrvely referred to as CMG, are accounted for under the equity method of accounting and their
results are recorded as equity in earnings from unconsolidated strategic investments. U.S. Mortgage Insurance
Operatrons ‘ results are. summarized in the table below.

Percentage
Change

‘ 2004 2003
] VS, VS.
2004 2003 2002 2003 2002

(In millions)

Premiums €arned'. . .. oo $634.0 $592.8 $611.1 7.0% (3.0)%

Equity in earnings from unconsohdated strategic investments .... $ 153 $ 136 §$ 124 125% 9.7%
Losses and LAE ...oo.'. oo $233.2 $214.7 $149.9 8.6% 432%
Underwriting and: operatlng EXPENSES . .. v vv e $173.5 $151.1 $132.6 148% 14.0%
Lease abandonment and relocation Costs ....::t0.......... e 8 — 8 —  § 93 — —
L1t1gat10n settlement charge (refund) ................. e $ 26 % — §$ 122 — —

NETINCOME .o vyt i e e et e et e $254.5 $245.5 $280.8 3.7% (12.6)%
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Premiums written and earned—PMI’s net premiums written refers to the amount of premiums recorded
based on effective coverage during a given period, net of refunds and premiums ceded primarily under captive
reinsurance agreements. Under captive reinsurance agreements, PMI transfers portions of its risk written on loans
originated by certain lender-customers to captive reinsurance companies affiliated with such lender-customers. In
return, a proportionate amount of PMI’s gross premiums written is ceded to these captive reinsurance companies.
PMI’s premiums earned refers to the amount of premiums recognized as earned, net of changes in unearned
premiums. The components of PMI's net premiums written and premiums earned are as follows:

Percentage
Change
2004 2003
VS. VS.
2004 2003 2002 2003 2002
(In millions)

Gross premiums WEHeN . ... .o vvn et $767.4 $8472 $7223 (9% 17.3%
Ceded premiums, net of assumed ............... ... ..... (155.3) (1364) (97.2) 139% 40.3%
Refunded premiums . .......... .. ... ... .. i (14.0) 25.7) (16.1) (45.5)% 59.6%
Net premiums WITtEN . ... ..ottt $598.1 $6851 3$609.0 (127)% 12.5%
Premiums earned . ..........c.ovriii $634.0 $5928 3$611.1 70% (3.0)%

The decreases in gross and net premiums written in 2004 compared to 2003, and the increases in 2003
compared to 2002, were largely due to a non-refundable, $114 million single premium policy executed in 2003
pursuant to which PMI restructured the insurance coverage of certain loans under then-existing primary
insurance policies. The decreases in gross and net premiums written in 2004 were offset by an increase in PMI’s
average premium rate caused by higher percentages of polices with deeper coverage and policies on ARMs and
high LTV loans, in 2004 than in 2003.

The increases in ceded premiums in 2003 and 2004 were driven primarily by increases in gross premiums
written (excluding the $114 million single premium policy received in 2003), higher average premium rates and
increasing percentages of primary insurance in force subject to captive reinsurance agreements. Primary
insurance in force refers to the current principal balance of all primary insured mortgage loans as of a given date.
As of December 31, 2004, 53.7% of primary insurance in force and 55.0% of risk in force were subject to captive
reinsurance agreements, compared to 50.0% and 50.6% at December 31, 2003 and 43.1% and 43.4% at
December 31, 2002, respectively. These increases are the result of a higher portion of new insurance written with
customers with whom we have captive reinsurance agreements. We anticipate that higher levels of captive
reinsurance cessions will continue to reduce PMI’s net premiums written and earned, and that PMI’s primary risk
in force subject to captive reinsurance agreements will continue to increase as a percentage of total risk in force.

During the fourth quarter of 2003, we made cumulative adjustments to ceded premiums of $8.4 million pre-
tax, which decreased premiums earned. The adjustments were made to reflect a more appropriate accounting
treatment of captive reinsurance premium cessions related to the periods from 1998 through 2003.

Upon cancellation of certain insurance coverage, PMI refunds the portion of premiums that is unearned to
the borrowers or servicers. The decrease in refunded premiums in 2004 compared to 2003 and the increase in
2003 compared to 2002 were due primarily to high levels of policy cancellations in 2003 resulting from refinance
activities (see Insurance and risk in force below).

PMI’s premiums earned increased in 2004 compared to 2003 due primarily to an increase in PMI's average
premium rate in 2004 and the release of $14.5 million of unearned premiums to earned premiums in the second
half of 2004. The release of unearned premiums to earned premiums was caused by reported loan cancellations
relating to a non-refundable, single premium ‘policy executed in 2003. To a lesser extent, the increase in
prémiums earned was due to higher levels of risk in force in 2004 compared to 2003. The increase in premiums
earned in 2004 compared to 2003 was partially offset by an adjustment to PMI’s unearned premiums in the first
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quarter of 2003 that resulted in the recognition of $7.1 million of premiums earned. The decrease in premiums
earned'in 2003 compared to 2002 reflects hlgher levels of policy cancellatlons in 2003 as well as an increase in
ceded prermums under capnve reinsurance agreements

Losses and LAE_PMI’S total losses and LAE represent claims paid, certam expenses related to defauit
notification and clalm processing, and changes in loss reserves during the applicable period. Claims paid
mcludmg LAE 1ncludes amounts paid on primary msurance claims, pool insurance claims and LAE. PMI’s total
losses and- LAE and related clarms data are shown in the following table.

Percentage
Change
\ 2004 2003
‘ vs. vs.
2004 2003 2002 2003 2002
(In millions, except percentages, number of
- ‘ primary claims paid and as otherwise noted)
Claims'paid.including LAE .......... e $219.0 $204.6 $1214 7.0% 68.5%
Change in netloss reserves . ............... ... - 142 10.1 28.5 40.6% (64.6)%
Total losses and LAE e $233.2 $214.7 $149.9 8.6% 43.2%
Number of pnmary claims pard ....... el 8,335 7,501 4860 - 11.1% 54.3%
Average prlmary clalm size (in thousands) ....... $232 - $236 $ 199 (1 N% 18.6%

Claims pard 1ncludmg LAE increased in 2004 compared to 2003 pnmanly as a result of increases in 2004 in
the number of pnmary claims paid, partially offset by a decrease in the average primary claim size. The increase
in the number of prunary claims paid in 2004 was due to a number of factors, including the seasoning of our
primary, 1nsurance portfolio and higher claim rates associated with the portion of PMI's portfolio that contains
less-than-A quahty and Alt-A loans..(See Credit and portfolio characteristics, below.) The decrease in the
‘average primary claim size in 2004 compared to 2003 was primarily ‘the result of continued home price
appreciation and PMI's loss mitigation efforts. Primary claims paid increased to $193.2 million in 2004
compared to $176.9 mﬂhon in 2003 and $101.3 million in 2002. Pool .insurance claims paid increased to
$19.4 mllhon in 2004 from $18.0 million in 2003. Changes in net loss reserves increased in 2004 compared to
2003 due 1o an merease in. PMI’s primary loans in default inventory..

Total losses and LAE represent management’s best estimate of our future claim payments and costs to
process those claxms relative to our curtent inventory of loans in default. As discussed above, the increase in total
losses and LAE in 2004 compared to 2003 was a function of the seasoning of our primary insurance portfolio and
higher cla1m rates associated with the Jess-than-A quality and Alt-A loans:'We expect a significant majority of
claims on insured loans in PMI’s current portfolio to occur between the second and fourth ‘years after loan
origination; and 85. 0% of PMI’s insurance in force at December 31, 2004 was written after January 1, 2002.
Accordingly, we expect PMI’s total losses and LAE in 2005 to be higher than 2004 as a result of the seasoning of
the U.S. portfolio, part1cu1arly the 2003 book year which represents 36.1% of PMI’s primary insurance in force.
In addmon 10 the extent. we continue to have high levels of our insurance in force that are in or approaching their
peak loss development years, total incurred losses may continue to increase from prior periods. However,
estimates of total losses and LAE are derived primarily by notices of default which are’impacted by economic
conditions’ such as: U.S. unemployment and job creation rates. Changes in economic conditions could
s1gn1ﬁcantly 1mpact our total losses and LAE and our estimates. In addition, changes in economic conditions may
not necessamly be'reflected in PMI’s loss development in the quarter or year in which such changes occur.

The i 1ncreases 1n clalms paid including LAE and total losses and LAE in 2003 compared to 2002 were due to
increases in the average primary claim size, the percentage of delinquent loans going to claim, the total number
of prlrnary loans in default and the seasoning of our modified pool and bulk loans acquired in 2002 and 2003.
The increase in the average primary claim size was the resuit of increases in the average principal balance of
loans and deeper coverage amounts, principally on bulk loarns which represented a larger percentage of all claims
in 2003 than'in 2002. Pool claims paid were $18.0 million in 2003 compared to $11.4 million in 2002. This
increase was pnmarﬂy due to the seasoning of PMI’s modified pool portfolia.’
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During the second quarter of 2003, we assessed the reasonableness of our estimate of reserves for LAE. As
a result of this assessment, we decreased PMI's LAE reserves by approximately $14 million and reduced the
allocation of claim related expenses from operating expenses to LAE. PMI's case and incurred but not reported
reserves were increased by approximately the same amount of the reduction to LAE reserves according to our
best estimate for loss reserves as of June 30, 2003. (For a discussion of changes in net loss reserves, see Critical
Accounting Policies and Estimates, Reserves for Losses and LAE, below.)

PMTI’s primary mortgage insurance master policies define “default” as the borrower’s failure to pay when
due an amount equal to the scheduled monthly mortgage payment under the terms of the mortgage. Generally,
the master policies require an insured to notify PMI of a default no later than the last business day of the month
following the month in which the borrower becomes three monthly payments in default. For reporting and
internal tracking purposes, we do not consider a loan to be in default until the borrower has missed two
consecutive payments. PMI’s primary default data are presented in the table below.

Percentage
Change /Variance
As of December 31, 2324 2323
2004 2003 2002 2003 2002
Primary policiesinforce . .................... .. ... 803,236 827,225 874,196 2.9% 5.4)%
Flow loansindefault ......................... ... 30519 28,485 27,794 7.1% 2.5%
Bulkloansindefault ....................... ... ... 8,535 8,960 8,743 4.7)% 2.5%
Primary loans indefault .......................... 39,054 37445 36,537 4.3% 2.5%
Primary defaultrate ................. ... ... ... 486% 4.53% 4.18% 0.33pps 0.35pps
Primary default rate for flow transactions ............ 430% 3.89% 352% 04ipps 0.37pps
Primary default rate for bulk transactions ............ 9.19% 945% 10.37% (0.26)pps (0.92)pps

The increases to primary loans in default as of December 31, 2004 compared to 2003 and 2002 were
primarily the result of the seasoning of PMI’s primary flow portfolio and weak economic conditions in 2003. The
increase in PMI's primary default rate from December 31, 2003 to December 31, 2004 was due to a decline in
the number of primary insurance policies in force and an increase in primary flow loans in default. Bulk loans in
default and the bulk default rate decreased in 2004 as a result of certain bulk loan transactions having
experienced their peak loss development in prior periods. The default rates for bulk transactions at December 31,
2004, 2003 and 2002 remained higher than the overall primary default rates due primarily to the higher
concentration of less-than-A quality and Alt-A loans in PMI’s bulk portfolio.

PMI’s modified pool default data are presented in the table below.

As of December 31,
2004 2003

Modified pool with deductible
Loansindefault ... ...t 8,689 8,226
Policies InfOrce . ..o oot e 121,899 132,557
Defaultrate ...... ...t e e 7.13% 6.21%
Modified pool without deductible
Loansindefault ... ... ... . 2,674 2,142
Policies INTOTCe . .. oot 53,845 57,847
Defaultrate . ... i e e 4.97% 3.70%
Total modified pool
Loansindefault ... ... ... ... . . . 11,363 10,368
Policies in fOrce . ... ..o 175,744 190,404
Default rate . ...... ...ttt e e e 647%  545%




The mcrease in the total modified pool default rate was driven by both an increase in modified pool loans in
default due. to the seasoning of the modified pool portfolio and a decrease in the number of modified pool
policies in force, PMI believes that its modified pool insurance products’ risk reduction features, including a
stated. stop 10ss lnmt exposure limits on each individual loan in the pool, and in some cases deductibles, reduce
PMI's. potential for loss ‘exposure on loans insured by those products. PMI’s default rate for GSE Pool (see
Traditional pool insurdnce below) at December 31, 2004 was 5.12% with 3,484 GSE Pool loans in default
compared to-a default rate of 3.60% with 3,870 loans in default as of December 31, 2003. Although GSE Pool
loans in default declined slightly, the GSE Pool default rate increased due to a larger decline in the total number
of loans msured

Total ‘under»writing_and operating expenses—PMI’s total underwriting and operating expenses are as
follows: ‘

weo ' S ‘ Percentage
Change
2004 2003

Vs, vS.
2004 2003 2002 2003 2002

(In millions)

Amortization of deferred policy acquisitions R $721 $789 $765 (B8.6% 31%

Other underWriting and operating expenses ............ AR 101.4 72.1 56.1 40.6% 28.5%
Lease abandonment and relocation costs . . . .. P — — 93 — —
Litigation settlement (refund) charge ...... PN (2.6) — 122 — —
Total underwntmg and operating eXpenses .................. . 81709 $151.0 $154.1 132% (2.0)%
Pohcy acqu1smon costs inéurred and deferred . ........ e $565 $842 $76.6 (329% 9.9%

Policy acquis‘ition costs consist of direct costs related to PMI’s acquisition, underwriting and processing of
new insurance including contract underwriting and sales-related activities. These costs are initially deferred and
amonized“égains‘t‘:related premium revenue for each policy year book of business. Policy acquisition costs
incurred and deferred are variable and fluctuate with the volume of new insurance applications processed and
NIW and can also be reduced by increased use of PMI’s electronic origination and delivery methods. Customer
use of PMI's electronic delivery options accounted for approximately 85% of PMI’s insurance commitments
1ssued inits' pnmary ﬂow channel in 2004, compared to approximately 81% in 2003 and 74% in 2002.

The decrease m pohcy acquisition costs incurred and deferred in 2004 compared to 2003 was primarily the
result of the declirie in NIW in 2004 and the increase in electronic deliveryin 2004. From December 31, 2003 to
" December31, 2004, PMI's deferred policy acquisition cost asset decreased by $15.7 million due primarily to the
decline 'in NIW compared to prior periods and the increase in electronic delivery. Continued declines in the
deferred policy acquisition cost asset would reduce future amortization of deferred policy acquisition costs.

Other ‘u‘n]derwr‘iting‘and operating expenses generally consist of all other costs that are not attributable to the
acquisition of new ‘business and that are recorded as expenses when ‘incurred. The increase in other underwriting
and operating expenses in 2004 compared to 2003 was due primarily to recognition of expenses previously
deferred as acqulsmon costs, higher compensation and related expenses and expenses related to PMI’s field
operatlons restructurmg The increase in 2003 compared to 2002 was due to increases in payroll and related
expenses, depreciation and premium taxes.

PMI incurs underwriting expenses related to contract underwriting services for mortgage loans without
mortgage insurance:. coverage. These costs are allocated to PMI Mortgage Services Co., or MSC, which is
reportéd, in our Other segment, thereby reducing PMI's underwriting and operating expenses. Contract
underwriting. expernses allocated to MSC were $26.1 million in 2004, $44.3 million in 2003 and $46.1 million in
2002. The decline' in allocated expenses in 2004 compared to 2003 was caused by a decrease in contract
underwntmo act1v1ty, thch decreased primarily as a result of a decrease in refinancing act1v1ty and mortgage
originations.
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Ratios—PMTI’s loss, expense and combined ratios are shown below.

Variance
2004 vs, 2003 vs.
2004 2003 2002 2003 2002
Losstatio ..ot 36.8% 362% 245% 0.6pps 11.7 pps
Expenseratio .......... ... i, 285% 220% 253% 65pps  (3.3) pps
Combinedratio ........ ...ttt 653% 582% 49.8% 7.1pps 8.4 pps

PMI’s loss ratio is the ratio of total losses and LAE to premiums earned. The increases in the loss ratio in
2004 and 2003 were primarily driven by increases in total losses and LAE. PMI's expense ratio is the ratio of
underwriting and operating expenses to net premiums written. The increase in PMI’s total underwriting and
operating expenses, discussed above, primarily drove the increase in PMI's expense ratios in 2004. The decline
in PMI’s expense ratio in 2003 was attributable partly to the increase in net premiums written specific to a large
single premium policy written in the fourth quarter of 2003. The expense ratio in 2002 included $9.3 million of
expenses related to the relocation of our headquarters and a $12.2 million charge related to a litigation settlement.
The combined ratio is the sum of the loss ratio and the expense ratio.

Primary NIW—The components of PMI’s primary NIW are as follows:

Percentage Change
2004 vs. 2003 vs.

2004 2003 2002 2003 2002

(In millions)
Primary NIW:

Primary NIW—flow channel ................ $36,257  $50,236  $44,650 (27.9)% 12.5%
Primary NIW—bulk channel ................ 4,956 7,065 3,153 (29.9% 124.1%
Total primary NIW . ... ... .. ... ... .. .... $41,213 $57,301 $47,803 (28.1)% 19.9%

The decrease in PMI’s primary NIW in 2004 was driven primarily by lower volumes in the residential
mortgage origination and mortgage insurance markets and, to a lesser extent, to reduced opportunities for bulk
insurance writings. The mortgage insurance market and PMI's NIW in 2004 were negatively impacted by the use
of alternative mortgage products not requiring mortgage insurance by lenders. The increase in primary NIW in
2003 was driven by higher volumes of residential mortgage originations and refinance activities due to the
historically low interest rate environment.

Traditional pool insurance—Prior to 2002, PMI offered certain pool insurance products to lenders and the
GSEs, or GSE Pool, and to the capital markets, or Old Pool. GSE Pool and Old Pool products insure all losses on
individual loans held within a pool of insured loans up to the stop loss limit for the entire pool. GSE Pool risk in
force was $0.1 billion at December 31, 2004, $0.5 billion at December 31, 2003 and $0.8 billion at December 31,
2002. 0O1d Pool risk in force was $0.5 billion at December 31, 2004, $0.7 billion at December 31, 2003 and $0.9
billion at December 31, 2002.

Modified pool insurance—PMI currently offers modified pool insurance products that may be attractive to
investors and lenders seeking a reduction of default risk beyond the protection provided by existing primary
insurance or with respect to loans that do not require primary insurance, or for capital relief purposes. In 2004,
PMI wrote $0.2 billion of modified pool risk, compared to $0.4 billion in 2003 and $0.8 billion in 2002. The
decrease in 2003 from 2002 was due to a reduction in demand by our principal customer for this product.
Modified pool risk in force was $1.5 billion at December 31, 2004, $1.4 billion at December 31, 2003 and $1.2
billion at December 31, 2002.
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Insurance and nsk in force—PMI’s primary insurance in force and primary and pool risk in force are
shown'in the table beloiw.

Percentage

Change /Variance

As of December 31, 2334 2323

2004 2003 2002 2003 2002

‘ . ‘ : ' (In millions, except percentages)
Primary insurance inforce........... DI . $105,321 $105,241  $107,579 0.1% (2.2)%
Primary risk inforce ... .................. .. $25658 $ 24668 $ 25,188 4.0% Q2.1N%
Pool risk in force . ... .. e (R ... § 2408 $ 2858 $ 3,128 (15.8)% (8.6)%
Policy cancellations—primary ................ $ 41,133 559,640 § 46,588 (31.0)%  28.0%
Pers1stency-——pr1mary .............. PRI 60.9% 44.6% 56.2% 163 pps (11.6) pps

anary msurance at' the end of force in 2004 remained generally flat compared to 2003 although
persistency did in¢rease. The increase in persistency in 2004 was a result of the stabilization of interest rates
during 2004. The | 1ncrease in primary risk in force at December 31, 2004 compared to December 31, 2003 was
the result of ‘a h1gher percentage of policies with deeper coverage and higher persistency. The decreases in
primary insurance in force and risk in force at December 31, 2003 compared to December 31, 2002 were
pnmanly driven by higher policy cancellations. Low mortgage interest rates in 2003 and 2002 resulted in heavy
mortgage refinancing actmty, which caused PMI s policy cancellations to increase and PMI’s policy persistency
rate to dechne

Credit and portfolio characteristics—PMI insures less-than-A quality loans and Alt-A loans through all of
its acqu1s1t10n channels. PMI defines less-than-A quality loans to include loans with FICO scores generally less
than 620. PMI considers a loan Alt-A if it has a FICO score of 620 or greater and has certain characteristics such
as reduced: documentatlon verifying the borrower’s income, assets, deposit information and/or employment. The
followmg table presents PMI’s less-than-A quality loans and Alt-A loans as percentages of its flow channel and
bulk channel primary NIW for the years ended:

o 2004 2003 2002
C , . ‘ o ‘ (In millions, except percentages)
Less-than-A quality loan amounts and as a percentage of:

Primary NIW—flow channel ................ e $2,703 7% $3618 7% $4,600 10%
anary NIW—bulk: channel ............................. 1,780 36% 2,501 35% 342 11%
Total pnmary NIW e e e $4,483 11% $6,119 11% $4,942 10%
Alt-A loan amounts and as a percentage of: . .

Primary NIW—ﬂow channel ......... ... o $7,304 20% $4,984 10% $3,106 7%
Primary NIW—bulk channel . ..ot 1,204 24% 860 12% 1,083 34%
Total pnmary NIW it [P $8,508 2% $5,844 10% $4,189 9%

The followmg table presents PMTI’s less-than-A quality loans and Alt-A loans as percentages of primary risk
in force for the years ended:

2004 2003 2002

Asa pércehtége of primary risk in force:

Less-than-A qhality loans (FICO scoresbelow 620) . ... ... . .. 11% 12% 12%
Less-than-A quality’ loans with FICO scores below 575 % ... ... it 3% 3% 3%
Alt-Aloans ;.. .. SRR e e 13% 9% 6%

* Less-than-A yvith FICO scores below 575 is a subset of PMI’s less-than-A quality loan portfolio.
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The following table presents PMI's ARMs (mortgage loans with interest rates that may adjust prior to their
fifth anniversary) and high LTV loans (loans exceeding 97% LTV) as percentages of its flow channel and bulk
channel primary NIW for the years ended:

2004 2003 2002
(In millions, except percentages)

ARM amounts and as a percentage of:

Primary NIW—flow channel ............................ $ 6,992 19% $3,938 8% $2,952 7%
Primary NIW—bulk channel .......... ... .. .. ........ 3,262 66% 1,481 21% 561 18%
Total primary NIW ... ... $10,254 25% $5419 9% $3,513 7%
97% or higher LTY loan amounts and as a percentage of:

Primary NIW—flow channel .................. ... ... ... $ 4418 12% $3,250 6% $1,733 4%
Primary NIW—bulk channel .................. ... ... ... 337 7% 2895 41% 87 3%
Total primary NIW ... ... ..o e $ 4755 12% $6,145 11% $1,820 4%

As shown in the tables above, PMI insured greater percentages of Alt-A loans, ARMs and high LTV loans
in 2004 than in 2003. The percentage of PMI’s primary risk in force comprised of loans with LTV’s above 97%
has increased from 2.8% as of December 31, 2002, to 8.6% as of December 31, 2003, and to 11.6% as of
December 31, 2004. The percentage of ARMs included in PMI’s primary risk in force was 9.2% as of December
31, 2002, 9.6% as of December 31, 2003, and 14.5% as of December 31, 2004. We believe that these increases
reflect higher concentrations of high LTV loans, ARMs and Alt-A loans in the 2004 mortgage origination private
mortgage insurance markets. The higher concentration of high LTV loans is also, to a lesser extent, the result of
changes in a number of state statutes and regulations to permit the issuance of mortgage insurance on such loans,
and to the expansion of underwriting guidelines by lenders, the GSEs and PMI as a result of market outreach
efforts. We believe that these market trends could continue in 2005.

We expect higher default rates and claim payment rates for high LTV loans, ARMs, less-than-A quality
loans and Alt-A loans and incorporate these assumptions into our pricing. In 2004, PMI’s average premium rate
increased primarily as a result of PMI’s primary portfolio containing higher percentages of ARMs and high LTV
loans. PMI offers pre- and post-purchase borrower counseling to borrowers with high LTV loans in an effort to
reduce the risk of default on those loans. PMI also believes that the structure of its modified pool products
mitigates the risk of loss to PMI from the less-than-A quality loans and Alt-A loans insured by those products.

International Operations

International Operations includes the results of our Australian holding company, PMI Mortgage [nsurance
Australia (Holdings) Pty Limited, and operating subsidiaries, PMI Mortgage Insurance Ltd and PMI Indemnity
Limited, collectively referred to as PMI Australia; our Irish subsidiaries, PMI Mortgage Insurance Company
Limited and TPG Reinsurance Company Limited, collectively referred to as PMI Europe; and PMI's Hong Kong
reinsurance revenues. Reporting of financial and statistical information for International Operations is subject to
foreign currency rate fluctuations in translation to U.S. dollar reporting. International Operations’ results are
summarized as follows:

Percentage
Change

2004 2003

VS. VS.

2004 2003 2002 2003 2002

(USD in millions)

Premiums earned ........... ... i $136.3 $104.0 $65.7 31.1% 58.3%
Losses, expenses and INterest ... .......vvoeerneeinneennnnn. .. $ 487 $ 252 $27.7 933% (9.00%

NELINCOME .« . o vttt e e e $999 § 78.6 $484 27.1% 62.4%




International Qperaﬁons’ net income increased in 2004 compared to 2003 primarily due to increases in PMI
Australia’s and PMI Europe’s premiums earned and favorable currency exchange rate appreciation in both the
Australian dollar and Euro versus the U.S. dollar. The increase. in net'income in 2003 compared to 2002 was
primarily due to increases in PMI Australia’s and PMI Europe’s premiums earned, an $8 million reduction in loss
reserves by- PMI Australia‘ in 2003, and favorable currency exchange rate apprec1at1on in both the Australian
dollar and Euro versus the U S. dollar. - »

The change in the average foreign currency exchange rates from December 31, 2003 to December 31, 2004
favorably impacted our International Operations’ net income by $10.2 million, primarily due to the appreciation
of the Australian: dollar. This foreign currency translation impact is calculated using the year over year change in
the average monthly exchange rate to the current year ending net income in the local currency. The change in the
average fore1gn currency, exchange rates from December 31, 2002 to December 31, 2003 favorably impacted our
International Operatlons net income by $12.7 million, primarily due to the appreciation of the Australian dollar.

In the second quarter of 2004, we purchased Australian dollar and Euro put options designed to partially
mitigate the negatlve financial impact of a potential strengthening of the U.S. dollar relative to the Australian
dollar and the Euro in 2004. The options expxred ratably over the calendar year 2004 and had a net cost of $0.7
million’ (mcludmg reahzed gains). i

PMI Australza ‘ ‘
The table below sets forth the results of PMI Australia for the years ended:

1

Percentage
Change
. 2004 2003
f YS. VS,
2004 - 2003 2002 2003 2002
. ‘ (USD in millions)
Net premiums written ............................... $151.2 $127.8 $744 183%  71.8%
Premiums eamed B U $109.1 $ 850 $599  284% 41.9%
Net investment mcorne .............................. 383 26.1 18.3 46.7% 42.6%
Other incomie ... ... .. e 0.5 0.6 — (16n% —
Total FEVEIUES . | - oo st 147.9 1117 782 324%  42.8%
Losses and LAE (reversal) e 06 (82 7.1 —_ —_—
Underwriting and operanng EXPENSES ...ttt 37.5 27.5 19.1 36.4% 44.0%
Income taxes‘ e e e 335 300 159 11.7% 88.7%
Total expenses U e 71.6 49.3 42.1 45.2% 17.1%
Income Befor‘e cumulative effect of a change in accounting
PHENCIPIE /i oo 76.3 62.4 36.1 22.3% 72.9%
Cumulative effect of 4 a change in accounting principle ... ... — — 7.2 — —
Net income . . . ... e Ce $ 763 $ 624 %433 223% 44.1%
Loss ratio e ........... e 05% 9.6)% 11.9% 10.1pps (21.5)pps
Expense‘ratio‘ e 248% 21.6% 257% 32pps (4.1)pps

The increase in PMI Australia’s net income in 2004 compared to 2003 was due primarily to increased
premiums written ‘and earned, higher investment income and the appreciation of the Australian dollar in 2004,
offset by 1ncreased underwrltmg and operating expenses and the reserve reversal in 2003. The increase in PMI
Austraha s'net income in 2003 compared to 2002 was attributable to a decrease in losses and LAE and an
increase in premiums written and earned. The average annual AUD/USD currency exchange rate was 0.7370 in
2004 compared 10 0.6529in 2003 and 0.5440 in 2002. The change in the average AUD/USD currency exchange
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rates from 2003 to 2004 and 2002 to 2003 favorably impacted PMI Australia’s net income by $8.7 million and
$10.6 million, respectively. This foreign currency translation impact is calculated using the 2004 change in the
average monthly exchange rate to the current year ending net income in the local currency.

In April 2004, PMI Australia purchased foreign currency put options for the purpose of hedging 2004 net
income against a potential strengthening of the U.S. dollar relative to the Australian dollar. These options, with a
total pre-tax cost of $1.0 million, expired at the end of 2004. PMI Australia recognized net losses of $0.6 million
related to these purchased options in 2004. In January 2005, PMI Australia purchased foreign currency put
options at a total pre-tax cost of $1.6 million for the purpose of hedging 2005 net income against a strengthening
U.S. dollar.

Premiums written and earned—In addition to currency exchange rate appreciation, the increases in PMI
Australia’s net premiums written and premiums earned in 2004 compared to 2003, and 2003 compared to 2002,
were due to increases in NIW and insurance in force. These increases were attributable primarily to the strong
overall mortgage origination market in Australia and New Zealand, as well as a reduction in the number of
market participants underwriting mortgage insurance. '

Net investment income—In addition to currency exchange rate appreciation, the increase in net investment
income in 2004 compared to 2003 was due to the growth of PMI Australia’s investment portfolio and a higher
pre-tax book yield. The increase in net investment income in 2003 compared to 2002 was attributable to the
growth of the investment portfolio, offset by a decrease in the pre-tax book yield. PMI Australia’s investment
portfolio, including cash and cash equivalents, was $801.5 million at December 31, 2004 compared to $642.1
million at December 31, 2003 and $401.5 million at December 31, 2002. The growth was driven by positive cash
flows from operations. The pre-tax book yield was 5.87% at December 31, 2004, 5.21% at December 31, 2003
and 6.06% at December 31, 2002. The increase in the pre-tax book yield in 2004 compared to 2003 was
primarily due to the higher interest rate environment in 2004. The decrease in the pre-tax book yield in 2003
compared to 2002 was primarily due to the lower interest rate environment in 2003.

Losses and LAE—The increase in losses and LAE in 2004 compared to 2003 and the decrease in losses and
LAE in 2003 compared to 2002 were largely due to an $8.0 million reduction in loss reserves in 2003, which
resulted from our third quarter 2003 review of PMI Australia’s loss provisioning. See Critical Accounting
Policies and Estimates below. PMI Australia has continued to experience low levels of claim payments and
default rates attributable primarily to the current low interest rate environment, low unemployment levels and
home value appreciation in Australia and New Zealand. PMI Australia’s default rate at December 31, 2004 was
0.11%, compared with 0.17% at December 31, 2003 and 0.30% at December 31, 2002.

.Underwriting and operating expenses—The increase in underwriting and operating expenses in 2004
compared to 2003 was due primarily to higher levels of insurance in force and exchange rate fluctuations. The
increase in 2003 compared to 2002 was due primarily to increases in payroll and related expenses, primarily due
to increased employee head-count and profit and exchange commissions related to captive reinsurance
agreements. Underwriting and operating expenses were also negatively affected by foreign currency exchange
rate appreciation between 2002 and 2003.
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Primary. NIW.and risk in force—PMI Australia’s primary NIW includes flow channel insurance and
insuranceé on residential mortgage-backed securities, or RMBS. In Australia, an active securitization market
exists due in part to the relative absence of government sponsorship of the mortgage market. RMBS transactions
include insurance on seasoned portfolios comprised of prime credit quality loans that have LTVs often below
80%. The following table presents the components of PMI Australia’s primary NIW, insurance in force and risk
in force for the years.ended: C R

Percentage
Change

! 2004 2003

VS, VS,

, v 2004 } 2003 2002 2003 E(IE

BT T (USD in millions) ‘

Flow insurance WIHEEN & . I $ 19,540 $19,383 $11,478  0.8% 68.9%
RMBS msurance Wntten R [P e 14,669 6,044 3,045 142.7% 98.5%
Total prlmary NIW e o $ 34,209 $25427 $14,523 345% 75.1%
anary insuranceinforce .......... .. ... .o .. $113,628 $87,909 $54,117 29.3% 62.4%
anarynskmforce....,..........‘....' ............. $103135. §79,294 $48,747 30.1% 62.7%

The increase,in pnmary NIW in 2004 compared to 2003 was dnven primarily by RMBS/insurance written
and the appreciation of the Australian dollar relative to the U.S. dollar. The increase in primary NIW in 2003
compared to 2002 was driven by a reduction in the number of market participants that underwrite mortgage
insurance from four:to two, strong market activity in Australia and the appreciation of the Australian dollar. The
increases in primary insurance in force and risk in force at December 31, 2004 compared to December 31, 2003
and December 31,2002 wére driven primarily by the volume of NIW during the past 24 months.

The s1gn1ﬁcam increase in RMBS insurance written in 2004 compared to 2003 reflects increased
securitization act1v1ty in the Australian market and the fact that there are only two market participants provxdmg
mortgage 1nsurance for RMBS in the Australian market. Levels of activity in the Australian RMBS market can
vary. from quarter to quarter. Flow insurance written in' 2004 ‘increased slightly from 2003 due primarily to
currency, appreuapon The strong level of residential mongage origination activity in 2003 moderated in 2004
prxmanly due to mterest rate increases in late 2003 and home price apprematlon both of which have affected
housmg affordablhty

PMI Europe j o ‘
The following table sets forth the results of PMI Europe for the years ended:

Percentage
Change

2004 2003

VS, vS.

2004 . 2003 2002 2003 2002

‘ oo ' (USD in millions)

Premiums earmed . ... .. ... .. ... $20.9 $13.7 $2.1 52.6% 5524%
Net mvestment income . e e e 9.4 55 09 709% 511.1%

Other i 1ncome (loss). ..t e e 6.8 05 — — —
Total TEVENUES & .o v oot o e et eie i 3T 187 30 98.4% 523.3%
Losses and LAE: .. ... e 35 26 05  34.6% 420.0%
Underwriting and operatmg EXPENSES .« vt 7.0 32 09 118.8% 255.6%

Incorne taxes . ... Sl e e L 93 19 01 3895% —
Total expenses L e e ~19.8 7.7 1.5 1571% 413.3%
Net i mcome R P $17.3 $11.0 $15 573% 633.3%




The increases in PMI Europe’s net income in 2004 compared to 2003 and 2002 were primarily due to PMI
Europe’s fourth quarter 2003 acquisition of a portion of the U.K. lenders’ mortgage insurance portfolio of R&SA
and the positive performance associated with PMI Europe’s various credit default swaps.

The reported results of PMI Europe were favorably affected by the appreciation of the Euro in 2004. The
average Euro/USD currency exchange rate was 1.2443 compared to 1.1329 in 2003 and 0.9461 in 2002. The
changes in the average Euro/USD currency exchange rates from 2003 to 2004 and 2002 to 2003 favorably
impacted PMI Europe’s net income by $1.5 million and $2.1 million, respectively. This foreign currency
translation impact is calculated using the year over year change in the average monthly exchange rate to the
current period ending net income in the local currency. In June 2004, PMI Europe purchased foreign currency put
options for the purpose of hedging 2004 net income against a strengthening U.S. dollar relative to the Euro.
These options, with a total cost of $0.1 million, expired at the end of 2004. PMI Europe recognized net losses of
$0.1 million related to these purchased options. In January 2005, PMI Europe purchased foreign currency put
options at a total pre-tax cost of $0.2 million for the purpose of hedging 2005 net income against a strengthening
U.S. dollar.

Premiums earned—The increases in premiums earned in 2004 and 2003 were due primarily to the
acquisition of a portion of the U.K. lenders’ mortgage insurance portfolio of R&SA in the fourth quarter of 2003.
The portfolio covers approximately $15 billion of original insured principal balance. R&SA transferred all loss
reserves and unearned premium reserves associated with the portfolio to PMI Europe totaling $55 million, of
which $47 million was unearned premium reserves. R&SA has also agreed to provide excess-of-loss reinsurance
to PMI Europe with respect to the portfolio under certain conditions.

Net investment income—PMI Europe’s net investment income consists primarily of interest income from
its investment portfolio, and to a lesser extent, gains and losses on foreign currency re-measurement, realized
investment gains and losses from investment activity and foreign currency exchange gains and losses when
investments are sold. Net investment income increased in 2004 and 2003 due primarily to the growth of the
investment portfolio. PMI Europe’s investment portfolio, including cash and cash equivalents, as of
December 31, 2004 was $229.3 million, compared to $194.4 million as of December 31, 2003 and $94.2 million
as of December 31, 2002. The growth of the investment portfolio from the previous year was primarily driven by
cash received in connection with the R&SA portfolio acquisition, positive cash flows from operations and the
appreciation of the Euro relative to the U.S. dollar. The pre-tax book yield remained constant at 4.5% at
December 31, 2004 and 2003, and was 4.7% at December 31, 2002. PMI Europe incurred net realized investment
gains of $0.5 million in 2004 compared with $0.5 million net realized investment gains in 2003, and $1.6 million
net realized investment losses in 2002.

Other income—PMI Europe is currently a party to four transactions that are classified as derivatives. As of
December 31, 2004, $6.6 million of deferred gains related to initial fair value were included in other liabilities
and $1.3 million of accretion from deferred gains were included in other income in 2004. Subsequent changes in
the value from prior periods, exclusive of accretion, of such derivative contracts resulted in $5.6 million of gains
in 2004, which were included in PMI Europe’s other income. The primary driver related to these subsequent
changes in derivative values was fewer claim payments than had been previously projected. We believe claim
payments will increase in the future for certain of PMI Europe’s larger derivative contracts and have incorporated
this assumption into cash flow models that are used to determine the fair value of these derivatives. PMI
Europe’s German risk portfolio has exhibited more defaults than originally anticipated; however, ultimate losses
on this portfolio to date have been lower than expected.

Losses and LAE—IL osses and LAE performance in 2004 continued to be favorable. PMI Europe increased
its loss reserves by $1.0 million in 2004 primarily as a result of additional reserves posted for non-derivative
accounted credit default swap transactions. Claims paid totaled $1.0 million in 2004, $0.8 million in 2003, and no
claims were paid in 2002.
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Underwriting and operating expenses—The increase in underwriting and operating expenses in 2004
compared o 2003 and 2002 was due primarily to profit commission accruals due to better than expected claims
experience on the R&SA portfolio and to increases in staff and costs associated with expansion efforts. Under the
terms: of PMI Europe’s agreement with R&SA with respect to the acquired mortgage insurance portfolio, PMI
Europe and R&SA. share certain economic benefits if the portfolio’s loss performance performs to certain target
levels. Due to better than expected loss experience on the R&SA portfoho we anticipate increased profit
commission accruals 1n 2005.

; RlSk in force—As of December 31, 2004, PMI Europe had assumed $2.4 billion of risk on $25.1 billion of
mortgages on propemes in the United Kingdom, and $0.4 billion of risk on $9.3 billion of mortgages on
properties in ‘Germany and the Netherlands. As of December 31, 2004, $2.1 billion of PMI Europe’s $2.8 billion
of. assumed qsk was first loss default.

The‘ following table sets forth PMI’s Hong Kong reinsurance revenues for the years ended:

t .
Voo

‘ . . : Percentage
S { o ‘ Change

LT , 2004 2003

: . EIN vs. vs.

2004 2003 2002 2003 2002

AT ) ‘ (USD in millions)

Gross reinsurance premiums written . ... . .. S $12.4 $77 $59 61.0% 305%
Reinsurance premiums earned . ... $63 3353 $36 189% 472%

PMTI’s Hong‘Kong branch reinsures mortgage risk primarily for the Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation, or
HKMC. The increases in gross reinsurance premiums written and reinsurance premiums earned in 2004 and 2003
were due pnmarﬂy to an increase in mortgage origination activity in Hong Kong. In July 2004, the HKMC began
msurmg, and PMI began reinsuring, residential mortgages with LTVs up to 95%. This product expansion has
contrlbuted to the growth in PMI’s gross reinsurance premiums written and earned in Hong Kong in 2004.

Financial Guaranty
‘The following table sets forth the results of our Financial Guaranty segment for the years ended:

Percentage
Change

2004 2003
vs, VS,
2004 2003 2002 2003 2002

(USD in millions)

Equity in emnjngé frqni unconsolidated strategié investments: ‘
FGIC COrporation .. ..vovotateet st e ae e $61.6 $ 24 $— — —_

RAMRe. . U U 62 41 42 512% Q4%
Total equ1ty eammgs e e 67.8 65 42 943.1% 54.8%
Income taxes el e e e P, 7.1 1.5 14 3733% 7.1%
Income before extraordmary I .« e 60.7 50 28 — 78.6%
Extraordinary gain on write-off of necatlve goodwﬂl net of income -

taxesof$04 e T A -— 54 — — —

NetINCOME ... it $60.7 $104 $2.8 483.7%271.4%

We gom‘pyle,ted‘ou‘r acquisition of a 42.1% equity ownership interest in FGIC Corporation on December 18,
2003. Accordingly, our consolidated results of operations do not reflect any results of FGIC Corporation prior to
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December 18, 2003. Our equity in earnings from FGIC Corporation for the period December 18 through 31, 2003
was $2.4 million (pre-tax), excluding an extraordinary gain of $5.4 million after tax related to our share of
negative goodwill written off by FGIC in connection with purchase accounting adjustments. The increase in our
net income from Financial Guaranty in 2003 compared to 2002 was attributable to our investment in FGIC
Corporation and this extraordinary gain. :

The table below shows the main components of FGIC Corporation’s 2004 results and 2003 results prior to,
and after, our investment in FGIC Corporation on December 18, 2003.

Period from Period from
December 18, January 1,
Year ended 2003 through 2003 through
December 31, December 31, December 17, 2003

2004 2003 2003 Combined
(In thousands)
Net premiums Written ... ... ... iiiiinnnenenn.. $313,878 $18,474 $247,560  $266,034
Net premiums eamed ... ....ovverereeiiinnnenn.n.. $174,949 $ 8,582 $141,749  $150,331
Net investmentincome .. ........c.ovvivnnerninennn... $ 98,002 $ 4,269 $112,619 $116,888
Netrealized gains . .........ooriiieennninn. $ 359 $§ — $ 31,506 $ 31,506
Loss and loss adjustment expenses ................... $ 5922 $ 236 $ (6,757) $ (6,521)
Underwriting eXpenses .. ..........uvennenrenunins $ 68,149 $ 7,129 $ 52,017 $ 59,146
Policy acquisition costs deferred . .......... ... .. .. ... $(32,952) $(2,931) $(23,641) $(26,572)
Amortization of deferred policy acquisition costs ........ $ 2038 $ 10 $15563 $ 15,573
INIerest EXPenSe ..o e $ 14,927 $ 149 $ - $ . 149
Goodwill write-off . ... . o R J— $ — $ 19212 $ 19,212
Extraordinary gain ...........ciiiiiii $ — $13,852 $ — $ 13,852
Netincome . .....oooiiiii i $156,880 $20,537 $174,628  $195,165
Preferred stock dmdends ........................... (16,348} (627) _— (627)
Net income available to common shareholders . ... .. $140,532 $19.910 = $174,628 $194,538
Less: extraordinary gain .. ........ . ... — 13,852
Net income available to common shareholders before .
extraordinary gain . ........... ..o, $140,532 $ 6,058
PMI’s ownership interest in common equity ............ 42.1% 42.1%
PMT’s proportionate share of net income available to .
common stockholders . ....... ... ... il $ 59,108 $ 2,358
PMI’s proportionate share of management fees .. ........ 2,484 —
Equity in earnings from FGIC Corporation ............. $ 61,592 $ 2,358
PMTI’s proportionate share of extraordinary gain, net of
1% €1 O $ 5418

As a result of the sale of FGIC Corporation on December 18, 2003, purchase accounting adjustments were
made to FGIC Corporation’s consolidated balance sheet as of December 18, 2003 and are reflected in its
consolidated results of operations subsequent to that date. As a result of the effect of these adjustments being
included in FGIC’s results, net income and other line items (as discussed below) may not be comparable period
over period. All 2003 results discussed below refer to FGIC’s full-year, combined results.

Net premiums written and earned increased to $313.9 million and $174.9 million in 2004 compared to
$266.0 million and $150.3 million in 2003, respectively. These increases were due primarily to FGIC’s increased
public financing and, to a lesser extent, structured financing transactions in 2004. The increase in earned premiums
in 2004 also was partially due to a purchase accounting adjustment of unearned premiums as of December 18, 2003
to reflect the fair value of the unearned premium reserve at acquisition, partially offset by a $9.4 million decrease in
earned preminms in 2004 related to municipal bond refundings, calls and other accelerations.
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Net investment income decreased to $98.0 million in 2004 from $116.9 million in 2003 primarily due to
purchase accounting adjustments which increased the investment portfolio to fair value as of the acquisition date.
This adjustment to FGIC’s investment portfolio resulted in a reduction of FGIC’s book yield to reflect current
market rates.as of the acquisition date., As of December 31, 2004, the book yield of FGIC’s investment portfolio
was 3.5% and was comprised primarily of U.S. municipal bonds. The decrease in net investment income in 2004
was tO a lesser extent also due to investment income lost as a result of a $284 million dividend paid by FGIC to
GE Capital in 2003. There was also a significant reduction in net realized gains in 2004 versus 2003.

Loss and loss“adjustment expenses increased in 2004 compared to 2003 due primarily to a reduction in
reserves related to reServes taken prior to December 18, 2003. ‘

Amoruzanon of deferred policy acqmsmon costs decreased in 2004 to $2.0 million from $15.6 million in
2003 as a result of purchase accounting adjustments recorded as of December 18, 2003 which do not allow
deferred’ acquisition ‘costs to be acquired. The deferred policy acquisition cost asset was $71.4 million at
December 31, 2002 compared to $2.9 million at December 31, 2003. .

FGIC Corporation recorded interest expense of $14.9 million in 2004 related to $325.0 million in senior
notes issued in 2004. The senior notes are due January 15, 2034, accrue interest at 6% per annum and are paid
sermannually

In 2003 FGIC Corporanon recognized a $19 2 mllhon 1mpa1rment of its historical goodwill related to the
goodwill estabhshed when FGIC Corporation was acquired by GE Capital. The impairment charge occurred prior
to theﬁacqulwsmon date but was a direct result of GE Capital entering into an agreement to sell FGIC Corporation.

-EGIC, COrpofationi recorded a $13.9 million extraordinary gain as of December 18, 2003 related to negative
goodwill.' We recognized our proportionate share of FGIC Corporation’s extraordinary gain ($5.4 million net of
tax) separately from equity in earnings from unconsolidated strategic investments. :

The increase in equity in earnings from RAM Re in 2004 compared to 2003 was largely due to increases in
premiums earned and investment income in 2004, The equity in earnings from RAM Re for 2003 were
unchanged compared to 2002 as a result of RAM Re’s $6.0 million increase to its provisions for losses and
$1.9 mJlllon of other-than-temporary  impairment to its investment portfolio, offset by an increase in RAM Re’s
premiums earned in 2003. In 2003, we invested $24.4 million of a total of $92 million of additional capital raised
by RAM Re. Our ownership interest percentage as a result of this capital investment remained unchanged.
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Other

The results of our Other segment include: other income and related operating expenses of MSC; investment
income, interest expense and corporate overhead of The PMI Group; a realized capital loss on equity investment
held for sale; equity in earnings (losses) primarily from SPS; and the results from and realized gain on sale of the
discontinued operations of APTIC. Our Other segment results are summarized as follows:

Percentage
Change

2004 2003
vs. vS.
2004 2003 2002 2003 2002

(In millions)

Net INVeSIMENtiNCOME . . ... vttt it ie it enes $193 $154 $19.1 253% (19.9)%
Equity in earnings (losses) from unconsolidated strategic

IMVESIMENLS o . v e ettt et e et et e e et $ 04 $(156) $276 102.6% —
Realized capital loss of equity investment held for sale (SPS) ... .. $204) $ — $— — —
OtherinCoOme ... ..ottt $26.1 $40.1 $385 (G349% 4.2%
Other Operating eXpenses ... .. .....ovurvreunreeennerenneen $719 $832 $756 (13.6)% 10.1%
Interest expense and distributions on mandatorily redeemable

preferred securities .. ... ... ... $345 $243 $215 420% 13.0%
Income from discontinued operations, net of income taxes . ....... $ 38 $19.7 %134 (80.7Y% 47.0%
Gain on sale of discontinued operations (APTIC), net of income

BAKES .« ottt $290 § — §$— — —
Netincome (10SS) . .....coovvvvnve.n. R $(15.8) $(35.1) $14.3 (55.00% —

The change in our Other segment’s net loss in 2004 compared to 2003 was primarily due to the gain on our
sale of APTIC and equity in earnings from SPS in 2004, offset by a realized capital loss on SPS in 2004,
reductions in-income from APTIC in 2004, and reduced fee income from contract underwriting in 2004, The net
loss of $35.1 million in 2003 compared to net income of $14.3 million in 2002 was primarily the result of losses
at SPS and increases in contract underwriting remedy expenses, partially offset by increased net income from
APTIC which was classified as discontinued operations due to its pending sale.

In January 2005, we signed a Summary of Terms with CSFB, pursuant to which CSFB has an option to
acquire 100% of our outstanding stock of SPS. Based upon the transaction, we recorded an impairment write-
down of $20.4 million as a realized capital loss on equity investment held for sale for the fourth quarter of 2004.
As of December 31, 2004, our total investment in SPS was $126.2 million, consisting of $109.5 million carrying
value of equity investment held for sale and $16.7 million of related party receivables which are current.

Equity in earnings from SPS was $0.4 million in 2004 compared to a $17.7 million loss and $22.4 million in
earnings in 2003 and 2002, respectively. In September 2003, SPS recorded $55.0 million of charges in
connection with the FTC and HUD settlement, settlement of certain putative class action litigation, and estimated
costs relating to certain state regulatory actions, discussed below. Our proportionate share of such aggregate
expenses was $19.1 million pre-tax and $17.8 million after tax. The decrease in equity in earnings in 2003
compared to 2002 was due primarily to SPS’ losses, our proportionate share of which was $17.7 million pre-tax
in 2003.

As a result of rating agency downgrades in 2003, Select Portfolio Servicing was unable to be named as a
primary servicer on newly issued RMBS transactions rated by Moody’s Investors Service, or Moody’s, and
Standard & Poor’s Rating Service, or S&P. On April 28, 2004, Moody’s raised Select Portfolio Servicing’s
servicer ratings from SQ4 (“below average”) to SQ3 (*average”). On May 7, 2004, S&P raised Select Portfolio
Servicing’s servicer ratings from “below average” to “average.” While Select Portfolio Servicing is now able to
be named as primary servicer on newly issued RMBS transactions rated by S&P and/or Moody’s, several of its
competitors maintain servicer ratings that are higher than “average.” On March 4, 2005, Fitch upgraded Select
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Portfolio Serv1crng s servicer rating for Alt-A product to “RPS2-" from “RPS3,” its servicer rating for subprime
and home equlty products to “RPS2-” from “RPS3-" and its special servicing rating to “RSS2-” from “RSS3.” As
of December 31, 2004, Select Portfolio Servicing serviced approximately $22 billion in mortgages, compared to
approximately $41 billion as of December 31, 2003. This significant decline in servicing was caused by heavy
borrower prepayment ‘of loans serviced by Select Portfolio ‘Servicing, and loss of business to competitors due to
the ratings. downgrades ‘combined with its 1nab111ty to acquire new servrcmg business because of ratings
downcrades Lo ‘ :

Select Poﬂfoho Servrcrng s servicing practices have been the sub]ect of investigations by-the FTC, HUD,
and the Department,of Justice, as well as putative state and national class actions. In October 2003, the United
States District Court for the District of Massachusetts approved a settlement that resolves the investigations by
the FTC and HUD. In May 2004, the District Court approved a nationwide settlement that resolves claims raised
in approximately: 40 putative class action lawsuits. The FTC and HUD settlement provided for the
implementation of a $40.0 million redress fund and certain changes to Select Portfolio Servicing’s servicing
practices. In the second quarter of 2004, in exchange for a promissory note from SPS, and pursuant to our
guarantee of approximately. two-thirds of Select Portfolio Servicing’s obligations under a $30.7 million letter of
credit, we provided to' Select Portfolio Servicing $19.7 million of the $40.0 million redress fund established
pursuant to the FTC and HUD settlement. In the third quarter of 2004, we exchanged the $19.7 million
promissory note and accrued interest thereon for additional shares of SPS’s common stock. In the third quarter of
2004, . we 'also received a subordinated promissory note with an original principal balance amount of
$23.0 million -in exchange for $23.0 million of subordinated participation interests in SPS held by us. As of
December 31 2004 thrs note had an outstanding balance of $16.6 million.

Other 1ncome whrch was generated by MSC, decreased in 2004 compared to 2003 primarily due to a
decline in;contract: underwntmg activity related to lower mortgage origination and refinance volume. Other
income mcreased in 2003 and 2002 due primarily to mcreased contract underwriting activity in connection with
heavy mortgage orrgmatrons and refinance volume. :

Other operatmg:expenses, which ‘were incurred by MSC and The PMI Group, Inc., decreased in 2004
compared to.2003 primari]y as a result of a decrease in contract underwriting expense allocation, offset by an
increase in interest expense, relating to monthly mterest on the 13.8 million 5.875% equity units we issued in
November 2003 Other operating expenses increased in 2003 compared to 2002 due to mcreased salary expense
and other corporate overhead and contract underwriting remedies expenses:.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Sources and Uses of Funds

The PMI Group ‘Liguidity—The PMI Group’s liquidity is primarily dependent upon: (i) The PMI s Group’s
subsidiaries’ ability to‘pay dividends to The PMI Group; (ii) financing activities in the capital markets; and
(iii) maturing or refinded investments and investment income from The PMI Group’s stand-alone investment
portfolio. The. PMI Group’s ability to access these sources depends on, among other things, the financial
performance.. of The PMI Group’s subsidiaries, regulatory restrictions on the ability of The PMI Group’s
insurance sub51d1ar1es to pay dividends, The PMI Group’s and its subsidiaries’ ratings by the rating agencies and
restrictions and agreements to which The PMI Group or its subsidiaries are subject that restrict their ability to pay
dlvrdends incur debt or issue equlty securities.

The PMI Group s prmc1pa1 uses of liquidity are the payment of operatmg costs, income taxes (which are
predommantly reimbursed by its subsrdranes) principal and interest on'its debt, payments of dividends to
shareholders, repurchases of its common stock, purchases of investments and capital investments in and for its
subsididries. In. the normal course of business, we evaluate The PMI Group’s capital and liquidity needs in light
of its debt related costs, holding company expenses, our dividend policy, and rating agency considerations. If we
wish to. provrde addrtronal capital to our existing operations, make new .equity investments ‘Or increase our
existing equlty investments, we may need to increase the cash and investment securities held by The PMI Group.
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Our ability to raise additional funds for these purposes will be dependent on our ability to access the debt or
equity markets and/or cause our insurance subsidiaries to pay dividends, subject to rating agency and insurance
regulatory considerations and risk-to-capital limitations.

The PMI Group’s available funds, consisting of cash and cash equivalents and investments, were $441.2
million at December 31, 2004; compared to $307.9 million at December 31, 2003. In December 2004, The PMI
Group entered into a five-year $175 million revolving credit facility agreement that is expandable to $200 million
at The PMI Group’s request subject to approval by the lenders. Also during 2004, we repurchased approximately
$100 million of our common stock, completing the $100 million stock repurchase program authorized in 2003. In
February 2005, our Board of Directors authorized an additional $100 million stock repurchase program. It is our
present intention to maintain between $100 million to $150 million of liquidity at our holding company in
connection with rating agency considerations. We believe that we have sufficient liquidity to meet all of our
short- and medium-term obligations, and that we maintain excess liquidity to support our operations.

U.S. Mortgage Insurance Operations Liquidity—The principal uses of the U.S. Mortgage Insurance
Operations’ liquidity are the payment of operating expenses, claim payments, taxes, dividends to The PMI Group
and the growth of its investment portfolio. We believe that the U.S. Mortgage Insurance Operations’ operating
liquidity needs can be funded exclusively from its operating cash flows. The principal sources of U.S. Mortgage
Insurance Operations’ liquidity are written premiums and net investment income.

International Operations Liquidity—The principal uses of the International Operations liquidity are the
payment of operating expenses, claim payments, profit commission payments, taxes, and growth of its
investment portfolio. We believe that the International Operations’ operating liquidity needs can be funded
exclusively from its operating cash flows. The principal sources of International Operations’ liquidity are written
premiums, investment maturities and net investment income.

Credit Facility

In December 2004, The PMI Group entered into a five-year $175 million revolving credit facility that can
be utilized for working capital, capital expenditures and other business purposes. The facility may be increased to
$200 million at the Company’s request subject to approval by the lenders. The credit facility contains certain
financial covenants and restrictions, including a debt-to-capital ratio threshold and a risk-to-capital ratio
threshold of 23 to 1. The PMI Group was in compliance with all debt covenants for the year ended December 31,
2004. There are no amounts outstanding related to this facility.

Dividends to The PMI Group

PMTI’s ability to pay dividends to The PMI Group is affected by state insurance laws, credit agreements,
credit rating agencies and the discretion of insurance regulatory authorities. The laws of Arizona, PMI’s state of
domicile for insurance regulatory purposes, provide that PMI may pay out of any available surplus account,
without prior approval of the Director of the Arizona Department of Insurance, during any 12-month period in an
amount not to exceed the lesser of 10% of policyholders’ surplus as of the preceding year end or the last calendar
year’s investment income. A dividend that exceeds the foregoing threshold is deemed an “extraordinary
dividend” and requires the prior approval of the Director of the Arizona Department of Insurance. On June 23,
2004, the Director of the Arizona Department of Insurance approved PMI’s extraordinary dividend request of
$150 million, and this dividend was paid to The PMI Group in July 2004. No further dividends may be paid by
PMI prior to July 15, 2005 without the prior approval of the Director of the Arizona Department of Insurance. In
addition, APTIC paid $13.0 million in dividends to The PMI Group in the first quarter of 2004 prior to our sale
of APTIC.

Other states may also limit or restrict PMI’s ability to pay shareholder dividends. For example, California,
New York and Illinois prohibit mortgage insurers from declaring dividends except from the surplus of undivided
profits over the aggregate of their paid-in capital, paid-in surplus and contingency reserves.
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PMI's ability to pay dividends is also subject to restriction under;the terms of a runoff support agreement
with Allstate. Under. the Allstate agreement, PMI may not pay a dividend if, after the payment of that dividend,
PMTI’s risk-to-capital ratio would equal or exceed 23 to 1. As of December. 31, 2004, PMI’s risk-to-capital ratio
was 8.2 compared t0'9.1 at December 31, 2003 and 11.3 at December 31, 2002,

In addltlon to -its consolidated subsidiaries, The PMI Group may in the future derive funds from its
unconsolidated equity investments, including its investment in FGIC Corporation, which is the parent
corporation of FGIC. As described below, FGIC’s ability to pay dividends is subject to restrictions contained in
apphcable State 1nsurance laws and regulations, FGIC’s Corporation’s certificate of incorporation, a stockholder
agreement between The. PMI Group and other investors in FGIC Corpora‘uon and its 6.0% senior notes. Under
New York msurance law, FGIC may pay dividends out of statutory earned surplus, provided that statutory
surplus after any dividend may not be less than the minimum required paid-in capital and provided that together
with all d1v1dends declared or distributed by FGIC during the preceding 12 months, the dividends do not exceed
the lesser of (i) 10% of policyholders’ surplus as of its last statement filed with the New York superintendent or
(ii) adjusted net investment income during this period. In addition, in accordance with the normal practice of the
New York Insurance Department in connection with change in control applications, FGIC Corporation is subject
to commitments to the department that it will prevent FGIC from paying any dividends on its common stock for
a period of two years from the date of the acquisition, or December 18, 2005, without the prior written consent of
the department.

In addition, 0 long as any senior preferred stock or class B common stock issued upon conversion of that
preferred stock is outstanding, FGIC Corporation’s certificate of incorporation generally prohibits the payment of
dividends or' other ‘payments on any of FGIC Corporation’s capital stock, except the senior preferred stock,
without the’consent of the holder of two-thirds of the outstanding shares of that preferred stock (or the class B
common stock issued upon conversion of that preferred stock). This restriction does not apply to cash dividends
declared and paid on the class A common stock after the ninth anniversary of the closing of the FGIC
Corporation,investment provided that those dividends are paid from retained earnings in excess of the amount of
FGIC Corporation’s retained earnings on the closing date of such investment, the amount of the dividends in any
fiscal year does not exceed one-third of one percent of FGIC Corporation’s stockholders’ equity, and equivalent
dividends are pard on the class B common stock.

The st‘o‘ckhbldérs agreement between The PMI Group and the other investors in FGIC Corporation also
restricts the 'payment of dividends by FGIC Corporation. The stockholders agreement provides that FGIC
Corporation:will not-declare or pay cash dividends to holders of its common stock prior to the earlier of the fifth
anniversary of the closing of the investment and the completion of the first underwritten public offering of FGIC
Corporation’s common stock, and, in any event, that such dividends will not be paid prior to the redemption of
FGIC Corporatron 8. senior preferred stock and class B common stock.

FGIC Corporatron is further restricted in the payment of dividends by the terms of its 6% senior notes, due
2034. Exeept as described in the following sentence, FGIC Corporation may not pay dividends unless the amount
of the divideénds, together with other.similar payments, or restricted payments, during any fiscal year does not
exceed the greater of (i) 30% of FGIC Corporation and its subsidiariés’ consolidated net income for the previous
fiscal year and (i‘i)“2 5% of FGIC Corporation’s stockholders’ equity on its and its subsidiaries’ consolidated
balance sheet as of the end of the previous fiscal year. FGIC Corporation may make restricted payments
regardless of amount so- long as the payments would not reasonably be expected to cause an adverse change to
either. (i) the then current insurance financial strength rating and outlook of FGIC or (ii) FGIC Corporation’s then
current semor unsecured debt rating and outlook.

Consoiidated Coiztractual Obligations

Our consohdated contractual obligations include reserves for losses and LAE. long-term debt obligations,
capital, 1ease obhgauons operating lease obligations and purchase obligations. Cash payments related to our
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reserves for losses and LAE as of December 31, 2004 shown below are estimates and may ultimately be greater
or less than the amounts shown. They are based upon management’s best estimate from historical experience as
well as current.economic conditions. These estimates could vary significantly based on, among other things,
changes to claim rates and claim sizes. Most of our purchase obligations are capital expenditure commitments
that will be used for technology improvements. Minimum rental payments under non-cancelable operating leases
as well as the obligation recorded under capital leases are provided in the table below.

Less Than More Than
1 Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years 5 Years Total
(In thousands)
Reserves for lossesand LAE .................. $219,171 $123.643 $ 20,095 $ 1938 $ 364,847
Long-term debt obligations ) ................. 38,149 124,254 371,572 596,742 1,130,717
Capital lease obligations . ..................... 137 — — — 137
Operating lease obligations ................... 6,119 8,717 5.365 4,097 24,298
Purchase obligations . ........................ 1,187 1,789 — — 2,976
Total ... e $264,763 $258403 $397,032 $602,777 $1,522,975

(1) Includes $819.5 million of principal debt, $292.2 million of scheduled interest and $19.0 million of contract adjustment payments related
to our equity units.

We have invested in certain limited partnerships with ownership interests greater than 3% but less than
50%. As of December 31, 2004, the Company had committed to fund, if called upon to do so, $5.6 million of
additional equity in certain limited partnership investments. This commitment to fund is excluded from the above
table. Capitalized costs associated with software developed for internal use were $29.5 million in 2004 and
$22.5 million in 2003. We expect to continue to invest in internally developed software.

Consolidated Investments:
Net Investment Income

The significant components of net investment income are presented in the following table.

2004 2003 2002
. (In thousands)

Fixed income seCurities . .. ....... vttt $146,057 $135,162 $111,083
Equity SECUTTEIEs . . ..ottt 9,751 7,965 4,142
Short-term INVESEMENLS . . ...ttt e e e e 15,389 7,920 7,235

Investment income before expenses . .. ... 171,197 151,047 122,460

INVeStMENnt EXPENSES « .. v\ttt et e (2,588) (1,268) (1,879)

Net inVesStment INCOME . .« « v v o v e e s b et et e e et $168,609 $149,779 $120,581

Net investment income increased in 2004 compared to 2003 primarily due to growth in our investment
portfolio. Net investment income increased in 2003 compared to 2002 primarily due to growth in our investment
portfolio and $10.3 million in pre-tax adjustments in 2003 to reflect the appropriate accounting treatment related
to the accretion of discounts and call premiums on bonds that have been called for early redemption. Our pre-tax
book yield was 5.07% at December 31, 2004, down from 5.38% at December 31, 2003, and 5.56% at
December 31, 2002. The decreases reflect the lower interest rate environment. The decrease in the book yield for
2003 also reflects our higher cash positions in anticipation of our liquidity needs related to the FGIC acquisition.
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Net Realized Investment Gains and Losses

The cdmponents of net realized investment gains and losses are presented in the following table.

2004 2003 2002
. . . (In thousands)
Fixed income securities: .
GEOSS GAINS ..\ v e $1910 $7,119 $ 16,944
GrOSS L0888 o et et e et (6,184) (6,560)  (7,779)
© Net gains (JOSSES) o 4274y 559 9,165
Equity. securltles '
Gross gains . e e 6,607 7,274 7,986
Gross losses e e (2,551) (3,996) (15,881)
Net fgaing (Iosses) ............................................ 4,056 3,278 (7,895)
Short-term 1nvestments .
Gross gains B 3,200 — 59
Gross losses . e ] e (361)  (289) —
~ Net gains (10SS€8) .. ...ovuvivreneieinn... e 2,839 (289) 59
Investments in. unconsolidated subsidiaries: ‘ ‘
.Gross gains .. . B R —_ 363 —_
Gross losses . .. .. e e e — (3,827) —
Net losses . ... ........... R P e — (3,464) —_
Net reahzed garns before income taxes .......,....... e 2,621 - 84 1,329
Incometaxes.“..‘.‘._......................,, ..................... L 917 28) (465)

Total net rea]rzed galns after INCOME tAXES ...\t v'vt ettt ee e $1,704 § 56 $ 864

Net realized gdins increased by $1.6 million after-tax in 2004 compared with 2003 and decreased $0.8
mrlhon after-tax in’ 2003 compared with 2002. The decrease of 2003 compared to 2002 was due mainly to a
reduction in ﬁxed income sales activity in 2003, partially offset by an $11.2 million increase in net gains pre-tax
in our equrtres portfoho due to favorable market conditions during 2003. In addition, other-than-temporary
impairment of our.equity portfolio was $0.2 million in 2004 and $0.3 million in 2003, compared to $6.9 million
in 2002: Durrng 2003, we sold our ownership interest in Truman, an unconsolidated subsidiary, and recognized a
realized cap1tal loss of $3.6 million pre-tax. The $20.4 million pre-tax realized capital loss on equity investment
held for sale (SPS) tecognized in 2004 was separately classified in our consolidated statement of operations and
was therefore not included in the above table.

i
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Net Unrealzzed Gams and Losses

The change in net unrealrzed gains and losses net of deferred taxes are presented in the following table.

3‘1w‘“ul' ‘;“‘; : 2004 2003 2002
e “ "“ ‘ (In thousands)

Fixed inconhe‘securrties“ .................................. PPIRP ... $4006 $(9,138) $ 52,785
EQUILY SECUTIEES ', 11 v s v e ettt R 3,174 17,964  (10,671)
Investments ih unconsolidated subsidiaries ... ........... e G 4,330 3,516 259
Short-term mvestments e et e e (3,247 %) 2,625
Discontinued operatlons—APTIC ................... e . ... (1,317 1,105 212
Change in net unreahzed gains, net of deferred taxes .. .......... . ..... 6,946 13,442 45,210
‘ Net reahzed gaing, net of income taxes ... ......... ... ... 1,704 56 864
' Total e L $ 8,650 $13498 $ 46,074




Investment Portfolio by Operating Segment

The following table summarizes the estimated fair value-of the consolidated investment portfolio as of
December 31, 2004 and 2003. Amounts shown under “Other” include the investment portfolio of The PMI
Group.

~U.S. Mortgage
" Insurance International Consolidated
Operations Operations Other Total
. (In thousands)
December 31, 2004
Fixed income securities: ;. . ‘
U.S. municipalbonds . ............... ... ..... $1,739,894  § — $ 9,843 $1,749,737
Foreign governments ......... e — 510,810 — 510,810
Corporate bonds ......... P PP 11,331 400,663 228,963 640,957
U.S. government and agencies ................... 8,448 —_ 3,962 12,410
Mortgage-backed SECUTILES © v v v eve e 5,427 — 5,526 10,953
Total fixed income securities ................ 1,765,100 911,473 248,294 2,924 867
Equity securities:
Common Stocks .. ..t 104,798 24,512 — 129,310
Preferred stocks ........ e e e 110,633 — —_ 110,633
Total equity securities ............cccuavnnn 215,431 24,512 — 239,943
Short-term inVeStmentS . ..ot innnernnes 776 14,722 113,205 128,703
Total ....... .o $1,981,307  $950,707 $361,499 $3,293,513
U.S. Mortgage
Insurance International Consolidated
Operations Operations Other Total
) (In thousands)
December 31, 2003
Fixed income securities:
U.S. municipal bonds .................. e ... $1,599889 §  — § 5732 $1,605621
Foreign governments ................ P, — 466,916 — 466,916
Corporate bonds .. ...\ - 11,670 226,131 200,542 438,343
U.S. government and agencies ................... . 9,229 5,743 7,482 22,454
Mortgage-backed securities ..................... 9,879 — 10,971 20,850
Total fixed income securities ................ 1,630,667 698,790 224727 2,554,184
Equity securities: ' ‘
Commonstocks .......... ... i 97,254 19,474 — 116,728
Preferred stocks ...... ... 111,070 —_— — 111,070
Total equity securities ..................... 208,324 19,474 — 227,798
Short-term investments ...............c.oovvur..i. S 10,776 13,027 — 23,803
Total .......... e $1,849,767  $731,291 $224,727 $2,805,785

QOur consolidated investment portfolio holds primarily investment grade securities comprised of readily
marketable fixed income and equity securities. At December 31, 2004, the fair value of these securities in our
consolidated investment portfolio increased to $3.3 billion from $2.8 billion at December 31, 2003. The increase
was primarily the result of positive cash flows from consolidated operations, a $41.3 million increase related to
increases in foreign currency translation rates in our international operations from December 31, 2003 to
December 31, 2004, our common stock and equity units’ offerings in the fourth quarter of 2003, and the proceeds
from the sale of APTIC-in the first. quarter of 2004, partially offset by a decrease in unrealized gains in our
portfolio. As interest rates, market and other economic conditions change, we expect the market value of the
securities in our investment portfolio to be affected. v
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Our consohdated investment portfolio consists primarily of publicly traded municipal bonds, U.S. and
foreign’ government bonds;and corporate bonds. In accordance with SFAS No. 115, our entire investment
portfolio is des1gnated as.available-for-sale and reported at fair value, and the change in fair value is recorded in
accumulated other comprehensive income. ‘

The followmg table summarizes the ratmg drstnbutrons of our consohdated investment portf0110 as of
December 31,2004..

U.S. Mortgage

Insurance International Consolidated

. S Operations Operations  Other Total
AAAorequivalent ................... 60.7% 66.7% 104%  56.7%
CAA 26.0% - 14.8% 48.7% 25.4%
CAL - 103% - 149%  31.6% 14.0%
BBB: .. - 2.0% 3.2% 9.3% . 3.2%
Below investment grade . . . .. P C10% . 04% — 0.7%

“Total o S 1000%° 100.0% 100.0%  100.0%

The folloWing Lahle presents the components of accumulated other comprehensive income:

2004 2003 2002
' ' ‘ ] , (In thousands)
NEtINCOMIE 1 v 2t e i e e e et et e e e et e ... $399.333  $299433  $346,217
Change in unreahzed gains on investments, net of deferred taxes of $1,793,
$7,172, and $21; 253 O 8,650 13,498 46,074
Reclassification of realized gains included in net income, net of tax. ........ (1,704) (56) (864)
Change in cutrency translation gains ... .............o.iiiiiiiaii.... . . 31666 116,825 31,758

Other comprehensrve INCOME . v vttt e, $437945  $4209,700 $423,185

Our aeeumulated other comprehensive income consists of changes in unrealized net gains and losses on
investmehts, less reahzed gains and losses m the current perrod earnings and currency translation gains and
losses, net of deferred taxes.

Debt and Equzty F mancmg

_ As of December 31, 2004, our consolidated shareholders equity ‘was' $3 1 billion. The carrying value of our
long-term debt outstandmg issued by The PMI Group at December 31 was as-follows:

AR

2004 2003
. , . (In thousands)
2.50% Senior Convertible Debentures, due July 15,2021 .......... e $359,986  $360,000
3;00% Senior Notes, due November 15,2008 ..... .. ... ... .. . ... 345,000 345,000
6. 75% Senior Notes, due November 15,2006 .................. e 62,950 62,950
8. 309% Junior Subordinated Debentures, due February 1,2027 ... 51,593 51,593
E Totallongtermdebt ....... e ilioo .. $819,529 $819,543

The 3.00% Senior’Nofes described above relate to our issuance in November 2003 of 13.8 million 5.875%
equity: units with a stated value of $25 per unit. The units include the senior notes and purchase contracts to
purchase, no later than November 15, 2006, up to 9,034,860 shares of common stock for an aggregate purchase
price of $345.0 million. Contract adjustment payments are made on the stated value of the equity units at a rate of
2. 875% per annum. Also in November 2003, we issued 5,750,000 shares of our common stock for an aggregate
purchase price of approxrmately $220 million.
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The terms of the 2.50% Senior Convertible Debentures due July 15, 2021 provide that the holders of the
debentures may require The PMI Group to repurchase outstanding debentures on July 15, 2006, 2008, 2011 and
2016 at a purchase price equal to the principal amount of the debentures to be repurchased plus accrued and unpaid
interest. Instead of paying the purchase price in cash, we may pay all or a portion of the purchase price in common
stock, valued at 97.5% of the average sale price of the common stock over a specified period, provided that the
shares of common stock to be issued are registered under the Securities Act, if required. On July 15, 2004, certain
debenture holders required us to repurchase a nominal amount of the debentures. We have the option to redeem
some or all of the debentures on or after July 15, 2006 for a price equal to the principal amount of the debentures
plus any accrued and unpaid interest. In addition, the debentures may be converted into common stock at the
debenture holder’s option, prior to stated maturity, if specified requirements are met (See Item 8. Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data—Note 11. Long-Term Debt and Line of Credif). Due to the common stock
conversion feature of these debentures, they satisfy the criteria for contingently convertible debt, or CoCo’s,
according to EITF Issue No. 04-08, The Effect of Contingently Convertible Instruments on Diluted Earnings per
Share. In 2004, we included the dilutive effect of CoCo’s in our consolidated dilutive earnings per share for all
periods presented, which had no impact on our short- or long-term liquidity or capital resources.

Capital Support Obligations

PMI has entered into various capital support agreements with its Australian and European subsidiaries that
could require PMI to make additional capital contributions to those subsidiaries for rating agency purposes. With
respect to the Australian and European subsidiaries, The PMI Group guarantees the performance of PMI’s capital
support obligations. In 2001, PMI executed a capital support agreement whereby it agreed to contribute funds,

" under specified conditions, to maintain CMG’s risk-to-capital ratio at or below 18.0 to 1. PMI’s obligation under
the agreement is limited to an aggregate of $37.7 million, exclusive of capital contributions that PMI made prior
to April 10, 2001. On December 31, 2004, CMG’s risk-to-capital ratio was 13.0 to 1 compared to 13.4 to 1 as of
December 31, 2003.

Cash Flows

On a consolidated basis, our principal sources of funds are cash flows generated by our insurance
subsidiaries, investment income derived from our investment portfolios and debt and equity financings by The
PMI Group as described above. It is one of the goals of our cash management policy to ensure that we have
sufficient funds on hand to pay obligations when they are due. We believe that we have sufficient cash to meet
these and other of our short- and medium-term obligations.

Consolidated cash flows generated by operating activities, including premiums, investment income,
underwriting and operating expenses and losses, was $390.5 million in 2004 compared to $558.7 million in 2003.
The decrease was primarily due to a significant increase in unearned premiums in 2003, specifically related to
premiums written of approximately $114 million in the fourth quarter of 2003 associated with the restructuring of
certain existing U.S. primary insurance policies. The decrease in operating cash flows was also attributable to an
increase in equity in earnings from unconsolidated subsidiaries. We expect future claim payments in 2005 to be
higher than 2004 levels due to the continued seasoning of our insurance portfolio, specifically the 2003 book
year.

Consolidated cash flows used in investing activities, including purchases and sales of investments,
investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries, and capital expenditures, was $411.8 million in 2004 and $1,010.7
million in 2003. This decrease was due primarily to our investment in 2003 in FGIC of approximately $611
million.

Consolidated cash flows used by financing activities, including purchases and sales of investments, proceeds
from issuance of long-term debt and equity, repayment of long-term debt, purchase of treasury stock and
dividends paid to shareholders, was $79.4 million in 2004 compared to $528.7 million cash flows generated by
financing activities in 2003. The decrease was due primarily to $100.0 million of repurchases of common stock
in 2004 and proceeds in 2003 of $334.7 million from the issuance of long-term debt and $207.9 million from the
issuance of common stock.
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Ojf-Balance Sheet Arrangements

Under certain circumstances, when we make an underwriting error in the course of providing contract
underwriting servrces 1o a customer, we issue to the customer a loan indemnification. Such an indemnification is
in lieu of paymg a monetary remedy to the customer at the time the underwriting error is discovered and is
usually ‘issued on a loan by loan basis. While the terms of the indemnifications vary, each indemnification
crenerally requires us to reimburse the customer for any costs ‘(excess of insurance recoverables) it incurs as a
result of the borrower s default on the loan in question. If the indemnified loan remains current, or is repaid or
refinanced, we have. no actual liability under the indemnification. As of December 31, 2004, we estimate that the
total principal balance of indemnified loans was between approximately $70 million and $90 million. We believe
a number of factors will cause our contingent liability with respect to these indemnifications to be significantly
lower than this amount. These factors include the following: (i) we generally only indemnify performmg loans;
(ii) we expect only a small portion of the indemnified loans to default; (iii) loans in default may not cause our
customers to incur losses due to home appreciation; and (iv) we expect a portion of these loans to be refinanced,
or their. indemnification coverage to expire. In 2004, we paid customers $1.4 million pursuant to loan
indemnifications compared to approximately $2.5 rrulhon in 2003. These amounts are included in our expenses
ass0c1ated with contract underwrrtmg remedies.

b

Ratings

The ratmg agencres have assigned the followmg ratmgs to The PMI Group and certain of its wholly-owned
subsidiaries:

Senior .
Insurer Financial Strength Ratings ‘ Unsecured Debt Capital Securities
. PMI PMI
t . PMI Australia PMI Europe The PMI Group Capital 1
S&P fo g - AA (stable) =~ AA (stable) AA (stable) A (stable)  BBB+ (stable)
Fitch .. ... ool AA+ (stable) AA (stable) AA (stable) A+ (stable) A (stable)
Moody’s ...... Aa?2 (stable) Aa2 (stable) Aa3 (stable) Al (stable) A2 (stable)

(1) PMI 'Indexn‘nity Linlited is rated AA- (stable) by S&P, AA (stable) by Fitch, and Aa3 (stable) by Moody’s.

Any significant decreases in our ratings may adversely affect the ratings of FGIC Corporation and FGIC.
FGIC’s ability to attract new business and to compete with other triple-A rated financial guarantors is largely
dependent on its trrple A financial strength ratings. Also, the stockholders agreement entered into in connection
with the acquisition of FGIC Corporation provides that The-PMI Group will not acquire a majority of the voting
stock of FGIC Co'rporation or cause its designees to constitute a majority of FGIC Corporation’s Board of
Dlrectors unless at the time of such action, S&P, Fitch and Moody’s, as applicable, reaffirm FGIC’s then current
financial strength rating. and outlook” and FGIC Corporation’s then current senior unsecured debt rating and
outlook. The value of ‘our investment in FGIC Corporatlon and our ability to increase our ownership interest in
FGIC Corporatron in the future, to the extent opportunities arise to do so, depend in part on The PMI Group’s
and PMUI’s ratings ‘and on the views of the rating agencies with respect to any such transaction. Any decrease in
our ratings cdu]dtalso negatively impact PMI Australia’s and PMI Europe’s ratings, which could place them at a
competiti\/‘e disadvantage.

Determmatrons of rat1ngs by the rating agenc1es are affected by a varlety of factors, including
macroeconomic conditions, economic conditions affectmg the mortgage insurance industry, changes in
regulatory condmons that may affect demand for mortgage insurance, competition, and the need for us to make
caprtal contnbutlons to our subsidiaries and underwntlng and investment losses

H .
iy
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation,” as well as
disclosures included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, are based upon our consolidated financial
statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States. The preparation of these financial statements requires us to make estimates and judgments that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, revenues and expenses, and related disclosure of contingencies. Actual
results may differ significantly from these estimates. We believe that the following critical accounting policies
involved significant judgments and estimates used in the preparation of our consolidated financial statements.

Reserves for Losses and LAE

We establish reserves for losses and LAE to recognize the liability of unpaid losses related to insured
mortgages that are in default. We do not rely on a single estimate to determine our loss reserves. To ensure the
reasonableness of our ultimate estimates, we develop scenarios using generally recognized actuarial projection
methodologies that result in various possible outcomes of losses and LAE. Based on these scenarios and other
considerations, our actuaries determine a reasonable range which assists in determining a best estimate. Our best
estimate with respect to our consolidated loss and LAE reserves was approximately the midpoint of our
actuarially determined range at December 31, 2004.

Changes in loss reserves can materially affect our consolidated net income. The process of reserving losses
requires us to forecast the interest rate, employment and housing market environments, which are highly
uncertain. Therefore, the process requires significant management judgment. In addition, different estimates
could have been used in the current period, and changes in the accounting estimates are reasonably likely to
occur from period to period based on the economic conditions. We review the judgments made in our prior
period estimation process and adjust our current assumptions as appropriate. While our assumptions are based in
part upon historical data, the loss provisioning process is complex and subjective and, therefore, the ultimate
liability may vary significantly from our estimates.

The following table shows the reasonable range of loss and LAE reserves, as determined by our actuaries,
and recorded reserves for losses and LAE (gross of reinsurance recoverables) as of December 31, 2004 and 2003
on a segment and consolidated basis:

As of December 31, 2004 As of December 31, 2003
Low High Recorded Low High Recorded
(In millions) (In millions)
U.S. Mortgage Insurance Operations . .. ... $300.0 $379.8 $338.6 $285.3 $3629 $3253
International Operations * . .............. 15.0 38.7 26.2 19.3 22.0 21.7
Consolidated loss and LAE reserves .. ... .. $315.0 $418.5 $364.8 $304.6 $384.9 $347.0

* . International Operations includes loss and loss reserves for PMI Australia and PMI Europe. As of December 31, 2003, we had not
established a range of loss reserves for PMI Europe, rather, we included the actual recorded reserve of $12.1 million in both the low and
high range.

U.S. Mortgage Insurance Operations—We establish PMI’s reserves for losses and LAE based upon our
estimate of unpaid losses and LAE on (i) reported mortgage loans in default and (ii) estimated defaults incurred
but not reported to PMI by its customers. As.of December 31, 2004, our actuaries determined that PMI’s
reasonable range of loss and LAE reserves was $300.0 million to $379.8 million compared to $285.3 million to
$362.9 million as of December 31, 2003. As of December 31, 2004 and 2003, PMI’s reserves for losses and LAE
(gross of reinsurance recoverables) were $338.6 million and $325.3 million, respectively, which represented our
best estimates and approximately the midpoints of the actuarial ranges of loss. We believe the amounts recorded
represent the most likely outcome within the actuarial ranges.
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Our best estimate of PMI's loss and LAE reserves is derived primarily from our analysis of PMI's default
and loss experience. The-key assumptions used in the estimation process are expected claim rates, average claim
sizes, ‘and costs to settle claims. We evaluate our assumptions in light of PMI’s historical patterns of claim
payment, loss. experience in past and current economic environments, the seasoning of PMI's various books of
business, PMI’s coverage levels, the credit quality profile of PMI’s portfolios, and the geographic mix of PMI's
business. Our, assumptions are influenced by historical loss patterns and are adjusted to reflect recent loss trends.
Our assumptions «are also-influenced by our assessment of current and future economic conditions, including
trends' in housing. prices, unemployment and interest rates. Our estimation process uses generally recognized
actuarial projection methodologies. As part of our estimation process, we also evaluate various scenarios
representing possrble losses and LAE under different economic assumptions. We established PMI's reserves at
December 31, 2004 and 2003 at the approximate mid-point of the actuarial range due to, among other reasons,
our belief that PMI’s. number of delinquencies, average claim rate and average claim size are currently -less
volatile relative, to periods prior to 2003. We believe the midpoint of the range represents the most likely
outcome related to future claim payments on loans currently in our default inventory.

Our current recorded loss reserve balance represents an increase of $13.3 million from PMI’s reserve
balance of $325. 3 million at December 31, 2003. Our increase to the reserve balance at December 31, 2004 was
due prrmanly to our increase in primary loans in default and, to a lesser extent, the higher proportion of
dehnquenc1es developrng into claims.

The table below provides a reconciliation of cur U.S. Mortgage Insurance segment’s beginning and ending
reserv‘esrfor' losses'and LAE for each of the last three years:

2004 2003 2002
‘ ‘ (1n millions)
Balance at January L TP ..., $3253 $3157 $2894
Rernsurance recoverables .................. P (3.3) (3.8) (6.1)
Net balance atJanuary 1, ............... e e 322.0 311.9 283.3
Losses and LAE incurred (prrncrpally wrth respect to defaults occurring in):
‘Curren“tyearw..;.‘..., ......................... 239.1 218.3 235.0
PHOF VEATS .ot i 59 (3.6 (852
+ "Totalincurred ... ... ... SN U e 2332 ' 2147 1498
Losses and LAE payments (principally with respect to defaults occumng in):
Current year e e e e S 17.9 - (10.2) &.D
Pmor years e P (201.1) (194.4) (113.1)
Total payments .......... R S (219.0) (204.6) (121.2)
Net’ balance at December 31 ...... e W 3362 . 3220 3119
Reinsurance recoverables . ... ...........oouuneeiiiniiaiiin... e 24 . 33 3.8

Balance at December 31, ... o..vet ittt e $3386 $3253 $3157
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The above loss reserve reconciliation shows the components of our loss reserve and LAE changes for the
periods presented. Losses and LAE payments of $219.0 million, $204.6 million and $121.2 million for the
periods ended 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively, reflect amounts paid during the period presented and are not
subject to estimation. Losses and LAE incurred, net of changes to prior years, of $233.2 million, $214.7 million
and $149.8 million for the periods ended 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively, are management’s best estimates of
ultimate losses-and LAE and, therefore, are subject to change. Within the total losses and LAE incurred line item
are reductions to incurred related to prior periods of $5.9 million, $3.6 million and $85.2 million for the periods
ended 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The table below breaks down the 2004, 2003 and 2002 reductions in
reserves by particular accident years.

Changes in Incurred
2004 2003 2002

Losses and LAE Incurred “

V8. VS. ¥S.
Accident Year 2004 2003 2002 2001 2003 2002 2001
' (In millions)
1998 and prior ..........c.ooiiiiiiin.. $ — $§— $ — $— $02s8$00 %0
1999 L 69.2 69.4 70.0 72.1 0.2) (0.6) 2.1
2000 ... . 1024 1036 1014 97.6 (1.2) 2.2 3.8
2001 ... 184.1 183.8 157.1 2426 0.3 2677 (85.5)
2002 2134 2041 2350 —_ 9.3 (309 —
2003 ... e 2044  218.3 — — (13.9) — —
2004 ... 239.1 — — —_ — — —
Total « ot $ (5.9) $ (3.6) $(85.2)

The $5.9 million, $3.6 million and $85.2 million reductions in 2004, 2003 and 2002 over prior years,
respectively, were due to re-estimations of ultimate loss rates from those established at the original notice of
default, updated through the period presented. These re-estimations of ultimate loss rates are the result of
management’s periodic review of estimated claim amounts in light of actual claim amounts, loss development
data or ultimate claim rates. The $5.9 million reduction in prior years’ reserves during 2004 was due primarily to
a reduction in the incurred but not reported estimate and to a lesser extent our reallocation of reserves between
2003 and 2002. The $3.6 million reduction in prior years’ reserves during 2003, respectively were due primarily
to our reallocation of reserves between accident years combined with more favorable claim size and certain pool
portfolio loss development trends. The $85.2 million reductions in prior years’ reserves during 2002 was due
primarily to more favorable loss trends than expected compared to PMI’s historical loss experience, evidenced by
lower claim amounts, a robust real estate market and strong home price appreciation.

The following table shows a breakdown of loss reserves by primary and pool insurance for the years ended:

2004 2003
(In thousands)
Primary INSUTAICE . ...t v ottt ettt e e ettt et ettt et $306,023 $292,531
POOl INSUIANCE . . oo e e 32,597 32,731
Total 108S and LAE TESEIVES . ..o\ v ittt et e ettt $338,620 $325,262

The following table shows a breakdown of loss reserves by loans in default, incurred but not reported, and
cost to settle claims (LAE) for the years ended:

2004 2003
(In thousands)
Loansindefault .. .. ... ... . $274225 $259,863
Incurred but notreported . ... ... e 51,376 52,895
Cost to settle claims (LAE) .. ..ottt e e e 13,019 12,504
Total 1oss and LAE TeSEIVES . . .. .ottt e e e $338,620 $325,262




T 0 provrde a measure of sensitivity on pre-tax income to changes in loss reserve estimates, we estimate that:
(i) for every 5% change in our estimate of the future average claim size or every 5% change in our estimate of
the future clairn rate with respect to the December 31, 2004 reserve for losses and LAE, the effect on pre-tax
incomie'would be an'increase or decrease of approximately $17 million; (ii) for every 5% change in our estimate
of the future. cost of claims settlement as of the December 31, 2004, the effect on pre-tax income would be
approx1mate]y $1 milhon ‘

"These sensitivities are hypothetical and should be viewed in that light. For example, the relationship of a
change 'in' assumption relating to future average claim size, claim rate or cost of claims settlement to the change
in value may not be linear. Also, the effect of a variation in a particular assumption on the value of the loss and
LAE reserves.is calculated without changing any other assumption. Changes in one factor may result in changes
in another which might magnify or counteract the sensitivities. Changes in factors such as persistency or cure
rates can also affect the actual losses incurred. To the extent persistency increases and assuming all other
variables remain constant the absolute dollars of claims paid will increase as insurance in force will remain in
p]ace longer, thereby generating a higher potential for future incidences of loss. Conversely, if persistency were
to decline, absolute: claim payments would decline. In addition, changes in cure rates would positively or
negatively affect total losses if rates increases or decreased, respectively.

Internatwnal Operanons——PMI Australia’s reserves for, losses and LAE are based upon estimated unpaid
losses and LAE on reported defaults and estimated defaults incurred but not reported. The key assumptions we
use to derive PMI Australia’s loss and LAE reserves include estimates of PMI Australia’s expected claim rates,
average- c]aim sizes, claims handling expenses and net expected future claim recoveries. These assumptions are
evaluated in hght of the same factors used by PMI. As of December 31, 2004, the actuarial range for PMI
Australia’s reserves for losses and LAE ranged from $6.7 million to $9.3 million. As of December 31, 2004, PMI
Australia’ s reserves for losses and LAE were $9.8 million, which represented our best estimate and a decrease of
$0.4 million’ from PMI Australia’s reserve balance of $10.2 million at December 31, 2003. The $0.4 million
reduction-in. PMI Australia’s reserves for losses and LAE since December 31, 2003 was due primarily to the
release of reserves as a result of favorable economic conditions and claims experience. In recording reserves in
Australia siigh‘tly‘ above the high end of the actuarial range of loss, we were influenced in part by our belief that
the recent extremely low loss rates experienced by PMI Australia are not sustainable in the future as its current
loans in default ultimately go to claim. We also place significant emphasis on interest rate forecasts which
indicate future rate increases. Additionally, we expect on an on-going basis to record reserves above the actuarial
midpoint dug to -AqStralian insurance regulations requiring higher confidence levels for reserve balances.

Our actuaries calculated a range for PMI Europe’s loss reserves at December 31, 2004 of $8.2 million to
$29.3 million“ PMI Europe’s loss reserves at December 31, 2004 were $16.4 million, which represented
management s best estimate and an increase of $4.3 million from December 31, 2003. The increase in reserves
over 2003 was due primarily to credit default swaps accounted for under insurance accounting. PMI Europe
establishes loss resérves for all of its insurance and reinsurance business and for credit default swap transactions
consummated before July 1, 2003. Revenue, losses and other expenses associated with credit default swaps
executed on’ or aftér July 1, 2003 are recognized through a derivative accounting treatment. PMI Europe’s loss
reserving methodology contains two components: case reserves and IBNR reserves. Case and IBNR reserves are
based upon factors which include, but are not limited to, our analysis of arrears and loss payment reports, loss
assumptions deri‘ved‘ from pricing analyses, our view of current and. future economic conditions and industry
information.
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The following table shows a breakdown of International Operations’ loss and LAE reserves for the years
ended:

2004 2003
(In thousands)
Loansindefault . ... ... . $14,912 $11,049
Incurred but not reported . .. ... .ot e 9,964 9,607
Costtosettleclaims (LAE) . ... .o e e 1,348 1,018
Total 10ss and LAE 1€8eIVeS . . vt v it e it e e e e $26,224 $21,674

The following table provides a reconciliation of our International Operations segment’s beginning and
ending reserves for losses and LAE for each of the last three years:

2004 2003 2002

(In millions)
Balance at January 1, ...... ..o, DI $217 $17.8 $144
Reinsurance recoverables .. ... ... e e — — —
Netbalance atJanuary 1, . ... ... i i e e 21.7 17.8 144
Losses and LAE incurred (principally with respect to defaults occurring in):
CUITENE YBAT . o vt e et e ettt ie et e e et et e e et 9.3 98 111
Prior years () . Lo e e e (5.2) (154) (3.5
Totalincurred ... ...t 4.1 5.6) 76
Losses and LAE payments (principally with respect to defaults occurring in):
CUITENE VAT . oottt e e e 0.5 (©6) 1.5
PrOr YoarS . . vttt e 14 @7 @44
Total payments . ... ... it e (1.9) 33 (59
Acquisitions of insurance portfolio and wholly-owned subsidiary .................. — A
Foreign currency translations . ............. ...ttt e 1.3 4.9 1.7
Net balance at December 31, ... . it e 25.2 21.7 178
Reinsurance recoverables . ... ... .. e 1.0 — —
Balance at December 31, ... . $262 $21.7 $17.8

(1) The reductions in losses and LAE incurred relating to prior years of $3.2 million, $15.4 million and $3.5 million in 2004, 2003 and 2002,
respectively, were primarily due to favorable development of actual claim amounts and adjustments to ultimate claim rates due to the
strong housing appreciation and overall economic conditions experienced in Australia over the last three years.

Investment Securities

Other-Than-Temporary Impairment—We have a formal committee review process for all securities in our
investment portfolio, including a review for impairment losses. Factors considered when assessing impairment
include:

» a decline in the market value of a security below cost or amortized cost for a continuous period of at
least six months;

» the severity and nature of the decline in market value below cost regardless of the duration of the
decline;

« recent credit downgrades of the applicable security or the issuer by the rating agencies;
» the financial condition of the applicable issuer;

»  whether scheduled interest payments are past due; and
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* whether we have the ability and intent to hold the security for a sufficient period of time to allow for
anticipated recoveries in fair value.

If we believe alldecline in the value of a particular investment is temporary and we have the ability and intent
to hold to recovery, we record the decline as an unrealized loss on our consolidated balance sheet under
“accumulated other comprehenswe income” in shareholder’s equity. If we believe the decline is other-than-
temporary, we write-down the carrying value of the investment and record a realized loss in our consolidated
statement of operations under “net realized investment gains”. Our assessment of a decline in value includes
management’s current assessment of the factors noted above. If that assessment changes in the future, we may
ultimately record a loss after having originally concluded that the decline in value was temporary. Other-than-
temporary declines in the falr value of the investment portfolio were $0.2 million in 2004 and $0.3 million in
2003 ‘

The' followmg table shows our investments’ gross unrealized losses and fair value, aggregated by investment
category and length of time that individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position, at
December 31, 2004.

Less Than 12 Months 12 Months or More Total
' Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
Value " Losses Value Losses Value Losses

‘ , (In thousands)
Fixed income securities:

U.Ss. municipal bonds ........ ... $18,195 $ (345) § — $— $ 18,195 § (345)
Foreign goverﬁments J 5215 (29) 18,930 (231) 24,145 (260)
Corporate bonds .................. 122,416 (1,693) 28,639 (736) 151,055 (2,429)
Us. govemment and agencies ...... 243 (2) 48 ) © 291 3)
, 'Total fixed income securities . . . 146,069 (2,069) 47,617 (968) 193,686 (3,037)

Equity securities:
Common stocks .................... . 3,286 (240) . 399 (10) 3,685 (250)
Preferred stocks ool e 27,077 479) — — 27,077 479)
Total equity securities ........... 30,363 (719) 399 (10) 30,762 (729)
Short-term inyésﬁqents R 98,204  (1,796) — —_ 98,204  (1,796)
" Total .... e $274,636  $(4,584) $48,016 $(978) $322,652 $(5,562)

Unrealized losses related to fixed income securities were primarily due to an increase in interest rates during
2004. They are not con51dered to be other-than- temporanly impaired as we have the intent and ability to hold the
investments until they recover in value or mature. The remaining unrealized losses do not meet the criteria
estabhshed in our policy and as such are not considered impaired.

The following table provides the composition of fixed income securities with an unrealized loss at
December 31, 2004 in relation to the total of all fixed income securities with an unrealized loss by contractual
maturities.

Percent of Percentof Number

Market Unrealized of

: Value Loss Items
DUe i ONE YEAr OFJESS v vt o e et e . 4.8% 0.2% 6
Due after one year through five years .. .......... .. i, 54.4% 46.1% 32
Due after five years throughtenyears ......................... e 246% '282% 9
Due after ten years .. ...........ooouiii i L. 16.2% 25.5% 11

Total fixed mcome securmes ..................... P ceaeen 100.0% 1006.0% §§




Revenue Recognition

We generate a significant portion of our revenues from mortgage insurance premiums on either a monthly,
annual or single payment basis. Premiums written on a monthly basis are earned as coverage is provided.
Premiums written on an annual basis are earned on a monthly pro-rata basis over the year of coverage. Primary
mortgage insurance premiums written on policies covering more than one year are referred to as single
premiums. A portion of revenue on single premiums is recognized in premiums earned in the current period, and
the remaining portion is deferred as unearned premiums and earned over the expected life of the policy. If single
premium policies related to insured loans are cancelled due to repayment by the borrower, and the premium is
non-refundable, then the remaining unearned premium related to each cancelled policy is recognized to earned
premiums upon notification of the cancellation. The earning cycle for single premium products is based on a
range of seven to fifteen years, and the rates used to determine the earnings of single premiums are estimates
based on actuarial analysis of the expiration of risk. Single premiums written accounted for 19.0% and 27.8% of
gross premiums written from mortgage insurance in 2004 and 2003, respectively, and come predominantly from
PMI Australia in our International Operations segment with the exception of a large single premium policy
written in the fourth quarter of 2003 in our U.S. Mortgage Insurance Operations segment. The premium earnings
process generally begins upon receipt of the initial premium payment. The earnings pattern calculation is an
estimation process and, accordingly, we review the premium earnings cycle for each policy acquisition year
(“Book Year”) annually and any adjustments to the estimates are reflected to each Book Year as appropriate.

Deferred Policy Acquisition Costs

Our policy acquisition costs are those costs that vary with, and are primarily related to, our acquisition,
underwriting and processing of new mortgage insurance policies, including contract underwriting and sales
related activities. To the extent that we are compensated by customers for contract underwriting, those
underwriting costs are not deferred. We defer policy acquisition costs when incurred and amortize these costs in
proportion to estimated gross profits for each policy year by type of insurance contract (i.e. monthly, annual and
single premium). The amortization estimates for each underwriting year are monitored regularly to reflect actual
experience and any changes to persistency or loss development by type of insurance contract. The rate of
amortization is not adjusted for monthly and annual policy cancellations unless it is determined that the policy
cancellations are of such magnitude that the recoverability of the deferred costs is not probable. Generally, in
order for policy cancellations to create an impairment of policy acquisition costs related to our monthly and
annual products, we estimate that, due principally to scheduled amortization, our annual cancellation rate would
need to exceed 60% before it would become probable that deferred policy costs associated with PMI’s monthly
and annual premium policies would not be recoverable. Since 1993, PMI’s highest annual cancellation rate was
56% which occurred in 2003. No impairment for monthly or annual policies was recognized for that year. The
deferred costs related to single premium policies are adjusted as appropriate for policy cancellations to be
consistent with our revenue recognition policy. We review our estimation process, specifically related to single
premium policies, on a regular basis and any adjustments made to the estimates are reflected in the current
period’s consolidated net income. Deferred policy acquisition costs are reviewed periodically to determine that
they do not exceed recoverable amounts, after considering investment income.

Impairment Analysis of Investments in Unconsolidated Subsidiaries

Periodically, or as events dictate, we evaluate potential impairment of our investments in unconsolidated
subsidiaries. Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinion No. 18, The Equity Method of Accounting for
Investments in Common Stock, provides criteria for determining potential impairment. In the event a loss in value
of an investment is determined to be an other-than-temporary decline, an impairment charge would be recognized
in our consolidated statement of operations. Evidence of a loss in value that could indicate impairment might
include, but would not necessarily be limited to, the absence of an ability to recover the carrying amount of the
investment or the inability of the investee to sustain an earnings capacity which would justify the carrying
amount of the investment. Realized gains or losses resulting from the sale of our ownership interests of
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unconsQlidated subsidiaries are recognized in net realized investment gains or losses in the consolidated
statement of operations. .

As of December 31; 2004, our total investment in SPS was $126.2 million and consisted of $109.5 million
book value of ‘ou‘r equity investment and $16.7 million of related party receivables which are presently current.
Included in the $109.5 million carrying value of SPS is a $6.5 million: component of goodwill which represents
the excess of our Cost.basis over our ownership percentage of SPS’s net book value as of December 31, 2004.
Pursuant to the Summary of Terms with CSFB- described above, the remaining balance of our $16.7 million
related party receivable will be payable in full at closing if CSFB exercises its option to purchase our shares in
SPS. In:the event CSFB exercises its option, we expect, based on December 31, 2004 book values, to receive
$69.7 million:in cash at cl’oSing exclusive of our related party receivable. The remaining carrying value of SPS of
$39.8 million would be received over time through 2007 with cash flows generated from certain mortgage
servicing assets held by SPS. To the extent the net book value of SPS changes prior to CSFB exercising its option
or the carrying Valué‘bf SPS changes post-closing; the above cash flows could increase or decrease.
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RISK FACTORS

If the volume of low down payment home mortgage originations declines or if the number of mortgage loans
originated that may be purchased by the GSEs declines, the amount of insurance that PMI writes could
decrease, which could result in a decrease our future revenue.

A decline in the volume of low down payment mortgage originations could reduce the demand for private
mortgage insurance and consequently, our revenues. The volume of low down payment mortgage originations is
affected by, among other factors: the level of home mortgage interest rates; domestic economy and regional
economic conditions; consumer confidence; housing affordability; the rate of household formation; the rate of
home price appreciation, which in times of heavy refinancing affects whether refinance loans have loan-to-value
ratios that require private mortgage insurance; and government housing policy.

The GSEs are the principal beneficiaries of PMI’s mortgage insurance policies and a decline in the number
of low down payment mortgage loans originated that are purchased or securitized by the GSEs could adversely
affect PMI’s revenues. The GSEs’ loss of market share in 2004 was due in part to a higher percentage of ARMs,
loans with interest only payments and less-than-A quality loans originated in 2004 compared to 2003. Such loans
are generally either retained by loan originators and not sold to the GSEs or are placed in mortgage-backed
securities that are privately issued and not guaranteed by the GSEs.

If interest rates decline, home values increase or morigage insurance cancellation requirements change, the
length of time that PMD’s policies remain in force and our revenues could decline.

A significant percentage of the premiums PMI earns, each year is generated from insurance policies written
in previous years. As a result, a decrease in the length of time that PMI’s policies remain in force could cause our
revenues to decline. Factors that lead to borrowers canceling their mortgage insurance include: current mortgage
interest rates falling below the rates on the mortgages underlying PMI’s insurance in force, which frequently
results in borrowers refinancing their mortgages; and appreciation in the values of the homes underlying the
mortgages PMI insures.

If mortgage lenders and investors select alternatives to private mortgage insurance, such as piggyback loans,
the amount of insurance that PMI writes could decline, which could reduce our revenues and profits.

Mortgage lenders have been increasingly structuring mortgage originations to avoid private mortgage
insurance, primarily through the use of piggyback, 80/10/10 or 80/20 loans. Such mortgages are structured to
include a first mortgage with an 80% loan-to-value ratio and a second mortgage with a loan-to-value ratio
ranging from 10% to 20%. Over the past several years, the volume of these loans, or variations thereof, as
alternatives to loans requiring mortgage insurance, has increased significantly and may continue to do so for the
foreseeable future.

Other alternatives to private mortgage insurance include:

* government mortgage insurance programs, including those of the Federal Housing Administration, or
FHA, and the Veterans Administration, or VA,

* member institutions providing credit enhancement on loans sold to a Federal Home Loan Bank, or
FHLB;

* lenders and investors holding mortgages in their portfolios and self-insuring;

* mortgage lenders maintaining lender recourse or participation with respect to loans sold to the GSEs;
and

* investors using credit enhancements as a partial or complete substitute to private mortgage insurance.

These alternatives, or new alternatives to private mortgage insurance that may develop, could reduce the
demand for private mortgage insurance and cause our revenues and profitability to decline.
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Although the FHLBs are not required to purchase insurance for mortgage loans, they currently use mortgage
insurance on substantially all mortgage loans with a loan-to-value ratio above 80%. If the FHLBs were to
purchase uninsured. mortgage loans or increase the loan-to-value ratio threshold above which they require
mortgage i 1nsurance the market for mortgage insurance could decrease, and we could be adversely affected.

The risk- based capital rule applicable to the GSEs may allow large financial entities such as banks, financial
guarantors, insurance companies and brokerage firms to provide or arrange for products that may efficiently
substltute for some of the capital relief provided to the GSEs by private mortgage insurance. Our consolidated
financial condition and results of operations could be harmed if the GSEs were to use these products in lieu of
mortgage insurance. See also “Legislation and regulatory changes, including changes impacting the GSEs, could
significantly affect PMI’s business and could reduce demand for private mortgage insurance” and “The
implementation of new eligibility guidelines adopted by Fannie Mae could harm our profitability and reduce our
operanonal ﬂexlbzlzty, below

\ ',
"

PMI reinsures a portwn of its mortgage insurance default nsk with lender-afﬁlmted captive reinsurance
compames, wklch reduces PMPI’s net premiums written.

An mcreasmg percemage of PMI’s insurance in force has been generated by customers w1th captive
remsurance _companies, and we expect that this trend will continue. Because a number of our major customers
have made the business decision to participate in the mortgage business by-establishing reinsurance companies,
we beheve that if PMI did not offer captive reinsurance agreements, PMI’s. competitive position would suffer.
Captive remsurance agreements negatively impact PMI's net premiums written, and negatively impact the yield
that we obtam on net premlums earned for customers w1th capuve reinsurance agreements.

Economlc factors have adversely affected and may continue to adversely ‘affect PMI’s loss experience.

PMI s loss expenence has increased over the past year and could continue to increase as a result of: national
or regional economic recessions; declining:.values of homes; higher unemployment rates; higher levels of
consumer credlt detenoratlng borrower credit; 1nterest Tate.volatility; war or terrorist-activity; or other economic
factors.. ; .

PMI’s loss expertence may increase as PMI s policies continue to age.

We expect the majonty of claims on insured loans in PMI’s current portfolio to occur during the second
through the fourth yéars after loan origination. Primary insurance written from the period of January 1, 2001
through December 31, 2003 represented 57.8% of PMI’s primary risk in force as of December 31, 2004.
Accordingly, a s1gn1ﬁcant majority of PMI’s primary portfolio is in, or approaching, its peak claim years. In
addition, PMI’s 2003 book of business represents 36.1% of its insurance in force as December 31, 2004 and we
believe that it will enter its peak claim year in 2005 with some continued impact in 2006. We believe PMI’s loss
experience may increase las PMI’s policies age. If the claim frequency on PMI’s risk in force significantly
exceeds: the claim. frequency that was assumed in setting PMI's premium rates, our consolidated financial
condition and results of operations would be harmed. ‘

Since PMI générally‘ cannot cancel mortgage insurance policies or adjust renewal premiums, unanticipated
claims could cause our financial perfarmance to suffer.

PMI generally cannot cancel the mortgage insurance coverage that it prov1des or adjust renewal premiums
during the life of a mortgage insurance policy. As a result, the impact of unanticipated claims generally cannot be
offset by: premium increases on policies in force or limited by non-renewal or cancellation of insurance coverage.
The premiums; PMI charges may not be adequate to compensate us-for the risks and costs associated with the
insurance coverage prov1ded to PMI’s customers.” An increase in the number or size of unanticipated claims
could adversely affect our consohdated financial condition and results of operations.
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Concentration of PMI’s primary insurance in force could increase claims and losses and harm our financial
performance.

We could be affected by economic downturns in specific regions of the United States where a large portion
of PMI’s business is concentrated. As of December 31, 2004, 10.0% of PMI’s primary risk in force was located
in Florida, 7.2% was located in Texas and 6.8% was located in California. In addition, refinancing of mortgage
loans can have the effect of concentrating PMI’s insurance in force in economically weaker areas of the U.S. As
of December 31, 2004, 16.4% of PMTI’s policies in force related to loans located in Wisconsin, Michigan, Illinois,
Indiana and Ohio. Collectively these states experienced higher default rates in 2004 than other regions of the U.S.

The premiums PMI charges for mortgage insurance on less-than-A quality loans and Alt-A loans, and the
associated investment income, may not be adequate to compensate for future losses from these products.

PMI’s insurance written includes less-than-A quality loans and Alt-A loans. The credit quality, loss
development and persistency on these loans can vary significantly from PMI’s traditional A quality loan
business. For example, PMI’s primary bulk portfolio is experiencing higher delinquency and claims rates, and
higher average claims paid amounts, than PMI’s primary flow portfolios due, in part, to the higher concentration
of less-than-A quality and Alt-A loans in the bulk portfolio. We expect that PMI will continue to experience
higher default rates for less-than-A quality and Alt-A loans than for its A quality loans. We cannot be sure that
the premiums that PMI charges on less-than-A quality loans and Alt-A loans will adequately offset the associated
risk.

PMT’s primary risk in force includes mortgage loans with high loan-to-value ratios and adjustable rate
mortgages, which generally result in more claims than mortgage loans with lower loan-to-value ratios and
fixed rate mortgages.

In our experience, mortgage loans with high loan-to-value ratios have higher claims frequency rates than
mortgages with lower loan-to-value ratios. At December 31, 2004, 54.9% of PMI's primary risk in force
consisted of mortgages with loan-to-value ratios greater than 90%. Risk in force is the dollar amount equal to the
product of each individual insured mortgage loan’s principal balance and the percentage specified in the
insurance policy of the claim amount that would be payable if a claim were made.

Also as of December 31, 2004, 14.5% of PMI’s primary risk in force consisted of adjustable rate mortgages,
which we refer 10 as ARMs. In our experience, ARMs have claims frequency rates that exceed the rates
associated with PMI’s book of business as a whole. We cannot be sure that the premiums that PMI charges will
adequately offset the associated risk of higher loan-to-value loans and ARMs.

Our loss reserves may be insufficient to cover claims paid and loss-related expenses incurred.

We establish loss reserves to recognize the liability for unpaid losses related to insurance in force on
mortgages that are in default. These loss reserves are regularly reviewed and are based upon our estimates of the
claim rate and average claim amounts, as well as the estimated costs, including legal and other fees, of settling
claims. Any adjustments, which may be material, resulting from these reviews are reflected in our consolidated
results of operations. Our consolidated financial condition and results of operations could be harmed if our
reserve estimates are insufficient to cover the actual related ciaims paid and loss-related expenses incurred.

PMI delegates underwriting authority to mortgage lenders which could cause PMI to insure mortgage loans
outside of its underwriting guidelines, and thereby increase claims and losses.

A significant percentage of PMI's new insurance written is underwritten pursuant to a delegated
underwriting program under which certain mortgage lenders may determine whether mortgage loans meet PMI’s
program guidelines and commit us to issue mortgage insurance. We may expand the availability of delegated
underwriting to additional customers. If an approved lender commits us to insure a mortgage loan, PMI generally
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may not refuse, except il limited circumstances, to insure, or rescind coverage on, that loan even if it reevaluates
that loan’s nsk profile and determines the risk profile to be unacceptable or the lender fails to follow PMI’s
delegated underwntmg gurdelmes

Ifwe fall to properly underwrite mortgage loans when we provide contiact underwntzng services, we may be
required to provzde monetary and other remedies to the customer In addlnon, we may not be able to recruit a
sufﬁczent number dof qualified underwriting personnel. )

Our subsidiary MSC provides contract underwriting services for a fee As a part of the contract underwriting
services, MSC provides monetary and other remedies to its ‘customers in the event that it fails to properly
underwrite a mortgage loan. As a result, we assume credit and, to a lesser extent, interest rate risk in connection
with our contract underwriting services. Generally, the scope of the remedies provided by MSC is in addition to
those contained in PMI’s master policies. Contract underwriting services. apply to a significant percentage of
PMI’s insurance in force and the costs relating to the investigation and/or provision of remedies could have a
material adverse effect on our consolidated financial condition and results of operations. Worsening economic
conditions or other factors that could increase PMI's default rate could also cause the number and severity of
remedies 1o rncrease

The number of avallable and qualified underwntrng personnel is limited, and there is heavy price
competmon among mortgage insurance companies for such: personnel. MSC’s inability to recruit and maintain a
sufficient number of quahfred underwriters at a low cost could harm our consolidated financial condition and
results of operatrons

.

Our revenues and prof its could decline if PMI loses market share as a result of industry competition or if our
campenave posztzon suffers as a result of our inability to introduce and successfully market new products and
programs. : -

The pri‘ncipzil“ sources of PMI's competition include: other private mortgage insurers, some of which are
wholly-owned or partially-owned subsidiaries of well-capitalized, diversified public companies with direct or
indirect capital reserves that provide them with potentially greater resources than we have; and alternatives to
pnvate mortgage insurance discussed above.

If PMI 18 unable to compete  successfully agarnst other insurers or private mortgage insurance alternatives or
if we experience delays'in introducing competitive new products and programs or if these products or programs
are less profitable than our existing products and programs, our business will suffer.

The risk- based capttal rule issued by the Office of Federal Housing Enterprise Oversight could require us to
obtain a clalms-paymg abzllty rating of “AAA” and could cause PMI’s business to suffer.

The Offlce of Federal Housing Enterprise Oversight, or OFHEQ, has issued a risk-based capital rule that
treats credit’ enhancements issued by private mortgage 1nsurance companres with claims-paying ability ratings of
“AAA™ more favorably than those issued by private mortgage insurance companies with “AA” ratings. PMI
Mortgage Insurance Co. has been assigned financial strength ratings of “AA” by S&P, “AA+” by Fitch and
“Aa2” by Moody s! The rule also provides capital guldehnes for Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac, or the GSEs, in
connecuon with therr use of other types of credit protection counterpartles in addition to mortgage insurers.
AlthouOh it has not occurred to date, if the rule resulted in the GSEs increasing their use of either “AAA” rated
mortgage insurers. 1nstead of “AA” rated entities or credit protection counterparties other than mortgage insurers,
our consolldated fmancral condltlon and results of operanons could be adversely affected.

Legislation and regulatoiy changes, including changes impacting the GSEs, could signiﬁcantly affect PMD’s
business and could reduce demand for private mortgage insurance.

Mortgage ongmatron transactions- are subject to compliance with various federal and state consumer
protection laws, ‘1nclud1ng the Real Estate Settlement Procedures Act of 1974, or RESPA, the Equal Credit
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Opportunity Act, the Fair Housing Act, the Homeowners Protection Act, the Fair Credit Reporting Act, the Fair
Debt Collection Practices Act and others. Among other things, these laws prohibit payments for referrals of
settlement service business, require fairness and non-discrimination in granting or facilitating the granting of
credit, require cancellation of insurance and refunding of unearned premiums under certain circumstances,
govern the circumstances under which companies may obtain and use consumer credit information, and define
the manner in which companies may pursue collection activities. Changes in these laws or regulations could
adversely affect the operations and profitability of our mortgage insurance business. (See “The U.S. mortgage
insurance industry and PMI are subject to litigation and regulatory risk” below.)

Congress is currently considering proposed legislation relating to the regulatory oversight of the GSEs, their
affordable housing initiatives, the GSEs’' products and marketing activities, the GSEs’ minimum capital
standards, and their risk-based capital requirements. If adopted in its present form, OFHEO would be replaced by
a new federal agency, the Federal Housing Enterprise Regulatory Agency, and its director would be given
significant authority over the GSEs including, among other things, oversight of the prudential operations of the
GSEs, capital adequacy and internal controls and new program approval. The proposed legislation encompasses
substantially all of the operations of the GSEs and is intended to be a comprehensive overhaul of the existing
regulatory structure. The proposed legislation could limit the growth of the GSEs, which could result in a
reduction in the size of the mortgage insurance market. We do not know what form, if any, such legislation will
take, if any, or, if it is enacted, its impact, if any, on our financial condition and results of operations.

) N 'iC\ B

In July 2002, HUD proposed a rule under RESPA that, if implemented as proposed, would have, among
other things, given lenders and other packagers the option of offering a Guaranteed Mortgage Package, or GMP,
or providing a good faith estimate of settlement costs subject to a 10% tolerance level. The proposed rule
provided that qualifying packages were entitled to a “safe harbor” from litigation under RESPA'’s anti-kickback
rules. Mortgage insurance would have been included in the package to the extent an upfront premium is charged.
Inclusion in the package could have caused mortgage insurers to experience reductions in the prices of their
services or products. HUD withdrew that proposed rule in March 2004. In late 2004, HUD announced that it will
submit a new proposed rule under RESPA to the Office of Management and Budget for review. We do not know
what form, if any, the rule will take and whether it will be approved.

In addition, increases in the maximum loan amount or other features of the FHA mortgage insurance
program can reduce the demand for private mortgage insurance. Future legislative and regulatory actions could
decrease the demand for private mortgage insurance, Wthh could harm our consolidated financial condition and
results of operations.

PMI could lose premium revenue if the GSEs reduce the level of private mortgage insurance coverage
required for low down payment mortgages or reduce their need for mortgage insurance.

The GSEs are the beneficiaries on a substantial majority of the insurance policies we issue as a result of
their purchases of home loans from lenders or investors. The GSEs offer programs that require less mortgage
insurance coverage on mortgages approved by their automated underwriting systems. In the past Freddie Mac
and Fannie Mae have indicated their intent to reduce their use or required level of mortgage insurance. If the
reduction in required levels of mortgage insurance becomes widely accepted by mortgage lenders, or if the GSEs
further reduce mortgage insurance coverage requirements for loans they purchase, PMI's premium revenue
would decline and our consolidated financial condition and results of operations could suffer.

Products introduced by the GSEs, if widely accepted, could harm our profitability.

The GSEs have products for which they will, upon receipt from lenders of loans with primary insurance,
restructure the mortgage insurance coverage by reducing the amount of primary insurance coverage and adding a
second layer of insurance coverage, usually in the form of pool insurance. Under these programs, the GSEs may
provide services to the mortgage insurer and the mortgage insurer may be required to pay fees to the GSEs for
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the beneﬁts prov1ded through the reduced insurance coverage or the services provided. These new products may
harm PMI’s trad1t1ona1 mortgage insurance business and, if they beconie widely accepted, could prove to be less
proﬁtable to our consohdated financial condltlon and results of 0perat1ons

R

Lobbymg acttvmes by large mortgage lenders callmg for expanded federal overszght and legislation relating to
the role of the GSEs'in the secondary mortgage market could damage PMI ’s relatwnsths with those
mortgage lenders ‘and the GSEs. ‘

The GSEs, mortgage lenders and PMI ]omtly develop and make avatlable various products and programs.
These arrangements involve the purchase of PMI's mortgage insurance products and frequently feature
cooperatlve arrangements between the parties. FM Policy Focus, a lobbying organization representing financial
services. and: housmg -telated trade associations, 1nclud1ng the Mortgage Insurance Companies of America,
supports 1ncreased federal oversight of the GSEs. The GSEs have criticized the activities of FM Policy Focus.
FM Pohcy Focus the GSEs and other groups are engaged in extensive lobbying activities with respect to the
legrslatron pendmg in Congress that would change the way GSEs are. regulated. These activities could polarize
Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac members of FM Policy Focus, PMI’s customers and us. Any such polarization could
limit PMI's opportunities to do business with the GSEs as. well as with some. mortgage lenders. Either of these
outcomes could harm our consolidated financial condition and results of operations.

The tmplementaaon of new elzgtbzltty guidelines adopted by Fanme Mae could harm our proﬁtabzltty and
reduce our operatwnal Sflexibility. :

Fanni¢ Mae has- revised its approval requirements for: mortgage 1nsurers mcludmg PMI, with new
guldehnes for borrower—pald and lender- paid mortgage insurance. These requirements became effective for PMI
on January 1, 2005. The guidelines cover substantially all areas of PMI’s mhortgage insurance operations, require
the disclosuré ‘of certam activities and new products give Fannie Mae the right to purchase mortgage insurance
from other: than existing approved mortgage insurers, including insurérs that are either rated below “AA” or are
unrated, and prov1de Fannie Mae with increased rights to revise the eligibility standards of insurers. We do not
know how Fannie Mae will enforce the terms of the guidelines, especially in those areas in which it has retained
srgmﬁcant dlSCl‘CthIl such as the right to approve mortgage insurers with lesser qualifications, and to purchase
mortgage 1nsurance or other credit enhancements directly from entities not subject to the guidelines. Depending
on how theguldehnes are unplemented our operational ﬂex1b1hty as’ Well as our proﬁtabrhty could suffer.

Ho

Our busmess and ﬁnancml performance could suffer if PMI were to lose the business of a major customer.

Through thelr variots origination channels, PMI’s top ten customers accounted for 42.0% of PMI's
prermums -eamed in 2004. A single customer represented 8.3% of PMI's earned premiums in 2004. Mortgage
insurers, 1nclud1ng PMI, may acquire significarit percentages of their busmess through negotiated transactions
(including bulk primary insurance, modified pool insurance and captive reinsurance) with a limited number of
customers, -The loss. of a srgmftcant customer could reduce our revenue, and if not replaced, harm our
consolidated ﬁnanc1al condition and results of operatlons »

' |
oy

The U S : mortgage insurance industry and PMI are subject\ to litigation and regulatory risk.

The mortgage insurance industry and PMI face lrtrgatlon and regulatory rtsk in the ordinary course of
operations, 1nc1ud1ng the risk of class action lawsults Consumers are brlnomg a growing number of lawsuits
against home mortgage lenders and settlement service prov1ders and in recent years mortgage insurers, including
PMI, have been involved in litigation alleging violations of the Real Estate Settlement Procedures Act, or
RESPA,: and‘ the Fair Credit Reporting. Act. In-the future, PMI could become subject to class actions and
individual suits and plaintiffs in such lawsuits could seek large or 1ndeternunate amounts, including punitive
damages whrch may remdin unknown for substant1a1 pertods of time.

PMI and; the ' mortgage insurance industry are subject to comprehenSive, detailed regulation by state
insurance ‘departments.. Although their scope varies, state insurance laws generally grant broad powers to
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supervisory agencies and officials to examine and investigate insurance companies and to enforce rules or
exercise discretion touching almost every aspect of PMI's business. Recently, the insurance industry has become
the focus of increased scrutiny by regulatory and law enforcement authorities concerning certain practices.
Increased federal or state regulatory scrutiny could lead to new legal precedents, new regulations or new
practices, or regulatory actions or investigations, that could adversely affect PMI’s business and its financial
condition and results of operation.

We could be adversely affected by legal actions under RESPA.

RESPA precludes PMI from providing services or products to mortgage lenders free of charge, charging
fees for services that are lower than their reasonable or fair market value, and paying fees for services that others
provide that are higher than their reasonable or fair market value, in exchange for the referral of settlement
services. A number of lawsuits have challenged the actions of private mortgage insurers, including PMI, under
RESPA, alleging that the insurers have provided products or services at improperly reduced prices in return for
the referral of mortgage insurance. We cannot predict whether civil, regulatory or criminal actions might be
brought against us or other mortgage insurers.. Any such proceedings could have an adverse effect on our
consolidated financial condition and results of operations.

A downgrade of PMD’s insurer financial strength ratings could materially harm our financial performance.

PMI’s insurer financial strength is currently rated “AA” by S&P, “Aa2” by Moody’s, and “AA+” by Fitch.
These ratings may be revised or withdrawn at any time by one or more of the rating agencies and are based on
factors relevant to PMI’s policyholders and are not applicable to our common stock or debt. The rating agencies
could lower or withdraw our ratings at any time as a result of a number of factors, including: underwriting or
investment losses; the necessity to make capital contributions to our subsidiaries pursuant to capital support
agreements; other developments negatively affecting PMI’s risk-to-capital ratio, financial condition or results of
operations; or changes in the views or modeling of rating agencies of our risk profile or of the mortgage
insurance industry.

If PMI’s insurer financial strength rating falls below “AA-" from S&P or “Aa3” from Moody’s, investors,
including Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac, may not purchase mortgages insured by PMI. Such a downgrade could
also negatively affect our holding company ratings or the ratings of our other licensed insurance subsidiaries or
our ability to further implement our strategic diversification program. Any of these events would harm our
consolidated financial condition and results of operations.

Our ongoing ability to pay dividends to our shareholders and meet our obligations primarily depends upon the
receipt of dividends and returns of capital from our insurance subsidiaries.

We are a holding company and conduct all of our business operations through our subsidiaries. Our
principal sources of funds are dividends from our subsidiaries and funds that may be raised from time to time in
the capital markets. Factors that may affect our ability to maintain and meet our capital and liquidity needs as
well as to pay dividends to our shareholders include: the level and severity of claims experienced by our
insurance subsidiaries; the performance of the financial markets; standards and factors used by various credit
rating agencies; financial covenants in our credit agreements; and standards imposed by state insurance
regulators relating to the payment of dividends by insurance companies.

In addition, a protracted economic downturn, or other factors, could cause issuers of the fixed-income
securities that we, FGIC and RAM Re own to default on principal and interest payments, which could cause our
investment returns and net income to decline and reduce our ability to maintain all of our capital and liquidity
needs. '
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The 1mplementatwn of the Basel II Capital Accord may limit the domestic and international use of mortgage
insurance. . . ‘

- The Basel Commlttee on Banking Superv1sron (BCBS) has published a final proposal for the
implementanon of a new international capital -accord known as Basel 1I. The Basel II provisions related to
residential mortgages and mortgage insurance could alter the competitive positions and financial performance of
mortgage insurance providers. It is expected that that Basel II Capital Accords will be adopted in final form
within the next 12 month_s and that implementation will begln initially in 2007 with full implementation in 2008.

U S.-implementation of Basel II standards for credit risk exposures, mcludmg residential mortgages, is
focused on apphcatlon of the Advanced Internal Rating Based (A-IRB) approach by large internationally active
banking . orgamzatlons U.S. bank supervisors have indicated their intent to recognize the loss mitigating impacts
of private mortgage insurance policies for banking organ1zat10ns computing minimum capital requrrements under
the A- IRB approach ' ‘

The Basel I Caplta] Accords will affect the capital treatment provided to mortgage insurance by domestic
and international ‘banks in both their origination and securitization activities. We expect that the United States,
Europe and Austraha will include the capital recognition of mortgage insurance under Basel II. The Basel II
proposals requrrerhat large banks and others who adopt the more advanced capital guidelines establish their own
capital models and: it is unclear whether those models will affect the demand by those entities for mortgage
insurance. Our results of operation could suffer if demand for our mortgage insurance products was diminished
as a result of suchimodeling or the failure to give appropriate capital recognition to mortgage insurance.

Ifwe are unable to keep pace with the technological demands of our customers or with the technology-related
products and services offered by our competitors, our business and financial performance could be
szgmﬁcantly harmed.

Part1c1pants in the mortgage lending and mortgage insurance industries rely on e- commerce and other
technology to provide and expand their products and services. Our customers generally require that we provide
our products and services electronically via the Internet or electronic data transmission, and the percentage of our
new insurance written and claims processing which is delivered electromcally has increased. We expect this
trend to continue, and accordingly, we believe that it is essential that we continue to invest substantial resources
in mairitaining electronic connectivity with our customers and, moré generally, in e-commerce and technology.
Our business may suffer if we do not keep pace with the technological demands of our customers and the
technological capabilities of our competitors. '

Our mternatwnal msurance subsidiaries sub]ect us to numerous risks associated with international
operatwns

We have sub51d1ar1es in Australia and Europe and a branch offrce in Hong Kong. We have committed and
may in the future commit additional significant resources to expand our international operations. Accordingly, in
addition ro the general economic and insurance business-related factors discussed above, we are subject to a
number of risks associated with our international business activities. These risks include: the need for regulatory
and third party approvals; ‘challenges in attracting and retaining key foreign-based employees, customers and
business partners in international markets; economic downturns in targeted foreign mortgage origination markets;
interest rate Volatlhty in a'variety of countries; unexpected changes in foreign regulations and laws; the burdens
of complying with a wide variety of foreign laws; potentially adverse tax consequences; restrictions on the
repatriation of earnings; foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations; potential increases in the level of defaults
and claims on policies insured by foreign-based subsidiaries; the need to successfully develop and market
products appropriate to' the foreign market, including the development and marketing of credit enhancement
products to European lenders and for mortgage securitizations; and natural disasters and other events (e.g., floods
and toxic contamination) that would damage properties and that could precipitate borrower default.
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PMI Australia, our Australian and New Zealand mortgage insurance operations, is subject to many of the
same risks facing PMI.

Like PMI, the financial results of our Australian and New Zealand mortgage insurance operations, or PMI
Australia, are affected by domestic and regional economic conditions, including movements in interest and
unemployment rates, and property value fluctuations. These economic factors could impact PMI Australia’s loss
experience or the demand for mortgage insurance in the markets PMI Australia serves. PMI Australia is also
subject to significant regulation. Future legislative or regulatory changes could adversely affect PMI Australia.
PMI Australia’s primary regulator, the Australian Prudential Regulation Authority, or APRA, is considering, and
has sought comment on proposals to, among other things, increase the capital requirements for mortgage
insurance companies, eliminate the requirement that mortgage insurers be mono-line insurers, and change the
requirements for acceptable mortgage insurers. APRA’s latest proposals indicate that the capital requirements for
mortgage insurers will be increased. If APRA ultimately determines to increase the amount of capital required
for mortgage insurers, we may, depending on the amount of such increase, be required to increase the capital in
PMI Australia. In addition, APRA’s latest proposals indicate that the monoline requirement will be retained, and
that acceptable mortgage insurers for purposes of capital and risk relief for Australian regulated lenders is a
mortgage insurer that is authorized by APRA or domiciled in a country considered by APRA to have comparable
prudential regulations. APRA has indicated that it will implement the final regulations on October 1, 2005. We
are not able to predict the impact of future regulations on PMI Australia’s competitive position, although the
issuance of final regulations may make it easier for new competitors to enter the Australian market.

PMI Australia is currently rated “AA” by S&P and Fitch and “Aa2” by Moody’s. These ratings are based in
part upon a capital support agreement between PMI and PMI Australia and a guarantee of that agreement by The
PMI Group. Termination or amendment of this support structure could negatively impact PMI Australia’s
ratings. PMI Australia’s business is dependent on maintaining its ratings. Any negative impact on its ratings will
negatively affect its financial results.

PMI Australia’s five largest customers provided 65.2% of PMI Australia’s gross premiums written in 2004
and one of these customers represented the majority of this percentage. PMI Australia’s loss of a significant
customer, if not replaced, could harm PMI Australia’s and our consolidated financial condition and results of
operations. PMI Australia’s insurance in force at December 31, 2004 was $113.6 billion and its risk in force was
$103.1 billion. A significant increase in PMI Australia’s claims could harm our financial condition and results of
operations.

We may not be able to execute our strategy to expand our European operations.

We have devoted resources to expand our European operations, PMI Europe, and we plan to continue these
efforts. The success of our efforts will depend partly upon legislative and regulatory policies in Europe that
support homeownership and provide capital relief for institutions that obtain credit enhancement with respect to
their mortgage loan portfolios. If European legislative and regulatory agencies do not adopt such policies, our
European operations may be adversely affected.

PMI Europe is currently rated “AA” by S&P and Fitch and “Aa3” by Moody’s. These ratings are based in
part upon a capital support agreement between PMI and PMI Europe and a guarantee of that agreement by The
PMI Group. Termination or amendment of this support structure could negatively impact PMI Europe’s ratings.
PMI Europe’s business is dependent on maintaining its ratings. Any negative impact on its ratings will negatively
affect its financial results.

The performance of our unconsolidated strategic investments could harm our consolidated financial results.

We have made significant investments in the equity securities of several privately-held companies,
including FGIC Corporation, the parent of FGIC, a financial guaranty insurer; SPS, the parent of Select Portfolio
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Servicing, a third#pany sérvicer of single-family residential mortgages; and RAM Holdings Ltd. and RAM
Holdings TI L., Wthh are the holding companies for RAM Re, a financial guaranty reinsurance company based
in Bermuda.

Our investments in FGIC Corporation, SPS and RAM Re are accounted for on the equity method of
accounting in our c¢ohsolidated financial statements. The nature of the businesses conducted by these companies
differs significantly from our core business of providing residential mortgage insurance. These companies are
subject to a number of significant risks that arise from the nature of their businesses. Some of the various risks
affecting SPS and FGIC Corporation are discussed below. Because we do not control these companies, we are
dependent upon the management of these companies to independently operate their businesses and, accordingly,
we may be unable to take actions unilaterally to avoid or mitigate those risks.

Investigations by‘regulatory agencies into Select Portfolio Servicing’s activities and private litigation involving
Select Portfolw Servicing could harm its business and adversely affect our investment in SPS.

Select Portfoho Servxcmg s servicing practices have been the subject of investigations by the FTC, HUD,
and the Department . of Justice, as well as putative state and national class actions. In October 2003, the United
States District Court for the District of Massachusetts approved a settlement that resolves the investigations by
the FTC and HUD. ‘I‘n May 2004, the District Court approved a nationwide settlement that resolves claims raised
in approximately '40 putative class action lawsuits. The FTC and HUD settlement provides for the
implementation of a' $40.0 million redress fund and certain changes to Select Portfolio Servicing’s servicing
practices. In addition, SPS has entered into consent orders with eight states under which it has agreed to change
certain of its practices and refund certain amounts to borrowers in those states. Other states could also seek to
require such- refunds or consent orders. SPS continues to be subject to a number of civil lawsuits relating to its
serv1c1ng pract1ces ‘Several of these suits also seek relief from PML.

In June 2003 Fanme Mae found certain business practices at Select Portfolio Servicing to be out of
comphance with a servicing agreement between the parties. Select Portfolio Servicing and Fannie Mae have
agreed that Select Portfoho Servicing will not service any new Fannie Mae-owned loans without the approval of
Fannie Mae. However since June 2003, Fannie Mae has continually renewed Select Portfolio Servicing’s right to
service new Fannie Mae owned loans, initially on a month to month basis and, more recently, in two-month
mtervals

Out mvestment in SPS, and consequently our consolidated financial results, could be negatively impacted
by the: ultlmate resolution of the state regulatory actions and the outstanding litigation. If Select Portfolio
Serv1cmg is requ1red as a result of state regulatory proceedings or litigation to make significant payments or
changes to its. ‘business practices so that it becomes materially more expensive to operate, SPS’s financial
condmon‘and’ resul_ts of ‘operations could be adversely affected. Furthermore, regulatory actions and putative
class actions have generated negative publicity for Select Portfolio Servicing which has caused and may continue
to cause Select Portfolio Servicing to suffer losses in its customer base. These losses could also harm our
investment in SPS.

On January 19 2005 we entered into a Summary of Terms with Credit Suisse First Boston (USA), Inc.
(“CSFB”) that prov1des that CSFB shall have the option, exercisable on or before July 31, 2005 to acquire 100%
of the outstanding capital stock of SPS from PMI and the other shareholders of SPS. Based on the transactions
contemplated by the Summary of Terms, PMI recorded a realized capital loss relating to its investment in SPS of
$20.4 million on a' pre-tax basis, or $13.3 million on an after-tax basis, for the fourth quarter of 2004. As of
December 31, 2004, our total investment balance in SPS was $126.2 million, consisting of $109.5 million book
value of equity investment and $16.7 million in subordinated participation interests and advances to SPS which
are current. Our total investment could become further impaired or uncollectible as a result of the risks involving
SPS, which Would harm our consolidated financial condition and results of operations.
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Pursuant to the Summary of Terms, the parties are currently negotiating a definitive option agreement with
respect to CSFB’s option to acquire the outstanding SPS common stock. While we expect this definitive
agreement to be executed by all parties, we cannot estimate the impact to our financial condition of a failure to
consummate such agreement.

Select Portfolio Servicing has undergone ratings downgrades that have adversely affected its business and any
future downgrade could seriously harm SPS and the value of our investment in SPS.

As a result of ratings downgrades by S&P and Moody’s in 2003, Select Portfolio Servicing was unable to be
named as a primary servicer on newly issued residential mortgage-backed securities, or RMBS, transactions rated
by Moody’s or S&P. Upgrades by Moody’s on April 28, 2004 and S&P on May 7, 2004 from “below average” to
“average” allow Select Portfolio Servicing to be named as a primary servicer on newly issued RMBS
transactions rated by S&P and/or Moody’s. However, several competitors of Select Portfolio Servicing have
servicer ratings that are higher than “average” and this has affected Select Portfolio Servicing’s ability to
profitably acquire new servicing rights. Select Portfolio Servicing’s inability to raise its ratings or future negative
rating agency actions could negatively impact Select Portfolio Servicing and could have a material adverse effect
on Select Portfolio Servicing. Select Portfolio Servicing has a very limited number of customers and losses in
Select Portfolio Servicing’s customer base due to rating agency actions or otherwise could have an adverse effect
on SPS and our investment in SPS.

SPS is highly leveraged and, if it were to lose access to, or default on, its debt facilities, SPS might be unable
to fund its operations or pay its debts as they come due.

SPS is highly leveraged and dependent upon debt facilities with lenders to make servicing and delinquency
advances in the regular course of its business, and for other business purposes. If SPS were to lose access to debt
facilities for any reason, SPS would be unable to continue funding its operations or pay its debts as they become
due. In addition, an event of default under one or more of SPS’s significant debt facilities could accelerate SPS’s
obligation to repay amounts outstanding under its debt facilities and could cause SPS to lose access to funding,
either of which could prevent SPS from continuing to operate. If SPS were to cease operations, the value of our
investment in SPS would be seriously harmed and we might be required to write off our entire investment in
SPS.

As a significant portion of our net income is derived from FGIC and its financial guaranty business, we are
subject to various risks and uncertainties associated with the financial guaranty business.

A significant portion of our net income is derived from FGIC and its financial guaranty business.
Accordingly, we are subject to all the risks and uncertainties associated with that business. In addition, FGIC has
historically operated its financial guaranty business principally in limited portions of the public finance and
structured finance markets. FGIC has expanded its business lines and products into markets and asset classes that
historically have experienced higher default rates than those in which it has historically operated. The risks and
uncertainties to which we will be exposed as a result of the FGIC acquisition include the following, among
others:

» FGIC’s ability to attract new business and to compete with other large, triple-A rated monoline financial
guarantors is largely dependent on the triple-A financial strength ratings assigned to it by the major
rating agencies. FGIC’s current ratings may be lowered or withdrawn at any time by one or more of the
rating agencies. FGIC’s ability to compete or otherwise engage in its business as currently conducted,
and FGIC Corporation’s consolidated results of operations and financial condition, would be materially
and adversely affected by any reduction in FGIC’s ratings or the announcement of a potential reduction
or change in outlook.

»  Prior to 2004, FGIC operated its financial guaranty business principally in limited portions of the public
finance and structured finance markets in the United States. However, in 2004 FGIC began expanding
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" into new . markets and plans to continue its’ expansion, both- domestically and internationally.

Unantlmpated issues may arise in the implementation of FGIC's strategy, which could impair its ability

R 'to, expand its ‘business as expected. In addition, any expansion of its business may be subject to

challenges in attracting and retaining employees with relevant experience, establishing name recognition
in new markets and gaining knowledge of those markets and asset classes. The execution of FGIC’s

, expansron plans could result in it having greater losses than those it has historically expenenced

FGIC is subject to extensive competition from other monoline financial guaranty insurance companies,

* other providers.of third party credit enhancement and providers of alternative transaction structures and
: executions that do not use financial guaranty insurance. We cannot be sure that FGIC will be able to

contmue to compete effectively in its current markets or in any markets or asset classes into which it

. expands

- Demand for ﬁnancral guaranty insurance is constantly changing and is dependent upon a number of

' factors mcludmg changes in interest rates, regulatory changes and supply of bond issues. A general

reductron in demand for financial guaranty insurance could harm FGIC Corporatron s consolidated

‘ results of opérations and business prospects.

" The; financial guaranty business is subject to extensive regulation. Future legislative, regulatory or

judicial' changes affecting the financial guaranty industry or public finance or structured finance

‘markets, including changes in tax laws, could adversely affect FGIC’s business.

. FGIC loss reserves are necessarily based on estimates and subjective judgments about the outcome of

future events. We cannot be sure that losses in FGIC’s insured portfolio will not exceed by a material

amount the loss reserves previously established by FGIC or that additional srgmfrcant reserves will not

" need to be established.

FGIC s structured finance portfolio contains concentrations of individual issuers and servicers of those
obhgatrons as well as a concentration of mortgage-related securities. FGIC also has a number of

" individual large exposures to single obligors in its public finance portfolio, concentration in

infrastructure sectors, and concentrations in certain geographic areas. An adverse event or series of
events with respect to one or more of these concentrations that is more severe than the assumptions used

- by FGIC in its stress scenario at the time of the underwriting of the related credit could result in

disproportionate and significant losses to FGIC dnd could harm its financial position and consolidated
results of operations

FGIC’s exposure to insuring public finance issuers in the transportatlon 1ndustry has experienced
1ncreased stress as a result of terrorism and general global unrest, including a downgrading of the ratings
of some of those i issuers. Other sectors currently insured by FGIC or into which FGIC may expand could

also: see ‘direct increased stress as a result of terrorism and general global unrest. FGIC may incur

material losses due to such exposures if the economic stress caused by such events is more severe than
FGIC currently foresees or has assumed or will assume in the future in underwriting its exposures.

'As of December 31, 2004, 8.3% of our U.S. investment portfolio consists of FGIC-insured non-refunded

bonds. As a result of our investment in FGIC, we have amended our investment policy to provide that
no more than 15% of our U.S. investment portfolio consists of FGIC-insured non-refunded bonds.
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

As of December 31, 2004 and 2003, our consolidated investment portfolio was $3.3 billion and $2.8 billion,
respectively. The fair value of investments in our portfolio is calculated from independent market quotations, and
is interest rate sensitive and subject to change based on interest rate movements. As of December 31, 2004,
88.8% of our investments were long-term fixed income securities, including U.S. municipal bonds, U.S. and
foreign government bonds, corporate bonds and mortgage-backed securities. As interest rates fall, the fair value
of fixed income securities generally increases, and as interest rates rise, the fair value of fixed income securities
generally decreases. The following table summarizes the estimated change in fair value and the accounting effect
on comprehensive income (pre-tax) for our consolidated investment portfolio based upon specified changes in
interest rates as of December 31, 2004:

Estimated Increase
(Decrease) in

Fair Value
(Dollars in thousands)

300 basis pointdecline ......... .. .. .. i 357,881
200 basispointdecline .......... .. ... i 260,732
100 basis point decline .......... ... ..o 145,177
100 basis pOINLTISE . ..o v vt e et e (160,469)
200 basis POINETISE . ..ottt ettt e (350,103)
300 basis POINLTISE ..\ttt (525,503)

These hypothetical estimates of changes in fair value are primarily related to our fixed-income securities as
the fair values of fixed-income securities generally fluctuate with increases or decreases in interest rates. The
weighted average option-adjusted duration of our consolidated investment portfolio including cash and cash
equivalents was 6.1 at December 31, 2004, and we do not expect to recognize any adverse impact to our
consolidated financial condition, net income or cash flows based on the above projections.

As of December 31, 2004, $751.5 million of our invested assets were held by PMI Australia and were
predominantly denominated in Australian dollars. The value of the Australian dollar strengthened relative to the
U.S. dollar to 0.7802 U.S. dollars at December 31, 2004 compared to 0.7520 at December 31, 2003 and 0.5616 at
December 31, 2002. As of December 31, 2004, $199.2 million of our invested assets were held by PMI Europe
and were denominated primarily in Euros and the remainder in British Pounds Sterling. The value of the Euro
appreciated relative to the U.S. dollar to 1.3554 U.S. dollars at December 31, 2004, compared to 1.2595 at
December 31, 2003 and 1.0492 at December 31, 2002. See Item 7: Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations, Liquidity and Capital Resources.
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MANAGEMENT’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Our internal
control over financial reporting is designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of our consolidated financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles in the United States. Our internal control over financial reporting
includes policies and procedures that:

*  Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of our assets;

+ Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
consolidated financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
our receipts and expenditures are being made only in accordance with authorizations of our management
and directors; and

* Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use
or disposition of our assets that could have a material effect on our consolidated financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Management assessed the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2004. In making this assessment, management used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring

Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in Internal Control—Integrated Framework.

Based on management’s assessment and those criteria, management has concluded that we maintained
effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004.

Our independent registered public accounting firm has issued an attestation report on management’s
assessment of our internal control over financial reporting. That report appears below in Item 8.
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" REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Shareholders of The PMI Group, Inc.:

We have andited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of The PMI Group, Inc. and subsidiaries,
(the Company) as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the related consolidated statements of operations,
shareholders’ equity; and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2004. Our
audits also included the financial statement schedules listed in the Index at Item 15(a). These financial statements
and schedules are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on these financial statements and schedules based on our audits. '

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, ‘evidence, supporting .the amounts and disclosurés in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the -overall. ﬁnancuﬂ statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opm1on ‘

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of The PMI Group, Inc. and subsidiaries at December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the
consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2004, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. Also, in
our opinion, - the' related financial statement schedules, when considered in relation to the basic financial
statements taken asa whole present falrly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein.

‘ As of December 31 2004, the Company adopted Emerging Issues Task Force TIssue No. 04-8, The Effect of
Connngently ‘Convertible Instruments on Diluted Earnings per Share. This change in accounting principle was
applied retroactively and required restatement of dilutive earnings per share for all periods presented. As of
December 31, 2003 the: Company adopted FASB Interpretation No. 46, Consolidation of Variable Interest
Entities, ‘as revised. Also, during the year ended December 31, 2002, the Company adopted Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 141, Business Combinations and No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible
Assets. These matters are further discussed in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Cornpany Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the-effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2004, based' on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsomng Oroanlzatlons of the Treadway Commission and our report dated March 3, 2005, expressed an
unquahfled opmlon thereon

/s/ Emst & Young LLP
March 3, 2005

Los Angeles; California
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM ON INTERNAL
CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Board of Directors and Shareholders of The PMI Group, Inc:

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying report from management, that
The PMI Group, Inc. maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004,
based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the COSO criteria). The PMI Group, Inc’s management is
responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment about the
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
management’s assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s internal control over financial
reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our
audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management’s
assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such
other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principies. A company’s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that The PMI1 Group, Inc. maintained effective internal control
over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on the COSO
criteria. Also, in our opinion, The PMI Group, Inc. maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control
over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, based on the COSO criteria.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the consolidated financial statements of The PMI Group, Inc. and subsidiaries and our report,
dated March 3, 2005, expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/s/  Emst & Young LLP

March 3, 2005
Los Angeles, California




THE PMI GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
.. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF GPERATIONS

Year Ended December 31,
: 2004 2003 2002
A (Dollars in thousands, except per share data)
REVENUES -0 | ‘
Premiums earned . ... ..l AU $ 770,399 $696,928 $676,857 -
Net investrent income . ...................... PSP 168,609 149,779 120,581
Equity in'earnings from unconsohdated subsidiaries ......... ...l 83,554 4,597 44,225
Net realized mvestment gams e e 2,621 84 1,329
Realized caplta] loss on equny investment held for sale (Notes 1 and6) ......... (20,420) — —
Other income " . . ‘.g. O DR 33,473 40,333 39,126
‘Total‘re‘venués e 1,038,236 891,721 882,118
LOSSES AND EXPENSES ; ;
Losses, and loss adjustmem EXPENSES ...ttt e 237,282 209,088 157,575
Amortization of deferred pohcy acquisition costs . ... i i ..85,216., 89,327 83,416
Other underwntmo and operatmg EXPENSES . ..t PR, PR 204,695 175,693 - 144,877
Lease abandonment and relocationcosts ................ R — —_ 12,183
Liti gauon settlement charge (efund) ... (2,574) — 12,222
Interest expense and di stnbunons on mandatorily redeemable preferred :
SECUTTHES .+« vttt e e e e e e e e e e e e e - 34,626 24,491 21,684
Total lb'sses and EXPRIISES . . . vt e ‘ 559,245 498,599 431,957
Income. from connnumg operatlons before income taxes . .................... 478,991 393,122 450,161
Income taxes ﬁ'om continuing operations ......... P 112,459 118,814 . 124,545
i . i ——
Income from contmumg operations after income taxes .................... 366,532 274,308 325,616
Income from dlscommued operations before income taxes (Note 19) ............ 5,756 26,893 20,628
Income taxes from msconunued OPErations .. ......ovinerennrnrnns, © 1,958 7,186 7,199
Income from dlscontmued operatlons after incometaxes .................. 3,798 -19,707 13,429
Gain on sale of dzscontmued operations, net of income taxes of $16,536 ......... 29,003 — —
Income before extraordmary item and cumulative effect of a change in
accountmg prmmple ............................................... © 399,333 294,015 339,045
Extraordmary gain on wrtte off of negative goodwill, net of income taxes of $408 Lo
(Note 6) : “ — 5,418 —
Cumulative effect ofa change in accounting principle Note 3) ................ : — — 7,172
NET INCOME L ;y. RN P $ 399,333 $299,433 $346,217
PER SHARE DATA (N otes 2,and'3)
Basic: | ' ‘ . o
Conunumg operauons ..... A ) $ .. 384 § 305 § 362
Discontinued OPETAtions ............... S e 0.04 022 0.15
Gain on sale of discontinued Operations . . .................ooei.oin.n.s : 0.30 - —
Extraordinary gain .. ... PO - 0.06: —
.Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle ......... P ‘ — — 0.08
Basic netincome .. ... ... oiiiiieiie IR .. $ 418 $ 333 $ 385
Dlluted ‘
Cohtinuing’ operatlons .......................... P - $ 3.55 $ 284 $ 334
Discontinued OPerations ... ..ottt PR - 0,04 0.20 0.14
Gain on sale of dtscontmued OPETALiONS . . ..ot e i 0.28 — —
Extraordmary BAIM . ‘ — 0.05 —
Cunulative éffect of a change in accounting principle ................ ... — — 0.07

Diluted net mcomey e P e $ 3.87 $ 3.09 $ 3.5

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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THE PMI GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

As of December 31,
2004 2003

(Dollars in thousands,
except per share data)

ASSETS
Investments—available-for-sale, at fair value:
Fixed income Securities . ... vttt $2,924.867 $2,554,184
Equity securities:
170111 147« )« N O P 129,310 116,728
Preferred ... ... 110,633 111,070
Short-term INVEStMENTS . . ... .ottt et 128,703 23,803
Totalinvestments . . .......... ... ... i e 3,293,513 2,805,785
Cash and cashequivalents .. ...t e 328,037 397,096
Investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries ............. ... . .. 911,604 937,846
Equity investment held forsale ........... .. .. .. . . . .. 109,519 —
Related party receivables ... ...t e e 18,439 27,840
Accrued INVEStMENt INCOIME . ... .ottt e e e 45,077 39,187
Premiums receivable . ... . . e 59,511 62,082
Reinsurance receivables and prepaid premiums . .......... ... oL 46,252 53,524
Reinsurance recoverables .. ... ... 3,405 3,275
Deferred policy acquisition COSES .. ... .ottt e 92,438 102,074
Property, equipment and software, net of accumulated depreciation and
AMOTTIZAtION & . v v it ettt et e e 178,778 172,218
OET @SSEES . vttt e e e e 59,394 75,500
Assets—discontinued Operations . ........ .. e — 117,862
Total ASSets . .. ... ... e $5,145,967 $4,794,289
LIABILITIES
Reserve for losses and loss adjustment expenses . ...........c...iiiiaan.... $ 364,847 $ 346,939
Unearned Premilums .. ..ottt e et 484,815 469,001
Long-term debt ... ... ... . . 819,529 819,543
Reinsurance payables . ... .. e 63,045 57,960
Deferred inCome tAXES . . .. .ottt e et e 105,512 94,079
Other liabilities and accrued eXPenses ... ...... vt itirinr e 170,464 178,521
Liabilities—discontinued operations .............. ..ottt — 44,217
Total liabilities . ... ..... ... . ... . .. ... . 2,008,212 2,010,260
Commitments and contingencies (Notes 10 and 15)
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Preferred stock—3$0.01 par value; 5,000,000 shares authorized; none issued or
ORESEANAINE .« . oo e — —
Common stock—$0.01 par value; 250,000,000 shares authorized; 111,336,954 shares
issued; 94,025,274 and 95,161,721 shares outstanding . ...................... 1,114 1,114
Additional paid-incapital ....... ... .. 455,450 441,508
Treasury stock, at cost (17,311,680 and 16,175,233 shares) ..................... (421,810)  (344,195)
Retained earnings . ... ... ...t e 2,816,363 2,437,576
Accumulated other comprehensive income, net of deferred taxes ................. 286,638 248,026
Total shareholders’ equity ................ ... ... ... ... .......... 3,137,755 2,784,029
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity ...................... $5,145,967 $4,794,289

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

100




“SJUAWIAIE]S [RIDURULY PAIBPI[OSUOD 0] soj0u Fuikueduwodoe 998

SSL'LET'ES $€9°987¢ €9C91RZS (OIS ITPI$ (ZYICLI)  0Sy'ssb$  vIIlS  LEEHIT
She‘LEYS
999°1¢ 999°1¢€ — — — — — — 999°1¢
oLt oL — — — — — — oL
0598 059's — — — — — — 059'8
£CE66¢ — £EL°66¢ — — — — — £EE66€S
(808'v) — (808°v) — — — — —
(8eL'st) — (8€L°S1) - — — — —
(866°66) — — (866'66)  (OLY'D) — — —
vLT'T — — vLT'T 9% — — —
150'7€ — — 601°0T LETL e'El — —
620'P8LT 970°8¥T 9LSLEV'T  (S6I'PPE)  (SLI9L)  BOS‘Ivb PILT  LEEIIT
00L'6T$
ST891L G78°911 — — — — - — GT8911
(9%) 99) — — — — — — (99)
86v¢1 86v°¢1 — — — — — — 861°¢1
££5°667 — _EEV'66T — — — — — £EV66T$
et - weL — - — — —
61L'61) — — (61L61)  (0sT'D - . — —
{650°0%) - - — - (650°0v) — —
816°'L0T — — — — 098°L0T 8¢ 6YL'S
01L't — . — 01L1 0L — — —
08¢°7C - — T LO6'ST 6v9 £LY'9 — C—
€E8E61°T 6SLLTIL LLS'GPI‘T  (E60°TVE)  (PP9°SD)  bET'L9T 9SO’  88S°SOI
SEICTHS
86L°1¢€ 8GLIE — — — — — — 8SLIE
r9%) (798) ~— — — — — — (¥98)
vLO'OY YLO'9t — — — — — — $LO'OY
agove . — . Lgre . - — = — = - . LTZOVES .
(6L1'8) o . (6L1'®) — = - - —= . -
(L08'92) e — (L08'92) (L1 — — -
T = — ST LY — —- — i
YLOLI — — - PO 1£6 — — =
8899818 16L°0% $ GES'TISTS (ZETPEL)$ (STHOD)  PET'LITE 9SO0'T$ - 88S°SOL Lo
2oL, wodug sButaey  Junowry  saleyg- [epde)  junowy Saaseyg Jwoduy
d — = - —— —— suayaad
- mﬁm-.“—Ma\.OEcU PauIEly H0)§ Aanseauy, iﬂwﬂwﬂ< #2035 uowIwWo)) . u>_m:mo,:\ woy)
pargmunyy ‘

.......................... $00T ‘1€ IFAWADAA ‘FONVIVLE
............................. awodur aAtsusyardwon

....................... sured uone[suen Asualmd ul a3uey))
.............................................. soxe)
JO 13U ‘DWODUT 12U Ul Ppapn[aul Sured pazijeal JO UONRIIJISSE[TY
........................... el g g0
$OXE) PALIJAP JO J2U ‘SIUSWISIAUL uo swed pazijealun ul oFuey))
........................................... WOOUT JAN
...... (Z @10N) waunsaaur Annbo 10y ey Sutuodar Jo uoneuiwg
..................................... paIe[IOp SPUSPIAI(
............................... soseyoindal Y005 uowmo)
....................... ddSH Japun 22uenssi 201§ WO
......... suondo Y2018 Jo 2S1219X9 9Y) Joj SHurIF Y01 UOWIWO))

Tt €007 ‘T ¥ATWADAA ‘AINVIVE

........................ T Qwodul 2Atsuayduo))

....................... suted uoneisuery Luaund w oguey)
............................................... Sox®]
3O 19U ‘DWI0DUY 1AL UT PIPNJO SUTRS PIZI[Eal JO UONBILJISSBIORY
........................................... ZL1'1$ 3O
SOXE) PALIJIP JO 12U “SJUIWISIAUL uO sured pazifeaun ut 33uey))
................................ S auooutjaN
..................................... PaIE[o9p SPUSPIAL
............................... saseyarndal J001s uouruo)y
.......................... 51509 Furpnour 4oenuod aseydInJ
............................. 19U “20UENSSE YO0)S ROUILO))
....................... ddSH Jopun a0UBNSSI YI01S UOWWOD)
......... suondo Yo03s JO ISIAIIXI oY) 10 SJURIF Y01S UOWIWO))

........................... 2007 ‘1€ FAFINHDAd “ONVIVE

.............................. QwiIoou dAISUIYRIdWO)

....................... sured uonesuen £ualing ut aSuey)

............................................... soxe)
JO 19U “QUIODUL JAU Ul PIPR{OUL SUIBS PIzijeal JO UONedYISse|oay

..................... S et e 0
$9%8) PALIZJOP JO 13U “SIUDUISIAUT UD m:._mw pozijeaiun ul 98uey)

e T R SWwooul 19N -

................ ,ﬁU.—N—QOUmU:D—u_>_Q

ERREE EARS AN st wssene - saseyoundor Y001 UOUIIOD)

suondo ¥301S JO ISIDIIXI A 304 S)uRIF Y08 UOWIWOD ‘

........ R 12 (e | Umca‘uu:n:w‘mm_;&oaa uowuIo))

ALINOH SHATTOHAAVHS A0 SINAWHLVLS AALVAI'TOSNOD

SATAVIAISANS ANV "ONI ‘dNO¥D INd FHL

101



THE PMI GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002
(Dollars in thousands)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
$ 399,333 $ 299433 $ 346,217

NELINCOME .ottt e et et s e e e
Income from discontinued operations, net of INCOME tAXES . ... ...ttt (3,798) (19,707) (13,429)
Gain on sale of discontinued operations, netof income taxes . ......... ... . i i (29,003) — —
Extraordinary gain from write-off of negative goodwill, net of income taxes .................. ... ... ... — (5.418) —
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle ......... ... ... . . — — (7,172)
Income from continuing operations before extraordinary item and change in accounting principle: ............. 366,532 274,308 325,616

Adjustments to reconcile net income before extraordinary item and change in accounting principle to net cash
provided by operating activities:

Equity in earnings from unconsolidated subsidiaries ............ ... . .. i i (83,554) 4,597) (44,225)
Net realized InVeStMENt GAINS .. ...ttt e et e et e e (2,621) (84) (1,329)
Realized capital loss on equity investment held forsale ... ... ... ... ... . .. . ol 20,420 — —
Depreciation and amortization .. ....... e e e 19,618 16,157 14,876
Deferred iNCOMIE LAXES . . vt vttt ettt ettt et e e e e e e e 14,464 12,852 19,213
Policy acquisition costs incurred and deferred . ....... ... i i (75,580} (106,191) (90,723)
Amortization of deferred policy acquiSTHOM COSES . ... ..o vttt e i e e 85,216 89,327 83,416
Changes in:
Accrued INVESIMENE INCOME . .. .. . v et et e (5,890) (4,097) (244)
Premiums reCeivable .. . . e e e e 2,571 (3,795) (772)
Reinsurance receivables, net of reinsurance payables . ... ... .. . .. o iii e i 12,357 24,007 (3,698)
Reinsurance reCoVerables . . . ..ottt e e e e e e (130) 571 2,222
Reserve for losses and 1oss adjustment eXpenses . .. ..... vt it . 17,908 13,368 29,754
Unearned Premilims ... .uu vttt e e 15,814 236,124 24,297
Income taxes payable . . ... e (334) 3,987 (9,650)
[0 13 P PP 3,726 6,806 52,317
Net cash provided by operating activities .................. ... .. ... .o 390,517 558,743 401,070
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sales and maturities of fixed income securities ...... .. ... .. i e 583,264 822,002 626,243
Proceeds from sales of equity SECUTIHIES .. ... .. ettt e 65,802 63,283 71,850
Proceeds from sales of unconsolidated subsidiaries . ....... ... . . o e — 10,929 —
Proceeds from sale of APTIC .. .. ... . i e e e 115,063 — —
Investment purchases:
Fixed INCOME SECUMIIES . ottt ettt et e et e e e e (944,768) (1,122,145) (760,966)
EqQUity SECUTTHES . ... . ottt e (69,602) (94,899) (99,556)
Net change in short-term inVeSUMENtS . .. ... ... .ttt et it e e (106,695) 12,326 (7,166)
Investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries, net of distributions . ... ..., . .. (1,445) (645,412) (38,349)
Net change in related party receivables ... ... .. i e e (11,142) (25,518) (3,381)
Capital expenditures and capitalized software, net of dispositions .................. ... . oo (33.676) (30,136) (125,712)
Net cash used in continuing OPerations ........... .....oiiiiiin i (403,199) (1,009,570) (337,037
Net effect of discontinued OPerations ............... . .co it i (8,617) (1,104) 2,288
Net cash used in investing activities ............. .. ... ... ... ... o ol (411,816) (1,010,674) (334,749)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net proceeds from issuance of long-term debt . ... ... .. oo i e — 334,650 —
Repayment of long-term debt . ... ... e (14) — —
Proceeds from repurchase tranSactions . ... ... ... iiutat ittt e e — 249,030 —_
Repayment of repurchase transactions . ... ... ... uutt ittt e —_ (249,030) —
Net proceeds from issuance of common stock . ... ... i i e — 207,918 —
Purchase of treasury SIOCK . ... .ot e e e (99,998) (19,719) (26.807)
Proceeds from issuance of reasury stock ... ... ... e 36,325 17,617 18,946
Dividends paid to shareholders . ...... ... ... . e (15,738) (11,734) (8,179)
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities . .. ................... ... ... ... ..., (79,425) 528,732 (16,040)
Effect of the change in currency translationsoncash ... ... ... ... ... . ...... .. ... .. ... . 31,665 116,825 31,758
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cashequivalents .. ............. ... .. ... ... ... ... ... (69,059) 193,626 82,039
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ....... . ... .. .. .. i e 397,096 203,470 121,431
Cash and cash equivalents atend of year ............. . ... . . . e e $ 328,037 $ 397,096 $ 203,470

SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW DISCLOSURES:
Cash paid during the year:

Interest paid and preferred securities distributions . ...... .. ... . o i $ 30,533 $ 19,108 $ 16,059
Income taxes paid, netofrefunds ... ... ... ... . oo $ 55,739 $ 38203 $ 31,591
Non-cash investing and financing activities:
Capital Jease Obligations ......... ... .. . e $ 1,442 $ 1,201 $ 1,062
SPS Holding Corp. receivable converted t0 qUILY . ... ..vovv i itent ittt i $ 20,543 $ — $ —
Increase in long-term debt due to deconsolidation Of trust .. ..ottt e 3 — 5 51,593 $ —
Decrease in mandatorily redeemable preferred securities due to deconsolidation of trust ................ $ — $ 48,500 3 —
Purchase contract Hability with corresponding offsettoequity . ........... ... .. . o i $ — $ 30851 S —

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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THE PMI GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1. . BASIS OF PRESENTATION

‘The accompanymg consolidated financial statements include the accounts of The PMI Group, Inc. (“The
PMI Group”) a Delaware corporation; its direct and indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries including: PMI
Mortgage Insurance Co., an Arizona corporation, and its affiliated U.S. mortgage insurance and reinsurance
compames (collectwely “PMI”); PMI Mortgage Insurance Ltd and PMI Indemnity Limited, the Australian
mortgage insurance companies, and their holding company, PMI Mortgage Insurance Australia (Holdings) Pty
Limited (collectlvely “PMI Australia”); PMI Mortgage Insurance Company Limited and its holding company
TPG Remsurance Company Limited, the Irish insurance corporations (collectively “PMI Europe™); American
Ploneer Title Insurance Company (“APTIC”), a Florida corporation reported as discontinued operations in the
consolidated financial statements and sold by The PMI Group on March 19, 2004; and other insurance,
reinsurance and non-insurance subsidiaries. The PMI Group and its subsidiaries are collectively referred to as the
“Company Al matenal ‘intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated in the consolidated
financial statements.

On December 18, 2003, the Company completed its acquisition of a 42.1% equity ownership interest in
FGIC Corporation, the holding company of Financial Guaranty Insurance Company (collectively “FGIC™), a
New York-domiciled  financial guaranty insurance company, from General Electric Capital Corporation
(“GECC”). The Company also has equity ownership interests in CMG Mortgage Insurance Company, CMG
Mortgage Assurance Company and CMG Mortgage Reinsurance Company (collectively “CMG”), which
conducts residential mortgage insurance business for credit unions; and through the holding companies, RAM
Holdings Ltd. and RAM Holdings II Ltd., RAM Reinsurance Company, Ltd. (collectively “RAM Re™), a
ﬁnancialbguaranty:reinsurance company based in Bermuda. In addition, the Company has various ownership
interests in limited partnerships.

The Company also has an equity ownership interest in SPS Holding Corp. (“SPS”), whose subsidiary, Select
Portfolio Servicing, Inc. (“Select Portfolio Servicing”), is a servicer of single-family residential mortgages. Prior
to June 30, 2004, SPS was known as Fairbanks Capital Holding Corp. and Select Portfolio Servicing was known
as Fau‘banks Capital Corp. In January 2005, the Company signed a Summary of Terms with Credit Suisse First
Boston. (USA) Inc. (“CSFB”) to enter into a strategic transaction with Select Portfolio Servicing and its parent
SPS. Under the Summary of Terms, CSFB received an option to acquire 100% of PMI’s outstanding investment
in SPS Based on- the proposed purchase price, the Company recorded an impairment of its equity investment in
SPS of $20.4 million pre-tax as of December 31, 2004. The impairment was recorded as a realized capital loss on
equity’ mvestment held for sale due to the Company’s decision to dispose of SPS. Statement of Financial
Accountmg Standards (“SFAS”) No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,
(“SFAS No. 144™), does not allow discontinued operations treatment of an equity investment, and accordingly,
the realized capital loss related to the SPS write-down is included in income from continuing operations (see
Note 6. Investments in Unconsolidated Subsidiaries for further discussion).

NOTE‘Z | SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The' consohdated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generaﬂy dccepted in the United States (“GAAP”) and the requirements of Form 10-K and Article 7 of
Regulation $-X. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make
estimates .and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
assets' and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements, as well as the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses. during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from these:estimates. In the
opinion of management, all adjustments, consisting only of normal recurring adjustments, considered necessary
for a fair preSentation, have been included.
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THE PMI GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

Risks and Uncertainties—The Company is dependent upon mortgage originators to provide mortgage loans
to insure. In the event any of its largest customers choose to stop providing the Company with mortgage loans to
insure, the Company’s ability to generate new insurance business could be adversely affected. The Company’s
U.S. Mortgage Insurance Operations’ ten largest customers generated 42.0% and 42.1% of its premiums earned
in 2004 and 2003, respectively.

The Company’s various U.S., Australian and Irish insurance subsidiaries are subject to comprehensive
regulation. These regulations are generally intended to protect policyholders, rather than to benefit investors.
Although their scope varies, applicable laws and regulations grant broad powers to supervisory agencies or
officials to examine companies and to enforce rules or exercise discretion touching almost every significant
aspect of the insurance business. The licensing of the Company’s insurance subsidiaries, their premium rates,
their forms and policies offered to customers, their financial statements and periodic financial reporting, and their
permissible investments and adherence to financial standards relating to statutory surplus, dividends to the
Company and other criteria of solvency are all subjects of detailed regulation.

The Company establishes loss reserves to recognize the liability of unpaid losses related to insured
mortgages that are in default. These loss reserves are based upon the Company’s estimates of the claim rate and
average claim amounts, as well as the estimated costs of settling claims. These estimates are regularly reviewed
and updated using currently available information. Any adjustments due to positive or adverse developments,
which may be material, resulting from these reviews would impact current reserve requirements. The Company’s
reserves may not be adequate to cover ultimate loss development on incurred defaults. The Company’s
consolidated financial condition, results of operations or cash flows could be seriously harmed if the Company’s
reserve estimates are insufficient to cover the actual related claims paid and loss-related expenses incurred.

The Company has made significant investments in the equity securities of several privately-held companies
including FGIC. The business conducted by FGIC differs significantly from the Company’s core business of
providing residential mortgage insurance. FGIC is subject to a number of significant risks that arise from the
nature of its business. Accordingly, the Company is subject to all the risks and uncertainties associated with that
business. In addition, the Company has limited ability to control FGIC and, accordingly, may be unable to take
actions unilaterally to avoid or mitigate those risks. A significant portion of the Company’s consolidated net
income is derived from FGIC and its financial guaranty business. The financial guaranty business is subject to
extensive regulation. Future legislative, regulatory or judicial changes may affect the financial guaranty industry
or municipal or asset-backed obligations or markets. Any expansion by FGIC into other markets and other asset
classes will entail risks and uncertainties associated with its ability to maintain a triple-A rating and to compete
with other monoline financial guaranty insurance companies. '

Significant accounting policies are as follows:

Investments—The Company has designated its entire portfolio of fixed income and equity securities as
available-for-sale. These securities are recorded at fair value based on quoted market prices with unrealized gains
and losses, net of deferred income taxes, accounted for as a component of accumulated other comprehensive
income in shareholders’ equity. The Company evaluates its investments regularly to determine whether there are
declines in value and whether such declines meet the definition of other-than-temporary impairment in
accordance with SFAS No. 115, Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities and SEC Staff
Accounting Bulletin No. 59, Accounting for Noncurrent Marketable Equity Securities. The fair value of a
security below cost or amortized cost for consecutive quarters is a potential indicator of an other-than-temporary
impairment. When the Company determines a security has suffered an other-than-temporary impairment, the
impairment loss is recognized, to the extent of the decline, as a realized investment loss in the current period’s
earnings.
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Tne ‘Company’s‘short term investments have maturities of greater than three and less than 12 months when
purchased and are, carried at fair value. Realized gains and losses on sales of investments are determined on a
specific- 1dent1f1cat10n basis. Investment income consists primarily of interest and dividends. Interest income and
preferred stock dividends are recognized on an accrual basis. Dividend income on common stock is recognized
on thé date'of declaratlon Net investment income represents interest-and dividend income, net of investment
expenses. o ‘

Cash and Cash Equivalents—The Company considers all highly 11qu1d investments purchased with an
ongmal rnatunty of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Irzvestments in Uncansaltdated Subsidiaries—Investments in the Company s unconsolidated subsidiaries
include both equlty investees and unconsolidated majority-owned subsidiaries. Investments in equity investees
with ownershlp interests- of 20-50% are generally accounted for on the equity method of accounting, and
investments of lessthan 20% ownership interest are generally accounted for on the cost method of accounting if
the Company does not have significant influence over the entity. Limited partnerships with ownership interests
greater than 3% but less than 50% are primarily accounted for using the equity method of accounting. The
Company reports the equity in earnings from FGIC Corporation, SPS and CMG on a current month basis, and
RAM Re and the Company s interest in limited partnerships on a one-quarter lag basis. Effective January 1,
2004, the Company recorded a reduction of $4.8 million, net of tax, to retained earnings due to a change in
reporting of SPS- from a -one-month lag to a current month basis. This reduction represents the Company’s
proportion of SPS’s results for the month of December 2003. The carrying value of the investments in the
Company’s iincorisohdhted subsidiaries also includes the Company’s share of net unrealized gains and losses in
the unconsohdated subs1d1ar1es investment portfolio.

In 2004 the Company‘ reclass1ﬁed its equity investment in SPS to equity investment held for sale as a result
of the Summary of Terms entered into with CSFB. Equity in earnings or losses from SPS is included in equity in
earnings from unconsolidated subsidiaries for all periods presented. Although the Company’s ownership
percentage; of SPS' exceeds 50%, the Company reports its investment in SPS using the equity method of
accounting. due to'an agreement among the shareholders of SPS(the Shareholder Agreement) limiting the
Company’s-ability to control the operations of SPS. This treatment is in accordance with guidance provided by
Emerging Issues Task Force Issue (“EITE”) No. 96-16, Investor’s Accounting for an Investee When the Investor
Has a Majority of the Voting Interest but the Minority Shareholder or Shareholders Have Certain Approval or
Veto Rights, (“EITF No. 96-16"). By operation of the Shareholder Agreement, the Company may designate three
of the six SPS directors: The other non-management SPS shareholder may designate the other three directors.
Further, the Shareholder Agreement requires that more than two-thirds of .the SPS board of directors approve,
among other things, the distribution of dividends by SPS, any SPS capital expenditure exceeding $250,000, and
the adoption. of SPS business plans or budgets These and other supermajority provisions contained in the
Shareholder Agreement constitute substantive participating rights as defined in EITF No. 96-16. These rights
effectwely prevent the Company from causing SPS to take actions that are significant in the ordinary course of
its business withoht the prior approval of the minority shareholder and assure the minority shareholder of
effectwely pammpatmg in the s1gn1ﬁcant decisions that must be taken by SPS in its ordinary course of business.

Per10dlcally, or as events dictate, the Company evaluates potential - impairment of its investments in
unconsolidated subsidiaries. Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 18, The Equity Method of
Accountmg for Investments in Common Stock, (“APB No. 18”), provides criteria for determining potential
1mpa1rment In the event a loss in value of an investment is determined to be an other-than-temporary decline, an
impairment charge would'be recognized in the consolidated statement of operations. Evidence of a loss in value
that could indicate impairment might include, but would not necessarily be limited to, the absence of an ability to
recover the ‘carrying amount of the investment or the inability of the investee to sustain an earnings capacity
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which would justify the carrying amount of the investment. Realized capital gains or losses resulting from the
sale of the Company’s ownership interests of unconsolidated subsidiaries are recognized as net realized
investment gains or losses in the consolidated statement of operations.

The Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) requires public companies to disclose condensed
financial statement information in the footnotes for significant equity investees and unconsolidated majority
owned subsidiaries, individually or in the aggregate, if (i) the Company’s investments in and advances to the
subsidiaries are in excess of 10% of the total consolidated assets of the Company, (ii) the Company’s
proportionate share of unconsolidated majority owned subsidiaries’ total assets is in excess of 10% of total
consolidated assets of the Company, or (iii) income from continuing operations before income taxes,
extraordinary items and the cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle of the unconsolidated
subsidiaries is in excess of 10% of such income of the Company. Furthermore, if certain of the above tests
exceed 20% with respect to any unconsolidated subsidiary, separate audited financial statements of that
unconsolidated subsidiary are required to be included in the registrant’s Form 10-K. Equity investees are not
subject to the 20% threshold for the proportionate share of unconsolidated subsidiaries total asset test, and
accordingly, separate financial statements of FGIC are not included in this Form 10-K. As of December 31, 2004,
the Company’s equity investees and unconsolidated majority owned subsidiaries on a combined basis exceeded
certain of the 10% tests in the aggregate and, accordingly, condensed financial statement information is provided
in Note 23. Condensed Financial Statements of Significant Unconsolidated Subsidiaries.

Related Party Receivables—As of December 31, 2004, related party receivables were $18.4 million
consisting of non-trade receivables from an equity investee and unconsolidated subsidiaries, of which $16.7
million relates to SPS. The largest component of this amount was the outstanding balance of $16.6 million from a
$23.0 million subordinated promissory note the Company received from SPS in the third quarter of 2004. The
Company received the note in exchange for $23.0 million of subordinated participation interests in SPS debt held
by the Company. The note bears interest at 1-month LIBOR plus 2.375% and scheduled principal and interest
payments are due monthly through January 2006. All principal and interest payments related to this note are
current. Pursuant to the Summary of Terms with CSFB, this note will be payable in full at closing if CSFB
exercises its option to purchase all of the Company’s shares in SPS. As of December 31, 2003, related party
receivables were $27.8 million consisting primarily of $23.0 million of subordinated participation interests in
SPS and $3.1 million of advances that the Company made to SPS pursuant to a promissory note related to other
matters. The $3.1 million of SPS advances were repaid in full during the third quarter of 2004,

During the second quarter of 2004, the Company provided SPS with $19.7 million of a $40.0 million redress
fund established pursuant to SPS’s settlement with the U.S. Federal Trade Commission (“FTC”) and the
Department of Housing and Urban Development (“HUD”). In exchange for providing SPS with $19.7 million,
the Company received from SPS a note in the amount of $19.7 million. In September 2004, the $19.7 million
note along with accrued interest thereon, were exchanged by the Company for additional shares of common stock
of SPS.

Deferred Policy Acquisition Costs—The Company defers certain costs in its mortgage insurance operations
relating to the acquisition of new insurance and amortizes these costs against related premium revenue in order to
maich costs and revenues. These costs are primarily associated with the acquisition, underwriting and processing
of new business, including contract underwriting and sales related activities. To the extent the Company is
compensated by customers for contract underwriting, those underwriting costs are not deferred. Costs related to
the issuance of mortgage insurance business are initially deferred and reported as deferred policy acquisition
costs. SFAS No. 60, Accounting and Reporting by Insurance Enterprises, (“SFAS No. 60”), specifically excludes
mortgage guaranty insurance from its guidance relating to the amortization of deferred policy acquisition costs.
Consistent with industry accounting practice, amortization of these costs for each underwriting year book of
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business is charged against revenue in proportion to estimated gross profits. Estimated gross profits are
composed ‘of earned premiums, interest income, losses and loss adjustment expenses as well as the amortization
of deferred policy acquisition costs. The rate of amortization is not adjusted for monthly and annual policy
cancellations 'unless. it is determined that the policy cancellations are of such magnitude that impairment of the
deferred costs is probable. The deferred costs related to single premium policies are adjusted as appropriate for
policy cancellations to be consistent with the Company’s revenue recognition policy. The amortization estimates
for each underwriting year are monitored regularly to reflect actual experience and any changes to persistency or
loss development. Deferréd policy acquisition costs are reviewed periodically to determine that they do not
exceed recoverable amounts, after considering investment income.

Property, Equipment and Software—Property and equipment, including software, are carried at cost and
are depreciated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, ranging from three to
39 years. Leasehold improvements are recorded at cost and amortized over the lesser of the useful life of the
assets or the remaumng term of the related lease.

Under the prov1srons of Statement of P051tion (“SOP”) No. 98-1, Accounting for the Cost of Computer
Software Developed or Obtained for Internal Use, the Company capitalizes costs incurred during the application
development stage related to software developed for internal-use purposes and for which it has no substantive
plan to market externally Capitalized costs are amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of
the asset at such time as the software is ready for its intended use, which is generally three to seven years.

. Derivatives—The Company enters into credit default swap contracts and purchases certain foreign currency
put options, both of which are considered derivatives under SFAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivative
Instruments. and ‘Hedging Activities (“SFAS No. 133”). The Company has not designated either the credit default
swaps' or forergn currency put options as SFAS No. 133 hedges. Accordingly, both categories of derivatives are
determined to be free standmg, with changes in fair values recognized in current period’s consolidated results of
operations. :

| -

During 2003,3]the_ Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued SFAS No. 149, Amendment of
SFAS No. 133 on: Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities (“SFAS' No. 149”). SFAS No. 149 requires
certain credit.default swaps similar to-those entered into by PMI Europe after July 1, 2003 to be accounted for as
derivatives and reported on the consolidated balance sheet at fair value, and subsequent changes in fair value are
recorded in consolidated 'net income. .In addition, as required by EITF ‘Issue-No. 02-3, Issues Involved in
Accounting for Derivative Contracts Held for Tradmg Purposes and Contracts Involved in Energy Trading and
Risk Management Activities (“EITF No. 02-3”), for certain credit default swaps entered into by PMI Europe
where the fair value cannot be determined by reference to quoted market prices, current market transactions for
similar contracts, or based on a valuation technique incorporating observable market data or inputs, initial fair
value related to the credit default swaps are deferred and recognized in consolidated net income in proportion to
the expiration of. the ‘associated insured risk. Gains or losses are tecognized in consolidated net income at
inception for all. other derivative contracts where the fair value can be readily determined from market sources.

As of December 31, 2004, PMI Europe had entered into four credit default swaps that were classified as
derivatives in accordance with SFAS No. 149. Accordingly, initial fair value gains were deferred in accordance
with EITF No. 02-3.' As of December 31, 2004, $6.6 million of deferred gains related to the initial fair value of
these derivatives were included in other liabilities compared to $3.8 million as of December 31, 2003. Included
in other income. were $1:3 million (pre-tax) and $0.1 million (pre-tax) of accretion from the deferred gains in
2004 and 2003, respectwely Subsequent changes in the value, exclusive of accretion, of such derivatives resulted
in $5.6 million of {gains (pre- tax) in 2004 and $0.6 million of losses (pre tax) in 2003 which were included in
other income.
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In the second quarter of 2004, the Company purchased foreign currency put options to mitigate the negative
financial impact of a strengthening U.S. dollar relative to both the Australian dollar and the Euro. These
Australian dollar and Euro put options expired ratably over the calendar year 2004 and had a combined cost of
$1.1 million. In 2004, the Company recorded a net loss of $0.7 million (pre-tax) in other income related to
amortization of option costs, partially offset by realized gains of $0.4 million.

Special Purpose Entities—Certain insurance transactions entered into by PMI and PMI Europe require the
use of foreign special purpose wholly-owned subsidiaries that are consolidated in the Company’s consolidated
financial statements.

Reserve for Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses—The reserve for mortgage insurance losses and loss
adjustment expenses (“LAE”) is the estimated claim settlement costs on notices of default that have been
received by the Company, as well as loan defaults that have been incurred but have not been reported by the
lenders. The Company’s U.S. mortgage insurance primary master policies define “default” as the borrower’s
failure to pay when due an amount equal to the scheduled monthly mortgage payment under the terms of the
mortgage. Generally, however, the master policies require an insured to notify PMI of a default no later than the
last business day of the month following the month in which the borrower becomes three monthly payments in
default. For reporting and internal tracking purposes, the Company does not consider a loan to be in default until
it has been delinquent for two consecutive monthly payments. SFAS No. 60, Accounting and Reporting by
Insurance Enterprises, specifically excludes mortgage guaranty insurance from its guidance relating to reserves
for losses and LAE. Consistent with industry accounting practices, the Company considers its mortgage
insurance policies as short-duration contracts and, accordingly, does not establish loss reserves for future claims
on insured loans that are not currently in default. The Company establishes loss reserves on a case-by-case basis
when insured loans are identified as currently in default using estimated claim rates and average claim amounts
for each report year, net of salvage recoverable. The Company also establishes loss reserves for defaults that
have been incurred but have not been reported to the Company prior to the close of an accounting period, using
estimated claim rates and claim amounts applied to the estimated number of defaults not reported. The reserve
levels as of the consolidated balance sheet date represent management’s best estimate of existing losses and LAE
incurred. The estimates are continually reviewed and adjusted as necessary as experience develops or new
information becomes known to the Company. Such adjustments, to the extent of increasing or decreasing loss
reserves, are recognized in current period’s consolidated results of operations.

Reinsurance—The Company uses reinsurance to reduce net risk in force, optimize capital allocation, and
comply with a statutory provision adopted by several states that limits the maximum mortgage insurance
coverage to 25% for any single risk. The Company’s reinsurance agreements typically provide for a recovery of a
proportionate level of claim expenses from reinsurers, and reinsurance recoverable is recorded as an asset. The
Company remains liable to its policyholders if the reinsurers are unable to satisfy their obligations under the
agreements as with all reinsurance contracts. Reinsurance recoverable on paid losses and loss estimates are based
on the Company’s actuarial analysis of the applicable business. Amounts the Company will ultimately recover
could differ materially from amounts recorded as reinsurance recoverable. Reinsurance transactions are recorded
in accordance with the provisions of the reinsurance agreements and the accounting guidance provided in SFAS
No. 113, Accounting and Reporting for Reinsurance of Short-Duration and Long-Duration Contracts.

Revenue Recognition—Mortgage guarantee insurance policies are contracts that are generally non-
cancelable by the insurer, are renewable at a fixed price, and provide payment of premiums on a monthly, annual
or single basis. Upon renewal, the Company is not able to re-underwrite or re-price its policies. SFAS No. 60
specifically excludes mortgage guaranty insurance from its guidance relating to the earning of insurance
premiums. Premiums written on a monthly basis are earmned as coverage is provided. Monthly premiums
accounted for 72.1% of gross premiums written from the Company’s mortgage insurance operations in 2004 and
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61.7% in 2003 and 74.6% in 2002. Premiums written on an annual basis are amortized on a monthly pro rata
basis over the year of coverage. Primary mortgage insurance premiums written on policies covering more than
one year are referred to as single premiums. A portion of revenue on single premiums is recognized in premiums
earned in the current period, and the remaining portion is deferred as unearned premiums and earned over the
expected 1ifé of the policy, a range of seven to 15 years. If single premium policies related to insured loans are
cancelled due to repayment by the borrower, and the premium is non-refundable, then the remaining unearned
premium related to each cancelled policy is recognized to éarned premiums upon notification of the cancellation.
Unearned premiums represent the portion of premiums written that is applicable to the estimated unexpired risk
of insured loans. Rates used to determine the earning of single premiums are estimates based on actuarial
analysis of the expiration of risk. The earnings pattern calculation is an estimation process and, accordingly, the
Company reviews its premium earnings cycle for each policy acquisition year (“Book Year”) annually and any
adjustments to the! estlmates are reflected to each Book Year as appropriate.

Busmess Segments-——The Company’s reportable. operating segments are U. S Mortgage Insurance
Operations, International Operations, Financial Guaranty and Other. ‘U.S. Mortgage Insurance Operations
includes the results.of PMI Mortgage Insurance Co., affiliated U.S. reinsurance companies and equity in earnings
from CMG. International Operations include the results of PMI Australia, PMI Europe and the results of
operations for Hong Kong. Financial Guaranty includes the equity in earnings from FGIC and RAM Re. The
Company,’s, Other segment consists of our holding company and contract underwriting operations, a realized
capital loss .on equity ihvestment held for sale, equity in earnings or losses from SPS and limited partnerships,
and the discontinued operations of the Company’s former title insurance subsidiary, APTIC.

Earnings Per Share—Basic earnings per share (“EPS™) excludes dilution and is based on consolidated net
income available to common stockholders and the actual weighted-average of the common stock shares that are
outstandmo ‘during the, period. Diluted EPS is based on consolidated net income available to common
stockholders adjusted for the effects of dilutive securities and the weighted-average of dilutive common stock
shares “outstanding during the period. The weighted-average dilutive common stock shares reflect the potential
mcrease of common stock shares if outstanding securities were converted into common stock, or if contracts to
issue common stock, including stock options issued by the Company that have a dilutive impact, were exercised.
The mandatorily redeemable preferred capital securities and equity units outstanding have not been included in
the caléq]ation of diluted shares outstanding as they are anti-dilutive for the periods presented.

EITF Issue No. 04-8, The Effect of Contingently Convertible Instruments on Diluted Earnings per Share,
(“EITF No. 04-8”), states that the dilutive effect of contingently convertible debt and other instruments
(“CoCo’s”) must be included in dilutive earnings per share. See Note 3. New Accounting Standards below. For
purposes -of detenmmng dilutive earnings per share, the interest expense, net of tax, was added back to
consolidated net income and an additional 8.15 million common shares were added to diluted shares outstanding
for all périods presented. Inclusion of the CoCo’s in diluted shares outstanding resulted in a decrease to diluted
earnings per share of $0.24, $0.20 and $0.24 for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002,
respectively.-

.The following is a reconciliation of consolidated net income to net income for purposes of calculating
diluted EPS for the years ended:

2004 2003 2002
. (Dollars in thousands)
Net income:
ASTEPOTIED .\ i e $399,333 $299,433 $346,217
Interest and amortization expense, netoftaxes ............... ... .. ..., 7,685 7,327 7,053
Net income adjusted for diluted EPS calculation . ................. e $407,018 $306,760 $353,270
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The following is a reconciliation of the weighted-average common stock shares used to calculate basic EPS
to the weighted-average common stock shares used to calculate diluted EPS for the years ended:

2004 2003 2002
(Shares in thousands)
Weighted-average shares forbasic EPS .......... . ... ... .. ... . .. ... 95,452 89,915 89,843
Weighted-average stock options and other dilutive components .. ............... 1,626 1,130 1,537
Weighted-average dilutive components of CoCo’s ............. .. ..., 8153 8,153 8,153
Weighted-average shares for diluted EPS ......... . ... . ... .. ... ... ..... 105,231 99,198 99,533

Stock-Based Compensation—The Company accounts for stock-based compensation to employees and
directors using the intrinsic value method prescribed in APB Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees, (“APB No. 25”), and its related interpretations. Under APB No. 25, compensation cost for stock-
based awards is measured as the excess, if any, of the market price of the underlying stock on the grant date over
the employees’ exercise price for the stock options. As all options have been granted with an exercise price equal
to the fair value at the date of the grants, no compensation expense has been recognized for the Company’s stock
option program. SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation (“SFAS No. 123”), requires the pro
forma disclosure of net income and earnings per share using the fair value method, and provides that the
employers may continue to account for the stock-based compensation under APB No. 25. SFAS No. 148,
Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation—Transition and Disclosure, amends SFAS No. 123 and requires
prominent disclosures in both annual and interim financial statements about the method of accounting for stock-
based employee compensation and the effect of the method used on reported results.

The fair value of stock-based compensation to employees is calculated using an option pricing model
developed to estimate the fair value of freely tradable and fully transferable options without vesting restrictions,
which differ from the Company’s stock option program. The model also requires considerable judgment,
including assumptions regarding future stock price volatility and expected time to exercise, which greatly affect
the calculated value.

The fair value of each stock option grant is estimated on the date of the grant using the Black-Scholes option
pricing model with the following weighted-average assumptions:

2004 2003 2002

Dividend yield .. ...... ... e 0.39% 042% 0.23%
Expected volatility . ....... ... i 33.47% 37.46% 36.70%
Risk-free INterest rate . . ... ..ottt e 427% 4.03% 5.02%
Expected life (years) from grantdate .. ... ......... ... ... i 6.0 6.0 6.0
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SFAS No. 123:requires pro forma disclosure of consolidated net income and earnings per share using the
fair value method If the computed fair values of the awards had been amortized to expense over the vesting
period of the awards, the' Company’s consolidated net income, basic net income per share and diluted net income
per share would have been reduced to the pro forma amounts indicated below:

o . v ) .~ 2004 2003 2002

P ‘ : . . ‘ o (Dollars in thousands, except per
' share amounts)

Net incomé:-

Asreported . oL $399,333  $299,433 $346,217
Less: Stock-based ‘employee compensation expense determined under
falr value based method for all awards, net of related tax effects .. ... (13,635) (10,700) (11,611)

Pro forma net 1ncome ......................................... . 385,698 288,733 334,606

Interest and amoruzauon expense, net of taxes ...... P 7,685 7,327 7,053

Pro forma net 1ncome for diluted EPS calculauon ........... - L. $393383  $296,060 $341,659
Basic earnmgs per share:: ... ‘ _ , o :

As reported .............................................. ... % 418 $§ 333 $§ 385

Pro forma ... P B et . $ 404 $ 321 $ 372
Diluted earmngs per share: ‘ v : .

As r,ep_orted‘ e P $ 387 $§ 309 $ 355

Proforma ..., FR e e 303748 298 5 343

Ir‘zcame; Taxes;The Company accounts for income taxes using the liability method in accordance with
SFAS iNQ. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes. The liability method measures the expected future tax effects of
temporary differences at the enacted tax rates applicable for the period in which the deferred asset or liability is
expected to, be realized or settled. Temporary differences are differences between the tax basis of an asset or
liability and its repbrted amount in the consolidated financial statements that will result in future increases or
decreases in taxes owed- on a cash basis compared to amounts already recognized as tax expense in the
consolidated statement of operations. The Company’s effective tax rate was 23.5% for 2004 compared to the
federal statutory rate of 35.0%, due to equity in earnings from FGIC Corporation and income derived from PMI
Australia, which have lower effective tax rates, combined with the Company’s municipal bond investment
income. The effective -tax rate for 2004 also reflects the reversal of a $4.7 million tax contingency reserve
established' by the Cc‘)mpany in connection with assessments received from the California Franchise Tax Board
that have been resolved favorably. Without this reversal, the effective tax rate for 2004 would have been 24.5%.

Benef' t Plans———The ‘Company prov1des pension beneflts to all employees under The PMI Group, Inc.
Retirement Plan, and to certain employees of the Company under The PMI Group, Inc. Supplemental Employee
Retirernent Plan. In addition, the Company provides certain health care and life insurance benefits for retired
employees under another post-employment benefit plan. All full-time, part-time and certain temporary
employees. of the - Company are eligible to participate in The PMI Group, Inc. Savings and Profit-Sharing Plan
(“401(k) Plan”). Eligible employees who participate in the 401(k) Plan may receive, within certain limits,
matching Company contributions. Contract underwriters are covered under The PMI Group, Inc. Alternate
401(k) Plan, under which there are no matching Company contributions. In addition to the 401(k) Plan, the
Company has an officers’ deferred compensation plan available to certain'employees, and an Employee Stock
Purchase Plan (“ESPP”) which allows eligible employees to purchase shares of the Company’s stock at a 15%
discount.to, fair market value as determined by the plan. The ESPP offers participants the 15% discount to current
fair market 'value or fair- market value with a look-back provision of the lesser of the duration an employee has
part1c1pated in the ESPP or'two years. .

i
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Foreign Currency Translation—The financial statements of foreign subsidiaries have been translated into
U.S. dollars in accordance with SFAS No. 52, Foreign Currency Translation. Assets and liabilities denominated
in non-U.S. dollar currencies are translated into functional currencies using either the year-end spot exchange
rates or historical rates. Revenues and expenses are translated at monthly-average exchange rates. Gains and
losses on currency re-measurement incurred by PMI Australia and PMI Europe represent the revaluation of
assets and liabilities denominated in non-functional currencies into the functional currency, the Australian dollar
and Euro, respectively. The effects of translating operations with a functional currency other than the reporting
currency are reported as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income included in consolidated
shareholders’ equity.

Comprehensive Income—Comprehensive income includes net income, foreign currency translation gains or
losses, changes in unrealized gains and losses on investments, and the reclassification of realized gains and losses
previously reported in comprehensive income, net of related tax effects. The Company reports the components of
comprehensive income in its consolidated statements of stockholders’ equity.

Stock Split—In 2002, the Company effected a two-for-one stock split in the form of a stock dividend. All
common share and per share data have been adjusted to reflect the stock split.

Reclassifications—Certain items in the prior corresponding period’s consolidated financial statements have
been reclassified to conform to the current period’s financial statement presentation. ‘

NOTE 3. NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

On September 30, 2004, the EITF issued FASB Staff Position EITF Issue No. 03-1-1, Effective Date of
Paragraphs 10-20 of EITF Issue No. 03-1, The Meaning of Other-Than-Temporary Impairment and lts
Application to Certain Investments, (“EITF No. 03-1-1"), which delayed the effective date of paragraphs 10
through 20 of EITF Issue No. 03-1 that provides guidance on how to evaluate and recognize an other-than-
temporary impairment loss. The application of those paragraphs is deferred until additional implementation
guidance is provided. EITF No. 03-1-1 is not currently expected to significantly impact the Company’s
consolidated results of operations or consolidated financial condition.

At its meeting on September 30, 2004, the EITF reached a final consensus, EITF No. 04-8, that the dilutive
effect of CoCo’s must be included in dilutive earnings per share regardless of whether the triggering contingency
based on the market price of the issuer’s shares has been satisfied. This change in accounting principle was
applied on a retroactive basis and required restatement of prior period dilutive earnings per share. This EITF
issue is effective for all periods ending after December 15, 2004. The EITF issue resulted in an additional 8.2
million shares of dilution to the Company’s diluted earnings per share calculation due to the Company’s $360.0
million 2.5% senior convertible debentures, which are CoCo’s.

On December 16, 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123 (Revised 2004), Share-Based Payment, (“SFAS
No. 123(R)”), which is a revision of SFAS No. 123. SFAS No. 123(R) supersedes APB No. 25 and amends
SFAS No. 95, Statement of Cash Flows. Generally, the approach in SFAS No. 123(R) is similar to the approach
described in SFAS No. 123. However, SFAS No. 123(R) requires all share-based payments to employees,
including grants of employee stock options, to be recognized in the income statement based on their fair values.
Pro forma disclosure is no longer allowed. SFAS No. 123(R) must be adopted for public companies at the
beginning of the first interim or annual period beginning after June 15, 2005, or July 1, 2005 for the Company.
Non-public companies will be required to adopt SFAS No. 123(R) at the beginning of the first annual period
beginning after December 31, 2005. Early adoption will be permitted in periods in which financial statements
have not yet been issued. The Company expects to adopt SFAS No. 123(R) on July 1, 2005. As permitted by
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SFAS No. 123, the Company currently accounts for share-based payments to employees using APB No. 25°s
intrinsic value method and, as such, generally recognizes no compensation cost for employee stock options.
Accordingly;, the adopnon of SFAS No. 123(R)’s fair value method will have a significant impact on the
Company’s consohdated results of operations, aithough it will have no impact on the Company’s overall
consohdated fmaneral posmon : :

SFAS No 123(R) permits public companies to adopt its requirements using one of two methods: (i) a
“modified prospectlve method in which compensation cost is recognized beginning with the effective date (a)
based on the requrrements of SFAS No. 123(R) for all share-based payments granted after the effective date and
(b) based on, the requlrements of SFAS No. 123 for all awards granted to employees prior to the effective date of
SFAS. No. 123(R) that remain unvested on the effective date; or (ii) a “modified retrospective” method which
includes the requirements of the modified prospective method described above, but also permits entities to restate
based on th“'e‘jémouﬁts previously recognized under SFAS No. 123 for purposes of pro forma disclosures either (a)
all prior periods presented or (b) prior interim periods of the year of adoption. The Company plans to adopt
SFAS No. 123(R) using the modified prospective method. .

The ‘estithatéd impact to consolidated net income of the Company from the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R)
using the modified- ‘prospective method for 2005 ranges from approximately $5 million to $6 million. Had the
Company adopted SFAS No. 123(R) in prior periods, the impact of the standard would have approximated the
impact of SFAS No. 123 as described in the disclosure of pro forma consolidated net income and earnings per
share in Note 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies to the Company’s consolidated financial statements.
SFAS No. 123(R) also requires the benefits of tax deductions in excess of recognized compensation cost to be
reported as a fmancmg cash flow. While the Company cannot estimate what those amounts will be in the future
(because they depend on, among other things, when employees exercise stock options), the amount of cash flows
recognized for such excess tax deductrons were $8.2 million, $3.8 million, and $5.7 million in 2004, 2003 and
2002, respecuvely ‘

Iri ‘January 2003 the FASB issued FASB Interpretation (“FIN”) No. 46, Consolidation of Variable Interest
Entities, which prov1des guidance on identifying and assessing interests in variable interest entities to determine
if consolidation or’ -deconsolidation of that entity is required. FIN No. 46 requires consolidation of existing
unconsohdated variable interest entities if the entities do not effectively disperse risk among the parties involved.
In October 2003, FASB deferred the effective date for applying the provisions of FIN No. 46 until the end of the
first 1nter1m or annual period ending after December 15, 2003. Upon adoption of FIN No. 46, as revised, at
December 31 2003 the Company deconsolidated the trust subsidiary that issued mandatorily redeemable
preferred securities. The, mandatorily redeemable preferred securities outstanding in the amount of $48.5 million
are no longer’ recogmzed in the consolidated balance sheets. Rather, as of December 31, 2003, the Company
recognized $51.6 million of junior subordinated debentures which are included in long-term debt, $3.1 million of
which. represents its investment in the trust in other assets.

Effectlve J anuary 1,.2002, the Company adopted SFAS No. 141, Business Combinations and SFAS No. 142,
Goodwzll and Other Intangible Assets, (“SFAS No. 142”). Under SFAS No. 142, any unamortized negative
goodwrll related to an excess of fair value over cost arising from business combinations completed before July 1,
2001 must be expensed 'and recognized as a cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle upon the
adoption of SFAS No. 142. Accordingly, the Company realized a $7.2 million gain for the remaining balance of
negative goodwilliin the first quarter of 2002, which was originally recorded in connectron with the acquisition of
PMI Ltd in 1999

|
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NOTE 4. INVESTMENTS

Fair Values and Gross Unrealized Gains and Losses on Investments—The cost or amortized cost,
estimated fair value, and gross unrealized gains and losses on investments are shown in the table below:

AI(Ijl(:)Srtti.; l; d Gross Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains (Losses) Value
(Dollars in thousands)
December 31, 2004
Fixed income securities:
U.S. municipalbonds ............. .. ..o L $1,637,508 $112,574 $ (345) $1,749,737
Foreign governments . ............c.oouuiineunien.. 499,864 11,206 (260) 510,810
Corporatebonds . ... 628,464 14,922 (2,429 640,957
U.S. government and agencies .............vvuin... 10,699 1,714 3) 12,410
Mortgage-backed securities ............... . ... ... 10,406 547 — 10,953
Total fixed income securities .. .................. 2,786,941 140,963  (3,037) 2,924,867
Equity securities:
Common STOCKS ... ti it it i e e 100,183 29,377 (250) 129,310
Preferred stocks ...... ... i 105,795 5,317 479) 110,633
Total equity securities ..............ieinnn.. 205,978 34,694 (729) 239,943
Short-term investments ...............couuirinenronanan. 130,499 — (1,796 128,703
Total investments ........................ $3,123,418 $175,657 $(5,562) $3,293,513
A;%Zittioz 2 d Gross Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains (Losses) Value
(Dollars in thousands)
December 31, 2003
Fixed income securities:
US. municipalbonds ............... ... ... ..., $1,488,780 $116,983 $ (142) $1,605,621
Foreign governments . .............coouniiininn.... 466,730 2,673  (2,487) 466,916
Corporatebonds ............ ... . .. . . it 423914 15,849  (1,420) 438,343
U.S. government and agencies . ... ................... 20,245 2,210 (D 22,454
Mortgage-backed securities .. .......... ... .. ... ... 19,787 1,063 — 20,850
Total fixed income securities ... ................. 2,419,456 138,778 (4,050) 2,554,184
Equity securities:
Common StOCKS ... oo 92,640 24,401 (313) 116,728
Preferred StoCKS .. ..ot e 105,795 5,292 17 111,070
Total equity securities ................c.coven.... 198,435 29,693 (330) 227,798
Short-term InVeStMENtS . ... .ottt e 20,603 3,200 — 23,803
Total investments . ....................... $2,638,494 $171,671 $(4,380) $2,805,785
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Scheduled Maturities—The following table sets forth the amortized cost and fair value of fixed income
securities by contractual maturity at December 31, 2004:

Amortized Fair

Cost Value

) ) ‘ (Dollars in thousands)
Due in ONE YeAr OF IE8S . . vt vttt e et et e $ 124,380 $ 126,353
Due after one year through five YEars ... ............eriiiiinrnararnean... 733,422 755,853
Due after five years throughtenyears ..................ooovvnii.n. PR 565,562 591,525
Due afterten years . . ... ... it it s 1,353,162 1,440,183
Mortgage-backed securities ....................... e 10,406 10,953
Tota] fixed5 incomesecurities .......... ... .. ... e $2,786,941 $2,924,867

Actual maturities may differ from those scheduled as a result of calls or prepayments by the issuers prior to
maturity, ;

Net Investmeni Income—Net investment income consists of:

2004 2003 2002
' ‘ ' (Dollars in thousands)
Fixed InCOME SECUMIEIES . v oot v ittt et et et et et $146,057 $135,162 $111,083
Equity secuntles U 9,751 7,965 4,142
Short-term 1nvestments RE PR e 15,389 7,920 7,235
Investment i 1ncome beforeexpenses ......... ... ... . il 171,197 151,047 122,460
Investment EXPEIISES . . v veet et e e e e (2,588) (1,268) (1,879)
Net mvestmentmcome U $168,609 $149,779 $120,581

Realized Investment Gains and Losses—Realized gains and losses on investments are composed of:

2004 2003 2002
(Dollars in thousands)

Fixed income securmes . :
Gross gains . ... .. .. D P $1910 $7,119 $ 16,944

GOS8 0S8 e st e ettt e (6,184) (6,560) (7,779)
© Net gains (I0SS5) ... oot e (4274) 559 9,165
Equity secuntles ' ; o
Gross gains A S P O 6,607 7,274 7,986
Gross'losses «...... e e e 2,551) (3,996) (15,881)
Net ga‘ins‘“‘(losses) A 4,056 3,278 (7,895)
Short-term investments:
Gross-gains . .jﬁ e S R 3200 © — 59
Gross losses ............................... EEEEE R PRPIR (361) (289) —_
Net gams (losses) .............................. PP e 2,839 (289) 59
Investments in unconsohdated subsidiaries: ,
Gross BANS Lo — 363 —_
Grosslosses‘.‘...,....................‘ ................ e — (3,827) —
. Net losses ............... e — (3,464) —
Net realized gains before INCOMIE LAXES vttt ee e eeee e 2,621 84 1,329
Income taxes e 917) (28) (465)

Total net reallzed gams after income taxes ..................0.......... $1,704 $ 56 $ 864
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Unrealized Investment Gains and Losses—The change in unrealized gains and losses net of deferred taxes
consists of:

2004 2003 2002
(Dollars in thousands)

Fixed InCOME SECUTILIES . . . . . v ot ettt e e e e e e e e e e e $ 4,006 $(9,138) $ 52,785
Equity SecUrities . .......... ... 3,174 17,964  (10,671)
Investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries .. ......... ... ... ... ... 4,330 3,516 259
Short-term investments .................. N (3,247) %) 2,625
Discontinued operations—APTIC .. ...... ... .. .. . . i (1,317) 1,105 212

Change in unrealized gains, net of deferred taxes ................... 6,946 13,442 45,210

Realized gains, net of income taxes . .......... ... . ... . ... ..., 1,704 56 864

Total . ... . . $ 8,650 $13,498 $ 46,074

Aging of Unrealized Losses—The following table shows the gross unrealized losses and fair value of the
Company’s investments, aggregated by investment category and the length of time that individual securities have
been in a continuous unrealized loss position as of December 31, 2004,

Less Than 12 Months 12 Months or Greater Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses

(Dollars in thousands)
Fixed income securities:

U.S. municipal bonds ............. $ 18195 $ (345 $§ — $—  $ 18,195 $ (345
Foreign governments . ............. 5,215 (29) 18,930 (231) 24,145 (260)
Corporatebonds . .. ............... 122,416 (1,693) 28,639 (736) 151,055 (2,429)
U.S. government and agencies ...... 243 2) 48 ) 291 3
Total fixed income securities ... 146,069 2,069) 47617 (968) 193,686 (3,037)

Equity securities:
Commonstocks .................. 3,286 (240) 399 (10) 3,685 (250)
Preferredstocks . ................. 27,077 (479) — — 27,077 (479)
Total equity securities ......... 30,363 (719) 399 (10) 30,762 (729)
Short-term investments ................ 98,204 (1,796) — — 98,204 (1,796)
Total .................. $274,636 $(4,584) $48,016  $(978) $322.652 $(5,562)

Unrealized losses were primarily due to interest rate fluctuations during the year and are not considered to
be other-than-temporarily impaired as the Company has the intent and ability to hold until such investments
recover in value or mature. The remaining unrealized losses do not meet the criteria established in the
Company’s policy for determining other-than-temporary impairment and as such are not considered impaired.
The Company determined that the decline in the market value of certain equity securities in its investment
portfolio met the definition of other-than-temporary impairment and recognized realized losses of $0.2 million,
$0.3 million, and $6.9 million in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.
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Investment Concentratzans and Other Items—The Company maintains a diversified portfolio principally
of U.S. mumc1pa1 bonds The following states represent the largest concentrations in the U.S. municipal bond
portfolio, expressed as a percentage of the fair value of all U.S. municipal bond holdings. Holdings in states that
exceed 5% of the U.S. mun1c1pa1 bond portfolio at December 31, for the respective years. are presented below:

Texas ... ... .0 oL e P G e e 17.8% 18.6%
New YOIK ..ottt e 17.7% 13.0%
Mlinois .. ...... Y O R 11.0%11.5%
Massachusetts S 99% 9.9%
California ......0..... .. e 15% 2.3%
Washinglon . ...l veee e P R 6.0% 7.3%

District of Columbia ... ....................... e 5.8% 6.6%

At December 31,.2004, fixed income securities and short-term’ investments with a fair value of $15.9
million wefe jon deposxt with regulatory authorities as required by law. In addition, $19.4 million in cash was
held in a bank in Hong Kong for statutory purposes.

NOTE 5. RESTRICTED CASH

In 2002, ‘the Company entered into an agreement with a customer to provide mortgage insurance coverage
for a three- year penocl on a pool of loans. The Company received funds to cover future claim payments on these
loans. The, transactron does not transfer insurance risk. Accordingly, the contract is being accounted for under the
guldehnes of SOP No. 98-7, Deposit Accounting: Accounting for Insurance and Reinsurance Contracts That Do
Not Transfer Insurance Risk. As of December 31, 2004, $4.7 million of deposits received under this agreement
were rncluded in cash and cash equivalents and can only be utilized to pay claims related to the agreement.

NOTE 6. INVESTMENTS IN UNCONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES -

The carrymg values of the Company’s investments in unconsohdated subsidiaries consisted of the following
for the years ended

Ownership Ownership
2004 . Percentage 2003 Percentage

(Dollars in thousands)

FGIC Corporatlon FRERTETTROTIY A T $693,671 42.1% $625,154 42.1%

SPS ..., SO TP R = * 115803  56.8%
CMG (et ettt L. 112456 500% 97,389  S50.0%
RAM (Re e S 81,209 24.9% 75,675 24.9%
Oher ..oy e 24268  various 23,825  various

‘Tdt‘al‘.;..i.,.r...s; ................. .. $911,604 $937,846

* Due o the Company s decision to enter into an agreement with CSFB, the Company reclassified its equ1ty investment in SPS of
$109 519ito equrty 1nvestment held for sale.

As of December 31, 2004, the Company’s total investment in SPS was $126.2 million and consisted of
$109 5 million carrymg value of the Company’s equity investment and $16.7 million of related party receivables
which are ;presently current. Included in the $109.5 million carrying value of SPS is a $6.5 million component of
goodwﬂl Wthh represents the excess of the Company’s carrying value over the Company’s ownership
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percentage of SPS’s net book value as of December 31, 2004, Pursuant to the Summary of Terms with CSFB
described in Note 1. Basis of Presentation, the remaining balance of the Company’s $16.7 million related party
receivable will be payable in full at closing if CSFB exercises its option to purchase all of the Company’s shares
in SPS. In the event CSFB exercises its option, the Company expects based on December 31, 2004 book values
to receive $69.7 million in cash at closing exclusive of its related party receivable. The remaining carrying value
of SPS of $39.8 million will be received over time through 2007 with cash flows generated from certain
mortgage servicing assets held by SPS. To the extent the net book value of SPS changes prior to CSFB
exercising its option, the above cash flows could increase or decrease.

Equity in earnings (losses) from unconsolidated subsidiaries and equity investment held for sale consisted of
the following for the years ended:

Ownership Ownership Ownership
2004 Percentage 2003 Percentage 2002 Percentage
(Dollars in thousands)
FGIC .......... ... ... .. ..., $61,592 421% $ 2,358 21% $ — —
SPS .. 413 64.9%* (17,663) -56.8% 22,387 56.8%*
CMG ... 15,280 50.0% 13,575 50.0% 12,433 50.0%
RAMRe ............... e, 6,252 24.9% 4,228 24.9% 4,235 24.9%
Truman . . ...covv oo, — — 4,513 19.6% 6,034 19.6%
Other ....... ... ... ... ... ... 17 various (2,414)  various (864)  various
Total ................. ... $83,554 $ 4,597 $44,225

*  During 2004, the Company’s ownership percentage of SPS increased to 64.9% from 56.8%, primarily due to SPS’s repurchase of its
common stock from three minority shareholders. The Company’s ownership percentage also increased in 2002 to 56.8% from 45.7%.

On December 18, 2003, the Company completed its investment in FGIC by acquiring 42.1% equity
ownership interest in that entity. The Company is the strategic investor in a group of investors, and funded
$611.4 million in cash of the $1.6 billion total purchase price ($1.9 billion including GECC’s retained ownership
interest) for the investment in FGIC. The Company’s investment in FGIC, as of December 31, 2004, was
$693.7 million, which included $611.4 million cash, with the balance representing equity in earnings, capitalized
acquisition costs related to the transaction and the Company’s proportionate share of FGIC’s net unrealized gains
in its investment portfolio.

Equity in earnings from FGIC for 2003, as presented in the above table, excludes the extraordinary gain of
$5.4 million after-tax related to the Company’s share of negative goodwill recognized by FGIC resulting from
the application of purchase accounting adjustments. In accordance with APB No. 18, the Company reflected its
proportionate share of FGIC’s extraordinary gain as a separate line item in the Company’s consolidated
statement of operations.

In connection with the settlement reached between SPS and the FTC and HUD, SPS recognized aggregate
charges of approximately $55 million pre-tax in September 2003 related to the costs of settlement, settlement of
certain putative class actions pending against SPS, and estimated costs relating to certain pending state regulatory
actions. The Company’s proportionate share of such charges was $19.1 million pre-tax, which was recognized in
equity in earnings from unconsolidated subsidiaries in September 2003.

In 2003, the Company invested $24.4 million of a total of $92 million of additional capital raised by RAM
Re. The Company’s ownership percentage as a result of this capital investment did not change.
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'In September 2003, the Company sold its ownership interest in Truman Capital Founders, LL.C and Truman
Capital, Adv1sors,,LLC The loss in Other in 2003 was due primarily to the $2.6 million loss from certain private
equity 11m1ted paﬁnershlp investments occurring in the first quarter of 2003.

NOTE7. PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(UNAUDITED)

The unaudxted pro forma condensed combined statements of operations of the Company give effect to the
investment in FGIC and the issuance of securities from common stock and equity units offering. The unaudited
pro forma condensed combined statements of operations for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 were
prepared assuming these transactions were completed as of the first day of the periods presented.

The pro forma adjustments are based on estimates which are derived from available information and contain
assumptions. The pro forma financial -statements do not purport to represent what the consolidated results of
operations actually would have been if these transactions had occurred on the dates indicated or what such results
will be for any future date or future periods. The pro forma consolidated statements of operations are based on
historical Consolidéted financial statements of The PMI Group and FGIC, primarily giving effect to the
Company’s debt and equity offering, reduction of interest income due to investment and the Company’s 42.1%
ownersh1p share of FGIC’ s historical income adjusted for the application of purchase accounting adjustments.

For the Year Ended December 31,2003  For the Year Ended December 31, 2002

As . Pro As Pro
Reported  Adjustments Forma Reported  Adjustments Forma
‘ - v (In thousands, except per share amounts)
Total revenues ..:..... e $891,721  $68,427  $960,148 $882,118  $80,567  $962,685
Total. losses and éxpenses . ........ L. $498,599  $12,077 $510,676 $431,957 $12,788  $444,745
Netincome ... ................. $299,433  $56,065  $355,498 $346,217 $72,459  $418,676
Weighted average shares basic . ...... 89,915 5,750 95,665 89,843 5,750 95,593
Weighted average shares diluted . . ... 99,198 5,750 104,948 99,533 5,750 105,283
Per share data: ‘
Basic net income ... .. ......... $ 333 $ 372 §& 385 $ 438

Diluted net income ............ $ 3.09 $ 346 $ 355 $ 4.04

NOTES. DEFERRED POLICY ACQUISITION COSTS

The following table summarizes deferred policy acquisition cost activity as of and for the years ended:

2004 2003 2002
] } (Dollars in thousands)
Balance atJanuary I, ............ciiiiiiiiiii R $102,074 $ 85210 §$ 77,903
Policy‘acq‘u'isition costsincurred and deferred .......... ... ... ... .. 75,580 106,191 90,723
Amortization of deferred policy acquisitioncosts ....................... (85,216) (89,327) (83,416)
Balance‘at December 31, ...... O S $ 92,438 $102,074 $ 85,210

Deferred pohcy acquisition costs are affected by qualifying costs that are deferred in the period and
amortization of prevxously deferred costs in such period. In periods where there is significant growth in new
business, the asset will generally increase because the amount of deferred acquisition costs incurred exceeds the
amortization of previously deferred policy acquisition costs. Conversely, in periods where new business activity
is dec]ininggithe asset will generally decrease because the amortization of previously deferred policy acquisition
costs exceeds the amount of deferred acquisition costs incurred.
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NOTE 9. PROPERTY, EQUIPMENT AND SOFTWARE

The following table sets forth the cost basis of, and accumulated depreciation and amortization for, property,
equipment and software for the years ended:

2004 2003
(Dollars in thousands)
Building and leasehold improvements . .. .......... ... i $ 99,706 §$ 96,819
Furniture and eqUIPIMENt . ... ...ttt e e 50,998 49,789
SOftWare . . . 143,119 113,538
Land ... e 5,000 5,000
Property and equipment, at COSt . .. .. .. ottt e 298,823 265,146
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization ..................covnon... (120,045) (92,928)
Property, equipment and software, net of accumulated depreciation and

AMOTTZALON .. oottt et ettt ettt e $ 178,778 $172,218

Depreciation and amortization expense related to property, equipment and software totaled $27.5 million in
2004, $25.5 million in 2003 and $17.8 million in 2002. Capitalized costs associated with software developed for
internal use were $29.5 million in 2004, $22.5 million in 2003 and $25.2 million in 2002.

In connection with relocating its corporate headquarters, the Company performed an evaluation of the
estimated costs with respect to the relocation and recognized a $12.2 million pre-tax charge related to lease
abandonment and relocation costs in 2002. The charge consisted of $8.3 million for the estimated loss on the
abandonment of the lease obligations for the previous home office space, $1.7 million for the write-off of
abandoned fixed assets, and $2.2 million for other relocation and employee retention expenses. As of December
31, 2004, the lease related to the abandoned property has expired.
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NOTE 10. RESERVE FOR LOSSES AND LOSS ADJUSTMENT EXPENSES

The Company-establishes reserves for losses and LAE to recognize the estimated liability for potential
losses and related loss adjustment expenses in connection with borrower default on their mortgage payments. The
estabhshment -of 'loss reserves is subject to inherent uncertainty and requires significant judgment by
management; ‘The' following table provides a reconciliation of the begmnmg and ending reserves for losses and
loss adjustment expenses for each of the three years:

2004 2003 2002
o h (Dollars in thousands)
Balance atJanuary I, . o . o $ 346,939 $ 333,569 $ 303,816
Remsurance recoverables S P (3,275) (3,846) (6,068)
Net balance at January 1, oo o e P 343,664 329,723 297,748
Losses and LAE incurred, pnnc1pa11y with respect to to defaults
occurring in: :
Current YOAL L uhe e 248,381 228,143 246,173
Prior years e (11,099  (19,055)  (88,598)
Total incurred ... ......... e . 237,282 209,088 157,575
Losses ‘and LAE payments, principally with respect to defaults
occurring in: ‘
Current year e [PV R (18,297) (10,741) (9,591)
Prior years e e (202,503) (197,099) (117,825)
Total PAYMENts . .........ovii A . (220,800) (207,840) (127,416)

Forelgn currency translation effects ........................ e 1,296 4,818 1,816
Acquisition of portfe_ho and wholly-owned subsidiaries ................ ‘ — 7,875 —
Net ending balance at December 31, ............ P © 361,442 343,664 329,723
Remsurance recoverables e P \ 3,405 3,275 3,846
Balance at December 3, oo P $ 364,847 $ 346,939 $ 333,569

(1) The $11 1' million, $19.1 million and $88.6 million reductions in total losses and LAE incurred in prior
years were due to re-estimations of ultimate loss rates and amounts from those established at the original notice
of default, updated through the period presented. These re-estimations of ultimate loss rates and amounts are the
result of management’s periodic review of estimated claim amounts in light of actual claim amounts, loss
developmént data or ultimate claim rates. The $19.1 million reduction in prior years’ reserves during 2003 was
due primarily to a reduction in PMI Australia’s loss reserves and favorable PMI pool portfolio loss development
trends. The. $88.6! million total reductions in prior years’ reserves during 2002 was due primarily to more
favorable 'loss trends than expected compared to PMI’s historic loss experience, evidenced by lower claim
amounts, a robust real -estate market and strong home price appreciation

The mcrease in 10ss reserves in 2004 over 2003 was. due primarily to increases in the reserve balances in
u.s. Mortgage Insurance Operations and in PMI Europe offset by a decrease in the reserve balance in PMI
Australia. The reserve increase in U.S. Mortgage Insurance Operations was the result of expected higher
propomons of dehnquenmes developing into claims as well as higher mortgage insurance coverage levels on
pending dehnquenc1es This bhas led to hlgher expected average c1a1m amounts. U.S. Mortgage Insurance
Operations primary insurance default inventory was 39,054 at December 31 2004, 37,445 at December 31, 2003
and 36,537 at December 31, 2002. The default rate was 4.86% at year end 2004, 4.53% at year end 2003, and
4.18% at year end 2002. Generally, it takes approximately 12 to 36 months from the receipt of a default notice to
result in a claim payment. Accordingly, most losses paid relate to default notices received in prior years.
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NOTE 11. LONG-TERM DEBT AND LINE OF CREDIT

Equity Units—In November 2003 and in connection with the Company’s investment in FGIC, the Company
sold 13.8 million of 5.875% Equity Units and raised $345.0 million of gross proceeds. Each unit has two
components: 2 senior note component and a purchase contract component. The senior note has a $25 principal
amount with a 3.0% annual interest rate paid quarterly and maturing on November 15, 2008. The purchase
contract component pays a 2.875% annual contract payment quarterly and obligates the holders to purchase
$345 million of newly issued shares of the Company’s common stock, no later than November 15, 2006. Further
details are provided in Note 16. Dividends and Shareholders’ Equity. In addition, the senior notes have a
remarketing feature and will be remarketed on or about August 2006. The senior notes rank equally with all other
senior unsecured debt securities of The PMI Group. If the senior notes are not successfully remarketed the
holders of the senior notes will have the right to put the senior notes to the Company on the purchase contract
settlement date which is November 15, 2006.

Senior Convertible Debentures—In July 2001, the Company issued $360.0 million of 2.50% Senior
Convertible Debentures (“the Debentures”) in a private offering to qualified institutional buyers, and
subsequently filed a shelf registration statement for the resale of the Debentures and the common stock of The
PMI Group issuable upon conversion of the Debentures. The Company used a portion of the net proceeds for the
repayment or retirement of existing indebtedness and the remainder for general corporate purposes. The
Debentures are due on July 15, 2021 and bear interest at a rate of 2.50% per annum, payable semiannually. The
Debentures are convertible at the registered holders’ option, prior to stated maturity, into shares of the
Company’s common stock at an initial conversion price of $44.16 per share if specified requirements are met,
subject to adjustments in specified circumstances. The most significant requirement for such conversion is that
the trading price of the Company’s common stock must exceed 120% of the initial conversion price for 20
consecutive trading days within a 30-day trading period. The Company may redeem some or all of the
Debentures on or after July 15, 2006 for a price equal to the principal amount of the Debentures plus any accrued
and unpaid interest. The holders may put the Debentures to the Company on July 15, 2006, 2008, 2011 and 2016.
On July 15, 2004, certain debenture holders required us to repurchase a nominal amount of the debentures. Upon
a change of control of the Company, holders may also require the Company, subject to certain conditions, to
repurchase all or a portion of the Debentures. The Company may repurchase the Debentures with cash, common
stock, or a combination of cash and shares of common stock. If the Company elects to pay all or a portion of the
purchase price in common stock, the shares of common stock will be valued at 97.5% of the average sale price
for twenty trading days ending on the third day prior to the repurchase date. The Debentures are senior unsecured
debt securities and rank equally with all other senior unsecured debt of The PMI Group.

Mandatorily Redeemable Preferred Capital Securities and Junior Subordinated Deferrable Interest
Debentures—In February 1997, The PMI Group, through a wholly-owned trust, privately issued $100.0 million
of 8.309% mandatorily redeemable preferred Capital Securities, Series A (the “Capital Securities”). The Capital
Securities were issued by PMI Capital I (“Issuer Trust”). The sole asset of the Issuer Trust consists of
$103.1 million principal amount of Junior Subordinated Deferrable Interest Debentures, Series A (the “Junior
Subordinated Debentures™) issued by The PMI Group to the Issuer Trust. The Junior Subordinated Debentures
bear interest at the rate of 8.309% per annum paid semiannually and mature on February 1, 2027. In 2001, the
Company repurchased $51.5 million of the Capital Securities. The Capital Securities are subject to mandatory
redemption upon repayment of the Junior Subordinated Debentures by the Company. The Junior Debentures are
redeemable at the option of the Company on or after February 1, 2007 at a premium or upon occurrence of
certain tax events and mature on February 1, 2027. The Junior Subordinated Debentures are subordinated to all
senior indebtedness of The PMI Group.

Upon the adoption of FIN No. 46 as of December 31, 2003, the Company deconsolidated the Issuer Trust
subsidiary that issued $48.5 million of the Capital Securities. The underlying securities of $48.5 million issued
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by the Issuer. Trust are backed by the Junior Subordinated Debentures issued by the Company to the Issuer Trust
in the amount of $51.6 million. The Capital: Securities are no longer recognized in the consolidated balance
sheets. As the Junior Subordinated Debentures issued by the Company to the Issuer Trust were previously
eliminated in consohdatton the amount of $51.6 million was not previously reflected in the Company’s
consolidated ﬁnanmal statements. Upon deconsolidation of the Issuer Trust, the Junior Subordinated Debentures
due to the Issuer Trust are no longer eliminated and have been classified as long-term debt.

) Senior}Notes—T-I;n November 1996, the Company issued $100.0 million in face amount of 6.75% senior
notes (the “Notes"") As of December 31, 2004 and 2003, $63.0 million of face amount remained outstanding.
The Notes bear interest at the rate of 6.75% per annum pald semiannually and mature on November 15, 2006. No
sinking fund is requlred or provided for the Notes and are not redeemable prior to maturity. The Notes rank
equally with all other senior unsecured debt securities of The PMI Group.

Revolvmg Credlt F aalzty——ln December 2004, the Company entered into a five-year $175.0 million
revolvmg credit facility agreement with Bank of America, N.A. and a consortium of lenders. The interest rate is
LIBOR plus a margrn The agreement provides the availability of additional liquidity and capital, which PMI can
utilize for working capital, capital expenditures and other business purposes. The facility may be increased by
$25.0 million to $200.0 million at the Company’s discretion subject to approval by the lenders. The credit facility
contains certain financial covenants and restrictions, the most restrictive being debt-to-capital and risk-to-capital
ratio thresholds., The Company was.in compliance with all debt covenants for the year ended December 31, 2004,
There Were no arjrrotmtsrr‘elated to this facility outstanding as of December 31, 2004.

NOTE 12. tF AIR VA}LUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

In the” normal course of business, the Company invests in various financial assets and incurs various
financial habllmes ' The estimated fair value of the financial instruments indicated in the table below has been
determined by avarlable ‘market information and appropriate valuation methodology. The carrying values of cash
and cash equrvalents and accrued investment income approximate their fair values primarily due to their liquidity
and short term nature The estimated fair value of the outstanding debt has been determined by quoted market
price. ‘

As of December .31, 2004 As of December 31, 2003

Carrying ~ - Estimated Carrying Estimated
Value Fair Value Value Fair Value
" (Dollars in thousands)

Assets ‘
Frxed 1nc0me SECUTTHES « « v o v e e $2,924,867 $2,924,867 $2,554,184 $2,554,184
Equrty secuntles e $ 239943 §$ 239,943 $ 227,798 $ 227,798
Short-term inVeStMEnts . . .....ovvnreerrennn.. $ 128,703 §$ 128,703 $ 23.803 $ 23,803
Cash and cash: equivalents ...................... $ 328,037 $ 328,037 § 397,096 $ 397,096
Accrued investmentincome ................... . $ 45077 $ 45077 $ 39,187 $ 39,187

Liabilities. .

Equlty Units, 5 875% .......................... $ 345000 $ 364872 § 345000 §$ 355212
Senior. Convemble Debentures, 2.50% ............ $ 359,986 $ 391,708 $ 360,000 $ 388,800
SenlorNotes 6.75% ..o $ 62950 $' 66,488 $ 62,950 $ 69,503
$ 57862 $ 51,593 $ 60,810

Jumor Subordmated Debentures 8309% .......... $ 51,593

‘Considerable Judgmeht is required in interpreting market data to develop the estimates of fair value and,
therefore, changes in the assumptions may have a material effect on the fair valuation estimates. A number of the
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Company’s other significant assets and liabilities, including deferred policy acquisition costs, real estate owned,
property, equipment and software, loss and LAE reserves, unearned premiums and deferred income taxes are not
considered financial instruments.

NOTE 13. REINSURANCE

The following table shows the effects of reinsurance on premiums written, premiums earned and losses and
loss adjustment expenses of the Company’s operations for the years ended:

2004 2003 2002
(Dollars in thousands)

Premiums written

DIEECE ot $923,084 $1,011,842 $ 789,328
ASSUMEd ... 14,306 9,831 8,223
Ceded ... (166,028)  (145,672) (105,944)
Net premiums written . ............................... $ 771,362 $ 876,001 $ 691,607
Premiums earned
DIMECt .« ittt $927,553 $ 834,725 $ 777,542
ASSUIMEd . . oot e 7,931 12,364 1,049
Ceded ... o (165,085)  (150,161) (101,734)
Netpremiumsearned ................................. $ 770,399 $ 696,928 $ 676,857
Losses and loss adjustment expenses
DIFECt oot $239371 $ 222,387 $ 156,224
AsSsUmEd . ... e 197 320 705
Ceded ... o (2,286) (13,619) 646

Net losses and loss adjustment expenses . ................. $ 237,282 $ 209,088 $ 157,575

The majority of the Company’s existing reinsurance contracts are captive reinsurance agreements in U.S.
Mortgage Insurance Operations. Under captive reinsurance agreements, a portion of the risk insured by PMI is
reinsured with the mortgage originator or investor through a reinsurer that is affiliated with the mortgage
originator or investor. Ceded premiums for U.S. captive reinsurance accounted for 87% of total ceded premiums
written in 2004 compared to 82% in 2003 and 82% in 2002. Reinsurance recoverables on losses incurred were
$2.4 million at December 31, 2004, $3.3 million at December 31, 2003 and $3.8 miilion at December 31, 2002.

NOTE 14. INCOME TAXES

The components of income tax expenses for the years ended:

2004 2003 2002
(Dollars in thousands)
L1115 1 1) S OO $ 33,864 $ 40,403 $ 12,890
Deferred ... .. 78,595 78,411 111,655
Total income tax expense from continuing operations ............. $112,459 $118,814 $124,545

Section 832(e) of the Internal Revenue Code permits mortgage guaranty insurers to deduct, within certain
limitations, additions to statutory contingency reserves. This provision allows mortgage guaranty insurers to
increase statutory unassigned surplus through the purchase of non-interest bearing “tax and loss bonds” from the
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federal govemment The tax and loss bonds purchased are limited to the tax benefit of the deduction for additions
to the contmgency reserves. The Company purchased tax-and loss bonds of $87.6 million in 2004, $67.8 million
in 2003 and $106 1"million in 2002. The Company redeemed tax and loss bonds of $21.5 million in 2004. The
purchase and redemptron of tax and loss bonds are included as a deferred component of i income tax expense.

The cornponents of the income tax expense for 2004 included a foreign provision for current tax expense of
$35.5 million and a deferred tax expense of $2.5 million primarily related to PMI Australia and PMI Europe.

A recohciliation of the statutory federal income tax rate to the effective tax rate reported on income before
income taxes is shown in the following table:

2004 2003 2002

Statutory federal INCOMETAX TALE .+« v v o e e e et e e e e 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%

Tax-exempt mterest ........................................... e 5.8 64 (5.2
Equity in earmngs from unconsolidated subsidiaries . . . . : e . 3.6) 1.2 (1.6)
STATES TAXES, TIEL ./ o .o oot e e e et e e 0.1 0.3 03
Foreign TAXES, TIET . L ettt et P e 0.9 ©5 0.3
Other . ............. R (1.3) 06 (0.5

Effective mcqme tax rate for continuing operations . . .......... ... ... ..... 23.5% 30.2% 27.7%

PMI has prO\"ide‘d for U.S. federal income tax on the undistributed earnings from its foreign subsidiaries and
forergn corporate Jomt ventures, except to the extent that such earnings are reinvested indefinitely.

On October 22 2004, ‘the American Jobs Creation Act (“AJCA”) was signed into law. The AJCA includes a
provision allowing a deduction of 85% for certain foreign earnings that are repatriated. The AJCA provides The
PMI Group 'with the opportunity to elect to apply this provision to qualifying earnings repatriations in 2005.
Based.on the exrstmg lahguage in the ATCA and current guidance, The PMI Group does not expect to repatriate
undistributed earnings. To the extent Congress or the Treasury Department provides additional clarifying
language on key elements of the provision, The PMI Group will consider the effects, if any, of such information
and will re- evaluate as necessary, its intentions with respect to the repatriation of certain foreign earnings.
Should The PMI Group, upon consideration of any such potential clarifying language, ultimately elect to apply
the repatrlatron provision to the AJCA, The PMI Group does not expect that the impact of such an election would
be material to its results.of operations.
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The components of the deferred income tax assets and liabilities as of the years ended:

2004 2003
(Dollars in thousands)

Deferred tax assets:

DiIScoUNt ON JOSS TESEIVES . . v vt vt vt ettt e et et e e e e e $ 6774 $ 6,703
Unearned premilm TESEIVES . ..ot v vv sttt ettt et 10,586 12,667
Oter L08S TSIV . .\ttt it it i i e e 1,294 2,536
a8 COSES .+ v vttt et e e e e 28 602
SPSIMPAIITNENt . . . oo o et e e e 7,147 —
S IS . o oot e e e e 355 522
Pension costs and deferred compensation . ............o i 9,668 9,520
(01 315 o 111X £ O O 19,678 12,858
Total deferred taX @S8ELS . .o vttt ettt e e e e e e 55,530 45,408
Deferred tax liabilities:
Deferred policy acquisition COStS .. ...t e 20,268 25,763
Unrealized net gains oninvestments .. ... vt e iie it 56,272 57,273
Software development COSIS .. ...ttt et 24,317 19,719
Equity in earnings from unconsolidated subsidiaries .......................... 36,670 25,423
Other Habilities .. ..ot i e e e 23,515 11,309
Total deferred tax liabilities . ....... ... 161,042 139,487
Net deferred tax liability . .. ........ ... .. ... .. ... . . $105,512 $ 94,079

Although realization is not assured, management believes it is more likely than not that the deferred tax
assets will be realized.

NOTE 15. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Leases—The Company leases certain office space and office equipment. Minimum rental payments under
non-cancelable operating leases in the aggregate for the five years subsequent to 2004 are as follows:

Operating Leases

(Dollars in thousands)
Year ending December 31,

2005 . $ 6,119
2000 . .o e 5,199
200 e e 3,518
2008 . 3,139
2000 . 2,226
Thereafter ... 4,097

Total minimum lease payments .......... ... . ... . ... ... i, $24,298

Rent expense for all leases was $7.0 million for 2004, $7.0 million for 2003 and $10.0 million for 2002.

Income Taxes—During 2002 and 2003, the Company received notices of assessment from the California
Franchise Tax Board (“FTB") for 1997 through 2000 in amounts totaling $13.9 million. The assessments were
the result of a memorandum issued by the FTB in April 2002, which was based partly on the California Court of
Appeals decision in Ceridian v. Franchise Tax Board. The memorandum issued by the FTB provided for the
disallowance of the deduction for dividends received by holding companies from their insurance company
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subsidiaries in determining California taxable income of the holding company for tax years ending on or after
December 1, 1997. In 2003, the Company established a reserve of $4.7 million representm g a portion of the total
assessments sought by the FTB. ~

On September 29 2004 the State of California enacted legislation that allows the deductibility of
“quaJ1fy1pg.,d1v1dends received” from a wholly-owned insurance company regardless of its domicile or the source
of the insurance company’s income. This legislation permits an irrevocable election to take a deduction of 80%
of “qualifyihg dividends received” for 1997 through 2003. The Company has made this election and,
accordingly, has reversed the $4.7 million reserve established in connection with the FTB assessments. This
reversal is reflected as a reduction in the Company’s consolidated income tax expense for the year ended 2004.

Guarantee—The PMI Group has guaranteed certain payments to the holders of the Capital Securities issued
by PMI Capital I. Payments with respect to any accrued and unpaid distributions payable, the redemption amount
of any. Capital Securities that are called and amounts due upon an involuntary or voluntary termination, winding
up or liquidation of:the Issuer Trust are subject to the guarantee. In addition, the guarantee is irrevocable, is an
unsecured obligation ‘of the Company and is subordinate and junior in right of payment to all senior debt of the
Company. -

F undi‘ng‘Ob}liéations‘—We have invested in certain limited partnerships with ownership interests greater
than: 3% but less than 50%. As of December 31, 2004, the Company had committed to fund, if called upon to do
s0, $5.6 mllhon of addmonal equity in certain limited partnership investments.

Legal Proceedings——On December 15, 2000, the Company announced that PMI entered into an agreement
with the plairitiffs to settle the class action litigation captioned Baynham et al v. PMI Mortgage Insurance
Company PMI demed all. facts and allegations in the lawsuit that alleged violations of Section 8 of the Real
Estate'Settlement Procedires Act (“RESPA”™) and other claims. To account for the settlement, PMI took a pre-tax
charge of $5.7 million in the fourth quarter of 2000, a $1.5 million pre-tax charge in the third quarter of 2001 and
an additional pre-tax charge of $12.2 million in the fourth quarter of 2002. The charges were based upon the
estimate of the cost of settlement. PMI received a $2.6 million pre-tax settlement refund in the third quarter of
2004. There was no accrual as of December 31, 2004.

Vamous other legal actions and regulatory reviews are currently pending that involve the Company and
spemﬁc aspects of its conduct of business. In the opinion 6f management, the ultimate liability in one or more of
these actions is not expected to have a material effect on the consohdated financial condition, results of
operatioris or cash ﬂows of the Company. ‘

NOTE 16. " DIVIDENDS AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Common Stock—In November 2003 and in connection with the Company’s investment in FGIC, the
Company issued 5.75 million shares of common stock and raised $219.7 million of gross proceeds in addition to
13.8 million equity units, disclosed in Note 11. Long-Term Debt and Line of Credit. Each equity unit consists of
a senior note and a purehase contract. The purchase contract will obligate the holders to purchase, no later than
November 15, 2006, shares of the Company’s common stock subject to anti-dilution adjustments. The number of
shares of common stock which will be purchased depends upon the 20-trading day average closing price at the
date of purchase adjusted by changes in the Company’s common stock dividend rate. As of December 31, 2004,
the maximum and minimum settlement rates of the Company’s common stock that can be purchased were 0.6547
and 0.5280 shares per purchase contract, respectively. The settlement rate per unit changed in comparison to
prior periods as a result of an increase in the Company’s common stock dividend rate in 2004. The equity units
contain a dividend protection provision whereby the settlement rate increases if the Company increases the
common stock dividend rate relative to when the equity units were issued. -
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Dividends—PMTI’s ability to pay dividends to The PMI Group is affected by state insurance laws, credit
agreements, credit rating agencies and the discretion of insurance regulatory authorities. The laws of Arizona,
PMI’s state of domicile for insurance regulatory purposes, provide that PMI may pay dividends out of any
available surplus account, without prior approval of the Director of the Arizona Department of Insurance, during
any 12-month peﬂod in an amount not to exceed the lesser of 10% of policyholders’ surplus as of the preceding
year end or the prior calendar year’s net investment income. A dividend that exceeds the foregoing threshold is
deemed an “extraordinary dividend” and requires the prior approval of the Director of the Arizona Department of
Insurance.

Other states may also limit or restrict PMI’s ability to pay shareholder dividends. For example, California
and New York prohibit mortgage insurers from declaring dividends except from the surplus of undivided profits
over the aggregate of their paid-in capital, paid-in surplus and contingency reserves.

On June 23, 2004, the Director of the Arizona Department of Insurance approved PMI’s extraordinary
dividend request of $150 million, and this dividend was paid to The PMI Group in July 2004. No further
dividends may be paid prior to July 2005 without the prior approval of the Director of the Arizona Department of
Insurance. APTIC paid $13.0 million in dividends to The PMI Group in the first quarter of 2004 prior to the
Company’s sale of APTIC. In 2003, following approval from the Director of the Arizona Department of
Insurance, PMI declared and paid an extraordinary dividend of $100 million to The PMI Group. In addition,
Residential Guaranty Co., one of the Company’s Arizona domiciled insurance subsidiaries, paid dividends to The
PMI Group in the amount of $8.4 million, which it was able to pay as an ordinary dividend without prior
permission from the Arizona Department of Insurance. In 2002, following receipt of approval from the Director,
PMI declared and paid an extraordinary dividend of $100 million to The PMI Group. The dividend was paid in
cash of $66 million and stock of SPS, as well as its limited partnership interest in Truman. The combined value
of the stock of SPS and Truman at the time of the dividend was approximately $34 million. No dividends have
been paid to PMI by our international subsidiaries in 2004, 2003 or 2002.

In August 2004, the Company’s Board of Directors approved a $0.03 per share annual dividend increase to
$0.18 per share annually beginning in the third quarter of 2004 and the establishment of a dividend reinvestment
plan.

In addition to its consolidated subsidiaries, The PMI Group may in the future derive funds from its
unconsolidated equity investments, including its investment in FGIC. FGIC’s ability to pay dividends is subject
to restrictions contained in applicable state insurance laws and regulations, FGIC’s certificate of incorporation, a
stockholders’ agreement between the PMI Group and other investors in FGIC, and FGIC’s 6.0% senior notes.
Under New York insurance law, FGIC may pay dividends out of statutory earned surplus, provided that statutory
surplus after any dividend may not be less than the minimum required paid-in capital and provided that together
with all dividends declared or distributed by FGIC during the preceding 12 months, the dividends do not exceed
the lesser of (i) 10% of policyholders’ surplus as of its last statement filed with the New York superintendent or
(ii) adjusted net investment income during this period. In addition, in accordance with the normal practice of the
New York Insurance Department in connection with change in control applications, FGIC is subject to
commitments to the department that it will prevent FGIC from paying any dividends on its common stock for a
period of two years from the date of the acquisition, December 18, 2005, without the prior written consent of the
New York Insurance Department.

Preferred Stock—The PMI Group’s certificate of incorporation authorizes the Board of Directors to issue
up to 5,000,000 shares of preferred stock of The PMI Group in classes or series and to set the designations,
preferences, qualifications, limitations or restrictions of any class or series with respect to the rate and nature of
dividends, the price and terms and conditions on which shares may be redeemed, the amount payable in the event
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of voluntary or involuntary liquidation, the terms and conditions for conversion or exchange into any other class
or series of the stock, voting rights and other terms. The Company may issue, without the approval of the holders
of common stock, preferred stock that has voting, dividend or hquldatlon fights superior to the common stock
which may adversely affect the rights of holders of common stock.

Pursuant to the - support agreement descnbed in Note 22. Capital Support Agreements the Company has
agreed that, in the event that Allstate, the Company’s former parent, makes a payment contemplated by the
Allstate Support Agreements or the runoff support agreement, Allstate will have the right to receive preferred
stock of The PMI Group or PMI with a hquldatlon preference equal to the amount of such payment. Such
preferred stock will rank senior in right of payment to the issuer’s common stock and, so long as such preferred
stock is outstandmg, ‘the issuer thereof will be prohlblted from paying any dividends or makmg any other
d1str1but10ns on its common stock

NOTE 17. BENEFIT PLANS

Effective January 1, 2003 all full-time and part-time employees of the Company are eligible to participate
in The PMI Group, Inc. Retrrement Plan (the “Plan™), a noncontributory defined benefit plan. The Plan generally
has been funded by the Company to the fullest extent permitted by federal income tax rules and regulations. In
addition, ‘certain employees whose annual earnings exceed $205,000 under Internal Revenue Code (“IRC”)
Section 401(a)(17) and' limits established under IRC ‘Section 415 participate in The PMI Group, Inc.
Supplemental Employee Retirement Plan, a noncontributory defined benefit plan. Benefits under both pension
plans are based upon the employees’ length of service, average annual compensanon and esnmated social
security retirement beneﬁts

The Company prov1des certain health care and life insurance benefits for retired employees under another
post-employment benefit plan (the “OPEB Plan”). Generally, qualified employees may become eligible for these
benefits if they retire in' accordance with the Company’s established retirement policy and are continuously
insured under the Company s group plans or other approved plans for ten or more years prior to retirement. The
Company ‘contnbutes a.fixed dollar subsidy towards the cost of coverage. Retirees are expected to pay all
amounts in excess of the Company’s fixed dollar subsidy. The Company assessed the impact on liabilities due to
the Medical"Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modemization Act of 2003 and determined that it is not
material to our liability.
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The following table presents certain information with respect to the Company’s benefit plans as of and for
the years ended: : .

Pension Benefits Other Post-Employment Benefits
2004 2003 2002 2004 2003 2002
(Dollars in thousands, except percentages)

Change in benefit obligation

Benefit obligation at January 1 .......... $ 75,639 $68,021 $43984 $ 7,799 $ 9,065 $ 5395
Service Cost .. ... i 9,137 9,694 8,229 1,471 1,535 797
Interest oSt . ..o vvvv v 4,796 5,144 4,359 1,121 966 552
Plan amendments ......... [ — 1,283 — — (9,049) —
Actuarial (gain)loss .................. 5,026 (1,168) 11,854 (2,478) 5,407 2,385
Benefitspaid ................ ... . ... (13,634) (7,335) (405) (202) (125) (65)
Effect of settlement/curtailment ......... (2,456) — — — — —
Benefit obligation at December 31 ....... $78508 $75639 $68021 $ 7,711 $§ 7,799 $ 9,064
Assumptions to determine benefit

obligation : :
Discountrate ..............ovvunnn.. 5.75% 6.25% 6.75% 5.75% 6.25%  6.75%
Rate of compensation increase .......... 5.00% 5.00% 5.50% N/A N/A N/A
Change in plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at January 1 .. ... $51,977 $38661 $19703 $ — $ — $§ -
Actual return (loss) on plan assets ....... 5,968 8,067 (2,272) —_ — —
Company contribution . ................ 15,968 12,584 21,635 202 125~ 65
Benefitspaid ............ . ... . L. (13,634) (7,335) (405) (202) (125) (65)
Fair value of plan assets at December 31 .. $60279 $51977 $38661 $§ — $ — § —

Funded status
Funded (under funded) status of plan at

December31 ...................... $(18,229) $(23,662) $(29,360) $ (7,711) 3 (7,799) $(9,064)
Unrecognized actuarial loss (gain) ....... 15,042 16,682 24,170 3,067 5,893 677
Unrecognized prior service cost ......... (210) 1,179 — (8,733)  (8,883) 185
Accrued and recognized benefit cost .. ... $ (3,397) $ (5,801) $ (5,190) $(13,377) $(10,789) $(8,202)
Recognized amounts
Prepaid benefitcost ................... $ 8,833 § 5,383 $ — & —

Accrued benefit liability ............... (12,230) (11,184) (13,377)  (10,789)

Net amount recognized (end of year) ..... $ (3,397) $ (5,801) $(13,377) $(10,789)
Components of net periodic benefit cost

Service Cost - .. vi i $ 9,137 $ 9,694 $ 8229 §$ 1471 $ 1,535 § 797
Interest cost .. ..o, 4,796 5,144 4,359 1,121 966 552
Expected return on assets .............. (4,347) (3,190) (1,900) — — —
Prior service cost amortization .......... 10 103 — (198) 20 —
Actuarial loss recognized .............. 889 1,372 985 348 192 20
Additionalcost ............ ... . ..., 3,080 72 — 48 — —
Net periodic benefitcost ............... $ 13,565 $13,195 $11,673 $ 2,790 § 2,713 $ 1,369
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) ) Other Post-Employment
Pension Benefits Benefits

2004 2003 2002 2004 2003 2002
(Dollars in thousands, except percentages)

Projected beneﬁt obhgatmn in excess of plan assets

Projected benefit ObLigation’ . ... ...\, $78,508  $75,639 $68,021 N/A  N/A N/A
Accumulated, beneﬁt obligation ................... $53,664 $43,549 $37,134 N/A N/A N/A
Fair value of plan assels ...l .. $60,279 $51,977 $38,661 N/A N/A N/A
i , "

Accumulated benefit obhgatlon in excess of plan

assets’ | . S
Projected beneﬁt obhgatlon ...................... $ 9,881 $ 8,532 . % 7,229 N/A N/A N/A
Accumulated benefit obligation .............. e $ 9214 $ 3729 §$ 2813 N/A N/A NA
Fair value of plan assets .................... I - — — N/A N/A NA
Assumptions to determme net periodic benefit cost ‘
Discount rate" .. . . . . XTI N 6.25% 6.75% 7.50% 6.25% 6.75% 7.50%
Expected retirn on plan assets ... ... e [P 8.00% 8350% 850% N/A NA NA
Rate of compensation i‘ncrea‘s‘e ................ ... 500% 550% 550% N/A NA N/A
Health care cost trend on covered charges ........... N/A. N/A N/A 9.00% 11.00% 13.00%
Expected benefit payments
2005..‘..‘...‘ ...... e e $ 4,157 $ 225
2006 ... PR e $ 3,516 $ 254
2007 .« $ 5,185 $ 299
2008 ... e e e $ 7,349 $ 317
2000 . $ 9,525 $ 361
2010-2014 L " $70,674 $2,451
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The Company’s accumulated benefit obligation for its pension plans at December 31, 2004 was $44.5
million and $9.2 million, the combination of which equals the $53.7 million accumulated benefit obligation. As
of December 31, 2004, the combined fair value of plan assets exceeded our combined accumulated benefit
obligation. The health care cost trend on covered charges for other postretirement benefits was 9% in 2004,
which will be reduced by 2% per year to 5% in 2006. In 2004, the Company contributed $16.0 million to its
pension plan. The maximum annual deductible under IRS rules was approximately $16 million for 2004. Benefits
paid during 2004 increased primarily as a result of lump sum distributions to former APTIC employees. During
2004, the Company exceeded certain threshold tests related to these lump sum distributions due primarily to the
sale of APTIC, and as such, a $1.7 million increase was recorded to the Company’s benefit obligations. This
occurrence triggered settlement accounting under SFAS No. 88, Employers’ Accounting for Settlements and
Curtailments of Defined Benefit Pension Plans and for Termination Benefits which requires immediate
recognition in current reported consolidated net income of the delayed recognition in net periodic pension cost of
certain elements arising from adoption or modification of a pension plan; namely projected benefit obligation
gains and losses, plan asset gains and losses, transition amounts, and costs of retroactive plan amendments. This
charge was recorded as an offset to the Company’s net gain on sale of APTIC in accordance with SFAS No. 144.
Additional cost in Components of net periodic benefit cost in the above table includes this charge and a $1.4
million curtailment charge recorded in the first quarter of 2004 also relating to the sale of APTIC.

Percentage of Plan
Target Assets at December 31,
Allocation 2004 2003

Asset allocation:
UL S StOCKS e 40%-60% 50% 40%
International StOCKS . ...ttt 0%-30% 14% 12%
U.S. fixed income SeCurities . ........ ... ccviriiiininnnn.. 20%-50% 35% 29%
U.S.cash and cashequivalents ............ ... ..., 0%-10% 1% 19%
Total . . e e 100% 100%

The primary objective of the Plan is to provide retirement income for Plan participants and their
beneficiaries in accordance with the terms of the Plan. As such, the key objective in the Plan’s financial
management is to promote stability and, to the extent appropriate, growth in funded status. A secondary financial
objective is to reduce reliance on contributions as a source of benefit payments. As such, Plan assets are invested
to maximize the Plan’s funded ratios over the long-term while managing the downside risk. The strategic asset
allocation ranges represent a long-term perspective. Rapid unanticipated market shifts or changes in economic
conditions may cause the asset mix to fall outside the policy range. These divergences should be of a relatively
short-term nature, unless the circumstances warrant a longer term divergence from the permissible fanges. The
Company evaluates and rebalances asset allocations as appropriate and reviews the Plan to make sure that the
Plan remains properly funded to protect the benefit security of the participants. As of December 31, 2003, cash
and cash equivalents were higher than the target range due to the timing of the contribution and fund allocation at
year end 2003, and to the expected payout in the following year at December 31, 2002.

The Company makes contributions that are sufficient to fully fund its actuarially determined costs, generally
exceeding the minimum amounts required by the Employee Retirement Income Security Act. Currently, the
Company estimates the allowable contributions to be between approximately $0 to $8 million. Accordingly, the
Company expects to contribute approximately $5 million to $8 million to the Plan in 2005, subject to the
approval of the Finance and Investment Committee of the Board of Directors. :
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'Sensit‘ivity of Retiree .Welfare Results—Assumed health care cost trend rates have a significant effect on the

amounts reported for the health care plans. A one percentage point change in assumed health care cost trend rates
would have the following effects:

One Percentage  One Percentage
Point Increase Point Decrease

. . (Dollars in thousands)
Effect on total of service and interest COSt COMPONENLS ... .. ..o vrinn. .. $ 485 $(41)
Effect on accumulated post-retirement benefit obligation . ................... $1,394 $(98)

Savings and Profit Sharing Plans—All full-time, part-time and certain temporary employees of the
Company are eligible to participate in The PMI Group, Inc. Savings and Profit-Sharing Plan (“401(k) Plan”).
Eligible employees who participate in the 401(k) Plan may receive, within certain limits, matching Company
contributions. Thé Company contributions recognized as expense were $2.4 million for 2004, $3.1 million for
2003 and $2.8 million for 2002. Contract underwriters are covered under The PMI Group, Inc. Alternate 401(k)
Plan, under which there are no matching Company contributions. In addition to the 401(k) Plan, the Company
has an officers’ deférred compensation plan available to certain employees. The obligation related to the deferred
compensation plan is $14.0 million as of December 31, 2004 and is included in other liabilities and accrued
expenses.

NOTE 18. -INCENTIVE PLANS

Equity Inceritil{e Plan—The PMI Group, Inc. Equity Incentive' Plan provides for awards of both non-
qualified stock options and incentive stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock subject to forfeiture
and restrictions on transfer, and performance awards entitling the recipient to receive cash or common stock in
the future following the attainment of performance goals determined by the Board of Directors. As amended and
restated in 2004 under the Equity Incentive Plan, non-employee directors receive quarterly, automatic, non-
discretionary grants of stock units with an initial value of $21,250. The number of units granted depends on the
fair market value of the Company’s common stock on the grant date but each stock unit has an initial value equal
to the fair market value of one share of common stock on the grant date. Non-employee director grants of stock
units vest on the earlier of the fifth anniversary of the applicable grant date or upon termination of board service.
Dun'ng 2004, an additional 2,000,000 shares were authorized by the Board of Directors for future option grants.
Generally, options are granted with an exercise price equal to the market value on the date of grant, expire ten
years from the grant date and have a three-year vesting period.

The following is a summary of the stock option activity in the Equity Incentive Plan for the years ended:

2004 2003 2002

Weighted - Weighted Weighted
Shares Average Shares Average Shares Average
- Under Exercise Under Exercise Under Exercise

Cption Price Option Price Option Price
Outstanding at beginning of year ........ 5,871,981 $26.39 5,267,379 $25.00 5,297,716 $21.67
Granted ............... e e 1,389,271 $39.70 1,322,006 $28.47 951,701 $35.66
Exercised ....... S (1,236,800) $21.96 (648,791) $19.16 (937,800) $16.62
Forfeited . .....c.v.viviennnnenenn... (172,660) $34.62 (68,613) $30.87 (44,148) $32.05
Outstanding at end of year ............. 5,851,792 $30.33 5,871,981 $26.36 5,267,379 $25.00
Exercisable at yearend ................ 3,677,572 $27.16 3,706,576 $24.02 2,844,206 $20.95

Weighted-average fair value of options :

granted . ..... o $14.86 $12.09 $15.57

Reserved for’ futute grants ............. 7,394,374 — 6,713,604 — 8,040,008 —
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The weighted-average remaining contractual life of options outstanding as of December 31, 2004 was 6.2
years, and the range of exercise price on those options was $8.79 to $43.96.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan—The PMI Group, Inc. Employee Stock Purchase Plan (“ESPP”) allows
eligible employees to purchase shares of the Company’s stock at a 15% discount to fair market value as
determined by the plan. The ESPP offers participants the 15% discount to current fair market value or fair market
value with a look-back provision of the lesser of the duration an employee has participated in the ESPP or two
years. Under the ESPP, the Company sold 96,021 treasury shares in 2004, 70,493 treasury shares in 2003 and
66,635 treasury shares in 2002. The Company applies APB No. 25 in accounting for the ESPP. The Company’s
adoption of SFAS No. 123(R) will require expense recognition of the amount of the discount to current fair value
of ESPP shares purchased by employees. The Company does not expect the effect of the adoption to be material
as it relates to the ESPP.

NOTE 19. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

In October 2003, the Company announced that it had reached a definitive agreement to sell APTIC for
$115.1 million in cash. In accordance with SFAS No. 144, the results of operations for APTIC were classified as
discontinued operations for the fourth quarter of 2003 with prior periods adjusted for comparability. The
Company recognized an after-tax gain of $30.1 million upon completion of the sale of APTIC on March 19,
2004. In December 2004, the Company reduced its gain on sale of APTIC by $1.1 million after tax related to the
true-up of the Company’s pension liability due to settlement accounting triggered by the sale of APTIC as
previously discussed in Note 17. Benefit Plans.

The results of operations of APTIC for the years ended:

2004 2003 2002
(Dollars in thousands)

Total TEVENUES . .ot $54,456 $304,231 $239,993
Losses and loss adjustment €Xpenses . . ... .c.vvuiur vt e, 2,683 19,943 11,325
Other underwriting and operating eXpenses . ... ........vuvreneeeeenn.n.. 46,017 257,395 208,040
Income before income taxes from discontinued operations .. ............... 5,756 26,893 20,628
Income taxes . ... ..o e e 1,958 7,186 7,199
Income from discontinued operations .................coiiiiiiiiin... 3,798 19,707 13,429
Gain on sale of discontinued operations, net of income taxes of $16,536 ...... 29,003 — —
Total income from discontinued operations .......................... $32,801 $ 19,707 $ 13,429

The assets and liabilities of APTIC as of December 31, 2003 were as follows:

| 2003
(Dollars in thousands)

Assets

Cash and INVESIMENTS . . oot v et e e e e e e e e e e $101,577

Accounts receivables and other assets . ............cci ... 16,285

TOtal ASSELS . .. ottt $117,862

Liabilities .

Reserve for losses and loss adjustment expenses ..................... $ 29,145

Accounts payables and other liabilities ............ .. ... ... ... ... 15,072

Total Habilities .. ...t $ 44,217
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NOTE 20.. BUSINESS SEGMENTS

Transactlons between segments are not deemed significant. The following tables present information for
reported segment 1ncome or loss and segment assets as of and for the penods indicated:

Py
Co Year Ended December 31, 2004

U.S.
Mortgage -
Insurance International ©  Financial . Consolidated
o QOperations Operations ~ Guaranty Other Total
‘ R L (Dollars in thousands)

Revenues e , o S ‘
Premiumis earned . ... '. e $ 634,004 $ 1363218 — $ 74 $ 770,399
Net mvestment 1ncome PR 102,230 47,091 — 19,288 168,609
Equity in earmngs from unconsohdated _ o

subsidiaries. . ..... ... 15,280 — 67,844 430 83,554
Reahzed cap1ta1 loss on. equrty investment held I

for Sale .. ot — — — (20,420) (20,420)
Net reahzed 1nvestment gams and other o

income P 2,629 7,937 — 25,528 36,094

Total revenues U e 754,143 191,349 67,844 24900 1,038,236
Losses and expenses : 7 i
Lossesand loss adJustment expenses ......... 233,157 4,125 — — 237,282
Amortization of deferred pohcy acquisition ' ‘

COStS. . ... ... P 72,129 13,087 — — 85,216
Other underwrmng and operatmg expenses ce 101,387 31,388 — 71,920 204,695
Litigation settlement refund ................ (2,574) — — — (2,574)
Interest expense e e e 62 - 73 — 34,491 34,626

‘th,a»l losses and expenses .. ... e 404,161 48,673 — 106,411 559,245
Income (loss) from cOntinuing operations before ‘

income taxes .................. ...l ‘ 349,982 142,676 67,844  (81,511) 478,991
Income tax (beneﬁt) from continuing :

operatlons O 95,467 42,761 7,142 (32911) 112,459
Income (loss) from continuing operations after ‘ '

INCOME LAXES &0 v v et vt et e et eiee e ‘ 254,515 99,915 60,702  (48,600) 366,532
Income from discentinued operations before . '

income taxes . .... e — — — 5,756 5,756
Income taxes from diséontinued operations .. ... = — — 1,958 1,958
Income from discontinued operatlons after ‘

mcome taxes e — — — 3,798 3,798
Gain on sale of drscontrnued operations after ‘ ‘

income taxes of $16,536 ...t — — — 29,003 29,003

Net income (f0ss) .................... - $ 254,515 $ 99915 § 60,702 $(15,799) $ 399,333
Total assets L $2,540,303 $1,114,198 $774,880 $716,586 $5,145,967
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Year Ended December 31, 2003

U.S.
Mortgage
Insurance International  Financial Consolidated
Operations Operations Guaranty Other Total
(Dollars in thousands)
Revenues:
Premiums earned ............ ... ... ... ..., $ 592,814 $104028 §$§ — § 86 $ 696,928
Net investmentincome .................... 103,083 31,314 — 15,382 149,779
Equity in earnings (losses) from unconsolidated
subsidiaries .......... ... . oL 13,575 — 6,587  (15,565) 4,597
Net realized investment gains and other
INCOME . ..ottt 1,825 398 — 38,194 40,417
Totalrevenues ...................... 711,297 135,740 6,587 38,097 891,721
Losses and expenses:
Losses and loss adjustment expenses ......... 214,684 (5,596) — — 209,088
Amortization of deferred policy acquisition 8
COSIS « v vttt e et e e 78,877 10,450 — — 89,327
Other underwriting and operating expenses . . .. 72,173 20,322 — 83,198 175,693
Interest expense and distribution on mandatorily
redeemable preferred securities ........... 167 5 — 24,319 24,491
Total losses and expenses ............. 365,901 25,181 —_ 107,517 498,599
Income (loss) from continuing operations before
INCOME taXes .. ......vvuvinninnnnnennnn 345,396 110,559 6,587  (69.,420) 393,122
Income tax (benefit) from continuing
OPETations .....v'vvineenineeannnnns 99,903 31,912 1,645 (14,646) 118,814
Income (loss) from continuing operations after
INCOME tAXES . . vt e i i e 245,493 78,647 4,942 (54,774) 274,308
Income from discontinued operations before
INCOME tAXES. . .\ vv vt — — — 26,893 26,893
Income taxes from discontinued operations .. .. — — — 7.186 7,186
Income from discontinued operations . ........ — — — 19,707 19,707
Income (loss) before extraordinary item ... .... 245,493 78,647 4942  (35,067) 294,015
Extraordinary gain on write off of negative ,
goodwill, net of income taxes of $408 ...... — — 5,418 — 5,418
Netincome (loss) .................... $ 245493 $ 78,647 $ 10,360 $(35,067) $ 299,433
Totalassets ......................... $2,467,732 $905,805 $700,828 $719,924 $4,794,289
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Revenues: ‘ . ‘
Premiums earned. . . . . e
Net investment income e S
Equity in earnings from unconsolidated
subsidiaries . ... .. e
Net realized mvestment (Iosses) gains and other
Come ., ...

'ITotaI revenues .. .. .. P

Losses and expenses: .
Losses and loss adjustment expenses . .........
Amomzanon of deferred policy acquisition
costs R
Other underwntmg and operatmg expenses .. ...
Lease abandonment and other relocation costs . .
Litigation settlement charge .................
Interest expense and distribution on preferred
securities . ........... P

Total Hosses andl expenses ..............

Income (loss) from contmumo operations before
income taxes ) i, .........................

Income tax expense (beneﬁt) from contmumg
operanons e

Income from contmumg operations . ..........

Income from d1scont1nued operations before
incometaxes " . oL . i
Income taxes from discontinued operations . . ...

Income from dlscontlnued operations .........

Income before cumulatwe effect of a change in
accounting pr1nc1p1e e

Cumulative effect of achange in accounting
prmc1p1e ...... P

Netmcome ..................

TotaIassets .......

Year Ended December 31, 2002

U.S.
Mortgage ;

Insurance International Financial Consolidated
Operations Operations  Guaranty Other Total
(Dollars in thousands)
$ 611,112 $ 65650 $ — $ ° 95 $ 676857
86,525 14,994 — 19,062 120,581
12,433 — 4,235. 27,557 44,225
(2,241) 4,179 - —_ 38,517 40,455
707,829 84,823 4,235 85,231 882,118
149,856 7,586“ ‘ 133 157,575
76,525 6,891 — —_ 83,416
56,087 13,169 — 75,621 144,877
9,280 — — 2,903 12,183
12,222 — — — 12,222

162 6 — 21,516 21,684
304,132 27,652 — 100,173 431,957
403,697 57,171 4,235 (14,942) 450,161
122,896 15,974 1,482 (15,807) 124,545
230,801 41,197 2,753 865 325,616
— —  — 20628 20,628

_ - — 7.199 7,199

— — — 13,429 13,429
280,801 41,197 2,753 14,294 339,045
— 7,172 — — 7,172

$ 280,801 $ 48,369 $ 2,753 $ 14,294 $ 346,217
$2,202,354  $540,385 . $45,633 $728,677 $3,517,049
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NOTE 21. STATUTORY ACCOUNTING

The Company’s domestic insurance subsidiaries prepare statutory-basis financial statements in accordance
with the accounting practices prescribed or permitted by their respective state’s department of insurance, which is
a comprehensive basis of accounting other than GAAP.

PMT’s statutory net income, statutory surplus and contingency reserve liability as of and for the years ended:

2004 2003 2002
(Dollars in thousands)
Statutory NetINCOME . .. .. oottt e e e $ 323938 $ 293532 $ 398,562
Statutory Surplus ... ... e e $ 750,884 $ 608,782 $ 366,738
Contingency reserve liability ........... ... .. .. .. e, $2,401,452 $2,217,484 $2,055,183

Under the insurance laws of the State of Arizona and several other states, mortgage insurers are required to
establish a special contingency reserve included in total liabilities, with annual additions equal to 50% of
premiums earned for that year, During 2004, PMI contributed $319.7 million to the reserve. This reserve is
required to be maintained for a period of 120 months to protect against the effects of adverse economic cycles.
After 120 months, the reserve is released to unassigned funds. During 2004, $135.7 million was released to
unassigned funds. In the event an insurer’s loss ratio in any calendar year exceeds 35%, however, the insurer may
withdraw from its contingency reserves an amount equal to the excess portion of such losses.

NOTE 22. CAPITAL SUPPORT AGREEMENTS

PMFI’s claims-paying ratings from certain national rating agencies have been based on various capital
support commitments from Allstate (“Allstate Support Agreements”). On October 27, 1994, the Allstate Support
Agreements were terminated with respect to policies issued after October 27, 1994, but continue in modified
form (as so modified, the “Runoff Support Agreement”) for policies written prior to such termination. Under the
terms of the Runoff Support Agreement, Allstate may, at its option, either directly pay or cause to be paid, claims
relating to policies written during the terms of the respective Allstate Support Agreements if PMI fails to pay
such claims o, in lieu thereof, make contributions directly to PMI or The PMI Group. In the event any amounts
are paid or contributed, which possibility management believes is remote, Allstate would receive subordinated
debt or preferred stock of PMI or The PMI Group in return. No payment obligations have arisen under the
Runoff Support Agreement. The Runoff Support Agreement provides PMI with additional capital support for
rating agency purposes.

The Runoff Support Agreement contains certain covenants, including covenants that (i) PMI will write no
new business after its risk-to-capital ratio equals or exceeds 23 to 1; (ii) PMI will pay no dividends if, after the
payment of any such dividend, PMI’s risk-to-capital ratio would equal or exceed 23 to 1; and (iii) on the date that
any of the following events occur: (a) PMI’s risk-to-capital ratio exceeds 24.5 to 1, (b) Allstate shall have paid
any claims relating to PMI policies directly to a policyholder or by paying an amount equal to such claims to
PMI, or to The PMI Group for contribution to PMI, pursuant to the Runoff Support Agreement, or (¢} any
regulatory order is issued restricting or prohibiting PMI from making full or timely payments under policies, PMI
will transfer substantially all of its assets in excess of $50.0 million to a trust account established for the payment
of claims. As of December 31, 2004, less than $0.3 billion of RIF was subject to the Runoff Support Agreement.

In 2001, PMI executed a capital support agreement whereby it agreed to contribute funds, under specified
conditions, to maintain CMG’s risk-to-capital at or below 18.0 to 1. PMI’s obligation under the agreement is
limited to an aggregate amount of $37.7 million, exclusive of capital contributions made prior to April 10, 2001.
A 1999 CMG capital support agreement was superseded by execution of the new agreement. On December 31,
2004, CMG’s risk-to capital ratio was 13.0 to 1.

138




‘ THE PMI GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

PMI has entered. into capital support agreements with its European and Australian subsidiaries that could
requlre PMI to make additional capital contributions to those subsidiaries in order to maintain their credit ratings.
With respect to’ the European and Australian subsidiaries, the Company guarantees the performance of PMI's
capltal support agreements.

As of Decernber 31, 2004, the Company was in compliance with all covenants included in its capital support
agreements. ‘

NOTE 23 CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF SIGNIFICANT UNCONSOLIDATED
SUBSIDIARIES

The followmg condensed financial statement information represents the Company s proportionate share and
has been presented on a combined basis for all equity investees and unconsolidated majority owned subsidiaries
accounted for under the equity method as of and for the years ended:

Unconsolidated Majority

Equity Investees Owned Subsidiaries
" Asof December 31, As of December 31,
2004 2003 2004 2003

. N (Dollars in thousands)
Condensed Combined Balance Sheets

Assets: s o ‘
Cash and cash equivalents . ........... P § 38,895 $ 37,008 $ 19,763 $ 24,806
Investments'....... PP 1,620,858 1,347,241 51,593 51,593
Accrued_investment INCOME ... e 18,078 15,914 — —
Deferred policy acquisition costs ................... 31,763 17,251 — —
Servicing assets .. ... — — 39,896 69,538
Accounts receivable and other assets ................ 73,419 71901 209,872 215,062
Total aSsets . ... .........ooooneeeeni i, $1,783,013 $1,489,315 $321,124 $360,999
Liabilities: ‘
Reserves for losses and loss adjustment expenses . . .. .. $ 25308 $ 23726 § — $ —
Unearned premiums ............... ... ... 482,443 422,454 —_ —
“Notes payable .............. ... 197,573 05,648 184,767 207,699
Accounts payable and other liabilities ............... 61,524 28,143 30,202 69,940
. Total habllltles ............................. - 766,848 569,971 214,969 277,639
Shareholders’ QUILY ... 1,016,165 919,344 106,155 83,360
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity ... .. .. $1,783,013 $1,489,315 $321,124 $360,999
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Year Ended December 31, Year Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2004 2003
(Dollars in thousands)

Condensed Combined Statements of Operations

GIOSS TEVENULS « oo v v et et eee e e e ee s $163,693 $48,525 $107,024 $163,973
Total eXpenses . ............eeuneeniennin.. 47,432 19,493 106,065 192,900
Income (loss) before income taxes and

extraordinary item ....................... 116,261 29,032 959 (28,927)
Income tax expense (benefit) ................. 26,243 6,508 546 (11,264)
Income (loss) before extraordinary item ........ 90,018 22,524 413 (17,663)
Extraordinary gain on write off of negative

goodwill, net of income taxes . .............. — 5,418 —_ —
Net income (loss) . e . 90,018 27,942 413 (17,663)
Preferred stock dividend ... .................. 6,877 264 _— —
Net income available (loss attributable) to

common share¢holders ................... $ 83,141 $27,678 $ 413 $(17,663)

The unconsolidated majority owned subsidiaries are comprised of the Company’s equity investment held for
sale (SPS) and PMI Capital 1. As of December 31, 2004, included in the Company’s retained earnings were
$121.0 million of undistributed equity in earnings from existing equity investees with ownership interest of 50%
or less. '
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NOTE 24. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)

A summary of selected quarterly results follows:

2004 First Second Third Fourth Year
- 3 A (Dollars in thousands, expect per share data)
Continuing operations: ‘

Revenues. .. ......... ..o iiiiieiiinnennn.. $254,567 3$264,736 $266,171 $252,762 $1,038,236
Netincome .........ovveiiinineinnneennnn.. $ 85,563 3% 96,675 $102,643 $ 81,651 $ 366,532
BasicEPS ... ... . $ 09 $ 101 $ 107 & 086 $ 3.84
DilutedEPS ... ... ... ... .. .o i $ 08 % 093 $ 099 § 080 $ 3.55
Discontinued operations:

Incomebefore tax . ........oovuinnnnann, $ 5756 § — §$ — § — $ 5756
Netincome ........ ... ... ..., $ 379 §8 — $ — §& — $ 3798
BasicEPS ... ... $§ 004§ — $ — & — 3§ 0.04
Diluted EPS ........ ... . ... $ 004 %8 — § — $§ — 3 0.04
Gain on sale of discontinued operations:

Gain (loss) on sale of APTIC .................. $ 30,108 $ — 5 — $ (1,105 $ 29,003
BasicEPS ... ... $ 03§ — $ — & (©OOL 0.30
DilutedEPS ... ... . ... . ... . $ 0298 — $ — § (001 S 0.28
Total operations:

Netincome . .........c.oiineennneneannennn... $119,469 § 96,675 $102,643 § 80,546 $ 399,333
BasicEPS ... ... ... $ 125§ 101 $ 107 § 08 § 4.18
Diluted EPS ... ... ... .. ... ... ... . $ 116 § 093 $ 09 § 079 §% 3.87
Effectof CoCo™s .........coviiiiii $ 007 $§ 006 $ 006 § 005 $ 0.24
Diluted EPS as previously reported . ............ $ 123 § 099 § 105 $§ 084 S 4.11
2003 First Second Third Fourth Year
- (Dollars in thousands, expect per share data)
Continuing operations:

Revenues ......... ... ... ... $229,847 $224,443 $204,682 $232,749 §$ 891,721
Netincome ......... ... ccciiiiniiuininnann. $ 86,616 $ 66,333 $ 55422 $ 71,355 §$ 279,726
BasicEPS ... ... ... ... .. § 098 § 074 $ 063 $§ 076 % 3.11
Diluted EPS . ....... ... ... . $§ 09 $ 070 $ 058 & 071 § 2.89
Discontinued operations:

Revenues . ..., $ 63,576 $ 74,077 $ 83,111 $ 80,127 $ 300,891
Netincome ........... i, $ 2992 $§ 3,124 $ 4710 $ 8,881 § 19,707
BasicEPS ... ... ... .. . $ 003 § 004 $ 005 & 010 § 0.22
Diluted EPS ... ... ... .. .. $ 003 $§ 003 $ 005 & 009 § 0.20
Total operations:

Netincome ........... ... c.civiinieenann.... $ 89,608 $ 69,457 $ 60,132 $ 80,236 $ 299,433
BasicEPS ... ... ... ... $§ 101 $§ 078 $ 068 $§ 086 § 333
Diluted EPS ... ... .. ... . . .. $ 093 $§ 073 $ 063 $ 080 § 3.09
Effectof CoCo’s ... .. $ 007 $ 004 $ 004 $ 005 § 0.20
Diluted EPS as previously reported ............. $ 100 $ 077 $ 067 $ 085 § 3.29

EITF No. 04-8 requires the dilutive effect of CoCo’s be included in dilutive earnings per share regardless of
whether the triggering contingency based on the market price of the issuer’s shares has been satisfied. This
change in accounting principle was applied on a retroactive basis for all periods presented. Therefore, the
Company restated all prior period dilutive earnings per share. The quarter and year ended December 31, 2004
diluted EPS excluding the effect of CoCo’s is presented for comparative purposes only. Refer to Note 3. New

Accounting Standards for further discussion.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures—Based on their evaluation as of December 31, 2004,
our principal executive officer and principal financial officer have concluded that, as of the end of the period
covered by this report, our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934) were effective.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting—Management’s report is
contained in Item § of this report.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting—There were no changes in our internal control

over financial reporting that occurred during our most recent fiscal quarter that have materially affected, or are
reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information

None.
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PART III

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

The information concerning The PMI Group’s directors, including audit committee financial experts, as
well as certain other‘inf‘ormation concerning our executive officers, as required by this Item is incorporated by
reference from The PMI Group’s Proxy Statement for its 2005 Annual Meeting of Stockholders under the
captions “Nominees For Director of The PMI Group,” “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting
Compliance” and “Further Information Concerning the Board of Directors.” Information regarding Executive
Officers of The PMI Group is included in a separate item captioned “Executive Officers of the Registrant” in Part
1 of this report, which is incorporated by reference herein.

The PMI Group has adopted a code of ethics that ap"plies to The PMI Group’s principal executive officer,
principal financial officer, and principal accounting officer and controller. The code of ethics is available on The
PMI Group’s website address at http://www.pmigroup.com. The PMI Group intends to disclose any amendment
to, or waiver from, a provision of the code of éthics by posting such information on its website.

Certain other documents relating to The PMI Group’s corporate governance, including the Code of Business
and Ethics, Wthh i applicable to The PMI Group’s directors, officers and employees, the Board’s Guidelines on
Significant Corporate Governance Issues, and the charters of the Audit Committee, Compensation Committee
and Governance and Nominating Committee of The PMI Group Board of Dlrectors are available on The PMI
Group’s website address at http://www.pmigroup.com. On June 2, 2004, we submitted to the New York Stock
Exchange an unqualiﬁed Annual CEO Certification pursuant to Section 303A.12(a) of the NYSE’s Listed
Company Manual.

Iterh 11.- Executive Compensation

The infohnatien required by this Item is incorporated by reference from The PMI Group’s Proxy Statement
for its 2005 Annual Meeting of Stockholders under the captions “Directors—Compensation and Benefits,”
“Executive Compensation” and “Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participants.”

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
- Matters

The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference from The PMI Group’s Proxy Statement
for its 2005 Annual Meeting of Stockholders under the caption “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial
Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters.”

Item 13. ‘Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference from The PMI Group’s Proxy Statement
for its 2005 Annual Meetmg of Stockholders under the caption “Certain Relationships and Related Transactions.”

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference from The PMI Group’s Proxy Statement
for its' 2005 Annual Meeting of Stockholders under the caption “Item 2: Ratification of Appointment of
Independent Audltors
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

1. Financial Statements: The following financial statements are included in Item 8.
Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm on Internal Control Over Financial
Reporting
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2004 and 2003
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and
2002
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Financial Statement Schedules: The financial statement schedules listed below immediately precede
the Index to Exhibits and are filed as part of this Form 10-K. All other schedules are omitted because
of the absence of conditions under which they are required or because the required information is
included in the consolidated financial statements or notes thereto.

Schedule II — Condensed Financial Information of Registrant
Schedule IIT — Supplementary Insurance Information

Schedule TV — Reinsurance

3. Exhibits: Exhibits listed in the accompanying Index to Exhibits are filed as part of this Form 10-K.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
registrant has duly caused this Report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authorized, in the City of Walnut Creek, State of California, on the 11th day of March, 2005.

THE PMI Group, INC.

By: /s{ W.ROGER HAUGHTON

W. Roger Haughton
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer

lslirsuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed
below bykthe.follow\ing persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

 Name Tide Date
/s/ 'W. ROGER HAUGHTON Chairman of the Board and Chief March 11, 2005
' . W. Roger Haughton Executive Officer
/s/ DoNALD P. LOFE, JRr. Executive Vice President, Chief March 11, 2005
Donald P. Lofe, Jr. .Financial Officer and Assistant
Secretary (Principal Financial
Officer)
/s/  BRIAN P. SHEA Senior Vice President, Corporate March 11, 2005
Brian P. Shea Controller and Assistant Secretary

(Principal Accounting Officer)

/s/{ L. STEPHEN SMITH Director, President and Chief March 11, 2005

L. Stephen Smith Operating Officer
/s/  MARIANN BYERWALTER Director March 11, 2005
Mari?ann Byerwalter ‘

/s/ DR. JAMES C. CASTLE Director March 11, 2005
" Dr. James C. Castle

/s/ CARMINE GUERRO Director March 11, 2005

Carmine Guerro

/s/_WaYNE E. HEDIEN | Director March 11, 2005
Wayne E. Hedien :

Js/  Louis G. LOWER II Director March 11, 2005
Louis G. Lower IT

/s/ RaymonD L. OcamMmpo JR. Director : March 11, 2005
Raymbr‘nd L. Ocampo Jr.

/s/  JoHN D. RoACH | Director March 11, 2005
John‘b. Roach
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Name

/s/ DR. KENNETH T. ROSEN

Dr. Kenneth T. Rosen

/s/  STEVEN L. SCHEID

Steven L. Scheid

/s/ RICHARD L. THOMAS

Richard L. Thomas

/s/ MaryY LEE WIDENER

Mary Lee Widener

/s/ RONALD H. ZECH

Ronald H. Zech

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director
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THE PMI GROUP, INC.

SCHEDULE II-—CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT

CONDENSED BALANCE SHEETS

PARENT COMPANY ONLY
As of December 31,
2004 2003
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)
ASSETS
Fixed income securities available-for-sale, at fair value (amortized
cost of $344,612.and $200,431) (Note B) .................... $ 347,548 $ 211,234
Cash dnd cash equivalents . ................ccocvviiiiinn... 93,677 96,683
Investments in subsidiaries ......... ... i 3,537,483 3,304,680
Other @ssets ... .........vitiiiii i 51,151 65,939
Totalassets ................ ... $4,029,859 $3,678,536
LIABILITIES ‘
Long-termdebt MNote C) . ...t $ 819,529 $ 819,543
Other liabilities .. ... ... 72,575 74,964
Total liabilities .................. P 892,104 894,507
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Preferred stock—$0.01 par value; 5,000,000 shares authorized; none
issuedoroutstanding . .......... . ... — —
Common stock—3$0.01 par:value; 250,000,000 shares authorized;
111,336,954 shares issued; 94,025,274 and 95,161,721 shares
outstanding ... 1,114 1,114
Additional paid-incapital ........ .. .. . .. 455,450 441,508
Treasury stock, at cost (17,31 1,680 and 16,175,233 shares) ....... (421,810) (344,195)
Retained earnings e 12,816,363 2,437,576
Accumulated other comprehensive income, net of deferred taxes . .. 286,638 248,026
Total shareholders’ equity ........................ 3,137,755 2,784,029
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity ............ $4,029,859 $3,678,536

.See accompanying supplementary notes to Parent Company only condensed financial statements.
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THE PMI GROUP, INC.

SCHEDULE II—CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

PARENT COMPANY ONLY
Year ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002
(Dollars in thousands)

REVENUES
Equity in earnings from subsidiaries ............. .. ... . L $417,038 $325,295 $356,493
Investment INCOME . ... .ottt e e e e e e 18,624 14,127 19,671
Net realized investment gains (10SSeS) ... ..., (555) 1,359 12
Realized capital loss on equity investment held for sale (Note D) .......... (20,420) — —
Realized capital loss on sale of unconsolidated subsidiary (Note D) ........ — (3,116) —
Total TEVENUES . . ... .. ... et e 414,687 337,665 376,176
EXPENSES
Underwriting and operating €Xpenses . ... .......couuerniinnonreneunnnns 30,372 26,126 21,516
Lease abandonment and relocation costs (Note E) ...................... — — 2,903
Interest expense and distributions on mandatorily redeemable preferred

1 b1 11 (= 34,491 24,576 21,772
Total eXPenses . . ... ...ttt e 64,863 50,702 46,191
Income before income tax benefit .. ................. ... ... ... ... 349,824 286,963 329,985
Incometax benefit . ... ... . ... . 20,506 7,052 9,060
Income after income tax benefit ................................... 370,330 294,015 339,045
Gain on sale of discontinued operations, net of income taxes of $16,536

Note F) Lo 29,003 — —
Income before extraordinary item and cumulative effect of a change in

accounting principle . ... ... .. ... ... 399,333 294,015 339,045
Extraordinary gain on write-off of negative goodwill, net of income

taxes of $408 . ... — 5,418 —
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle ................... — — 7.172
NET INCOME .. ... .. e e e $399,333  $299.433 $346,217

See accompanying supplementary notes to Parent Company only condensed financial statements.
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THE PMI GROUP, INC.
SCHEDULE II—CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT

'CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

PARENT COMPANY ONLY
Year ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002
. . . (Dollars in thousands)

NETINCOME .. . et ... $399,333  $299,433  $346,217
Change in 'unrealizéd gains on investments, net of deferred taxes of $1,793,

$7,172and $21,253 ... 7,316 12,559 45218
Reclassification of realized (gains) losses included in net income, net of . .

taxes ............ e e P L (361) 883 (8)
Change in_currerfpy translation gains .............. ... ... P 31,666 116,825 31,758
Other comprehensive income, net of taxes .......................... 38,621 130,267 76,968
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME .................. e oo, $437,954  $429,700 $423,185

See accompanying supplementary notes to Parent Company only condensed financial statements.
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THE PMI GROUP, INC.

SCHEDULE II—CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
PARENT COMPANY ONLY
Year ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002
(Dollars in thousands)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

NELINCOME . . . oottt e e e e e $ 399,333 $299.433 $ 346,217
Income from discontinued operations, net of income taxes .................. (3,798) — —
Gain on sale of discontinued operations, net of income taxes ................ (29,003) — —
Extraordinary gain from write-off of negative goodwill, net of income taxes . ... — (5,418) —
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle . .. ................... — — (7,172)

Income from continuing operations before extraordinary item and cumulative

effect of a change in accounting principle .......... ... ... ... ... ..... 366,532 294,015 339,045
Adjustments to reconcile net income before extraordinary item and cumulative

effect of a change in accounting principle to net cash provided by operating

activities:
Equity in earnings from subsidiaries . .............. . ... .. ... (417,038) (325,295) (356,493)
Net realized investment (gains) and losses .............. ... ..c.vn.. 555 (1,359) 12)
Realized capital loss on equity investment held forsale . ................ 20,420 — —
Realized capital loss on sale of unconsolidated subsidiary ............... — 3,116 —
AMOTHZAION . ..ot e 1,336 3,045 1,068
Changes in:
Payable to affiliates . ......... ... ... . . 2,588 5,655 (3,593)
Other .. 72,844 (25,591) 15,643
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities .......... 47,237 (46,414) (4,342)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sales and maturities of fixed income securities . . .............. 62,292 208,508 212,624
Proceeds from sales of equity securities .............. ... ... .. o il — 29 —_
Proceeds from sale of investments in affiliates ... ......................... — 6,500 —
Purchases of fixed income SeCUrItES .. ... vi it i (93,802) (134,570) (158,721)
Net change in short-term investments .. ...t en.n. (115,000) — —
Investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries .............................. — (643,109)  (72,326)
Change in related party receivable ........ ... .. ... .. ... .. ... . .. (20,542) — —
Dividends received from subsidiaries (Note G) . ....... ... ..o, 163,000 108,400 102,500
Net cash (used in) provided by continuing operations .............. (4,052) (454,242) 84,077
Net effect of discontinued operations . ..................ovvv... 33,234 — —
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities .......... 29,182  (454,242) 84,077
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net proceeds from issuance of long-termdebt ............ ... ... ... .. ... — 334,650 —
Repayment of long-termdebt ......... ... .. ... .. .. . .. (14) — —
Net proceeds from issuance of commonstock ............................ — 207,918 —
Purchase of treasury stock .. ... ..ot e (99,998)  (19,719)  (26,807)
Proceeds from issuance of treasury stock .......... ... i i 36,325 17,617 18,946
Dividends paid to shareholders .. ....... ... ... . . . . (15,738) (11,734) 8,179)
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities .......... (79,425) 528,732 (16,040)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents .................... (3,006) 28,076 63,695
Cash and cash equivalents at beginningof year . ... ..................... 96,683 68,607 4,912
Cash and cash equivalentsatend of year .............................. $ 93,677 $ 96,683 $ 68,607

See accompanying supplementary notes to Parent Company only condensed financial statements.
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THE PMI GROUP, INC.
SCHEDULE II - CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT

"PARENT COMPANY ONLY
SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES

A. Basis of Pfeseritation

The accompanying The PMI Group, Inc. (“Parent Company”) condensed financial statements should be
read in conjunction ‘with Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data of this Form 10-K. The Parent
Company’s subsidiaries are presented using the equity method of accountmo Net income of these subsidiaries is
reported as equity in net income of subsidiaries.

Certain amounts apphcable to prior years have been reclassified to conform to classifications followed in
2004.

The preparation of Condensed Financial Statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the fmancml statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results may differ from those estimates.

B. Investments

The Parent Company classifies its fixed income securities as available-for-sale, and as such, they are carried
at fair value. The amortized cost of fixed income securities is adjusted for amortization of premiums and
accretion of discounts to maturity, which are included in net investment income. Changes in fair value are
reported as a component of other comprehensive income. The Parent Company’s investments in fixed income
securities are. composed of corporate borids and agency securities.

C. Long-Term Debt |

Debt is composed of the following obligations at December 31 2004:

2004 2003
S ‘ (In thousands)
2.50% Senior Convertible Debentures, due July 15,2021 .................. $359,986 $360,000
3.00% Senior Notes, due November 15,2008 .................. R 345,000 345,000
6.75% Senior Notes due November 15,2006 ....... .. ... 0. 62,950 62,950
8.309%. Junior Subordinated Debentures, due February 1,2027 ............. 51,593 51,593
 Totallong-termdebt ................. i $819,529 $819,543

In December 2004, the Parent Company entered into a five-year $175.0 million revolving credit facility
agreement with Bank of America, N.A. and a consortium of lenders. The interest rate is LIBOR plus a margin.
The agreement provides the availability of additional liquidity and capital which the Parent Company can utilize
for working capital, capital expenditures and other business purposes. The facility may be increased by
$25.0 million to $200.0 million at the Parent Company’s request subject to approval by the lenders. The credit
facility contains certain financial covenants and restrictions, including debt-to-capital and risk-to-capital ratio
thresholds. The Parent Company was in compliance with all debt covenants for the year ended December 31,
2004. There were no amounts related to this facility outstanding as of December 31, 2004.
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D. Realized Capital Loss on Subsidiaries

In January 2005, the Parent Company signed a Summary of Terms with Credit Suisse First Boston (USA),
Inc. (“CSFB”) to enter in a strategic transaction with Select Portfolio Servicing Inc. and its parent SPS Holding
Corp. (“SPS”). Under the Summary of Terms, CSFB received an option to acquire 100% of the Parent
Company’s outstanding stock of SPS. Based on the proposed purchase price, the Parent Company recorded an
impairment of its equity investment in SPS of $20.4 million pre-tax as of December 31, 2004. The impairment
was recorded as a realized capital loss on equity investment held for sale due to the Parent Company’s decision
to dispose of its stock of SPS.

In 2003, the Parent Company sold its ownership in Truman Capital Founders LLC for $6.5 million, resulting
in a realized capital loss of $3.6 million pre-tax.

E. Lease Abandonment and Relocation Costs

In August 2002, the Parent Company relocated its home office. The remaining rent owed on its former home
office lease was accrued as a charge along with certain other relocation expenses in 2002,

F. Discontinued Operations

In October 2003, the Parent Company entered into an agreement to sell its title insurance operations
American Pioneer Title Insurance Company (“APTIC”), for $115.1 million in cash. In accordance with
accounting guidance, the result of operations for APTIC were classified as discontinued operations beginning in
the fourth quarter of 2003. In 2004, we recognized an after-tax gain of $29.0 million relating to the sale of
APTIC on March 19, 2004. No results related to APTIC have been recorded in the condensed statements of
operations for the last three quarters of 2004.

G. Dividends from Subsidiaries

During 2004, 2003 and 2002, the Parent Company received $150.0 million, $108.4 million and $102.5
million, respectively, of extraordinary cash dividends. In addition, APTIC paid $13.0 million in dividends to the
Parent Company in the first quarter of 2004 prior to the sale of APTIC.
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Premiums Earned

2004
Mortgage Guaranty

2003
Mortgage Guaranty

2002
Mortgage Guaranty

THE PMI GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
SCHEDULE IV - REINSURANCE
Years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002

Assumed Percentage
from Ceded to of Amount
Gross Other Other Net Assumed
Amount Companies Companies Amount to Net

(In thousands, except percentages)

..................... $927,553 $ 7,931 $165,085 $770,399 1.0%
..................... $834,725 $12,364 $150,161 $696,928 1.8%

..................... $777.542  $ 1,049 $101,734 $676,857 0.2%

S-8




Exhibit -
Number

31

3.1a

32
4.1
4.2

43

4.4

4.5

4.5a

4.6

4.7

4.8
10.1*
10.2%

10.3%

INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Description of Exhibits

Réstéted Certiﬁcate of Incorporation (incorporated by reference to- Amendment No. 1 to Form S-1,
filed with the SEC on March 2, 1995).

Certificate of Amendment of Certificate of Incorporation (incorporated by reference to the
registrant’s quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2002
(File No. 001-13664), as amended).

Amended-and Restated Bylaws (incorporated by reference to the registrant’s annual report on Form
10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002 (File No. 001-13664)).

- “Specimen common stock certificate (incorporated by reference to Amendment No. 1 to Form S-1,

filed with the SEC on March 2, 1995).

Indenture dated as of November 19, 1996, between The PMI Group, Inc. and The Bank of New

York, as Trustee, in connection with the sale of $100,000,000 aggregate principal amount of 64%
. Notes due November 15, 2006 (incorporated by reference to the registrant’s current report on
_Form 8-K, filed with the SEC on November 27, 1996 (File No. 001-13664).

Junior Subordinated Indenture, dated as of February 4, 1997, between The PMI Group, Inc. and The
.‘Bank of New York, Inc., as Trustee (incorporated by reference to the registrant’s annual report on
Form'10-K for the year ended December 31, 1996 (File No. 001-13664)).

Rights Agreement (including form of rights certificate and certificate of designation) dated as of

| anua‘ry 26, 1998, between The PMI Group, Inc. and ChaseMellon Shareholder Services L.L.C.
(incorporated by reference to the registrant’s Form 8-A12B, filed with the SEC on February 2,
1998 (File No. 001-13664)).

Indenture dated as of July 16, 2001 between The PMI Group, Inc. and The Bank of New York, as
Trustee (incorporated by reference to the registrant’s current report on Form 8-K, filed with the
SEC on July 18,2001 (File No. 001- 13664))

'Frrst Supplemental Indenture dated as of May 28, 2003 to the Indenture dated as of July 16, 2001,
between The PMI Group, Inc. and The Bank of New York, as trustee (incorporated by reference to
exhlbrt 10.24 to the registrant’s quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2003
(Flle No 001-13664)).

Resale Rogrstratron Rights Agreemerlt, dated as of July 16, 2001, among The PMI Group, Inc., Bank
~of America Securities LLC and Lehman Brothers Inc. (incorporated by reference to the registrant’s
current report on Form 8-K, filed with the SEC on July 18, 2001 (File No. 001-13664)).

~ Indenture, dated as of November 3, 2003, between The PMI Group, Inc. and The Bank of New York,

" ‘as trustee (incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.30 to the registrant’s annual report on Form
10- K for the year ended December 31, 2003 (File No. 001-13664)).

_Supplemental Indenture No. 1, dated as of November 3, 2003, between The PMI Group, Inc. and The
Bank of New York, as trustee (incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.31 to the registrant’s annual
‘ report on‘ Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003 (File No. 001-13664)).

The PMI Group, Inc. Bonus Incentive Plan, effective as of J anuary 1, 2004 (incorporated by
" reference to the registrant’s proxy statement filed with the SEC on April 22, 2004
. (File No. 001213664)). :

" 'The PMI Group, Inc. Amended and Restated Equity Incentive Plan, effective as of May 27, 2004

(mcorporated by reference to the reglstrant s proxy statement filed with the SEC on April 22, 2004
(File No. 001-13664)).

The PMI Group, Inc. Stock Plan for Non-Employee Directors, amended and restated as of August 16,
1999 (incorporated by reference to the registrant’s annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 1999 (File No. 001-13664)).
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Description of Exhibits

Amendment No. 1 to The PMI Group, Inc. Stock Plan for Non-Employee Directors (incorporated by
reference to the registrant’s quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2000
(File No. 001-13664)).

Amendment No. 2 to The PMI Group, Inc. Stock Plan for Non-Employee Directors (incorporated by
reference to the registrant’s Post-Effective Amendment No. 1 to Registration Statement on Form
S-8 (No. 33-99378)).

The PMI Group, Inc. Retirement Plan (July 30, 2002 Restatement) (incorporated by reference to the
registrant’s annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002 (File
No. 001-13664)).

Amendment to The PMI Group, Inc. Retirement Plan, dated March 10, 2005.

The PMI Group, Inc. Directors’ Deferred Compensation Plan, amended and restated as of July 21,
1999 (incorporated by reference to the registrant’s Form S-8 Registration Statement
(No. 333-32190), filed with the SEC on March 10, 2000).

Amendment No. 1 to The PMI Group, Inc. Directors’ Deferred Compensation Plan (incorporated by
reference to the registrant’s report on Form 8-K, dated December 20, 2004 (File No. 001-13664)).

The PMI Group, Inc. Additional Benefit Plan, effective February 18, 1999 (incorporated by reference
to exhibit 10.14 to the registrant’s quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30,
1999 (File No. 001-13664)).

The PMI Group, Inc. Officer Deferred Compensation Plan (effective July 1, 1997) (incorporated by
reference to the registrant’s proxy statement filed with the SEC on April 22, 2004 (File
No. 001-13664)).

Amendment No. 1 to The PMI Group, Inc. Officer Deferred Compensation Plan, dated December 22,
2004 (incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.21a to the registrant’s report on Form 8-K, dated
December 22, 2004 (File No. 001-13664)).

Form of Indemnification Agreement between The PMI Group, Inc. and certain of its officers and
directors (incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.15 to the registrant’s quarterly report on Form
10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2003 (File No. 001-13664)).

Form of Change of Control Employment Agreement (incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.20 to
the registrant’s annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002 (File
No. 001-13664)).

Form of Stock Option Agreement for Employees (incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.24 to the
registrant’s report on Form 8-K, dated February 23, 2005 (File No. 001-13664)).

Form of Stock Option Agreement for Directors (incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.26 to the
registrant’s quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2003 (File
No. 001-13664)).

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement (incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.27 to the registrant’s
quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2003 (File No. 001-13664)).

Form of Performance Share Agreement (incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.37 to the registrant’s
annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003 (File No. 001-13664)).

Form of Stock Unit Agreement for Non-Employee Directors (incorporated by reference to exhibit
10.39 to the registrant’s report on Form 8-K, dated October 15, 2004 (File No. 001-13664)).

Form of 1984 Master Policy of PMI Mortgage Insurance Co. (incorporated by reference to the
registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (No. 33-88542), as amended).

Form of 1994 Master Policy of PMI Mortgage Insurance Co. (incorporated by reference to the
registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (No. 33-88542), as amended).




Exhibit ‘
Number : Description of Exhibits

10.17 Amended CMG Shareholders Agreement, dated as of June 1, 2003, between CUNA Mutual
Investment Corporation and PMI Mortgage Insurance Co. (incorporated by reference to exhibit

10.8 the registrant’s annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003 (File
No. 001-13664)). |

10.18  Runoff Support Agreement, dated October 28, 1994, between Allstate Insurance Company, The PMI
Group, Inc. and PMI Mortgage Insurance Co. (incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.9 to
Amendment No. 1 to Form S-1, filed with the SEC on March 2, 1995).

10.19 - Form of Tax Sharing Agreément among The PMI Group, Inc., The PMI Group, Inc.’s subsidiaries,
The Alistate Corporation, Allstate Insurance Company and Sears, Roebuck and Co. (incorporated
by reference to exhibit 10.10 to Amendment No. 1 to Form S-1, filed with the SEC on March 2,
. 1995). .
10.20 - Mortgage Insurance Variable Quota Share Reinsurance Treaty effective January 1, 1991 issued to
" . PMI Mortgage Insurance Co. by Hannover Ruckversicherungs-Aktiengesellschaft (“Hannover”)
-(incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.11 to the registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1
. (No.33-88542), as amended).

10.20a - 'First Amendment to Mortgage Insurance Variable Quota Share Reinsurance Treaty made as of
B * January 1, 1992 between Hannover and PMI Mortgage Insurance Co. (incorporated by reference to
the exhibit 10.12a to registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (No. 33-88542), as
amended). ,

1021 © , First Amendment to the Quota Share Primary Mortgage Reinsurance Agreement (No. 15031-940)
- " made as of October 1, 1994 between PMI Mortgage Insurance Co. and Capital Mortgage
Reinsurance Company (incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.14 to the registrant’s Registration
Statement on Form S-1 (No. 33-88542), as amended).

10.22 - "Per Mortgage Excess of Loss Reinsurance Tréaty effective January 1, 1994 issued to PMI Mortgage
Insurance Co. by Hannover (incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.16 to the registrant’s
i Registration Statement on Form S-1 (No. 33-88542), as amended).

10.23 The Guarantee Agreement, dated February 4, 1997, between The PMI Group, Inc. (as Guarantor) and
- The Bank of New York (as Trustee) (incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.29 to the registrant’s
- Form 10-K, filed with the SEC on March 31, 1997 (File No. 001-13664)).

10.24 Amended and Restated Trust Agreement, dated as of February 4, 1997, among The PMI Group, Inc.,
as Depositor, The Bank of New York, as Property Trustee, and The Bank of New York
(Delaware), as Delaware Trustee (incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.30 to the registrant’s
~ Form 10-K, filed with the SEC on March 31, 1997 (File No. 001-13664)).

10.25 Master Repurchase Agreement dated as of April 24, 2003 between Banc of America Securities LLC
- and The PMI Group, Inc. (incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.22 to the registrant’s quarterly
report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2003 (File No. 001-13664).

10.26 Stockholders’ Agreement, dated as of Angust 3, 2003, among Falcons Acquisition Corp., The PMI
Group, Inc., Blackstone Capital Partners IV L.P., Blackstone Capital Partners IV-A L.P. and
Blackstone Family Investment Partnership IV-A L.P., Cypress Merchant Banking Partners II L.P.,
- Cypress Merchant Banking IT C.V., Cypress Side-by-Side LLC, 55th Street Partners I1 L.P., CIVC/
" FGIC Investment Company LL.C, CIVC Partners Fund I, L.P., CIVC Partners Fund ITIA, L.P.,
and the management investors listed therein and any other management investors who
subsequently become a party to the agreement (“Stockholders’ Agreement”) (incorporated by
B reféféﬁce to exhibit 99.1 to the registrant’s current report on Form 8-K, filed with the SEC on
August 6, 2003 (File No. 001-13664)).

10.26a h‘j:First‘ Amendment to Stockholders’ Agreement, dated as of December 18, 2003.
10.26b; _Secoln‘d ‘Amendment to Stockholders’ Agreement, dated as of February 25, 2004.
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Description of Exhibits

Third Amendment to Stockholders’ Agreement, dated as of July 14, 2004.

Equity Commitment Letter, dated as of August 3, 2003, signed by The PMI Group, Inc, Falcons
Acquisition Corp., FGIC Holdings, Inc. and General Electric Capital Corporation (incorporated by
reference to exhibit 99.2 to the registrant’s current report on Form 8-K, filed with the SEC on
August 6, 2003 (File No. 001-13664)).

Purchase Contract Agreement, dated as of November 3, 2003, between The PMI Group, Inc. and The
Bank of New York, as purchase contract agent (incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.29 to the
registrant’s annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003 (File
No. 001-13664)).

Pledge Agreement, dated as of November 3, 2003, among The PMI Group, Inc., The Bank of New
York, as collateral agent, custodial agent and securities intermediary, and The Bank of New York,
as purchase contract agent and attorney-in-fact (incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.32 to the
registrant’s annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003 (File
No. 001-13664)).

Remarketing Agreement, dated as of November 3, 2003, among The PMI Group, Inc., Banc of
America Securities LLC and The Bank of New York, as purchase contract agent and attorney-in-
fact (incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.33 to the registrant’s annual report on Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 2003 (File No. 001-13664)).

Form of Corporate Unit (included in Exhibit 10.28).
Form of Treasury Unit (included in Exhibit 10.28).
Form of Note (included in Exhibit 4.8).

Letter dated December 6, 2002 from PMI Mortgage Insurance Co. to Donald P. Lofe, Jr.
(incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.38 to the registrant’s quarterly report on Form 10-Q for
the quarter ended March 31, 2004 (File No. 001-13664)).

Summary of Compensation Arrangements Applicable to Named Executive Officers and Non-
Employee Directors of The PMI Group, Inc.

Summary of Terms, dated January 19, 2004, among The PMI Group, Inc., Credit Suisse First Boston
(USA), Inc., DLJ Mortgage Capital, Inc., FSA Portfolio Management, Inc., SPS Holding Corp.
and Select Portfolio Servicing, Inc.

Revolving Credit Agreement, dated as of December:15, 2004, among The PMI Group, Inc., as
Borrower, Bank of America, N.A., as Administrative Agent, and the Lenders Party thereto.

The PMI Group, Inc. Supplemental Employee Retirement Plan (amended and restated as of May 20,
1999) (incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.3 to the registrant’s quarterly report on Form 10-Q
for the quarter ended June 30, 1999 (File No. 001-13664)).

Statement re: Computation of Net Income Per Share.

Statement re: Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges.
Subsidiaries of the Registrant.

Consent of Ernst & Young LLP.

Certificate of Chief Executive Officer.

Certificate of Chief Financial Officer.

Certificate of Chief Executive Officer.

Certificate of Chief Financial Officer.

* Management or director contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.




Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION
1, W. Roger Haughton, certify that:

1. T have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of The PMI Group, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit
to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which
such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of
the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and 1 are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules. 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal
control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the
registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the
registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over
financial réporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented
in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the
end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

+ (d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting
that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the
‘case of an-annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The régi‘strant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation
of ‘internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the
registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) Al significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control
over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 11, 2005

/s/  W.ROGER HAUGHTON

W. Roger Haughton
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Principal Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION
I, Donald P. Lofe, Jr., certify that:

1. T have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of The PMI Group, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit
to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which
such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information inciuded in this
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of
the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal
control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the
registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the
registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

{(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over
financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented
in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the
end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting
that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the
case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation
of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the
registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control
over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial information; and

{b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 11, 2005

/s/ DONALD P. LOFE, JR.

Donald P. Lofe, Jr.
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
Principal Financial Officer




Exhibit 32.1
CERTIFICATION

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350; I, W. Roger Haughton, Chief Executive Officer of The PMI Group, Inc.
(“Company”’). hereby certify that the Annual report on Form 10-K of the Company for the year ended December
31, 2004 (the “Report”) fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d), as applicable, of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and that the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material
respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company. '

Dated: March 11, 2005 /s/  W.ROGER HAUGHTON

W. Roger Haughton
Chief Executive Officer

The foregoing éertification is being furnished solely pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 and is not being
filed as part of the Report or as a separate disclosure document.




Exhibit 32.2
CERTIFICATION

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, I, Donald P. Lofe, Jr., Chief Financial Officer of The PMI Group, Inc.
(“Company™), hereby certify that the Annual report on Form 10-K of the Company for the year ended December
31, 2004 (the “Report”) fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d), as applicable, of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and that the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material
respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Dated: March 11, 2005 /s/ DoNALD P. LoFE, JR.

Donald P. Lofe, Jr.
Chief Financial Officer

The foregoing certification is being furnished solely pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 and is not being
filed as part of the Report or as a separate disclosure document.
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Information
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First Floor Conference Center
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Investor and Media Inquiries

Our annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly
reports on Form 10-Q, proxy statement, and
investor information and media packets may
be obtained at no cost by calling the Investor
Relations Department at 888.641.4764. Links
to our SEC filings, press releases, and prod-
uct and other information may be found on
our website (www.pmigroup.com).
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Code of Ethics for Senior Financial Officers,
Board Guidelines on Significant Corporate
Governance Issues, Board committee char-
ters and other information relating to our
corporate governance are also available on
our website (www.pmigroup.com) or in
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Relations Department at 888.641.4764.
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888.641.4764.

Stock Exchange Listing

The PMI Group, Inc. is listed on the New
York Stock Exchange and Pacific Exchange
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Transfer Agent Shareholder Records
For information regarding registered stock
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